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J
16
U JUN 1949
From: Chief of Naval Operations.
To: Judge Advocate General.

Bubject: Oase of TERAKI, Tadashi,

Enclosure: (A) Tile of procesdings in the case of TERAKI, Tadashi.

1. Enclosure (A) i1s returned with contents noted.
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NAVY DEPARTMENT

-.--"'T | T OFFICE OF THE JUDGE ADVOCATE GENERAL
&JP WASHINGTON 28, D. C.
15 JUN 1948
[
Tot The Chief of Navel Operations (Op-22)

The proceedings, findings and sentence in the foregoing
military conmission case, and the actions of the convening and
reviewing suthorities thereon, in the opinion of the Judge Advocate
General, are legal.

Referred for information.

G. L, RUSSELL
Judge Advocate Oeneral of the Navy.
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MILITARY OOMMISSION REFERBAL  6-7-49 bem Onse No, 167855
Hame Rank Date Hecelved
Tadashi TERAKI A former 2nd Lt,, IJN 24 Moy 1949

Trial Held Date of Trial

U.8. PacFit., 4 March 1949

Com. Nav Forces,

Guam, Harianas.

Offensen

VIOLATION OF THE LAW AND CUSTOMS OF WAR

Spec 1 - 23 Feb, 1945, Ohichi Jima, Bonin Is., 414, at a
time when a state of war existed between the U.8,
of America, its allies and dependencies, and Imperial
Japanese ire, wilfully dierespect the grave of an
Americnn , name to the relator unkmown, but be-
lieved to be Marvie William Mershon, who died in the
captivity of and was buried by the Jepanese armed forces,
by unlawfully disinterring the body of said POW and
;;oﬂn; the liver and flesh from the thigh of sald

Spec 2 - At game time and place, did prevent the honorable
turial of an American POW, exact name unknown, but
believed to be above-mentioned American POW, by
mutilation of the body and removal of the liver and
flesh from the thigh of said POW,

Spec 3 - 26 Feb, 1945, same place, 4id prevent the honorable
burial of an American Pd. exact name unknown, by
mutilation of the body and removal of the liver and
flesh from the thigh of sald POW,

Spec 4 - 26 March 1945, same place, did prevent the honorable
turial of an American POW, Floyd Ewing Hall, by dis-
gection snd mmtilation of the body and removal of the
liver and flesh from the thigh of sald FOW,

Spéc 5 - 26 Mar, 1945, same place, did kill an American POV,
namely, Floyd Bwing Hall, by beheading with a sword.

Pleas
B0 to Oharge snd 6 specs.
FINDINGS .
@ (specs 1, 2, 3 and 4, proved in part; spec 5, not proved)
SENTENCE:
To be confined for s period of four (4) years,
C.A. AOTION! 26 1 1949
i _ PP4S approved. Reduced period of confinement to three years
nd five (5) mgnthe. Will Do tyans. to the cugtody of the OF, @th U.
w i - ENnSs T1T f h FEam e AT T i B s T 1 . m
Reviewing Anthority Actiomi 18 May 1940 okyo, Ympan,
Proceedings, findings on specs 1,23, & 4, and sentence
as mitigated, and the motion of the C.A, are approved,
The record is, in conformity with App, D-14, NO&B 6 1937, and CNO

l Ser. O1Pg2 of 28 Nov, 1545, transmitted to the JAG, &




14, n 1
| .n_m_ u ‘ .wmm r
m. .__F __ __a i g
ik mm .:_%_:_
. i
..L _._m Hasie i .ﬂ

i P i




15 JUN 1949

" et The Ohief of Wawal Operations (Op.22)

The nge, findings and sentence in the foregeing

silitary ssion onse, and the sstions of the and
mmunh-tuun{uu.nmmumm

General, ave lagal,
Referred for information.
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MILITARY OOMMEISSION REFERRAL 6-7-40 bem

it

mn
.

Rank
former 2nd 14, , 13N

Il

of fouy (4)

To Yo confined fer a

O (spess 1, 3, 3 ant 4, proved in pasl; spes 5, net proved)

dalE: il

26 Ayl 1980

Redueed peried of sonfinemant Lo thyes (%)




15 JUN 1940

Tot The Ohief of Fawnl Operations (Op.2n)

The nge, Tindings and sentence in the feregeing
military comission sase, and the astions of the sonvening and
revioving mtherities thereon, in the epinion of the Judge Advecate
Gemeral, are logal,

Referred for information,

0. 1. WMUSSNLL
Judge Advoeate Osnsral of the Navy.
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MILITARY OOMMISSION REFERRAL  6.7-49 hem Gase No, 167855
Dabe Reselved
Tadashi TERAXT former 2nd I4,, 1IN 2 Ny 1940
Trial Held T Dabe of T¥lal
U, 5. FPaa?ls., 4 March 1949 {
Gom, Eav Torces,
Gusm, Harianss.
Offensen
TIOLATION OF THE LAV AND ( ONS OF WAR
Spes 1 -~ 28 Fol, 1945, Ohishi l-lltl..lllull
tize vhen a state of war existed detwemn U.s,
of Amerien, 1ts allies and depeniensies, and Imperial
lw-u:la,dlhlhﬂm*lmﬂﬂ

Amerio-n + Rame

G.A. ACTION® 26 dpril 1940
PR&I veld, Rofused peried of eenfinesent bo three (2)




15 JUN 1940

Tot The Ohdef of Nawnl Operations (Op.22)

The proceedings, findings and sentence in the foregeing
militery commission case, and the sstions of the conwening and
revieving mutherities thereon, in the opinion of the Judge Advocate
General, are lagal,

Heferred for information.

¢ L. WssmlL
Jadge Advocate Oeneral of the Navy,



MILITANY COM'I55ICH HAPERRAL -7-40 bem Case Ne, 167805
Eane Rank Date Resceived
Tadashi TERAKL, former 2nd l4,, 1JN M Moy 1949
h'lnl'l'-'nld Date of Trial

U'" S" "'l-ﬂ!l'-n.. i Hﬂm 1“‘

Qons, Hav Forceno,
Ouam, Herianas.

Offenses

TICLATION OF T4 LAY AND CUSPOHU OF VAR

Spee 1 - 73 Peh, 1045, Ohiehd Jimn, Bonin Is., 414, nt a
tizme vhen a stnte of war existed betweem the U.S,
of /iperigr, 1ts nllies and dependensies, and Imperial
Japanese lrmire, wilfully disrespect the srave of an
iperie n MUJ peme to the relator unkoewn, tmt be-
Uaved Lo be larvie W{lliam Mershon, whe died in the
enptivity of and wam buried by the J panese rrmed forces,
Y unlrv™'ly diainterring the boly of sald POV gnd
ranoving the liver and flesh fron the thigh of sald
FOW,

Spea 2 « At smiie t!me nnd plroe, 414 prevent the honoradle
burial of an Ameriean Pftﬂ"f, exnot name unknewn, but
belioved to be abdove-mentioned Amsriean FO¥, Wy
mtilaticon of the body and removal of the liver and
flesh fro- the thigh of sald POV,

Sree 3 . 26 Fabh, 104E. qane ~lven, 84 prevent the homorabdle
burial of an Ameriean FO¥, exact mame unknown, Wy
matilation of the body and removal of the liver and
fleah fron the $high of anid FON,

Spec 4 = 26 Forel 1945, sese plass, did nrevenmt the homorable
burial of nn imerican FOY, Floyd iwing Hall, by dle-
section cand smtilation of the bedy and remowval of the
liver ani flesh from the thigh of sald FOV,

Spee B = 36 ¥-r, 1945, sane place, did kill an American POV,
namely, "loyd Bwing Hall, %W behesding with a swerd,

Fleas
—n te Charye ond O spegs.
FIMDINQS
@ (epeos 1, 2, 3 and 4, proved in pard; spes 5, net proved)

SENTENCE)

To be confined for a peried of four (4) years,
C.A. AOTION! 26 April 1949

FP&S ap roved., Redused peried of senfinsment to thyes (7) n-?

. f 2 (M hh U, S

Reviewing Authority Aeti

fiy I- ‘v }
‘ 3
Proceadings, gﬂ‘llﬁl om ru .‘l:!. & 4, and gent
as mitigated, rnd the sstion of the are approved.,
- The rocord 1s, in ¢ nformity with App, B.14, WOER, 1937, and ONO
Sey, OLP22 of 20 Yow, 1948, transmitted to the JAS,
=-l-




"ot M. Ohlef of Mawnl Cnerations (Ope22)

"e wroceedingn, findings and sentence in the forapoing
militery cormiesicn omee, end the sotlons of the eonvening and
revievin- mtherities therecn, in the opinion of the Judge Advocate
Gentaral, nre legnl,

aferred for information,

¢, 1., RUSSHLL
Judge Advoente General of the ¥avy.




Uone

MILITARY COMMESSION RAFERRAL  6.7-40 bem

formew 2nd 14, , 120
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C.A. ACTIUND

Refused period of sonfinement to thwes (1)




15 JUN 194

l ' \ ot The Ohdef of Fawnl Operations (Op.2n) {

The nrooeedings, findings and sentence in the foregeing
ﬂutm_nlum.-dhmim-rhmm-ﬂ
revievine mtheritios thereon, in the epinion of the Juige Advescate
OGanewvnl, are legal,

“afarred for information.
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NAVY DEPARTMENT /

P S WASHINGTON 18, D. C.
JAGIIMED:lsh - l0' 24
00=Terakl, Tadas -
(6-16-49)° 167855 ~ §4 Ui
The proceedings, findings and sentence in the foregoing \
militi.r]r conmission case, the actions of the convenlng and
I reviewing autharities thereon, are approved,

o FE 4‘_74_&—44

DAN A. EIMBALL
Acting Secretary of the Navy.
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Case of

TERAKT, Tadashi
March 4, 1949

RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS
of a
VILITARY COMISSION !

convened at

" United States Pacific Fleet
Commander Navel Forces, Marianme
Guam, Marianae Yslands,
by order of
‘ The Commander Naval Forces, Marianas







the words "surgeon second lieutemant, IJA'; which words
MHJWWJMM i
mr‘!ln.:'im

"The third specification of the charge proved

the words 'surgeon second liesutenant, IJA!

and for which the commission substitutes the
officer, !ledieal Department, Imperial Japanese Army
words are proved,

"The mmnmumﬂmmwmmm.
the words 'surgeon second lieutenant, ', which words
and for which the commission substitutes the words !pro
officer, Medical Department, Imperial Japanese Army Res
words are proved,

"The fifth specification of the charge not proved,

"ind that the accused, Teraki, Tadashi, is of the charge qnu?.l: .'___L-‘. "

 SENTENCE: The commission on 17 March 1949 sentenced the accused as fc
*The commission, theref sentenoes ey :“_'*
oniond T & Lorted of Cor (4] ey T, Tetuie

E _.e "‘.
2. On 26April 1949 the convening authority (Comsander Naval Forose

© Marianas), subject to certain remarks not herein quoted, took the

"The proceedings, findings on specifioation 1, 2, 3 and 4 and
on the charge, and sentence in the foregoing case of s » Tadash

the accused has been held in mﬂmluﬂ:é --._W

6 Auzust 1948, the period of coni neme

bed
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FF12/A17-19 THE PACIFIC COMMAND
02-JDM-f sk AND UNITED STATES PACIFIC FLEET
HEADQUARTERS OF THE COMMANDER NAVAL FORCES MARIANAS p
HAVAL PORCES MARSHALLS-CAROLINES AND MARSHALLS-CAROLINES AREA -

2 5 APR 1949
MEMORANDUM TO: Commander in Chief Paeifie and United States Pasifie Fleet.
' Commander Naval Forees, Marianas, : :

Subjest: Review of the Reeord of Trial by a Military Commission of
former surgeon sesond lieutenant TERAKI, Tadashi, IJA,

References: (a) CinCPas/POA Rest. Desp. 170150 Dee. 1945.
(b) CinlPae and U.S. PaeFlt Staff Instruetions 1948,
paragraph 2 I 3 (f).

Enelosures: (A) Resord of subjeet case (original and three copies; one eopy

for CinCPaeFlt; one eopy for SeeNav for delivery to United
Natione War Crimes Commission; and one eopy for Commander
Naval Forees, Marianas).

(B) Proposed astion to be taken by Commander Naval Forees,
Marianas on subjeet sase.

(C) Proposed aetion to be taken by Commander in Chief, U.S.
Pasifis Fleet, on subjeet sases.

1. In assordanes with referenees (a), (b) and verbal instruetions of
Commander Naval Forees, Marianas, this brief, whieh sontains my somments and
resommendations, is submitted.

24 TRIAL:
a, Offense.

CHARGE - VIOLATION OF THE LAW AND CUSTOMS OF WAR

Speeification 1

In that TERAKI, Tadashi, then a surgeon sesond lieutenant, IJA, attashed to the
military installations of the Imperial Japanese Army, Vhiehi Jima, Bonin Islands, and
while so serving at said military installations, did, at said Chiehi Jima, Bonin
Islands, on or about February 23, 1945, at a time when a state of war sxisted between
the United States of Ameriea, its allies and dependensies, and the Imperial Japanese
BEnpire, wilfully disrespest the grave of an Ameriean prisoner of war, name to the
relator unimown, but believed to be Marvie William Mershon, who died in the saptivity
of and was buried by the Japanese armed forees, by unlawfully disinterring the body of
said prisoner of war and removing the liver and flesh from the thigh of said prisener
of war, this in wviolation of the law and eustoms of war.
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THE PACIFIC COMMAND

ﬂlZfll?-l? AND STATES PACIFIC FLEET
02=~JDM~1 sk HEADQUARTERS OF THE COMMANDER NAVAL FORCES MARIANAS
HAVAL FORCES MARSHALLS-CAROLINES AND MARSHALLS-CAROLINES AREA
9 5 APR 1949
Subjeet: Review of the Resord of Trial by a Military Commission of

former surgeon seecnd lieutenant TERAKY, Tadashi, LJA.
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Speeifisation 2

In that TERAKI, Tadashi, then a surgeon sesond lieutenant, IJA, attashed to the
military installations of the Imperial Japanese Army, Vhiehi Jima, Bonin Islande, and
while so serving at said military installations, did, at said Chiehi Jima, Bonin
Islands, on or about February 23, 1945, at a time when a state of war existed between
the United States of Ameriea, its allies and dependensies, and the Imperial Japanese
Empire, wilfully and unlawfully prevent and eause to be prevented the honorable burial
of an Amerisan priscner of war, name to the relator unknown, but belisved to be Marvie
William Mershon, who died in the saptivity of the Japanese armed forees, by mutilation
of the bedy and removal of the liver and flesh from the thigh of said prisoner, this
in vielation of the law and sustoms of war.

Spesifieation 3

In that TERAKY, Tadashi, then a surgeon seeond lieutenant, IJA, attashed te the
military installations of the Imperial Japanese Army, vhishi Jima, Bonin Islands, and
while se serving at said military installations, did, at said Vhiehi Jima, Bonin
Islands, on or about February 25, 1945, at a time when a state of war existed between
the United States of Ameriea, its allies and dependeneies, and the Imperial Japanese
Empire, wilfully and unlawfully prevent and sause to be prevented the honorable burial
of an Ameriean prisoner of war, name to the relator unkmowmn, who died in the sapbivity
of the Japanese armed forees, by mutilation of the body and removal of the liver and
flesh from the thigh of said prisoner, this in violation of the law and eustoms of war.

Spesifieation L

In that TERAKI, Tadashi, them a surgeon sesond lieutenant, IJA, attashed to the
military installations of the Imperial Japanese Army, “hiehi Jima, Bonin Islands, and
while so serving at said military installations, did, at said Chiehi Jima, Bonin
Islands, on or about Mareh 26, 1945, at a time when a state of war existed between the
United States of Ameriea, its allies and dependensies, and the Impsrial Japaness
Empire, wilfully and wnlawfully prevent and eause to be prevented the honerable burial
of Floyd Ewing Hall, an Ameriean prisoner of war, who died in the eaptivity of the
Japanese armed forees, by disseetion and mutilation of the body and removal of the
liver and flesh from the thigh of said prisoner, this in vielation of the law and

sustoms of war.
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FF12/AL7-19 THE PACIFIC COMMAND
02-JDM-1 sk AND UNITED STATES PACIFIC FLEET
HEADGUARTERS OF THE COMMANDER NAVAL FORCES MARIANAZ
MAVAL FORCES MARAHALLS - CAROLINES AND MARSHALLS - CARDLINES AREA =
Subjest: Rewiew of the Besord of Trial by a Military Commission of

former surgeen sesond lieutenant TERAKI, Tadashi, IJA.

Spesifieation 5

In that TERAKT, Tadashi, them a surgeon seeond lieutenant, IJA, attashed te the
military installations of the Imperial Japanese Army, Chiehi Jima, Benin Islands, and
while so serving at said military installations, asting with SATO, Kesakiehi, then a
first lieuwtenant, IJA, and NAKAMURA, Shigenobu, then a sorperal, IJA, both attashed te
the military installations of the Imperial Japanese Army, did, at Chiehi Jima, Bonin
Islands, on or about Mareh 26, 1945, at a time when a state of war existed between the
United States of Ameriea, its allies and dependensies, and the Imperial Japanese Empire,
wilfully, feloniously, with premeditation and maliee aforethought, and without justi-
fiable eause, assault, strike, kill and sause to be killed by beheading with a sword,
Floyd BEwing Hall, an Ameriean prisoner of war, then and there held eaptive by the armed
forees of Japan, this in wielation of the law and sustoms of war.

bs FPleas:
To the Charge = Not guilty R.p. & .
To Speeifisation 1 - Net gmilty R.p. &
To Speeifieation 2 - Not guilty Repe &
To Speeification 3 - Not guilty Rope &
To Speeifieation L - Not guilty RePe &
Te Speeifieation 5 - Net guilty R.pe &
¢. Findings:
On the Charge - Guilty H.p. T4
On Speeifieation 1 - Proved in part B.ps Th

Proved exsept the words "surgeen seeond lieutenant,lJA",
which words are not proved, and for whieh the commissien
substitutes the words "probationary offiser, Medisal Depart-
ment, Imperial Japanese Army Reserve”, whieh words are proved.
On Speeifieation 2 - Proved in part (Repe 7h)
Proved exeept the words "surgeon seeond lieutenant, LJA",
whieh words are not proved, and for whish the commission
substitutes the words "probationary offieer, Medieal Depart-
ment, Imperial Japanese Army Reserve," whish words are proved.
On Speeifieation 3 = Proved in part . (Repe Th)
Proved exsept the words "surgeon sesond lieutenant, LJAY,
whieh words are not proved, and for whieh the eommission
substitutes the words "prebaticnary offieer, Medieal Depart-
ment, Imperial Japanese Army Reserve," whieh words are proved.

3~
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! FF12/A17-19 THE PACIFIC COMMAND
02~-JDM-1 sk AND UNITED STATES PACIFIC FLEET f

HEADQUARTERS OF THE COMMANDER NAVAL FORCES MARIANAS
NAVAL FORCES MARSHALLS - CAROLINES AND MARSHALLS - CAROLINES AREA O £ 1D ""Id‘g
d Al I

Subjest: Review of the Besord of Trial by a Military Commission
of former surgeon sesond liewtenant, TERAKI, Tadashi, IJA.
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i On Speeifieation 4 = Proved in part (Repe 7h) {
Proved exeept the words "surgeen sesond liswtenant, IJA®,
whiech words are not proved, and for whieh the ecommissien
substitutes the words "prebationary officer, Medieal Depart-
ment, Imperial Japanese Army Reserve™, which words are proved.
On Speeifisation 5 - Net preved (Repe 7h)

ds. Sentense:

Four (4) years eonfinement (R.p. 77)
e, Maximum Sentenee:

Deaath.
f. Convening Authority:

Rear Admiral C. A. POWNALL,

United States Navy,

The Commander Naval Forees Marianas.
g+ FPlase of Trial:

The auditorium, Headquarters, Commander Naval Forees
Marianas, Guam, Marianas Islands (R.p. 1).

t he Date of Trial:
L Mareh 1949 te 17 Mareh 1949

Arraignment: 4 Mareh 1949 (R.p. 4).
Sentenee: 17 Mareh 1949 (R.p. 77).

3e FORMAL MATTERS:
a. Authority fer the sommission to ast.
The authority was the same as that used in previous trials.
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FF12/A17-19 THE PACIFIC COMMAND
02 =JDM=1 sl AND UNITED STATES PACIFIC FLEET

HEADGU A RTERS OF THE COMMANDER NAVAL FORCES MARIANAS
HAVAL FOROES MARSHALLS - CAROLINES AND MARSHALLS - CAROLINES AREA

2 L Ilrn' il
Subject: - Heview of the Record of Trial by a Military ﬁ-imﬁ R
of former Surgeen Second Liesutenant TERAKI, Tadashi, IJA.

be All members of the commission were present throughout the trial.

ce ALl members of the commissien, Judge advocate, reperters, inter-
mhrn, and witnesses were sworn (R.p. 1, 2, 7, 13, 25, 30, 34, 36, 39, 4k, 46, 52,

de The accused was represented by counsel of his o choice (R.p. 1).

@&s The charge and specifications were shown to have .besn served on the
accused on 14 February 1949 (R.p. 2).

f. The accused challenged Rear Admiral Arthur G. Robinsen, U.S. Navy,
president of the military commission, on the ground that he had sat as the preaident
of the military commission that tried Lieutenant General TACHIBANA, Yoshio, et al, on
charges based on the same incidents concerning which the accused is now on trial.

Rear Admiral Robinsen replied and aclmowledged that while the
statement of defense counsel was substantially correct that he could try the present
case without prejudice or partiality according to the evidence which shall come before
the commission (R.p. 2).

The commission properly denied the challenge (H.p. 2; Sec. 388,
N.Ce & B., 1937; and JAG Desp. 1001635 July 46).

ge The accused objected to the charge and specifications (R.p. 2;
App. "F", "G¥) in effect upon the following grounds:

Objection 1: Specification 2 is duplicative of Specification 1.

H While the offense set forth in Specification 1 and the offense set
forsh in Specification 2 grow out of the same incidents, two distinct effenses are
charged and may properly be plesaded in separate specifications. "Different
offenses, however, if of the sames nature, sheuld be included in separate specifi-

cations under the same charge (N.C. & B., 1937, Sec. 23).

Objection 2t The specifications are defective in that they do not set out the
specific law and customs of war which the accused allegedly viclated.

t: It is not necessary that the laws and custems of war be set forth
verbatim. The commission is empowered to. take judicial notice of treaties,

e
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FF12/A17-19 THE PACIFIC COMMAND
02 =J D=1 8k AND UNITED STATES PACIFIC FLEET

HEADQUARTERS OF THE COMMANDER NAVAL FORCES MARIANAS
HAVAL PORCES MARSHALLS - CAROLINES AND MARSHALLS - CAROLINES AREA

APR 1549
Subject: Roview of the Becord ef Trial by a Military Cessisside’ i
of former Surgeon Second Lieutenant TERAKI, Tadashi, IJA.
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statutes, etc., and such matter need not be charged (Sec. 309, N.C. & B., 1937). }
Similar pleading in cases tried before military commissions in this area have been

upheld by reviewing authorities (visz. trial of TACHIBANA, Yoshie, et al, Charge II,

Specificatien 7).

Objectien 3t  The alleged offenses charged in Specificatiens 1, 2, 3 and 4 de net
constitute offenses in violatien of the law and customs of war.

3 The law and customs of war in this respect has been set forth in
numereus treaties and convention provisions and is well settled in intermational
law (Hague Convention Ne. X, Art. 16; Art. 3 and 4, Geneva Red Cross Conventlon;
Art. 76, Geneva Prisener of War Convention). Convictien of accused war criminals
for prevention of honorable burial under similar circumstances has been upheld by
reviewing authorities (trial of TACHIBANA, Yoshie, et al, Charge II, Specificatien

7)s

biection Lt In accordance with Naval Courts and Boards, Specificatien 5 should
precede #uiﬂcnﬂm 4 because of chronelogy and that failure to deo so is pre-
judicisl te the substantive rights of the accused.

Comment : Section 2l of Naval Courts and Boards is merely a guide for clarity
and simplicity in the presentation of charges and specifications and provides: "So
far as practicable, charges and specifications should alse be placed in chrone-
logical order.® In the instant case the offenses charged in Specifications 4 and 5
occurred on the same day. It was deemed preferable to place the murder specification
1 after the specification with regard to honorable burial, in view of the fact that
it was the only specification charging the accused with such an offense. Clearly
no substantive right of the accused was prejudiced thereby. |

’ he The commission ruled that the objectiens to the charge and
specifications were not sustained and found the charge and specifications in due form
and technically cerrect (E.p. 3).

The action of the commission in overruling the objections te the
charge and specifications was, in my opinien, correct for the reasons stated in the
above comments.

i, The accused was properly arraigned (R.p. 4).

I —-6-
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FF12/A17-19 THE PACIFIC COMMAND
02=JDM-£ sk AND UNITED STATES PACIFIC FLEET

HEADGUARTERS OF THE COMMANDER NAVAL FORCES MARIANAS
HAVAL FORCES MARSHALLS - CAROLINES AND MARSHALLS - CAROLINES AREA

Subject: Review of the Record of Trial by a Military Commis -:’15 APR 1949

of former Surgeon Second Lieutenant TERAKI, Tadashi, IJA.

-—-u-—-—-n—--------—-——---—-——--——--—--—--—-ﬂ---—----

a. The accused made a plea to the jurisdictien (R.p. 3; App. "J%,
MK") in effect upon the following grounds:

(1) The United States armed forces were not in occupation of Chichi Jima
at the time the alleged offenses were committed.

(2) Chichi Jima is not currently within the area of command of the
convening authority, nor is he the civil administrater of that area.

(3) Specifications 1, 2, 3 and 4 do not set forth a recognized offemnse in
violation of the law and customs of war.

The plea to the jurisdiction was denied (B.pe 3)s -

The sction of the commission in denying the plea was, in my
epinien, proper for the reasons stated in paragraph 6. a. below.

b, The accused made a plea in bar of trial (R.p. 3; App. "M") in
effect upon the ground that the accused had been previously placed in jeopardy for
the of fenses with which he is now charged since he was named in certain specifications
in the case of Lieutenant General TACHIBANA, Yoshio, et al.

H In the Tm,utnlcuu,miﬂmmtiumd as a persen who
Lieutenant General TACHIBANA failed to contrel (Specificatien 3, Charge III) and
who Major MATOBA failed to contrel (Specificatien 20, Charge I11). However,

TERAKT was not named as an accused in the letter containing the charges and speci-
fications; he did nmot in fact appear at the trial; and was not placed on trial in
the TACHIBANA case. In short, he was not placed in jeopardy, and therefore, this
plea of former jeopardy entered in his own trial was groundless. The law, in this
regard, is clear and definite. "In order, however, to sustain a plea of former
jeopardy, the accused must show that: (13 Upon a former trial, he had been actually
acquitted or cenvicted; or (2) upon a former trial, after he had been arraigned and
the prosecution had rested its case, the convening authority entered a nolls preo-
sequi (or withdrawal or discontinuance), over the objection of the accused, in erder
to P?“nt the court martisl frem arriving at a finding..s«" (Sec. 408, N.C. & B.,
1937).

The plea in bar of trial was, in my opinien, preperly denied

(R;sh 3)-
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cs The accused made a plea in abatement (R.p. 3; App. "0") on the |
greund that no notice was given to the protecting power of the trial of the accused,
as provided for in Article 60 of the Geneva Priseners of War Convention of July 27, 1929.
L

H The Supreme Court of the United States considered this identical
question in the Yamashita case (327 U.S. 1) and held ",,..we conclude that Article
60 of the Geneva Convention....applies only to persons who are subjected to judicial
preceedings for offenses committed while prisoners of war." In the instant case the
accused was arrested as a suspected war criminal for offenses committed prier te the
time he became a priscner of war.

The plea in abatement was, in my opinion, properly denied (R.p. 4).
ds The accused made a motion for a bill eof particulars (E.p. 4; App. "Q")

Comment: ‘here is no provision in Naval Courts for such a motion (N.C. & B.,
1937, Sec. 4O4).* The function of the motien for the bill of particulars, as used

in civilian courts, is to obtain amplificatien of the information or indictment,

where it does not sufficiently inform the accused of the crime with which he is
charged, in order to enable him to properly prepare his defense. In naval courts,

the charges and specifications are the indictment and the accused by timely objections
to the charges and specifications may accomplish the same end sought in a request for
a bill of particulars. The accused had already objected to the charge and specifi-
cations on the same ground raised in his motion for a bill of particulars (R.p. 2;
App. "F%, "GW),

The motien was, in my opinion, preperly denied (R.p. k).

e+ The accused pleaded "not guilty®™ to the charge and specifications
(Rupu l});

f«. The accused made a motion to suppress the use of any evidence of the
trial of TACHIBAMA, Yoshie, et al, against him (R.p. 5).

Comment ¢ At the time this motion was made no testimony or document from the
TACHIBANA trial had been offered in evidence. Objectiens to the introductien of
evidence in a case like this, where there is ne question of returning to the accused
illegally obtained evidence, should be made by the party concerned at the time such
evidence is presented and offered in evidence. The instant motion, relative to the
rejection of evidence which the defense presumes the prosecution may intend to

intreduce at a later time, would be hypethetical in nature, and a decisien by the
commission sustaining such motien (i.e. rejecting evidence which has not been
offered), would be a feckless act.
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The cemnmissien's action in denying the motien at this point in the
preceedings was proper (R.p. 5).

g+ The accused objected (R.p. 7; App. "W") to the prosecution's
request that the commission take judicial notice of: (1).The Hague Convention No. IV
of October 1907, and the annex therete, ratified by beth the United States and Japan,
particularly Articles 4 and 19; (2) The Hague Convention Ne. X of 1907, ratified by both
the United States and Japan, particularly Article 16 thereef; (3) The Geneva Prisoners
of War Conventien of July 27, 1929, and of that fact that although Japan had not
formally ratified this conventien, it agreed through the Swiss Government te apply the
provisions thereef to priscners ef war under its contrel; particularly Title 1, Articles
2 and 76 thereof; (4) The Geneva Red Cross Convention of 27 July 1929 (for the amelie-
ration of the condition of the wounded and sick of armies in the field), ratified by
both the United States and Japan, particularly Articles 3 and 4 thereof; (5) The
Potsdam Declaration of 26 July 1945, particularly paragraph 10; (6) That a state of war
existed between the Imperial Japanese Empire and the United States of America, its
allies and dependencies, during the peried from December 7, 1941 te September 2, 1945;
and (7) The Instrument of Surrender frem the Japanese Government and the Imperial
General Headquarters signed September 2, 1945, preclaiming uncenditional surrender te
the Allied Forces.

Comment : The commission announced it would take judicial notice of the items

requested by the judge advocate (R.p. 7). The action of the commission was, in my

opinion, legal. Section 309, N.C. & B., 1937, provides: "Courts should take

judicial notice of: (a) Facts forming part of the commen knowledge of every persen

of ordinary understanding and intelligence....; well-imown....histerical....facts;

(b) Matters which are so easily ascertainable in suthentic form that the court may
inform itself by reference to some authentic, accessible source of :!.nfomt-i-l

eeeep(c) Matters which the court is bound to lmow as a part of its o special duty

and function, such as the United States Constitutiem, treaties...."

Se EVIDENCE: Briefly summarized the competent evidence is to the fellowing

as For the presecutien.

The accused, TERAKI, Tadashi, was a surgeen attached to the 308th
or MATOBA Battalion of the General TACHIBANA divison ef the Imperial Japanese Army,
stationed en Chichi Jima, Bonin Islands (B.p. 13). TERAKK was one of twe medical
of ficers serving at the dispensary of the MATOHA unit (R.p. 13). The incidents alleged
in the specificatiens all eccurred on Chichi Jima, Benin Islands, as follews:

e L8
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On or about February <3, 1945, an American prisener of war,
believed to be Marvie William Mershen, was behesaded. Major MATOBA participated
in this murder (R.p. 11). On the day following this beheading, under orders from
comnanding officer Major MATOBA, TERAKL and several of his subordinates proceeded
to the place of burial (Exh. 4(a)). In accordance with these orders TERAKI ordered
the disinterring of the bedy. When the bedy was exhumed, TERAKI removed the liver
from the body and ordered KANEMORI, one of corpsmen sergeants, to remove abeut ome
kan (8.26 1bs.) of flesh frem the thigh of the corpse (R.p. 15). TERAKI was aware
of the brutality of the act (BExh. 4(a)), and did not lnow of an ason for the
removal of the liver and flesh (R.p. 14). The liver and fle ced in celle-
phane paper and delivered to a sergeant frem battalion head 8. The body eof
the prisoner of war was then reburied (R.p. 14). The sergeant departed in a truck
for the 307th Battalion Headquarters, where MATOBA awai the delivery of the
package (Exh. 4(a)). The flesh and liver of the victim aten by MATOBA and
others at the 307th Battalion Headguarters, and later of the esating of
human flesh spread around the island (R.p. 11, 51).

On or about February 25, 1945, an American prisoner of war,
name unknown, was beaten and stabbed to death at the headquarters of the 308th
Battalion. Under orders from the commanding officer MATOBA, TERAKI proceeded te
the scene of .the killing, and removed the liver and ordered the removal of the
flesh from the thigh of the prisoner of war. The liver and flesh was taken te
the battalion commander's room (H.p. 26; Exh. 4). =

On or about March 26, 1945, an American prisoner of war, named

Floyd Ewing Hall (R.p. 11; Exh. 1) was taken to a place near the headquarters of
the 308th Battalion (Exh. 2(a), 3(a)). TERAKI, who had been ordered by MATOBA te
perform a dissection for the training of the medical personnel of the dispensary
(Exh. 4(a)), was present at the scene. A total of about twenty to forty persons
were present (R.p. 31; Exh. 3(a)). TERAKI ordered the guards to sit the priscner
down cross-legged (Exh. 2(a)). TERAKI also requested Captain SATO, who was™ the
of ficer in charge of the execution (H.p. 15; Exh. 3(a)), te "please execute

ckly as there will be air raids and they will interfere with the instruction®
?‘;m 3(a)). The prisoner was beheaded by NAKAMURA (Exh. 2(a)). After the
beheading, TERAKI performed a demonstration dissectien of the body of the priscner
for the instruction of the assembled medical persennel (R.p. 16, 31; Exh. 4(a)).
TERAKI, in accerdance with previous orders, removed the liver and had KANEMORI
remove about one kan of the flesh from the thigh of the prisoner (H.p. 16, 31;
Exh. 4(a)). TERAKI told KANEMORI that he did not know what was to be done with
the flesh (R.p. 16). The liver and flesh was taken away by the orderliss (R.p.
16; Exh. LE:}E. Enlisted personnel were ordered to bury the body (R.p. 16).
Later, MATOBA ate the flesh and liver (R.p. 11, 51; Exh. 1).

~10=
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bs For the defense. 1

The accused TERAKI, at the time of the incidents, was a probaticnary
medical officer (R.p. 57; Exh. 8(a), 9(a)). He was suberdinate to surgeon second
}J.uutennit- SAKABE, who was the medical officer of the 308th Battalion dispensary

B.p« 53)«

All of the officers of the 308th Battalien, including TERAKI, were
in great fear of the commanding officer Major MATOBA who was a cruel barbaric man
(H,p, 5':'1 5?; Bxh. 3{5): jvl-(l}; E(I)j ?{ﬁ}}-

On or about February 23, 1945, and about February 25, 1945, -the
accused was ordered by Hai-::-r MATOBA to remove the liver and flesh frem the bodies of
the two prisoners of war (R.p. 48, 54).

Similarly, the participation of TERAKI in the incident in late
March 1945 was done under orders of Major MATOBA (R.p. 54). TERAKI, who was in charge
of training of auxiliary corpsmen, was ordered by Major MATOBA to perform a demon-
stration dissection for the training of the medical corpsmen when the next prisener of
war was executed. On the day of the execution MATOBA's adjutant, KANMURI, ordered
TERAKT to proceed to the scens of the execution and remove liver and flesh from the
body and to dissect the body for the training of the corpsmen. TERAKI proceeded te
the scene. Upon arrival at the scene he found a large group assembled, and he joined
the crowd (Rep. 15, 55). The prisoner was already seated (E.p. 19, 5&5- Captain
SATO was in charge of the execution. TERAKI did not speak to either NAKAMURA or SATO
prior to the executien (R.p. 20, 54, 55, 56). NAKAMURA beheaded the prisoner.
TERAKI waited 15 or 20 minutes to ascertain that the prisoner was dead, and then in
accordance with MATOBA's orders (R.p. 50), removed the liver and flesh, and performed |
a dissection of the pody of the prisener of war (R.p. 56).

6e DISCUSSION:
™ As to juriﬂdi“iﬁn w

Express authority to appeint military commissions te try war
criminals was delegated to the Commander Marisnas Area by the Commander in Chief,
United States Pacific Fleet, in his confidential serial 0558, dated 8 March 1946.
Purther, it appears that such authority is inherent in a military commander (App. D.,
N.C. & B., 1937; Yamashita v. Styer, 327 U.S. 1). The Commander in Chief, Pacific and
U.S. Pacific Fleet, changed the title "Commander Marianas Area" to “"Commander Naval
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Forces Marianas" effective 1 August 1948 (CinCPac and CinCPacFlt ltr serial 2682,
dated 11 June 1948, Subject: Pacific Fleet Letter 2L-47; Third Revisien)., By letter
dated 1 August 1948, CinCPac serial 2955 and CinCPacFlt serial 3490, the Commander in
Chief, Pacific and U.S. Pacific Fleet wvested in the Commander Naval Forces, Marianas
all authority in connection with war crimes heretofore vested in the Commander
Marignas Area by virtue of his authority as Commander in Chief, U.S. Pacific Fleet and
Pacific Ocean Areas, and now as Commander in Chief, Pacific and U.S. Pacific Fleet.

It is well established that a military commission convened by
suthority of the Commander in Chief, United States Pacific Fleet and/or any military
commander has jurisdiction to try war crimes and accused war criminals (Yamashita v,
Styer, 327 U.S. 1; App. D., N.C. & B., 1937; SecNav ltr. re war crimes dated 13 Jan.
1945; and CinC U.S. Fleet ltr. serial 2812, dated 6 April 1945).

The accused made & plea to the jurisdiction on the grounds set
forth in paragraph L.a. above, The first twe grounds of this plea were based on the
contentions that: the United States armed forces were not in occupation of Chichi
Jima at the time the offenses were committed: and that Chichi Jima is not currently
within the area of command of the convening authority, and he is not the civil
administrator of that area. These grounds of objection to the jurisdiction of the
commission are not valid.

The precept in the instant case constituted a full and complete
grant of authority to the instant military commissien to try "all offenses within
the jurisdiction of exceptional military courts," and nothing in the precept limits
the jurisdiction of the commission so as te exclude the accused or the offenses charged
in the instant case. On the contrary, the precept in addition te its bread grant of
autherity specifically prevides that "nothing herein limits the jurisdiction of the
military commission as to persons and offenses which may be otherwise properly
established."

Paragraph 4 of the precept provides that "The military
commission shall be competent to try all effenses within the jurisdiction of
exceptional military courts....It shall have jurisdictien over all Japanese
nationals,...charged with of fenses cemmitted against United States nationals..«s.
Nothing herein limits the juriedictien of the military commission as te persons
and offenses which may be otherwise properly established."
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l Similarly, note that CinCPac and CinCPacFlt letter dated 1 {
August 1948, UinCPac serial 2955 and CinCPacFlt serial 3490, referred te in

paragraph 1 of the precept, in additien te confirming the autherity of Commander

Naval Forces, Marianas to exercise all authority in connection with war crimes

+sssshoretefore vested in the Commander Marianas Area, specifically notes that

"Hothing in this letter limits the inheremt authority of a military commander te

cenvene military commissions."

Examined in the light of the fundamental law of jurisdiction with
regard to military commissions and war crimes offenses, it is clearly established that
the commission possessed the necessary authority and jurisdiction te try the accused
for offenses in violation of the law and customs of war committed on Chichi Jima. The
relevant law of jurisdiction in war crimes cases, is discussed at length in my review
of the trial of Vice Admiral HARA, Sec. 6.a., pages 31, 32, and 33, wherein it is
peinted out that such jurisdiction extends te "offenses against the common law of
nations, by whomsoever and wherescever committed."

The remaining ground of the accused's plea to jurisdictien was
based on the contention that the offenses alleged in Specifications 1, 2, 3 and 4 de
not constitute offenses in violation of the law and customs of war. Specification 1
alleges disrespect te the grave of an American prisoner of war, and Specificatiens 2,
Bnndkallmthuurrmnn!unlnfulpmmtimdhnmnblaburiﬂ. This ground
of objection to the jurisdiction is invalid. It is discussed in paragraph 3.g.
(Objection 3) of this memorandum in comnection with a similar objectien made by the
accused to the charge and specifications.

i bs As te precedure.

(1) Selection of the commission followed the approved practice of |
ineluding Army, Navy and Marine Corps officers as members of the commission (see my
memorandum dated 20 February 1946 in the case of Colonel OISHI, et al). Presecutien
and defense personnel were duly authorized and appointed by the convening autherity.

(2) The proceedings of the commission, as authorized in the precept,
were governed by the provisions of Naval “ourts and Boards, except that the commissien
was permitted te relax the rules for nava® courts and use the rules of evidence and
procedure, issued and promulgated by the Supreme Commander for the Allied Powers
(APO 500, 5 Dec. 1945 AG 000.5), where necessary to obtain justice.

(3) The accused was advised of and accorded all rights prescribed.

[ (4L) The sentence is legal.

=13=
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Ce A8 te evidence.

Referring to the charge and specificatiens thersunder, there is
sufficient competent evidence te support the commission's finding of guilty relative
to the accused TERAKI. :

Five specifications were alleged under the charge. The presecutien
clearly proved, and the accused made no effort to rebut the proof of the first four
specifications (R.p. 53; Exh. 4(a)), which involved: the disinterment of the bedy of
a prisoner of war and removal of liver and flesh from the thigh thereof, on or about
February 23, 1945 (Specificatiens 1 and 2); the removal of the liver and flesh from
the thigh of a prisoner of war, on or about February 25, 1945 (Specification 3); and
the dissection and removal of liver and flesh from the thigh of a prisoner of war, omn
or about March 26, 1945 (Specification 4).

The prosecution proved that the removal of the liver and flesh was
not performed for any lawful purpose as the liver and flesh was eaten by the canni-
balistic MATOBA and others (R.p. 11, 51; Exh. 1), and circumstantially the prosecution
established that the accused did not know of any lawful purpose, or bslieve that there
was any lawful purpose, for the removal of liver and flesh from the dead bodies, or the
performance of the dissection (R.p. 14, 16, 51; Exh. 4(a)).

The accused did not attempt te contrevert this proof, or contend
that he believed that there was any lawful reason for the removal of the liver
and flesh from the bodies of the priseners. On the contrary, TERAKI in his
confession admits that at the time of obeying the orders for removal of the liver
and flesh and the dissection, he knew they were brutal orders, and that on each
occasion he attempted to refuse to obey the orders (Exh. h(n}s.

The only defense offered by the accused to the allegations of
Specificatiens 1, 2, 3 and 4 was the contention that he acted pursuant to the orders
of his commanding officer, Major MATOBA. The defense of "guperior orders® dees not
constitute a defense to a crime, but may merely be considered in mitigation of
punishment (SCAP Regulations, para. 5d(6), Basic ltr. SCAP 000.5, 5 Dec. 1945, cited
in paregraph 6 of instant precept; War Criminals, Their Prosecution and Punishment,
GLUECK, p. 140; 67 LBA 294; Judgement of International Tribunal at Nuremberg, Sept.
1946; Judgement, International Military Tribunal for the Far East, 1 Nov. 1948, p.
25, 26).

The cemmission properly ruguct.ad this defense and found
Specifications 1, 2, 3, and 4 proved (in part), and the accused guilty of the charge.
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Specifications 1, 2, 3 and 4 were found proved, except for the
words "surgeon second lisutenant, IJA", for which the commissien substituted the words |
"probationary officer, Msdical Department, Imperial Japanese Army Reserve" which words
were found proved (R.p. 74). The commissien's finding of "proved in part™ as te
Specifications 1, 2, 3 and L does not affect the legality of the finding of guilty as
te the charge, inasmich as the exceptions made by the commission leave the specifications
still supporting the charge (Sec. 429, N.C. & B., 1937).

The commissien found Specification 5 of the charge not proved
(R.ps Th). However, since the remaining specifications 1 through 4 which were found
proved in part adequately support the charge, the accused was properly found guilty of
the charge.

Sufficiency of the evidence to sustain the finding of the court
should be considered by the reviewing authority, keeping in mind the dutiss of the
court in weighing the evidence (N.C. & B., 1937, Sec. 472(c)). The question for the
reviewing autherity with regard te the findings is whether there is sufficient evidence
to support such a finding, not whether an oppesite finding would have been justified
(CMD 4=1935, pe 5)« Applying this standard of review, it is my epinien that the actien
of the commissien, in finding Specification 5 not proved, is sustainable. No inference
is to be dramn therefrom as to approval or disapproval of the findings of the commissien
in this regard (Sec. 4724, N.C. & B., 1937). Parenthetically, it may be noted that
errer, if made by the commission in finding Specificatien 5 not proved, would not be
prejudicial te the accused. :

Specification 5, im—effeet, charged the accused TERAKI with
murder. The accused TERAKI did not order the execution, nor personally commit the
executien, and was not in command or supervision at the scens of the executien, The
contention of the prosecution was that TERAKI was guilty of murder because: (a)
TERAKT at the scene of the execution actively aided and abetted the commission of I
the murder by seating the victim, and by encouraging NAKAMURA and SATO to have the
execut performed quickly; and/or (b) the murder of the victim, and the sub-

5 ssection and removal of the liver and flesh, were in fact part of a single
planned incident; TERAKI was present at the scene of the executlon for the purpese
of dissectien of the bedy and removal of the liver and flesh; the murder of the
victim was a necessary preliminary te that dispositien of the body; TERAKT was
present when the victim was murdered and 20 minutes later removed the liver and
flesh and commenced the dissection; therefore, TERAKI could net disclaim respon-
sibility for the murder, which was anticipated and was a concatenated part of the

ineident.
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The evidence was conflicting as te whether or not TERAKI had ¢
aided and abetted at the scene of the executien. NAKAMURA's statements indicated:
that TERAKT under orders from SATO ordered the guards to seat the priseoner cress-
legged; that NAKAMURA heard Medicel Officer TERAKI explain to Captain SATO that it
was difficult for foreigners to sit in the higher squatting position (used by
Japanese); and that TERAKI told NAKAMURA to perform the execution quickly (Exh.
2(a)). SATO in his statement testified that TERAKT came te him at the exscutien
and asked him te please execute quickly (Exh. 3(a)).

However, certain features of the SATO statement raised the
question of conflict in the prosecution's evidence., SATO in his statement did
not say that he ordered TERAKI to seat the prisoner or that TERAKI spoke to him
about the seating of the prisoner of war. SATO did say in his statemest that the
Etrg’it?n;i l:::l)‘ war was already seated when SATO arrived at the scene of the executien
« 3(a)).

Additional conflict in the presecution evidence with regard te
the seating of the victim was dewveloped when prosecution witness KANEMORY testified
that TERAKI arrived at the scene shortly after KANEMORI and stood beside him; that
the prisener was seated; that TERAKI did not speak with SATO or NAEKAMURA at the
time; that the prisener was blindfolded and SATO demenstrated to NAKAMURA the
stance for the execution (B.p. 15, 19, 20, 22, 23). However, KANEMORI did leave
the scene of execution prier te the executien and retumed after the executien had
occurred (R.p. 15).

The accused TERAKI teock the stand in his own behalf, and
testified that he did not speak to SATO or NAKAMURA prier to the executiem, but
merely remained in the crowd and that he did not assist in the seat of the |
prisoner for the priscner was already seated when he arrived (R.p. 54).

The commission, in its capacity as jurors, had the power and
duty to weigh the evidence and could properly believe one witness and disbellieve
others whose testimony was in conflict therewith (Sec. 304, N.C. & B., 1937). The
testimony of TERAKI, if believed, clearly disproved the allegatien of actively
aiding and abetting the commission of the murder by seating the victim, and
encouraging SATO or NAKAMURA to perform the execution quickly.

Similarly, the commissien could properly find upen the evidence
that: the murder of HALL by NAKAMURA and SATO was distinct and separate froem the
subsequent removal of the liver and flesh and the dissection performed by TERAKI
i under specific erders from MATOBA; and/er, that the presecution failed te prove

the existence of any connected plan or failed to prove that TERAKI participated in
any such plan (testimony of MATOBA, R.p. 50; Testimony of TERAKI, R.p. 54).

=16~
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FF12/M17-19 THE PACIFIC COMMAND
02=JDM-{ sk AND UNITED STATES PACIFIC FLEET

e HEADQUARTERS OF THE OCOMMANDER NAVAL FORCES MARIANAS
’ nnmw-mmm+mam_ 2 5 ﬁuPH 1949

Subject: Review of the Record of trial by a Military Commissien
of former Surgeon Second Lieutenant TERAKI, Tadashi, IJA.

--h--------—----ﬁ-----*ﬂu—“---—-h----_—-—--

There were, as was to be expected, numerous cenflicts in the
evidence throughout the record. It was the duty of the members of the comnmission in
thelr capacity as jurers te weigh the evidence (Sec. 304, N.C. & B., 1937). There is
nething contained in the record to establish that member failed to apply the
recogniged rules governing the weighing of evidence (Sec. 304 and following, N.C. & B.,
1937) or exceeded his allowed discretion in the matter.

ds As to sentence.

The accused was sentenced to confinement for a period of four (4)
years. The sentence is legal.

In the absence of an established policy by higher authority as te
the appropriate schedule of punishments, the commissien must rely upon its om judge-

" ment in determining what is a just punishment in a particular case., The accused was

convicted of four offenses, as set forth in Specificatiens 1 through 4. These
involved three incidents in which the accused removed the liver and ordered the
removal of flesh from the thigh of a dead priscner of war. With regard to the first
of these incidents, the accused ordered the disinterring of the burisd body of the
victim, and with regard to the third incident, the accused performed a demonstration
dissection in additien to the removal of the liver and flesh., HNo direct or circum-
stantial evidence was produced by the prosecution to establish that the accused
TERAKT lmew until after the delivery of the liver and flesh from the third victim,
that such liver and flesh was being eaten by MATOBA. For this reason, the punishment
of the accused for his offense of disrespect to the grave and preventien of honorable
burial should not be aggravated by the heinousness of MATOBA's cannibalism.

The sentence of the accused TERAKI is not disproportionate to the
offenses committed when viewed in the light of comparable civil crimes under the
Angle-Saxon theory of law. Unlawful disinterment of a body is punished by statute
in some states as a misdemeanor, and in others as a felony (Burdick, Law of Crime,
Sec. 978, fn, 97). At common law it was a misdemeanor to disinter a dead bedy
(Burdick, op.cit. Sec. 978; Bouvier's Law Dictionary Bawle 3rd Editien, Dead Bodies;
Wharton's Criminal Law, 12th Ed. Vol., 2, Sec, 1704). Similarly, the unlawful dis-
section or removal of portions of the dead bedy constituted a misdemeancr at common
law and under statutory law (Wharton's op.cit. Vel. 2, Sec. 1704 and fn. 19). Since
the four offenses of which the accused was convicted are properly comparable to mis-
demeanor eoffenses, which commonly bear a maximum penalty of one year imprisonment,
it cannot be said that the sentence of four (4) years is improper.
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THE PACIFIC COMMAND
02=JDM-f sk AND UNITED STATES PACIFIC FLEET

HEADGUARTERS OF THE OOMMANDER NAVAL FOROES MARIANAS
NAVAL FORCES MARRHALLS - CAROLINES AND MARAFAALLS - CARDLINES AREA. n q 'qJ'PR 1949
Sub jects Review of the Record of Trial by a Military Commissien
of former Surgeen Second Lieutenant TERAKI, Tadashi, IJA,

- . . O s e S e e s oam S ome ome

. The recent recodification of the United States Code, Crimes and
Criminal Precedure, Title 18, U.S. Code, Public Law 772, 80th Congress, 2nd
Session, classifies offenses as follows: "Sec. 1 Offenses classified. Notwith-
standing any Act of Congress to the contrary: (1) Any offense punishable by death

or imprisonment for a term exceeding one year is a felony. (2) Any other offense
is & misdemeanor. (3) sees”

The accused was apprehended and placed in confinement in Sugame
Prison, Tokye, Japan on 6 August 1948. He has.been contimuously held in close custedy
and confinement from that date to the date of trial which commenced on 4 March 1949.
It is my opinion that the period of confinement of seven (7) months while under
investigation and awaiting trial justifies reduction of the sentence by the convening
authority, and that the action of the convening authority sheuld affirmatively evidence
that such reduction is based upon the period of confinement of the accused while
awaiting trial.

e, Generally.

During the trial the defense made many objections to the admis-
sibility of documentary evidence, The judge advocate alse made certain objections.
Each of these objections and the rulings of the commission have been considered.
Based on the authorized procedure for the commission and the rules of evidence, which
were properly adopted (JAG Desp. 062125 March 1946), it is my opinion that the com~
mission's rulings were in all instances legal and without material prejudice to the
interests of the accused. By the precept the commissien was authorized to use the
rules of evidence and procedure contained in SCAP Regulations Governing the Trials of
Accused War Criminals, dated 5 December 1945, as necessary to obtain justice.

While the incidents enumerated in Specifications 1 and 2 are
identical, the specifications are not duplicative, for the offense charged in
Specification 1 is separate and distinct from the offense charged in Specificatien 2.

In accordance with the Judge Advocate General's action (0O-
Tachibana, Yoshio, et al/Al7-20 I(3-19-47 HJH:mas 154578) approved by the Secretary
of the Navy 18 July 1947 (JAG:I:RAS:fld Al7-20/00 (6~25-47) 154578) and the Judge
Advecate General's action (OO-INOUE, Fumie/A17-10 0Q(1-22-48) I:HMMsvee 159116)
approved by the Acting Secret of the Navy 12 February 1948 (JAG:IsRAStbem OO-INOUE,
Fumio/A17-10 0Q(2-20-48) 159116), the findings on either Specification 1 or Specifi-
cation 2 could be set aside, It is my opinion that any action with a view teo setting
aside the findings should be taken by the final reviewing authority if such action is
considered warranted by that authority, and not by the Commander Naval Forces, Marianas
or the Commander in Uhief, Pacific and U.S. Pacific Fleet.

-18-
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FF12/A17-19 THE PACIFIC COMMAND
02=JDM-{ sk AND UNITED STATES PACIFIC FLEET

HEADQUARTERS OF THE COMMANDER NA VAL FORCES MARIANAS
HAVAL FORCES MARAAALLS - CARDLINES AND MARAHALLS - CAROLINER AREA

Subject: Review of the Record of Trial by a Military Commiesien 2 5 APR 1949
of former Surgeon Second Lieutenant TERAKI, 'r.r.luu TJA.

- EE I IR O O O O e e B e e e e G - - o o e e e e S o e

Te OPINION: It is the opinien of the undersigned that:
as The military commissien was legally censtituted.
b. The commission had jurisdiction of the persen and offenses.
¢« The evidence supports the findings of "proved in part" and "guilty.®

d. The record discloses no errors .ﬂﬂ.t-&!‘il]h prijud.ir:.ul to t.hu p
accuaed,

o. The sentence is legal.

8 RECOMENDATTONS !

It is recommended: (1) that the proceedings, findings on specifi-
cations 1, 2, 3 and 4 and on the charge, and sentence be approved by the convening and
reviewing authorities; (2) that in view of the fact that the accused has been confined
under investigation and awaiting trial since 6 August 1948, the convening authority
accordingly reduce the sentence of the accused a perieod equal to the.time already
served in confinement; (3) that the record, in conformity with Appendix D-14, Naval
Courts and Boards, 1937, be transmitted to the Judge Advocate General of the Navy for
revision and recerd.

Pe ACTIONS:

! Actdons designed to carry the above recommendations inte effect
should they meet with your approval, are submitted herewith as enclosures (B) and EGJ |
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THE PACIFIC COMMAND

AND UNITED STATES PACIFIC FLEET

HEADQUARTERS OF THE COMMANDER NAYAL FORCES MARIANAS
HAVAL FOROES MARSHALLS - CAROLINES AND MARSHALLS - CARDLINES AREA

¢

The military commission, composed of Army, Navy, and Marine Corps officers,
in the foregoimg case, by precept dated 19 January 1949, wag ordered comvenmed
Jamuary 24, 1949, or as soon thereafter as practicable by the Commander Haval
Forces, Marianas pursuant to his imheremt suthority as a military commander and
the specific suthorisation of the Commander im Chief, Pacific amd U, 8, Pacific
Fleet, and High Commissioner of the Trust Territory of the Pacific Islands
(CinC U.S, PacFlt Serial 0558 of 8 Mar, "46; Comlarienmas Desp, 2923362 Sept, '47T)
CinCPacFlt Desp, 020103% Oct, '47; SecHNav Desp, 0219462 Oct, "47; CinCPacFlt Desp.
0923532 Oct, '47; CinCPac and CinCPacFlt 1tr, dtd 1 Aug, 1948, CinCPac Serial
2955 and CiaCPacFlt Serial 3490) and by the Judge Advocate Gemeral of the Navy
(JAG Desp, 311730Z July '46), The commission was authoriszed to try this case as
indicated im the precept. The order for trial (charge and specifications) was
issued 1, February 1949 amd served on the accused om the same date, The trial
was held under authority of Naval Courts and Boards except that the commission
was authorised by the precept to relax the rules of maval courts to meet the
necessities of the trial amd use the rules of evidence and procedure promulgated
December 5, 1945 by the Supreme Commander for the Allied Powers’im his Regulatioms
Governing the Trials of Accused War Crimimels and modifications thereof, as

. necessary to obtaim justice,

The proceedings, findinge on specifications 1, 2, 3 and 4 and on the charge,
and sentence 1m the foregoimg case of TERAKI, Tadashl, former surgeon second
lieutenant, IJA, are approved, In view, however, of the fact that the accused
has been in confinement under investigation and awaiting trial sinmce 6 A t
1948, the period of confimement is reduced to three (3) years and five (5) months.

TERAKT, Tadashi, former surgeon second lieutemant, IJA, will be tramsferred
to the custody of the Comnmandimg Gemeral, 8th U, S. Army, via the first
available tramnsportation to serve his sentence of confinement im Sugamo Prison,
Tokyo, Japan.

C. A, POWNALL,
Rear Admiral, U, 3, Navy, -
The Commander Naval Forces Mariamas,




THE PACIFIC COMMAND
AND UNITED STATES PACIFIC FLEET
Headquarters of the Commander in Chief

c/o Fleet Post Office,
San Francisco, Califormia.

The proceedings, findings on specificatioms 1, 2, 3, and 4 and on
the charge, and semtemce as mitigated im the foregoing case of TERAKT,
Tadashi, former surgeon second lieutemant, IJA, and the actiom of the

convening authority are approved,

The record is, in comformity with Appemdix D=1., Naval Courts and
Boards, 1937, and Chief of Nawval Operatioms serial 01P22 of 28 November
1945, transmitted to the Judge Advoeate Gemeral of the Navy,

DeWITT C. RAMSEY,
Admiral, U, 8, Navy,
Commander im Chief Pacific
and United States Pacifie Fleet.
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THE PACIFIC COMMAND .
AND UNITED STATES PACIFIC FLEET

HEADQUARTERS OF THT COMMAND™R NAVAL FORCES MARIANAS
NAVAL FORCES MARSHALLS~CAROLINES AND MARSHALIS~GAROLINES AREA

Serdal: 2599 26 APR 1949

(In the case of former Surgeen
Second Lientaunt TERAKI, Tadashi, IJA), -

W L Bnrlngporind&ﬂnmhl‘iﬂtnl‘? March 1949 s Todashi, 1-;
- former surgeon second lieutenant, Imperial Japanese im a tried ‘If AL
- United States Military Commission, convened by order of the ﬁﬂ
R Forces, Marianas, dated 19 January 1949, at the Headquarters Commander
; i Forces, Mariangs, on the below listed u&rgu and specifications,

e CHARGE: VIOLATION OF THE LAW AND CUSTOMS OF WAR (five specifications).

. Spec. Nature of Offense Place and Date
: ' of Offensog

1, Disrespect the grave of an POY  Chiehi Jima,.
by unlawfully disinterring of Bonin Islands,
said POW, exact name unknown, but bee 23 Feb, 1945,

PR - uﬂﬁdtﬂhﬁ!ﬂ.ﬂi William Mershon,

“ ks and removing the livor and flesh from
the thigh of said POW,
bl

a2, Provent the honora .w,mm Chichi Jima,
: 2 Fob. 1945,

§§

boelieved to by Marvie Milliam Mershon,
by mutilation of the body and removal
nfthahvﬂrnndﬂﬂlhfmthaﬂﬂgh
of said POW,
- 3« Prevent the honoroble burdial of an Chichi J
American POW, exact name unknown, by Bonin I
" mitdlation of tho body and removal of 25 Fob, 1945,
the 1iver and flesh from the thigh of '
o eaid POW, |
e xuh mr&m&.muu m%
. alasection and 'ﬁiz_ 2 Mar, 1943,




o (In the case of former Surgeon Second
o Lieutenant TERAKI, Tadashi, IJA), _
[l = e s s s = mesmem e ... e e S, -S. = ses e eese= =
B m-mmnuﬁmormwg._mmmm'
the words 'surgeon second lleutenant, IJA', which words are not
and for which the commission substitutes the

words "proba i
officer, lledical Department, Imperial Japanese u:;r mﬁ

words are proved,

- "The third specification of the charge proved in part, proved e opt
hiis - the words 'surgeon second lleutenmant, IJA', which words are not p

e and for which the commission substitutes the words 'proba 2
e ~ officer, ledical Department, Imperial Japanese Army Reserve!,
s words are proved,

,_f_ _"The fourth specification of the charge proved in part, proved
. the words 'surgeon second lieutenant, IJA', which words are not
b and for which the commission substitutes the words 'proba

PRt - officer, Hedical Department, Imperial Japanese Army Reserve!, :
A words are proved, o

"The fifth specification of the charge not proved. :
"ind that the mccused, Teraki, Tadashi, is of the charge mﬂ.lﬁ‘.' i
i 0¥

. SENTENCE: The commission on 17 March 1949 sentenced the accused as

"The commission, therefore, semtences ﬂli‘,"l'ﬂuﬂ. Tadashi, to be
confined for a period of four (4) years, - 78

. Ayg 2. On 26 April 1949 the convening asuthority (Commander Naval Forest
. Marianas), subject to certain remarks not herein quoted, took the follo

"The proceedings, findings on speecification 1, :ﬁ 3 nhl.'.. 4. _ 1
g A ’

» .
former surceon second lieutenant, IJA, are approved, In view, however,
of the fact that the accused has been hold in vonfinement under inves

~ gation and awaiting trial since 6 August 1948, the period of confineme
is reduced to three (3) years and five (5) months. ; -

STERAKI, Tadashi, former surgeon second r
the first available transportation to serve his sentence of confine
in Sugamo Prison, Tokyo, Japan," Zetiaad

Rear
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TERART, Tadashi |
former Zurgeon Second Lieutenant, IJA
|
i mrial by Military Commisslon at the Headguarters, f {
fommander Tavel Torcee, Marianas |
Mareh 4, 1949
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FF12/617-10(1) THE PACIFIC COMMAND
02=JDM-ce AND UNITED STATES PACIFIC FLEET

Serinl: 1271 25 FEB 1949
From: Commander Naval Forces, Marianas.
To: Rear Mdmiral Lrthur G, Robinson, U. 5. Havy,

[ Ly

KEADQUARTERS OF THE COMMANDER NAVAL FORCES MARIANAS
NAVAL FORCES M/RSHALLS-C/ROLINES LND M/RSHLLIS-CLROLINES LAREL

President, Military Commission, Commander Naval
Forces, Marianas (Guam, Marianas Islands),

Subject: Relief of member of military commission,

1. lLieutenant Henry E, Wahl, U. 5, Navy, is hereby relieved as
a member of the military commission convened by my precept of January 19, 1949,
except in event of revision of cases already tried.

/s/ C. !. Pownal)
Cc. {. FOVNI1L,
Rear fdmiral, U, S. Navy,
The Commander Neval Forces, Merlanas.

Copies to:
Lieutenant Henry E, Wahl, USN
Judge ldvocate, Military Commission
Judge ldvocete General, U. 5. Navy

A true copy. Attest:

Lieutenant, U. 5. Navy,
Judge Advocate,




l | FFR2/817-10(1) THE PLCIFIC COMMLND
02-JDM-ga LND UNITED STLTES PACIFIC FLEET

HE'DQU/RTERS OF THE COMMANDER NAV.L FORCES M/RI/LNLS
N/ Vi1 FORCES M RSHLLLS~C/ROLINES AND MARSHLLLS-C/ROLINES /REL

5'| Serinl: 1232 25 FEB 1949
! From: Commander Naval Forces, Marienas, |
| To: Rear /dmiral Arthur G, Robinson, U. S. Navy, '

1 President, Military Commiseion, Commander Naval
| Forces, Marianas (Guam, Mariancs Islands).
|

Subject: Change in membership of military commission. !

|

|

! 1. Major Wilbur R. Helmer, U, 5. Marine Corps, is hereby

i appointed & member of the military commission of which you are presidant
convened by my precept of Januery 19, 1949, vice Captain Fermit H Sheny,

| U, 8 Marine Corps, hereby relieved, except in evemt of revision uf cages
| already tried. '*

% il /8/ C. . Pownall
i C. L. POINALL, I
! Reor lMdmiral, U. . Navy, |

: The Commander Bavel Forces, Marianas,
|

Coples to:

i! n jor Wilbur R, Helmer, USMC

| Ceptain Fermit H, Shelly, USMC |
| Judge [dvocate, Militery Commlssion

: Judge [dvocate General, U, 5., Navy

- Commanding Officer, Marine Barracks, Guam

| Commanding Offiser, Fifth Service Depot, CGuam

lﬁ true comy. Attest:
* A folden
' '1Unviﬁ RPolton,

Lieutenant, 7. S, Navy,
Judee Advocate,
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THE PACIFIC COMMAND {
i FF12/A17-10(1) AND UNITED STATES PACIFIC FLEET
02=JDhi=ce
HEADQUARTERS OF THE COMMANDER NAVAL FORCES MARIANAS
NAVAL FORCES MARSHALLS-CAROLINES AND MARSHALLS=CAROLINES AREA

{| Serial: 1273 1 MAR 1949 |
|

|

! Fromi Commander Naval Forces, Marinnas,

| Tos HRear Admiral Arthur G, Robinson, U, S, MNavy,

Prosident, Military Commission, Commander Naval
Forces, Mardanas (Guam, Marianas Islands).

|
‘ Subjoect: Change in membership of military commission,
|

1, Major Laurance B, Payne, Transportation Corps, United States
Army, 1e hereby appointed a member of the military commission of vhich you
aro prosident, convened by my precept of January 19, 1949, vice Licutenant
| Colonel Harry ™, McCormick, Quartermaster Corps, United S'I:.at-ea Army, horeoy
| relieved, except in event ni‘ revision of cases already tried,

| /s/ C. A, Pornall

' C. A, PONALL,

| Rear Admiral, U, S, Navy, |
: The Commander Maval Forces, Marianas|

|| Zoples tor
| dnjor Laurance B, Payne, TC, USA
| Lieutencnt Colonel Harry W. McCormick, QC, USA
, Judge Ac’vocati, Military Commission
' Jodge Advocatc Goneral, U, S, Navy
Commanding General, Marianas Bonins Command

A troe copy,., Attest:

Lo

David Beol

Lieutenant, U. S. Navy,
:ﬂdlﬂ Advoocate.
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FF12/A17-13(2) ''"HE PACIFIC COMMAND
02-JDM~1 sk AND UNITED STATES PACIFIC FLEET

HEADJUARTERS OF THE COMUANDER NAVAL FORCES MARIANAS
|| NAVAL FORCES LARSHALLS-CAROLINES AND MARSHALLS-CAROLINES AHEA

serial: 964

14 rtb 1999

From: Commander Naval Forces, kiarianas.
To @ Lieutenant Commander Joseph A. liegan, USN and/or
Lieutenant David Bolton, USN and/or

Commission, Comuander Naval Forces, llarianas.

Subject: Charge and Specifications in the case of TERAKI, Tadashi.

1. The above named person will be tried before the military
|commission of which you are judge advocate upon the following charge and
lspecifications. You will notify the president of the commission accordingly,
linform the accused of the date set for trial, and suamon all witnesses, both
|[for the prosecution and for the deiense.

CHARGE

| VIOLATION OF THE LAW AND CUSTOMS CF WAR

I Specification 1
f In that TERAKI, Tadashi, then a surgeon second lieutenant, IJA,
lattached to the military installations of the Imperial Japanese Army, Chichi
(|[Jima, Bonin Islands, and while so serving at said military installations,
|ldid, at said Chichi Jima, Bonin Islands, on or about February 23, 1945, at a
[time when a state of war existed between the United States of America, its
[lallies and dependencies, und the Imperial Japanese Empire, wilfully
?disruspect the grave of an Auerican prisoner of war, name to the ralator
[|lunknown, but believed to be Marvie William Llershon, who died in the captivity
llof and was buried by the Japanese armed forces, by unlawfully disinterring
ithe body of said prisoner of war and removing the liver and flesh from the
jt.high of said prisoner of war, this in violation of the law and customs of




On !fﬁ day of February 1949 recelved a copy of the Charge and
Specifications in English and Japanese, |

| 5 A %

TERAKI, Tadashi,
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(Jima, Bonin Islands, and while so serving at said military installations, did,

Specification 2

In that TERAKI, Tadashi, then a surgeon second lieutenant, IJA,
attached to the military installations of the Imperial Javanese Army, Chichi

at said Chichi Jima, Bonin Islands, on or about February 23, 1945, at a time
when a state of war existed between the United States of Amerieca, its allies
and dependencies, and the Imperial Japanese Empire, wilfully and unlawfully
prevent and cause to be prevented the honorable burial of an American

prisoner of war, name to the relator unknown, but believed to be Marvie
William Mershon, who died in the captivity of the Japanese armed forces, by

mtilation of the body and removal of the liver and flesh from the thigh of
!fsaid prisoner, this in violation of the law and customs of war.

il Specification 3
|

' In that TERAKI, Tadashi, then a surgeon second lisutenant, IJA,
attached to the military installations of the Imperial Japanese Army, Chichi
Jima, Bonin Islands, and while so serving at said military installations, did,
at said Chichi Jima, Bonin Islands, on or about February 25, 1945, at a time
when a state of war existed between the United States of America, its allies
and depsndencies, and the Imperial Japanese Empire, wilfully and unlawfully
prevent and causs to be prevented the honorable burial of an Amsrican
prisoner of war, name to the relator unknown, who died in the captivity of
Ithe Japanese armed forces, by mutilation of the body and removal of the liver
jJand flesh from the thigh of said prisoner, this in violation of the law and

écua toms of war.

Specification 4

In that TERAKI, Tadashi, then a surgeon second lieutsnant, IJA,
attached to the military installations of the Imperial Japanese Army, Chichi
Jima, Bonin Islands, and while so serving at said military installations, did,
at said Chichi Jima, Bonin Islands, on or about March 26, 1945, at a time when
la state of war existed between the United States of America, its allies and
ldependencies, and the Imperial Japanese Empire, wilfully and unlawfully
prevent and cause to be prevented the honorable burial of Floyd Ewing Hall,
an American prisoner of war, who died in the captivity of the Japanese armed
forces, by dissection and mutilation of the body and removal of the liver and
flesh from the thigh of said prisoner, this in violation of the law and

jcustoms of war.




-
- |

Specification &

In that TERAKI, Tadashi, then a surgeon second lisutenant, IJA,

attached to the military installations of the Imperial Japanese Army, “hichi

!Jiml, Bonin Islands, and while so serving at said military installations,
Facting with SATO, Kesaldchi, then a first lieutenant, IJA, and NAKAMURA,
{[Shigenobu, then a corporal, IJA, both attached to the military installations
lof the Imperial Japanese Army, did, at Chichi Jima, Bonin Islands, on or
labout March 26, 1945, at a time when a state of war existed between the
[United States of Amerieca, its allies and dependencies, and the Imperial
Japaness Enpire, wilfully, feloniously, with premeditation and malice afore-
thought, and without justifiable cause, assault, strike, kill and cause to be
(killed by beheading with a sword, Floyd Ewing Hall, an American prisoner of
war, then and there held captive by the armed forces of Japan, this in

|viclaticm of tha law and customs of war.

| & . [Emoil
| C. A. POWNALL,

Rear Admiral, U. S. Navy,
The Commander Naval FYorces Marianas.
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FIRST DAY

United States Pacific Fleet,
Commander Naval Forces, Marianas, }
' Guam, Marianas Islands, .
Friday, March 4, 1949.

The commlssion met at 9:10 a.m.
Present:
Rear Admiral Arthur G. Robinson, U. 5. Navy,

| ¥ajor Wilbur R. Helmer, U, S. Marine Corps,
| Mejor John H, Lott, Corps of Militery Folice, United States Army,
I

Iieutenant Commander Loyd 8. Bjorle, Supply Corps, U. 8. Navy,
' Major leurance B. Payne, Transportation Corps, United States Army,
| members, and

Iieutenant David Bolton, U. 5. Navy, judge advocate.
I

Privete first class Theodore J. Ferdinand, U. S. larine Corps, entered
'with the accused and reported as provost marshal.

| The judge advocate introduced Paul F, Coste, junior, yeoman first class)
|U. 8. Navy, Archie L. Faden, junior, yeoman firet cless, U. 8. Navy, and

orn. |

|
|
| The judge advocete introduced Iieutenant (junior grade) Bugene F. Clark)
[U. 8. Navy, lr. Kimio Teuji, Vr. Kan Akateni, and Mr. Yoshio Akateni ae

| interpreters, and they were duly sworn,

The accused requested that Commander Martin E. Carlson, U. S. Naval
'Reserve, Mr, Junjiro Tekano, and Mr. Sedamu Senagi sct as his counsel,
| Commander Carlson, Mr, Takano, and Mr. Sanagl took seat as counsel for the
iaccuﬂud. .

The judge advocate read the precept and modifications thereof, coples
prefixed marked "A", "EW, "C", and "D".

An interpreter read a Japenese translation of the precept and modifi-
cations thereof.

The accused objected to Rear Admirel Arthur G, Robinson, U. 8. Navy, as
followas

Rear Admiral Arthur G, Robinson, U. 8. Navy, because he sat as the president
of the Commission which tried Iieutenant General Tachibana, Yoshioj Major
Matoba, Sueo; Captain Seto, Kesakichi; Corporal Nakamura, Shigenobu, et al,
under the charges and specifications dated July 22, 1946, chargee growing out
of the identicel incidente on which the charges in this case are based.
(Section 388(e) Neval Courts and Boards).

The judge advocate replied as follows:

The challenge by the accused to Rear Admiral Arthur G. Robinson, U. 8.
Navy, 18 in the opinion of the judge advocate not s valid ground for nbj-utior
to thie member. The accused has never been tried before Rear Admiral Arthur
G. Robinson, and the accused has nmot alleged that this member of the commis-

1

'Elvin G. Gluba, yeoren first class, U. S. Navy us reporters and they were duly
sw

The accused, Teraki, Tadashi, challenges the president of the Commissioh



-

- | g - N

sion 1s antagonistic or prejudiced against him or has formed any opinion
concerning his sullt or innocence. In accordance with the duly authorlzed 1
prior precedents of this and other military commissions the challenge to a
member of a military commission should not be sustained when the challenged
i member 1s able to declare in open court that he can truly try without prejudice |

or partiality the case now depending according to the evidence which shall | \
|come hefore the commission, the rules of evidence prescribed for the trial,
the ocustoms of war in like cases, and his own consclence. Assuming that Rear
Admiral Robinson 1= ahle to so truly state, the challenge can properly be
denied “or challenges similar to those made by the mccused in the instant
llcase have been made in vrlor cases tefore military commissions sitting here on
Guam. The challenges were not sustained in such cases and these cases have
heen reviewed and approved hy convening authority, reviewing authority, and
the Judge ‘dvocate General of the Navy. These cases stand as sound precedent
- with regard to the instant challenge.

l! The chal]_emgei member replied as follows: o
|

| Tt is ouite true that T have sat In the previous trial mentioned by

efense, however I wish to solemnly assure the accused and all parties to thiq
+yrig] of my belief that T can truly try without prejudice or —artiality the
lease now dependine accordi

[the rules of evidence prescribed for this trial,

lcages, and my own consclence.

ng to the evidence adduced before this commlisslon,
the customs of war in like

the challenged member withdrawing.

The commission was cleared,

™he commlssion was opened, All partles %o the trial entered, and the
commission announced that the ohjection was not sustained.

The judge advocate and each member were duly sworn,

|
5.
|
|
|

L
™he acensed stated that he had received two coples of the charge and
4spaciPicatiuna preferred against him, one in English and one in Japanese, oOn |
[[February 14, 1949.
™he judge advocate asked the accused if he had any ohjectlon to make to
the charge and specifications.
The accused replied in the affirmative.
l Takano, Junjiro, a counsel for the accused, read a written objectlion to
the charge and specifications, appended marked "E".
' _ An interpreter read an English translation of ¥r, Tekeno's objection,
|arpended marked "F", ,
I ; .
_ Commander Martin E, Carlson, a counsel for the acousel, read a further i
written ohjection to the charge and specifications, appended marked "GW,
The accused walved the reading of Commander Carlson's objection in
Japanese in open court.

The judge advocate read a written reply to the objections to the charge
and specifications, appended marked "H".

reading of this reply in Japanese in open court.

The accused walved the

The commission was cleared.

The commission was opened and all parties to the trial entered. .
reporter,

Flvin G.. Gluba, yeoman first class, U. 3. Navy,

2




i The commission announced that the objections to the charge and
specifications were not sustained and that it found the charge and specifica-
tions in due form and techniecally correct. .

| The accused stated thet he wae ready for trial.

Mr. Takano, Junjiro, a counsel for the accused, read a written plea to
the jurisdiction in Jepanese, appended marked "I".

. An interpreter read an English translation of Mr. Takano's plea, |
appended marked ®"J%,

:| Commander Martin E. Carlson, a counsel for the accused, read a further
.'I written plea to the jurisdiction, appended marked "K",
|

The accused waived the reading of this plea in Japanese in open court.

The judge advocate read a written reply to the pleas to the jurisdie-
tion, appended marked "LV,

|

|

‘ The esccused waived the reading of this reply in Japanese in open court.
| The commission announced that the pleas to the jurisdiction were not

|| eustained.

|

| The commission then, at 11330 a.m., took a recess until 2:10 p.m., at
which time it reconvened.

in
i ;
| Present: All the members, the judge advocate, the accused, his cuu.nﬂﬂll, |
| and the interpreters.
f
I Archie L, Haden, junior, yeoman firet class, U. 8. Navy, reporter.
I |
il No witnesses not otherwise connected with the trial were present. |
|
! Commander Martin E, Carlson, & counsel for the accused, read a written
| plea in bar of trial, appended marked "IV,
| The accused waived the reading of Commander Carlson's plea in Japanese ;
2 in open court, i
I
The judge advocate read a written reply to the plea in bar of trisl, |
[ appended marked "NV,

The accused waived the reading of the judge advocate's reply in Japa-
nese in open court, .

1 The commiseion announced that the plea in bar of trial was not ault-l,in.+.

Commander Martin E. Carlson, a counsel for the accused, read a written
plea in abatement, appended marked "OW,

I The accused waived the reading of Commander Carlson's plea in Japanese
in open court.

The judge advocate read a written reply to the plea in abatement,
appended marked "FV,




The accused waived the reading of the Judge advocate's reply in |
Japanese in open court. i {

The commission announced that the plea in abatement was not sustained.

Commander Martin E., Carlson, a counsel for the accused, read a writtunl
motion for a bill of particulars, appended marked "Q" . |

The accused walved the reading of Commander Carlson's motion in |
Japanese in open court.

The judge advocate read a written reply to the motion for a bill of
particulars, anpended marked "RW,

The eccused waived the reading of the judge advocate's reply in
Japanese in open court.

The commission announced that the motion for a bill of particulars was|
not sustained, |

The judge advocate read the charge and specifications in English, 5
prefixed marked "SY,

An interpreter read the charge and specifications in Japeanese, pref
marked "T™,

The judge advocate arraigned the accused as follows:

Q. Teraki, Tadashi, you have heard the charge and specifications
preferred against you. How say you to the first specification of the chargej I
guilty or not guilty?

l. Not Eu.ﬂt'?l-

Q. To the second specification of the charge, guilty or not guilty?
l... Not Euilt}rl

4. To the third specification of the charge, guilty or not guilty?
Ad. Hot guilty.

i

4. To the fourth specification of the charge, guilty or not guilty?
A. Not guilty.

Q. To the fifth specification of the charge, guilty or not guilty? .
A. Not guilty.

Q. To the charge, guilty or not guilty? |
A, HNot guilty. [

The commission then, at 2:40 p.m., took a recese until 2:50 p.m., at
which time it reconvened.

Present: MAll1 the members, the judge advoecate, the reporter, the accuse,
his counsel, and the interpreters. |

No witnesses not otherwise connected with the trial were present,

The prosecution began, !




_——

| was not made a party to that trial; he was not present; he could not crose=

The judge advocate read his written opening statement, appended marked
-U“-

An interpreter read a Japanese translation of the Jjudge advocate's
opening statement. '

Commander Martin E. Carlson, a counsel for the accused, made a motion
to suppress any evidence which might be introduced before this commission
that was talen from the Tachibana, et al case on the grounds: that Teraki

examine witneeses; and that to allow any portion of this trisl to be intro=
duced in evidence would be prejudicial to the substantive rightes of the
accused,

The judge advocate replied,
The commission announced that the motlion was not sustained as it was

untimely, and that the correct time for such an objection was at the time such
document was offered in evidence,

|

The judge edvocate requested that the commission take judicial notice |

of the following: ‘
|

1. The Hague Convention No. IV of 18 October 1907 and the
Annex thereto, ratified by both the United States and Japan,
particularly the following portions of the annex thereof:

Article 4 '

"Prisoners of war are in the powsr of the hostile Government,
but not of the individuasls or corps who capture them. They
mist be humanely treated."

Adrticle 19

"The wills of prisoners of war are received or drawn up in
the same way aes for soldiers of the national army,

The same rules shall be observed regarding death certificates
as well as for the burial of prisoners of war, due regard
being paid to their grade and rank. "

2, The Hague Convention No. X of 1907, ratified by both the
United States and Japan, particularly Article 16 thereof, which
reads as follows:

Article 16

"After every engagement, the two belligerents, so far as
military interests permit shall take steps to look for the
shipwrecked, eick, and wounded, and to protect them, as well
as the dead, against pillage and 111 treatment,®

3. The Geneva Prisoners of War Convention of July 27, 1929,
and of the fact that although Japan has not formelly ratified
this convention, it agreed through the Swiss Government to apply
the provisions thereof to prisonsrs of war under ite control ;
particularly Title 1, Articles 2 and 76 thereof, which read ae
followes




l - Article 2 {

' nPrisonere of war are in the power of the hoetile Fower,
but not of the individuals or corps who have captured them,
They must at all times be humanely treated and protected,
particularly against acts of violence, insults and public
curiocsity.

Measures of reprisal against them are prohibited."

Article T&

"Belligerents shall see that prisoners of war dying in
| captivity are honorably buried and that the graves bear
| all due information, are respected and properly main-

“ teined."

4. The Geneva Red Cross Convention of 27 July 1929 (for the
amelioration of the condition of the wounded and sick of armles
- in the field), ratified by both the United States and Japen, !
|§ particularly Articles 3 and / thereof, which read as followa: |

|
!i Article 3

| "After every engegement, the belligerent who remains in
il possession of the field of battle ehall take measures to
I search for the wounded and the dead and to protect them
t i from robbery end 111 treatment.”
|

Article 4 |

. "They shall further see that they are honorably buried and
i that the graves are treated with respect and may always be
found again,”

; 5, The Potsdam Declaration of 26 July 1945, perticularly
paragraph 10 which reads in part as follows: }

| "We do mot intend that the Japanese shall be enslaved as a
race or destroyed as a nation, but stern justice eghall be
P meted out to all war eriminals, including those who have |
visited cruelties upon our prisoners."” |

I ; 6. That a state of war existed between the Imperisl Japanese
Empire and the United States of America, its allies and dependen-
cies, during the period from December 7, 1941 to September 2, 1945.

7. The Instrument of Surrender from the Japanese Government and
the Imperial General Headquarters signed September 2, 1945,
proclaiming unconditional surrender to the Allied Powers, particu=-
larly the following paragraph:

"We hereby undertake for the Emperor, the Japanese Govern-
ment and their successors to carry out the provisions of the
Potsdam Declaration in good faith, and to issue whatever

' orders and take whatever action may be required by the
Supreme Commander for the Allied Powers or by any other
designated representative of the Allied Fowers for the
purpose of giving effect to that Declaration,®

6




i | | :
l Vr. Takano, Junjiro, a counsel for the accused, read a written objection
|to the request for judicial notice, appended marked G

' J An interpreter read an English translation of Mr. Takano's objectlon,
| appended marked ",

: The accused further objected to the commission taking judicial notice
of the items requested by the judge advocate on the ground that they were
|irrelevant and immaterial.

! The judge advocate replied. J

: The commission was cleared.

f The commiseion was opened and all perties to the trial entered.
| Elvin G. Gluba, yeoman first class, U. 8. Havy, reporter.

i The commission announced thet the objections were not sustained and tha
|1t would take judicial notice of the items requested by the judge advocate,

” A witness for the prosecution entered and was duly sworn.

Emmined by the judge advocates:

1, Q. Will you state your name and rank, please?
A. Herbert L. Ogden, commander, U. S. Navy. I

2 Q. If you recognize the accused, state as whom.
|! A, Iieutenant Terald.

3. Q. TWhat is your present duty? |
|| A. T am attached to the office Director War Crimes, Facific Fleet. |

l4. Q. Do you have in your possession certified coples of the charges and
| specifications, findings, action of the convening authority, action of the

| reviewing authority, and action of the Secretary of the Navy in the cace of
' Iieutenant General Yoshio Tachibana, I.J.A., et al?

‘ il. I have.
I |5¢ Q. What is the first charge against Tachibana?
A Murder.

il 6a Q. Do any speeifications under this charge relate to alleged incidents
| on Pebruary 23, 1945 or on Mareh 26, 19457

A Specifications 4 and 5 under Charge I relate to incidents on those dates.
|

s Q. Are the victims named or otherwise identified in Bpecifications 4

g. Q. What is the name of the victim and the date of the incident set
forth in Specification 57 .
A. Specification 5 alleges the murder of an American prisoner of war, name '
to the relator not definitely known, but believed to be one Marvie William
Mershon. The date is on or about February 23, 1945.
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| Do Q. What ie the name or other identification of the victim and the date
in Specification 4 of Charge I in the Tachibana trial?

| A Specification 4 alleges the murder of an American prisoner of war,
Floyd Bwing Hall, The date is on or about 26 March 1945.

| 10, Q. Who certified the charges and specifications?
A. They are certified by E. E. Woods, acting Judge Advocate General of the
Navy, for the Secretary of the Navy.

111, Q. Are these certified to be true copies of the charge and specifica-

| tions in the military commission case of Iieutenant General Yoshio Techibana,
I.J.4., et al?

A. They are.

|

112, Q. W11l the witness give the name of the certifying officer with regar%
|tn the finding, with regard to the action of the convening suthority, with

| regard to the action of the reviewing authority?

A. Copies of the findings, of the action of Commander Marianas, and the
‘actinn of the Commender in Chief, Pacific Fleet are all certified by E. E.
| Woods, Acting Judge Advocate General of the Navy for the Secretary of the Navy,

|

|13, Q. Are these certified to be true copies respectively of the findings,
|inctinn of the convening suthority, and action of the reviewing authority in

| the Tachibana case?

il. They are.

|
i h]A_ Q. Does the witness have in his possession a certified copy of the
| action of the Secretary of the Navy in the Tachibana case? | |

“ A. I have.

115. Q. Who certified this to be a true copy of the action of the Secretary
| of the Navy?

Ll. T have certified this to be a true copy of the original which I also
:|huve in my poessession.

I The certified copies of the charges and specifications, findings, action
!Iof the convening authority, action of the reviewing authority, and action of

| the Secretary of the Navy, from the record of the trial of Tachibana, et al,
produced by the witness, were submitted to the accused and to the commission
|and by the judge advocete offered in evidence. e

[ |

I Cross=-examined by the accused:

|16, Q. Concerning Specification 4, where does it state that the incident
occurred which is mentioned in that epecification? |
4. On Chichi Jime, Bonin Telands. l

17. Q. What is the unit involved as steted in that specification?
A, T an not sure I understend that, do you mean the unit of the accused or
the unit of the victims?

18, Q. The unit to which the accused is connected.

A. Tt states that Tachibane wes Commanding General of the 109th Divislon.
The accused Matoba was commanding officer of the 308th Independent Infantry
Battalion, defendant Sato was attached to the 308th Infantry Battalion,
defendant Nakamura was attached to the 308th Infantry Battalion. \

hl?. Q. Where did the incident in Specification 5 take place? |
A, On Chichi Jima, Bonin Islands. |

8 '.-
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[ 20, Q. Vhat unite were involved in that ineident according to the

‘ specification?

; 4. The sccused Latobe was commanding officer of the 308th Independent |
Infantry Bettelion; the accused Suyeyoshi was commanding officer of the Eth

| Navel Anti-aircraft Battery.

[

|

I

|

21. Q. Are these certified documente that are here being offered into

| evidence the only certified documents that are aveilable in the office of the
| Director Var Crimes, Pacific Fleet, from the record of the Tachibana trial? |
| A. The office of Director Wer Crimes had a copy of the Tachibana record,
| but not certified coples. The only certified coples we have are those which
!‘hnve been offered. |

|l 22. Q. Do the specifications all show that these offenses alleged were in
| violation of the moral standards of civilized society?
gin. The majority of the specificetions inelude thet term,

these words "and in violation of the moral standards of civilized soclety"? |

‘ 23, Q. Do you know if the specifications were amended by striking out
il. The specifications es they now stand in the record include that term.

!|E¢. Q. Then your answer is they were not anmended by any subsequent
i| proceedinge during the trial? '
| s In my opinion they were not.

|
|i25. Q. Do any of the specifications include and name in the specifications
:!Teraki, Tadashi?

| As He is not named as an accused. I would have to examine them to ascer<
|‘tain if he is named in any of them in any other status.

|26, Q. TVill you examine Specification 20 of Charge ITI and see if in thet
| epecification the name Terseki, Tadashi appears?
|| A. It does,

127. Q. Do you know if the Teraki, Tadashi mentioned in that specification
ilia the accused here at this trial and whom you have recognized as Teraki,

| Tadashi®

| A. Tt 1s.

i The witnese was duly warned.

The cormission then, at 4115 p.m., adjourned until 9 a.m., tomorrow,
Seturday, March 5, 1949.




SECOND DAY

United States Pacific Fleet,

! Commander Naval Forces, Marianas,
| Guem, Marianes Islands,

| Saturday, March 5, 1949.
|

|

The commisasion met at 9:10 a.m.
Present:

I Hear Admiral Arthur G, Robinson, U. 8. Havy,
_ lajor Wilbur R, Helmer, U. 5. lerine Corps,
| Yajor John H. Lott, Corps of Military Police, United States Army,
| Iieutenant Commender loyd 8. Bjorlo, Supply Cerps, U. 5. Havy,
| Mejor laurance B. Payne, Transportation Corps, United States Army,
| merbers, and
j Iieutenant David Bolton, U. 8. Navy, judge advocate.
| Elvin G, Gluba, yeoman first class, U. S. Navy, reporter.
The accused, his counsel, and the interpreters.

I The record of proceedings of the first day of the trial was read and
| approved,

i
I No witnesses not otherwise connected with the trial were present.

|
I Herbert L. Ogden, the witnees under examination when the adjournment
|1m5 teken, entered. He was warned that the cath previously taken was still
| binding, and continued his testimony.

|
|

The accused objected to the receipt in evidence of the excerpts from
| the record of the trial of Tachibana, Yoshio et al on the grounds: that they
|| were incomplete, irrelevant, immaterial, and incompetent; that although the
|‘ accused in the instent case had been named in some of the specifications he |
| was not present at the Tachibana trial to cross-examine witnesses; that they |
:' were not the best evidence available to prove the fact of the death of Floyd |
|| Bming Hall which the accused Teraki is charged with; that the documents were |
| hearsay unless the judge advocete offered the entire document in accordance |
with Rule 5, Section 200, Naval Courts and Boerds. i

|
'l The judge advocate replied.
i

The commission was cleared.

The commission was opened and all parties to the trial entered. The
commission announced that the objectlion wae not sustained, but that any
portions of the document read in open court would be subject to objections in
the same manner a& other documents, such ae depositions or statements.

There being no further objection, the documents were so received and arp
appended marked "Exhibit 1V,

Reexamined by the judge advocates
28, Q. Will the witness read Specifications 4 and 5 of Charge I of Exhibit

1, which consiste of certified documents from the military commission trial
of Iieutenant General Yoshio Tachibana, et al?

10




| Commanding Officer of the 308th Independent Infantry Battalion and SUYEYOSHI)

| Antiaircraft Battery, both attached to the military installation of the

The witness read from Exhibit 1 as follows:

"Charge I, Murder, Specification 4. In that TACITBANA, Yoshio,
then a lieutenant general, IJA, Commanding General of the 109th Divieion,
MATOBA, Sueo, then a major, IJA, Commanding Officer of the 308th Independent
Infantry Battalion, SATO, Kesakichi, then & first lieutenant, IJA, attached
to the 308th Independent Infantry Battalion, and NAKAMURA, Shigencbu, then a
corporal, IJA, attached to the 308th Independent Infantry Battalion, all
ettached to the military installations of the Imperial Japanese Army, Chichi
Jima, Bonin Islands, and while so serving at eaid army installations, Chichi|
Jima, Ponin Islande, acting jointly and in pursuance of a common intent, did
each and together, on or about 26 March 1945, on Chichi Jima, Bonin Islends,
at & time when a state of war existed between the United States of America
and the Japanese Empire, wilfully, feloniously, with premeditation and malice
aforethought, without justifiable cause, and without proper trial or other
due process, assault, strike and kill, by beheading with a sword, an Americap
prisoner of war, namely, Floyd Ewing HAIL, ensign, U. S. Naval Reserve, then
and there held captive by the armed forces of Japen, in eggravation of which|
the said MATOBA did, after the death of the said HALL, eat the flesh and |
viscera of the body of the said HALL, all this in violation of the laws and |
customs of war and the moral standards of civilized society."

"Specification 5. In that MATOBA, Sueo, then a major, IJA,
Jitsuro, then a lieutenant (jg), IJN, Commanding Officer of the Eighth Naval

Tmperial Japanese armed forces, Chichi Jima, Bonin Islends, end while so
serving at sald installations, Chichi Jima, Bonin Islands, scting jointly a
in pursuance of & common intent with one MORISHITA, Hironobu, then a lieu-
tenant (jg), IJN, now deceased, did, each and together, on or about 23
February 1945, on Chichi Jime, Bonin Islands, at a time when a state of war
existed between the United States of America and the Japanese Empire,
wilfully, feloniously, with premeditation and malice aforethought, without
justifiable cause, and without proper trial or other due process, assault,
strike and kill, by beheading with a sword, an &merican priscner of war,

to the relator not definitely known, but believed to be one Marvie ﬁilliamﬂﬂl

MERSHON, aviation radiomen third class, U. 5. Navy, then and there held
captive by the armed forces of Japen, in aggravation of which the said JAT
did, after the death of the said American prisoner of war believed to be
WERSHON, eat the flesh and viscera of the body of said prisonmer, all thie in
violation of the laws and customs of wer and the moral standarde of civilized
soclety."

29, Q. Will the witness consult the findinge in Exhibit 1 and reed there-
from the findings as they relate to Specification 4 of Charge I7

The witnese read from Exhibit 1 as followst

"As to the accused, TACHIBANA, Yoshio:

The fourth specification of the first charge proved.

And that the accused, TACHIBANA, Yoehio, Iieutenant General,
Imperial Japenese Army, is of the first charge guilty.

"As to the accused, MATOEA, Sueo:

The fourth specification of the first charge proved,

And that the accused, MATOBA, Sueo, Major, Imperial Japanese
Army, is of the first charge gullty.

"As to the mccused, SATO, Kesakichis

The fourth specification of the first charge proved.

And thet the accused, SATO, Kesakichi, Captain, Imperdal
Japanese Army, is of the first charge guilty.

5l




| 30.

| findings as to Specification 5 of Charge I?

| 71,

| and of the reviewing authority and of the Secretary of the Havy in Exhibit 17

(| &e

| 22,

(| findings of the commission, with regard to Specifications 4 and 5 of Charge I
|| which you have read?

called for an opinion of the witnees as the document could speak for itself,

|
| A

| the reviewing authority, Commander in Chief, Pacific Fleet, and by the
| Secretary of the Navy,

= ===

"As to the accused, NAFAITURA, Shigenocbu:

The fourth specification of the first charge proved.

And that the accused, NAKAITRA, Shigenobu, Corporal, Imperial
Japanese Army, ie of the first charge guilty."

Q. Will the witness consult the findings and read therefrom the

The witnees read from Exhibit 1 as followa:
"As to the mccused, NATUEA, Sueo:
The fifth specification of the first charge proved in pert,
proved except the words 'and Suyeyoshi, Jitsuro, then a
lieutenant (j.g.), IJN, Commanding Officer of the Eighth
Haval Antiaircraft Battery, both' and the words 'each and
together,', which words are not proved.
And that the accused, VATOEA, Sueo, lajor, Imperial
Japanese Army, is of the first charge guilty.
"As to the accused, SUYEYOSII, Jitsuros
The fifth specification of the first charge not proved.
And that the accused, SUYEIOSHI, Jitsuro, Iieutenant,
Imperial Japanese Navy, 1s of the first charge not gullty;
and the comnission does therefore acquit the said SUYEYOUSHI,
Jitsuro, Lieutenant, Imperisl Jepanese Navy, of the first
charge."
Q. Has the witness read the remaining action of the convening authoritlyy
I have.

Q. That action was taken by these authorities with regerd to the

This question waes objected to by the accused on the ground that it

The judge advocate replied.
The commission announced that the objection was not sustained.

They were approved by the convening authority, Commander Marianas, by

The accused did not desire to recross-examine this witness.
The commission did not desire to examine this witness.

The witnese said that he had nothing further to state.

The witness was duly warned and withdrew,

A witness for the prosecution entered and was duly sworn,




Examined by the Jjudge advocate:

1. §. Will you state your name and former rate in the Imperial Japanese
armed forces?
A. Hanemori, Kazutoshi, former corpsman sergeant, Imperial Japanese Army.
2 Q. If you recognize the accused, state as whom.

| & Teraki, Tadashi.
3. Q. Did you ever serve on Chichl Jima in the Bonin Islande during the

|| course of the late war? |

| lqu- Yﬂsj I did- |

1 A Q. During what period of time did you serve on Chichl Jima?
A. From tha 25th of April 1944 until the 25th of November 1945.

: 5e Q. Vhere were you attached during this tour of duty?
A. Until July of 1944 I was asttached to the 305th Battalion. From then |
omvards I was attached to the 308th or latoba Eattelion. :
6. Q. Who was the commanding officer of this 308th or Matoba Battalion?
A. latoba, Sueo, major, Imperial Japanese Army.
Te Q. To what superior organizetion was the 308th Battelion attached?

| A, It was attached to the division of General Techibana,.

| By §. That were your functions with the Matoba unit?

| Ao My duties were with the dispensary attached to the 308th Battelion.

E O Q. Do you know to whet orgaenization the accused Teraki, Tadashi was
attached?

| Ao Yes, I do. |

|

10. Q. To what organization was he attached? :

| 4. He was attached to the came unit as I, namely, the 308th or lMatoba i
Battalion. '

| 11, Q. What were his functions or duties?

| k. He was a surgeon attached to the unit. |
12, 4. Were there any other medicel officers attached to the unit?
4. Yesn,

é 13, - Q. Who were the other medical officers attached to that unit?

I A The pther surgeon was Surgeon Second Iieutenant, Imperial Japanese Army

| Sakabe, Taio.

I

|14. Q. Do you recall any unusual incident involving prisoners of wer which

| occurred on or about February of 19457

|| A Yes, I do recall.

|15, Q. Will you state what ocourred giving the particulars of what you

know ineluding the dete and things you observed?

-




A. The first instance that I noted tock place on about the 16th of
February 1945. Two prisoners of war were kept at my unit for one or two days)
after which they were sent to the division. As T recall one of the prisoners
was an officer and the other a non-commissioned officer. As I remember the
name of the officer was Hall; I do not recall the name of the non-commissioned
officer. It was sbout a week after they had been sent to the division, ar
| the 22nd or 23rd of February, 1945, when I was in the diepensary that Surgeon
Teraki came intg the dispensary and told me to get ready the medical equip- 8
ment and he tol® us, that is, myself and an auxiliary corpsman whom I think
| wae named Kumizewa, to go with him. At that time two or three soldiers, I do
| pot know whether they came from the company or whether they ceme from the L
headquarters, arrived at the dispensary and reported that they were to recelv
instructions from Surgeon Teraki. The group of us following Surgeon Teraki
| went first in the direction of the Suyeyoshi unit and when we arrived at the
]ESuyeynﬂhi unit one man, I believe he was a sailor, arproached us and he
|’guidad us from there on, The place where this man guided us to was the Omura
cemetery. When we arrived at the cemetery Kumizawa went to get some water a
| at the cemetery the sailor pointed out the place and said "this is the place"
'IThurnupnn Teraki told the soldiers to begin digging, Vhen I saw the exhumed
! body I recognized it to have been one of the prisoners of war who had arrived
| et my unit a week previously. Teraki removed the shirt from the body that
‘ had been exhumed and he removed the liver by using what is commonly known as
| & wide scalpel.

-

I The commission then, at 10:20 a.n., took a recess until 10:40 a.m., at
\ I which time it reconvened.

! Present: A1l the members, the judge advocate, the accuesed, his cuunsﬂ[, |
and the interpreters.

1'
‘ Archie L. Haden, junior, yeoman first ¢lass, U. S. Navy, reporter.
i

Yo witnesses not otherwise connected with the trial were present.

I Kanemori, Kazutoshi, the witness under examination when the recess was
I taken, entered, He was warned that the oath previously taken was still
| binding and continued his testimony.

I (Examination continued. )

i 16, Q. Will the witness contlnue with his answer? |
A. Teraki told me to cut the flesh. I asked Teraki what was going to be
done with the flesh and the liver that were to be removed, Teraki replied
that he also did not know what was golng to be done with the flesh and the
1iver but s it was an order of Major Matoba thaet he was going to remove the
flesh and the liver, I therefore borrowed this wide scalpel and cut about
| one kan (T.N. 8,26 pounds) of flesh from the thigh of the corpse. I took
some cotton wadding and applying it to where the flesh was removed bound 1t
up with a bandage. After T had finished this bandaging I put the trousers
back onmto the body. As the shirt had been replaced when I finished putting
on the trousers and as it was ordered to bury the body, the body was accord-
I ingly buried., The flesh and the liver that had been removed were placed in
cellophane peper. After we left the place and had walked for perhaps fifty o
or seventy meters, we met a Sergeant Sugiyama who was attached to the
battalion headquarters, Sergeant Sugiyama saluted Surgeon Teraki end said
something to the latter but I do not know what was said, S§rgeon Teraki S |
|| thereupon said to hand the package to Sergeant Sugiyame. I therefore handed
the package to Sergeant Sugiyeme and returned with Surgeon Teraki, |

14 |
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17. Q« When Teraki told you to cut the flesh did he tell you how much
flesh to out?
Iri. He said sbout one kan.

fl18. Q. From what part of the body did you remove this flesh?
I &. From the thigh.

:il?- Q. Will you describe how you cut the thigh in order to remove this
[| flesh?

A, Firet I made two parallel circular incisions and then I made a cut
Joining these two parallel cuts and thus removed the flesh,

20, §. By eircular cuts do you mean cuts around the thigh es you have
indicated?
A. That is what I mean.

21, Q. How deep were these cuts?
A. To the bone.

22. Q. How far apart were these two lel cuts?
iii. Approximately twenty centimeters (£ inches).

ii123. Q. How deep was the cut which you have indicated you made at right

| angles between these two perallel cuts eround the leg?

i &, 4dlso to the bone,

|

I 24s W. Did the flesh between the parallel cute come off the bone when you
|made your cut from one parallel cut to the other?

| & The flesh did not fall off the bone.

|

|

:Izs. Q. How did the flesh come off the bone?

| The scalpel was used to disconnect the flesh from the bone,
II

126. 4. Do you reeall any other incidents which occurred involving prisnneri
”uf war in aprroximately larch of 19457

A. Yes, I know of another.

details?
A. It was around the fourteenth or fifteenth of March 1945. I went to the
battalion headquarters office and in front of the guardhouse there was this
officer to whom I have referred by the name of Hall in front of the guard=-
house being watched by guards. The time of the day was about ten or half
past ten in the morning. I heard that there was to be an execution and there
were quite a few people about the place at that time, It wes around eleven
o'clock now and I believe it was Captain SBato who told the gyard to lead the
prisoner to the plece of the execution., A1l the plgple assembled there
including myself followed the group. The place to which we were led was
gixty or peventy metere away from the dispensary where there was a bomb
crater, 48 I recall, I noted that on the way to the scene of the execution
seeing Teraki coming up towarde the scene of the execution following a by-
peth which led from the dispensary to the scene of the execution. I arrived
at the scene of the execution and Captain Sato ordered Corporal Nakamura to
give the prisoner a cigarette to smoke. A day or so prior to this execution
I had heard a rumor to the effect that at the next execution instructions
ould be given to the corpsmen. I did not persomally hear of this order.

en I went to the scene of the execution Burgeon Teraki told me to fetch

he wide scalpel and I returned to the dispensary to get it. When I returned
rom the dispensary the prisoner had already been executed. Corporal Nakamurs

15

27, Q. Vill you tell what occurred mat thet time and give the date and othex




wae standing by the corpee and his sword was still wet. Captain Sato was
standing close to Corporal Nekamura. Teraki was standing away from them, , 1
| about three meters away from them, with the rest of the people assembled. A
| I recall it was fifteen or twenty minutes after the execution when Surgeon

| Teraki ordered all corpsmen to gather around as he was about to commence

| dissection, Teraki first removed the suit and commenced dissection. What I
| first sew was the liver. It wae followed by the stomach and the lunge.

l After the dissection was over he said that he had again been ordered by

| Matoba to remove the li;rer and flesh and he took up the liver., Captain Sato
|

| was standing with the ¥roup of corpsmen in the front row and wetching the (A
proceedings and Teraki then sesid "Sergeant Kanemori, cut the flesh". I |

asked Surgeon Teraki what was going to be done with the flesh and he said he!

{| did not know and Surgeon Teraki turned to Captain Sato and asked "Do you knon

| what 1s to be done with them?™ and he also did not say anything., As I had
the impression that they were being removed for the purpose of burial, I

| removed one kan of flesh from the right thigh. I removed this flesh in the

| same manner as ob the previous occesion whereupon Captain Sato, when that wad

| concluded, ordered scme enlisted men, I forget whether they were ordinary

I| enlisted men or enlisted corpsmen, to bury the body. Vhen I returned to the

| dispensary it was exactly twelve noon.

;; 28, Q. Vhat haprened to the liver and flesh which wes removed from this
| body by Teraki end yourself?
I Ae I recall, an orderly came to receive the liver and flesh.

29, Q. TWThere was the orderly from?
| A There were three orderliee attached to the battalion and one orderly
i | attached to Major Matoba who was stationed close to lajor Matoba's room. I
| do not recall which of the four came, but it was one of them.

| l
" 30. Q. Vhat happened to the liver and flesh that had been removed from the|
| prisoner after that?

|| 4+ It was, I believe, about & week afterwards when I heard rum from the

|| persons who came to the dispensary that the flesh had been eaten a party |Af
il and I was shocked,

The accused moved to strike out this answer on the ground that it wae
| hearsay.

|
I The judge advocate stated that he concurred.
The commission directed that the answer be stricken out. ' I

|
|
|
| The witness was duly warned,
|
|
|

—— e

The commission then, at 11:20 a.m., adjourned until 9 a.m., Monday,
March 7, 1949.
i




TRIRD DAY
| ™lted States Tacliflc Fleet,
! Commender Weval Torces, Marianas,
| Guam, Mariaenas Islands,
| Monday, itarch 7, 1949,

The commission met at 9:10 a.m.

Preaent:

Rear Admiral Arthur G. Roblnson, U. S. Navy,

¥alor M11bur R, Helmer, T, 5. Warine Corps,
| Major John H., Lott, Corps of T'ilitary Tollce, "nited States Lrmy,
: Lieutenant Commander Loyd S, ®Jorle, Supnly Corps, 1. Z. Navy,
| Major Laurance B, Payne, Transportatlon Corps, "nited States irmy,
imembers, and
' Lieutenant Devid "olton, U. 5, Wavy, Judge advocatle,
: Archie L, Waden, junior, yeoman “irst elase, '. S, Navy, reporter,.

.
I The accused, his counsel, and the interpreters.

The record of proceedings of the sacond day of the trlel was read and

|
”nppvnvnﬂ.

|
| To wit-esses not otherwise connected with the trial were present.

|
| Kanemor!, Kazutoshi, the witness under exsmination when the adjournment
lwas taken, entered. e was warned that the oath previously taken was still
[[binding, and continued his testimony.
I

Orosg-expmined v the accused:

[91, 0., Tho was the head o the medical “epartment of the 308th Sattalion to

: e
|which battalion vou were attached?
(A Surgeon Second Lisutenant “skabe, Taro,

132. Qs hat was the rank of the sccused Terakl aroun? February or lsrch of
({19457
|4« Ye wae probationary o"ficer of the Yadical Department.

(32, 7. Do yon kno when he was appointed surgeon second lleutenant?

1. As T recall, it was around October or Yovemher of 1945 that he was

| L ]

|apooin*e’ surgeon sacond lleutenant.

(34, 7. Tou testified that around the Fifteenth of February 1945 two prison-
‘ers stayed for a nicht or two nights at the 307th Sattalion. That Jdid these

prisonars do at the battalion?
A, They were doing nothing at the battalion., T saw them at the ruard house

[land also in the dugout,

35, 0, Did yo- often see these two prisoners of war when they were staying

overnight or for two nights at the “attalion?

This nuestion and 1ine of ouestioning was objected to by the Judge
advocate on the pround that it was irrelevant and immaterial,

The accused replied,




I The commission announced that the ohjection was not sustained. {
|

1

(| &s I saw them on two or three occasions.

| 36, Q. You testiied that one o® the two prisoners was a commissioned |

|officer rn? the other a non=-commissioned of"icer. How d1d you determine this?
[ dhs I believe the interpreter interrogated the prisosers and I believe T

|
Phﬁa'ﬁ this from the interrreter.
|

127, 7. Deascribe the aprearances o the prisoners as you saw thom, Tow '
| they looked and in what clothes they were clad,
| A. One o® the two, the co-missloned o®flcer, wes tall and he was blond. The

inon-commiesioned officer was shorter tha- the commlssloned o®™eer and was
lalse Hlond. The sommissioned officer was Aressed in a nylon flyin- suit., The
jjnon=commissioned offleer had on a griyy s"irt and gray underdrawers an? the ~B
((non=commissioned o" icer had on “lack shoes. That Is all T reecall of their
|aprearances,

?f‘. ‘A‘ Tera *hese gnderdrawers long®
- . Bae naerdrawars Long.
A. Tes, ther were long.

39, 2. Wow did vor come to know the name of the officer to have been Hall?
A. The interpreter Interrogated this man and 1t came ont that hils name was
((Hall and the bystanders were saying that his name was Hall and that 1z how I |

|have retained in my recollectlon hie name having heen Ysll,

140, Q. Yon tes*ified that Merakl cane ints the digpensary in the afterncon
i Fo” the twentyesecond or twonty=third of Tebruary 1945. At what time did Terakl
4ﬁn?ﬂ his an earance on that a®ternoon? |

|ﬂ. I helieve 1t was around 4:30 or 5 o'elock in the s"ternoon.

[41s Qs o were with you at the disvensary at that time?

A« T do not have a recollection, hut T belleve Kumazara was with me at the
(|[dlevengary,

Il
(! =
(42. 2« Do you reeall whether Surgecn “akabe was at the battalion head-

[nuarters on that day?
IA. T do not elearly recal’ this, but I belleve that Saksbe was making the |
[rounds of the companies “or thysical examination on that afterncon. i

Lﬁq. N. You testifled that Teraki, on soming into the disrensary instructed
F?uu to prenare the medical instruments. Did he tell you why you were to do

f [this?

!A. No, he did not tell me the reason for my having to prepare the medical
|instruments. About that time there were many persons who became wounded in |
their work as some work involved dynemiting and T drew the conclusion that it

wae some such casualty that had eropped up. |

14'. Q. How far is the Omura cemetery away from the headquarters of the

307th Pattalion?
A, T believe about half a league (2000 meters).

45, 0. Did you walk to the cemetery?
A. Yes.

146, 0. On the way to the cemetery did you not meet Surgeon Sakabe?
lA, T do not recall, i




|
i
4
l {27, 7, Tou testi®led that at the cemetery when the body was dug up you
| recopg1zed 1t to have been that of one of the prisoners that you saw a week
lprevioua1y. Mow did you recognize this hody as one of those prisoners?
A. T recognized the body because 1%t wase ¢lad in the same clothing, the face

|
lwas familiar and it -ad blond hair, and T recognized it when the body was dug
' ¢up.
o
!ﬁh- 2. Have you testified on this matter on the witnese ctend in the trial
|o® Tachibana, et al which took place around Aurust or Teptember of 19467
Iﬁ T har
| nave.

————————————
_ —

|49. 7. Did you not, on that occasion, testif” that the hody exhuned had on |
[white elothing? |
A ¥o, T do not think so, I Believe T testiiaed +hat his suit was & mottled
[rray and white,

|

50, M. Did you not, in that trial, testify that the prisoner was wearing
lnot & gray sult but a white winter nndergarment when you saw this primner at
the hat'alion headouarters?
A. No, that is not go. TnsoTar as T agn recall, T believe T testifled that

ray awl white garment.

the prisoner was wearing a mottl ed

la Qo that you eaw & prisoner of war under guard
lin "ront o® the guardhouse at the hattalion headouerters around the twenty=-
| PFourth or twenty="1fth of March 1945, You further testi™ed that his= name wag
I17a11. Ts that testimony correct?
|A, Yes, T belleve eo.

(51 2. TYou testi™ied on Taturds

4 A Then as & witness for the prosecution you were on the witness stand

| 5'—' ..

llin the Tachilena trial and when ‘he nuestion was put to you in the direct |
| examination "Do you know the name of the rrisoner in front of the puardhouse

llat hattalion headnuarters?” you repl®d that you did not, Tas this testimony A

| correct? _

A T romemhered that the prisoner's name hegan with "Ha" but whether~hhe |

fref, "ro”, or "ru" (TN: in Japanese Hall become Horu), 1I

here”ore T answered at the trial that I could not remem-
1 in the stockade I did my utmost to recall
to have heen Hall,

|| gegond vowel was
[l gould not recall,
|'bar, However after T was Interne

!th{; same end T succeeded in recalling hi- name
1

153. 2. Then did you recall this Tull name of Hall? ,
I T+ vas a’ter T had heen interned in the stockade a 1istening to the

! =]

I| gyharde talking about beerhalls and dancehalles 1t strucgh me that that was [

the name, |

|

|I 1
54, n. You testi”led that at the scene of the execution on the twunty-fﬂurt@
i tain “ato ordered Corporal Nakamura %o vive a .

|| or twénty-fTEth of March Cap
il clgarette to the prisoner. At this time was Corporal Nakamura already making

il rreparations for the execution?
:|A. Yes, he was.

ls5. A, Tn what position wee the prisoner at thie time?

¥

A, He was seated,

s

o® the execution at the same time as the

56, 0. Did you arrive at the scene
accused, Teraki?

A, e arr
perhaps he may have arrived a little later,

1ved almost simultaneously. Teraki was coming up the hill and
but he was in sight,




57. 7. Tere you stending beside Teraki uﬂ?h; yon were ordered to ro and
| feteh the vide scalrel?

4. Yes.

Il

[leg AL e o T ! .

o efora you went to Teteh the wide scalpel were there any words

(exchanged hetmeen the accuse? and Captain Sato?

.-TI-ILI Yo,

[ | ¥ . | .y - ~ -~ & ~
59, Q. Did the mccused, Teraki, say anything to Corporal Wakemura before you

|went to fetech the wide sealpel?
A. Vo, he A1 not apeak to Torporal Vakamura,

# ¥ -~ = o
(160, 7. Did you hear Captaln “ato say anything 4o Nakemura?

| Fd
6l Q. "That 314 you hear?
ry

e A= T recall ha wae showing him vhere 4o stand and whaet stance %o take Upe

ﬁﬁ?v 2« Tefore you went to fetch the medical instrument, vas Wakamura
preparing ®or the execution? Did he have hie sword dram?

liA. As T recall he had his sword drnwn,

163, N. That period of 4
Instrument and the time vou returned with 1t%

s As T recall twn or three minutes,

;FL. Q. You testi™ed that "1fteen or twenty minutes elapsed between the
(ronelnsion n® the execution and the commencement of the dissection. 7
|Merakl doing anything in the meantime?

iﬂ4 As T recell he was merely lookisg on,

me elapse? hetween the t'me wou left for t

5. Q. Tas Captaln "sto at the scene o the executlon until the conclusion
* the Aiseection?

. Tes, he was,
[
Ik -~ g o~ i ~
Bb., 7., Are there any definite sronnds “or that recollection of youras?
T recall this definitely becaunse Captaln “ato ordered the burial after

he diggection,

e 1« That were the Jubles of Captaln Zato at the 308th Battallion?
Captain Sato was the senlor officer attached to battalion headnuarters.
ong other things he handled the personnel matters of officere attached to

headouarters, T belleve he also mssisted the battelion adjutant.

e

62, Q. Do you recall whether Surgeon Sakaebe was at hattalion headnuarters

rhen this prlsoner of war was executed?
» Ag T reecell Surgeon “ekabe was awey on hls rounds of the companies on

hie day as well.

9, Q. Eahnmnr{, whan Aid you flrast enter the Japanese army?

. As T recall on 1 September 1938,

/0. M. This 305th bhattalion that you were attached to on Chichi Jima; who
ae commending officer of that battalion?
Captain Eudo, Tmperial Jananese irmy,

20
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71, 1. %Tas there any speclal reasson why you were tranaferred to the Matoba | "
| .

|
hmﬁt?

| Thie ouestion was ol Jected to hy the judge advocate on the ground that
(1t was irrelevant end immaterial,

( The accused replied,

The commissTon announced that the objectlon was sustained.

72, Q. At the time of this Pirst Incident to whi

72s s th you test’®led, how long
lhad you heen a member o the ¥atoba unit? |
(7 Mntil Major ""etoha assumed command o the unit, that un!t was Ymown as
f{the Timura unit., As T recall Fajor Matohe asesumed command of that unit 1in
|r. -1y m el 1"']"‘4" La T e -F-| - = il i i L 4 o S 5
jlausust o ihe A8 I Tecall, vas assigned to this unit a month prior to
{the arrival o gajor "ntoha,

~oae

(?3. Q. Do you know when thia other doctor beceme a surgeon second

{11entenant?
ide &8s T recell he recelved his commission in December 194i.

i

T4e Q. So that at the time of these two Incldents he was also a nrobationary
lofficar., Ta that true?

A, T do not bellave “hat iz correct.

lirre i Do you reme har -,_.|u-:_.r you came to “attalion headenarters the ~L:.‘ that

-géu witnessed this execution?
i A, T recall,
76, 7. Thy? f ;
|

e Tt was my duty to submit deily reports of the netients at battalion
|headquarters. T belleve T was on this misslon on that day.

77, 7. At the trlal of Ceneral Tachi‘ana you testi™ed that all the men
[present were talkineg about the coming execution therefore you decided to ,

|letay and witneas it. Is that the reason you stayed to witness 1t?

1A, That
1

—

correct.

o

I|'?‘.’. 0. Do wou mow who ordere® this execution? .
lA. As T recall it was Captain “ato, |

7. Q. Do you know who ordered Joctor Teraki to he there?
A. T do not '‘mow that,
|

20, 7. Do yon krow the nawe of the sailor who puided you at the Suyeyosh!
lmit?
Ao T 4o not know his name,

£1, 0. Do you remember whether you reported to the commanding officer of
the Suyeyosh! Tnit or whether you went direct to the cemetery that nlght?
&, As T recall when we astarted out for the cemetery and came to the
“uyeyosh! Tnit the sallor was already waiting outside of that unit,

82, 0. Could you tell from looking at the body in the srave how long it had

| heen huaried?
A, T could,

23, Q. How long?
A. The sailfr was also saying that he had been buried the day before and L

there®ore T thought he wag huried Tor shout twenty=-Tour hours,
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GB4de Q. Do vou know why the body was disinterred?
A, I do not,

85. Q. Going back to the other execution, ™as Sergeant Norl at this
execution?
A. I do not happen to recall that,

86, (. Do you happen to recall if Sergcant Yamashita, Shizuo was there?

&+ Yoy I do not recall.

£7. &« Do you recall whether Corporal Iso was there?

A. Yes, I recall he was there,

58, . "as Corporal Yamamoto there?

| &, I do not recall,

Heexamined by the judge advocate:

89, Q. Concerning the Hakeaura execution, how long had you been there at

| the time you left t# obtain the scalpel?
|de COne or two rinutes,

| 90. Q. How long were you gone?

I recall two or three minutes,

7]

e =Y

91, Q. Then you arrived the first time at the scene of the execution you
came up one path and Terakl came up ancther path. Is that correct?

This guestion was objected to by the y:ﬁ;ﬁ:ziuaate on the ground that

1t was leeding.
The judge advocate replied,

The commission announced that the objection was not sustained,

| Ae Yes, that 1s correct.

92, Q. That did you do as socon as you arrived at the scene?
A. I tock up my position among the bystanders who were looking on,

93. Q. There were these bystanders standing in relation to the path that
you had used to come onto the scene?

' The place where the bystanders were standing was on the rosd some
distance from the scene of the execution and on a decline. (The road
leading to the executiocn was a downhill road and therefore some little way
short of there would be up the hill,)

94, Q. About how far from the scene of the execution was this group of
bystanders whom you joined standing?
A+ They were all about five meters away from the scene of the execution,

The commission then, at 10:20 a.m,., took a recess until 10:45 a.m,, at
which time it reconvened,

Present: All the members, the judge advocate, the accused, his counsel,
and the interpreters.

Elvin G, Glube, yeoman first class, U, 5., Navy, reporter,
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lo witnesses not otherwise connected with the trial were present.
I Kanemori, Hazutoshi, the witnesa under examination when the recess was
| taken, entered., He was warned that the cath previously taken was still
| binding, and continned his testimony.

(Reexamination continued,)

|

| 95« Q. When you arrived on the scene and joined the bystanders, what did
! you do at that time?

: i, I wmas just observing.

96, Q. That were you cbserving?
|i&. I was observing with the rest of them how Captain Sato was telling
| someone to give the prisoner a cigarette, telling someone to blindfold the
|| priscner, et cetera,

| 97« Q. VYhere was llakamura during all this time?
| o ds I remember he was standing by Captain Sato.

| 98, Qs Do you remember whether he was standing by Captain Sato during all
| of this one or two minutes you were on the scene?
||4. Yes,

l 99. Q. A4nd then you were watching him and Captain Sato during all that time
|| 4s that correct?
|| & Yes, that is correct,

| 100, Q. You testified that Teraki and you both came to the scene along

|| different roads., Did these two roads meet at the scene of the execution?

|| 4 The two roads met about ten or fifteen meters removed from the scene of
|| the execution midway up this hill,

,llﬁl. 3« 4nd then from the polnt where they met did they go along as a
|| sifnle road to the acene?
4+ TYes, that 1s so,

102, Q. liow, when you saw Teraki on this road on your way to the scene was
Teraki ahead of you or was he behind you or was he beside you? 'that was his
relative position?

This question was objected to by the accused on the ground that it was
repetitious,

The judge advocate replied,
The commission announced that the cbjection was sustained.

103, Q. Did you loock back at the path after you arrived at the scene of the
execution?
A, I did not,

104, Q. How do you know that Teraki arrived at the scene after you did?
4., The two roads, the one that I was on and the one on which Teraki was,
were running, as it were, parallel to each other and while I was walking
towards the scene of the execution I could see Teraki following the other
road.
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| prisoner after the execution., 7ere you carefully watching the proceedings
| as you went along?

105. Q. How long after you arrived at the scene of the execution did you
seo Terakl at the scene?
Ad. Very soon after.

106, Q. Ilow, you testified that you mssisted in the dissection of the

de TYes, I wasz.

107. Q. During the course of the dissecticn 4id you look up to see whether
Sato was present or not?

|As I recall Captain Sato's presence because he was standing closest to me

| having said something during the course of the dissection and that is why 1

and that is why the recollection iz clear in my mind.

108, Q. At what point in the dissection was he standing closest to you?
A, Az I recall Cartain 3Sato was standing right by me from the start of the
dissection,

109, Q. 4nd did you see him at any other time during the dissection? Did
you look up to see if he was present?
4, I did not lock up to see whether he was there, however I recall hls

can testify definitely that he was there, but I do not recall what he =said,

110, Q. Do you recall at what time during the dissection he said thie?
A, t was towmards the end of the dissection,

The accused did not desire to recroas-examine this witneas.

Examined by the commisaion:

l. Q. TYou testified in the ecross-examination that during the peried of
February and kiarch 1945 that the accused Teraki was a probationary officer
of the Kedical Department. Do you know whether any rank was attached to that
title at that time? The commission wishes to clarify, if possible, his
status.
4, The probationary officer does have a rank and Terakl had the rank of a
sergeant major, however, he had the insignia of a sergeant major and he had
the duties of an officer,

112, 4. D14 he wear the uniform of an officer?

A, He does not wear an officer's uniform, but that of an enlisted man - a
non-commissioned officer - and his insignia iz that of a sergeant major and
as to his receiving his commission, the probationary officer sometimes
receives it very early, after two or three months, sometimes it takes him
a half a year, at other times as long as one year.

Neither the judge advocate, the accused, nor the commission desired
further to examine this witness.,

The witness said that he had nothing further to state,

The witness was duly warned and withdrew,

A witness for the prosecution entered and was duly sworn.




| 4. I was,

| As First class private, IJA,

Examined by the judge advocate:
La Q. 711l you state your name and present residence?
A, Matsul, Kasakatsu. The address is lumber 4, 6=chome, Honcho, Nakano-ku,
Tokyo, Japan,

R Q. If you recognize the accused, state as whom,
A Probaticnary officer Teraki.

3s He lere you ever g member of the armed forces of Japan during the
recent war?

be Q. That was your rate at that time?

5« Qe lere you ever stationed on Chichi Jima Island?

iy Yes, I was,

6., Q. During what period of time were you stationed there?
A From Hovember 1943 until Yovember 13945.

Ta Qs Vhere were yvou attached gt that time?
4, Tlatanabe Company, Shibuya Unit,

8. Qs TThat were your duties at that time?
d. Vhat do you mean by "dutles"?

Q. Q: That position did you have in your organization?
A. I did not have any special duties.

10, Qs Tho was your immediate superior officer?

[| Ao Second lieutenant Kasuya.

| A It was subordinate to the Shibuya Unit,

|12, Q. And to what organization was this Shibuya Unit attached?
| Ao I do not know,

| 13, Qs Do you recall any unusual incident which occcurred durlng your tour

| 4« It was in February or Karch of 1945.

11, Q. To what higher crganization was this "atanabe Company that yon have
referred to attached? |

of duty at Chichl Jime invelving prisoners of war?
' I do recall,

14. Q. Approximately when did this incident oceur?

15. Q. Vhere did this incident occur?
A. In the katoba Battalion.

16, Q. Approximately what time of the day was it when this incident
occurred?
E-I &rﬂmﬂ nocon s




| 17. Q. Briefly what happened at that time?

A, Before noon I was told by 3econd Lieutenant Kikuchi that the prisoner
was taken to the battalion headquarters and I was crdered to go to the
battalion headquarters in the capacity of an interpreter. drriving at the
battalion headquarters I saw an American prisoner of war tied to a tree which
was in the clearing in front of the battalion headquarters. For the purpose
| of interrogation this prisoner was released from his bonds 2nd was taken into
| the bathroom and there by orders from Captaln Nakajima I interpreted the
|interrogations. Y'e asked him his name, age, and the fleet he was attached to
| the commander of the fleet, and the plane he was flying and his duties. I

| do not recall which item it was, but he sald that he could not give an answer
| to one of the interrogations and I informed Captain Nakajima to that effect,

| but T received repeated orders from Nakajima to ask that question, He still
i insisted that he could not answer. I again told Nakajima to the effect that
| he would not answer and Nakajima, who was a little intaxicated, struck the

| head of the prisoner with a stick which he had in his hand, and then he
|
|

commenced hittingthis prisoner without any regard to where he hit, He hit
him on his head, his hands, his arms, and the priscner thereupon fell down
| and fainted, This unconscious prisoner of war was then taken on a stretcher
| to the tree which was located in the clearing in front of the guardhouse. He
| was then taken down from the stretcher and was tied crosswise with a line to
| the tree and then a guard stabbed him with a baycnet through the heart by
|| ordera from, I recall, Captain Yakajima.

(|
ij The witness was duly warned.
il The commission then, at 11:30 a.m,, tock a recess until 2:10 p.m,, at

|whi¢h time 1t reconvened.

I Fresent: 411 the members, the judge advocate, the accused, his counsel,
|'and the interpreters,

i Archie L, Haden, junior, yeoman first class, U, S. Navy, reporter,
- “No witnesses not otherwlse connescted with the trial were present,

| latsui, Masakatsu, the witness under examination vhen the recess wes
| taken, entered, He was warned that the cath previously taken was still

| binding, and continued his testimeony.
I

(Examination continued, )

ilﬂ. Q. '"ill you briefly describe what happened after the prisoner had been
killed?

|

{A, He was untled from the tree and he was laid down on the ground facing

| upwarde and probationary officer Terakl came and slit open the shirt with a
| scalpel then inserted the scalpel into his etomaghk and removed the liver and
| the body was then taken away by some scldiers.

119, Q. Vas Teraki a medical officer?
4, His status was that he received the treatment of an officer.

20, Q. What was done to the liver that was removed from the body by Teraki?
A. The liver was taken by the soldiers to the roem of the battalion
commander,




%
=

|itheir names.

Cross-examined by the accused:

21. Q. You testified regarding the Shibuya Unit and the Matoba battalion.
Do you know if there existed any command relationship between those two units]
A. As I was just a private first class, I am ignorant about those command
relationships and regarding this I do not know.

22, Q. You testified that you recognized the accused as Teraki, but when
did you first know that he was Teraki?

A. It is difficult for me to answer exactly when I came to know him but
Teraki was a surgeon attached to the battalion headquarters and I wae a mere
lprivate in a platoon and as there were not many surgeons in the battalion I
came to know that there was a surgeon Terakl in the unit, but I am able to
recognize him but I do not know him intimately.

J .

123. Q. Do you know whether there were any other surgeons in the liatoba
|Unit? If so, please give their names,

[l T know that there were other surgeons but I do mot know their faces or

]

}2&. Q. You testified that the incident regarding the prisoners of war
[loccurred around February or March of 1945, but could you give an approximate
(date of this occurrence?

|1 I do not know,

(

{25, Q. Did you, on any other occasion, act as an interpreter when a
llprisoner arrived at the Matobs Unit around February or llarch of 19457
. Frior to this, on one occasion, I did act as such.

26. Q. Do you recall when this haprened?
A. I do not recall.

b?. Q. Do you recall the name of the prisoner who wae interrogated in this
ineident?
I'® I have forgotten.

28, Q. To what unit was Captain Naksjima attached?
A . He was atteched to the Matoba Unit.

20, Q. Where in the area did the accused Terakl remove the liver from the

prisoner?
A, In front of the guardhouse,

90. . From when was Teraki at the scene?
. To the best of my knowledge, I saw him at the time of the dissection.

31, Q. Do you recall those who were present at the dissection? If so,
please etate their names?
"' I do not know anyone other than Teraki.

32, Q. WVasn't there an officer at the scene?
. I did not notice.

3, Q. Did you not see Captain Bato at the scene?
. Yes, I believe that he was there.

4e Q. Was the name of this prisoner Glenn Junior Frazier?
. He did not say so. .

“ 2T
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|35¢ Q. What did he say his name was?
“1. I do not recall what he said,

136. Q. Do you recall any questions that you asked this prisoner that day?
i. The questions were as I have testified previously.

.3? Q. Did Captain Nakajima call for you and ask you to act as hie inter=-
ipreter?

14, First Ijeutenant Kikuchi ordered me,
[

38 Q. Ien't this the case where Captain liake jima beat this prisoner to
| death?

This question was objected to by the judge advocate on the ground that
| it was leading, irrelevant, immaterisl, and called for an opinion of the

|Ivitnenu.
|

| The sccused replied.
i The commission announced that the objection was sustained,

| 29, 4. Do you remember if this incident occurred on February 23, 19457
|1 I do not recall.

-140. Q. Did you testify et s previous trial in the case of lajor Vatoba
| regarding thie incident?
Nl. I was not present at the trial of latoba.

Iiaﬂl. Q. Did you testify at the trial of Captain Nakenjima for thie ecrimef?

Thie question was objected to by the judge advocate on the ground that
'it vwas irrelevant and immaterial.

The accused replied.

I
|
ﬁ*- No, I did not,
|

The commission ennounced that the cbjection was not sustained,

:42. Q. Cen you describe this priscner that was executed that day?
(| A&, It is impossible to describe him in detail.
|

Edﬂ. 4. Cen you describe him in any way? Did he have black hair or red
hair?

Ll. Hs hair was brown, He locked very young and that is about all T ecan
|| recall.
l

l44e Q. Was he wearing an officer's uniform?

A. It 1s not possible to distinguish by the loock of the uniform whether he
i{wage an officer or a soldier, but during the course of the interrogation I
believe he 8aid he was & non-commissioned officer.

45, Q. How close were you to this person when you say Terakl removed his

liver?
A. About four or five meters away.

46, Q. Did anyone assist Doctor Teraki?

%

-| 4. Hobody assisted him,




|
: 47. Q. You say that Doctor Teraki removed the liver. Did you see the

liver after he removed it?
A. Yes, I paw it at the scens,

A. It wae no different from that of s horee or a2 cow.

40, §« Who told you it was a liver that was removed?
A. Teraki said thet,

i
|
|
‘ 48. Q. What did it look like?
|
|

i 50. Q. Whe did he say it to?
|| A He said it to those who were around the place.
|

|
lﬁl. 4. You do not remember anybody who was around there?
-,i.l. I do not recall.

|52- Q. Wes it just a liver that was removed from the body by Teraki? :
. I am not well informed on medicel matters but _there was something that
|locked like a small yellow bag besides the liver and Terakl sald that was the
ipept:l.r: gland,

£3. Q. Wes it just the chest to which Teraki applied his scalpel?
A. That is so.

|54, Q. Is it correct that Teraki did not remove anything but the liver?
A, Thet is correct.

ill Reexamined by the judge advocate:

II

55, Q. You have testified thet you think you saw Seto present sometime

|durin,g the course of this incident. Cen you testify whether or not it was
uring the course of the killing of the prisoner or during the course of the
issection that Sato was present?

iF. I recall that he wes there when the prisoner was stabbed,

56, Q. Do you recall whether Seto was there when Teraki was performing the

|| iesection?
e I do not reecall.
|

egin his dissection?
At once.

? Q. Approximately how long after the prisoner was stabbed did Teraki
Recross-examined by the accused:
58, Q. Do you recall if this prisoner was wearing & navy uniform?

This question was objected to by the judge advocate on the ground that
it was beyond the ecope of the redirect examination,

The accused replied.

The commission stated that the question was beyond the scope of the
direct examination, but that it would be allowed.

. I do not know whether he was wearing a nmavy uniform but I know that he
8 & pavy personnel,

The judge advocate did not desire to reexamine this witness,
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The commission did not desire to examine this witneas,
The witness said that he had nothing further to state.
The witness wes duly warned and withdrew,

A witness for the prosecution entered and wes duly sworn,

|
|
|
I
Il
i Bmmined by the judge advocate:
:| 1. §. Will you state your name and present address?
Ii. Iso, Shunichiro, £1 Ohkoya Mojiroli, Kawamaya=Mura, Ishiki=Gun,
|| Fukushima Ken, Japen.

|24 §. If you recognize the accused, state as whom,

|| ds The accused is one of the surgeons who was formerly attached to the
|| dlepensary of the 308th Infantry Battalion, Teraki, Tadashi,

1l

.;3. Qs Were you a member of the armed forces of Jepen during the recent
|war?
| e Yes, I was,

Il 4. Q. ithat was your rate?
Il A Corpsman Corporal, Imperial Japanese Army.

| 5 Q. TWere you ever stationed on Chichi Jima?
|4, Yes.

|6 Q. Vhen were you stationed there?
|As From June 1944 until the termination of the war.

7. Q. To what unit were you attached?
4. The 308th Independent Infantry Battalicn.

. Q. Tho was the commanding officer of that battalion?

A. At the time of its organization the commanding officer wes Lieutenant
Colonel Iimura, however I am not certain of this point because at that time I
was not attached to headquarters but was attached to the firet company.

= Q. In February or lMerch of 1945 who was commanding officer of the
{|{battalion?

\A.  Major latoba.

|
ilG. 4. What medical officers were attached to the 308th Battalion at that
tine?

A There were two men attached to the battalion. One was Surgeon Second
Iieutenant Sakabe, Taro and the other was ledical Probationary Officer Teralkl,

11. Q. Do you know of any unusual incident regarding prisoners of war whicl
occurred on Chichi Jima in approximately March of 19457
A. Yes.

12. Q. Do you know the approximete date on which this inecident cccurred?
Ao My memory is in poor condition and I cannot give you the exact date when
it took plece.

13, Q. Where did this incident take place?
A, An American prisoner of war wae executed close to the headquarters of
the Karia company, a subordinate unit of the 308th Battalion,

30

|




| r' L ﬁ

14, Q. Will you desoribe what ocourred at that time?

A, I heard that there was to be an execution on thet day from hearing that
there was to be a dissection after the execution. With the intention of
observing the dissection I went to the scene of the execution, but the execu-
tion had not yet begun. The scene at the place of the execution was surroundpd
by gunsokus, Just at this moment I saw through the crowd a sword raised by
Corporal Nakamura and the sword decapitated the prisoner. When I saw the
blood spurt from the neck as the sGgrd cut the head off, I felt sick and I |06
went to the company heedquarters of the Karia company which wae a little
distance removed from the scene of the execution., To compose myself, I was
drinking water at the company and resting there for aprroximately twenty
minutes, At that time I heard that the dissection wee about to commence and
so I went to watch the dissection. Vhen I arrived at the scene of the
dissection the body wes lald out and his coat was opened, leaving the body
bare, Surgeon Teraki, taking a small scalpel from a surgeon's kit, made an
incision in the cheet of the priscner. Following this, he took a pair of
sclssore and cut the cartilape away from the sternum on both sides of the
icheat. After this he lifted the cartilage apart and then the stermum upwards
and he explained the names of the internal orgens. le especially explained
the lungs and I recall his seying on that occasion that the lung as it was
then wae contracted because it had been exposed to the air, Next he
dissected the abdomen, He pointed out the liver, the large and small intes=~
tinee, and the stomach. At that time he removed the liver., Then he put to
the gide the large end smal) intestines and showed the position of the
kidneys. The dissection was completed and the abdomen and the lung which had
been opened were closed, and the body of the prisoner was wrapped again in the
[lelothes in which he had been dressed.

15, Q. Do you know if anything wes done to the thigh of the prisoner?
A, Flesh was removed from the thigh of the prisoner.

gssembled at the place of the dissection?
A. There were quite a number of people assembled. I believe from thirty or

|forty persons,

|

|

|15. Q. At the time of the diseection by Terakl how many persons were
|

|

The commission then, at 3:20 p.m., took a recess until 3:40 p.m., at
which time it reconvened.

I Present: A1l the members, the judge advocate, the accused, his counsel,
larﬂ the interpreters.

.I Elvin G, Gluba, yeoman firat claszse, U, 8. Nevy, reporter.

| o witnesses not otherwise connected with the trial were present. '

Iso, Shunichiro, the witness under examination when the recess was
taken, entered. He waes warned that the cath previously taken was still bind-
ing, and continued his testimony.

Croes-examined by the accused:

17. Q. You testified that you were a corpsman corporal. Were you always
at the dispensary of the battalion?

i For the most part I was at the dispensary attached to the headquarters
of the battalion, and the reason was when I was assigned to this post I had
just been released from the hoepitel and I wae still in a weak condition.
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ff 18, Q. You testified that on the day of the execution you heard thet an

| Americen prisoner of war was to be executed, Did you know that the prisoner
wae an American?

A. I did know thet he wes an American prisoner of war.

19. @. Did someone tell you that?
A. I heard this from Surgeon Sgkabe the morning of the day of the execu-
tion or on the previous day.

| 20, Q. Wes Surgeon Sakabe at the dispensary on the dey of the execution?
A, At the time thet the execution took place Surgeon Sskabe was out on his
rounds and he could not have been at the headquarters dispensary.

!21. 4. Do you know the circumstances why the senior Surgeon Salkabe did not
|| conduct the dissection and the accused Teraki had to perform it?

Hl. I do not know the reason definitely, but I believe that it came to be
|80 because of the training as doctors thet these two men had received prior t¢
ltheir induction into the Army,

122, Q. Do you know whether Teraki conducted the dissection voluntarily or
“nnt?

i This question was objected to by the judge advocete on the ground that
11t called for an opinion of the witness.

| The accused reframed the question.

il

ﬁzj. Qs Do you know for a fact whether some person ordered Teraki to perform
{ithis dissection? '
(1Y That he performed the dissection in conformance to orders i1s understood
ﬁhut eé I was not present when the order was given to Terski and whether the
flunit commander gave the order direct to Teraki or whether he passed it on
ﬁthrnugh his adjutant T do not knom,

R4« Q. Did you go to the scene of the dissection voluntarily on your own
((wolition? f
A . I did not go voluntarily. It was on the morning of the execution or on
the previous day that I was ordered by Surgeon Sakebe to go and observe the
dissection,

25. Q. What were your reasons for going to the scene of the diasection to

observed

A The purpose of this dissection was to instruct the corpsmen and auxilian

orpsmen attached to the 306th Infantry Battalion. I had spoken to Surgeon

be about the circumstances that I had never seen a dissection of a human

ody and I was questioned concerning this by Surgeon Sakabe and when I answer
t I had not witnessed e dissection I was told to do so without fail and it

a8 beceuse of these instructions that I went to observe the dissection.

=

&, Q. In connection with the disesection were the suwdliary corpsmen under=-
oing some training?
- Training of auxilisry corpsmen wes being conducted at that time,

7. Q. TWhen did thie training commence in relation to the time of the
cution?

. The training courses were short ones and I believe it was a little past

he middle of this course when the execution toock place.
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h 28, Q. Did you go to the scene of the execution alone or accompanied by
|Ennenne?

I went alone a little after Surgeon Teraki and anocther auxiliary
rnﬁmun.

co
| 29. Q. Vhen you arrived at the scene wes Surgeon Teraki there or did he
larrive later?

w Yhen I arrived at the scene of the execution there wes a crowd of

people assembled there already and I could not ascertain whether Surgeon
ITera“i wee among that crowd.

|30 Q. Did you note if there were persons attached to the dispensary among
| this crowd?

| &e fhat struck my sttention et the scene of the execution was the prisoner|
| of war and his execution. Iy attentlon was drawn from the personnel of the

| dispensary and of the unit and furthermore I did not feel the necessity of
Iiascertaining their presence there,

131, Q. TVhen you observed the diseection were you not aware who of the

| persone attached to the dispensary were present?

| As I wish to put a question to counsel, which 1s, were you referring to th

| people at the scene of the execution cant1nuiﬁg from the time of the u{ucutiuP

ndﬂrn to the time of the dissectiont® i
f32. Ne Tes, .
Fi. I wish to change my answer if thet was what counsel was intending in hi*
|question, A4t the scene of the dissection there were present Surgeon Teraki, |
ISergeant Kanemori, Superior Priwvate Sato, end myself from the dispensary.

;33. Q. Ves there an officer present at the scene?
il. Yes.

134, Q. Will you give me the name or names of the officer or officers
lpresent at the scene?

11. There was Captein Sato who was attached to the battalion hesdquarters
jand I did not observe any other officers present,

i35. Q. Who was in charpe 3? the scene? e

ﬁ This question wes objected to by the judge sdvocate on the ground that
11t was vague and called for an opinion of the witness,

The accused withdrew the question.
36, Q. Was Captain Seto at the scene efter the execution and until the

dissection was completed?
L. He wes there until the conclusion of the dissection.

B7. Q. Who was at the scene throughout the execution end the dissection anJ
th° was giving instructions?

E T did not hear any orders or instructions given at the scene and therefopre
I do not know who was in charge.

8. Q. Insofar as you know was Captain Bato the only officer present at the
cene?
. Yes, insofar as I know,

9, Q. About how many minutes after the execution did Teraki commence his
iesection?
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| Ao ds I testified previously I cannot stete definitely how long after the
| execution the dissection started. I believe it was about fifteen or twenty
| minutes afterwards,

| 40, Q. Did Teraki at that time teke steps to ascertain whether the
| prisoner was dead?

A, A2 I was late for the dissection also I did not witness any steps taken
| to ascertain whether the prisoner was dead and if such were taken by Teraki.
[41. Q. Did you return with Teraki?

{ Ao No, I did not return with him,

|

il 42. Q. Did you return before heigr after?

g!i. I do not recall.

:iﬂS- Q. Vas Ceptain Sato still there when you returned?
| &o I returned before Captain Sato.

i 4he Q. Did you see llakamura cut the prisoner with a sword?
1 1 I did.

iAﬁ. Q. How close were you to Nakamura when you saw him cut the prisoner
{with & sword? |
| 4. Seven or eight meters,

|46. Q. Did the sword of lNalkamura sever the head from the body?
| A It was not completely severed, but about seven-tenths.

|

|47. Q. At this time did you notice Teraki there at the scene?
|A. I did not see him at the time of the exscution,
|

[48. Q. Do you remember who removed the flesh from the thigh?
I & I have not ascertained this fact, but I do not believe it was Surgeon

Reexamined by the judge advocate:

{49 Qs TYou testified concerning the dispensary to which you and Teraki were
|attached, What was Terali's position at the dispensary?

| A Surgeon Bakabe was the senior surgeon at the dispensary, and Teraki had
wduty at the dispensary in turns with Sakabe, in turns coming every alternate
| day.

ISD. Q. Who was in charge of this program of instruction of the corpsmen
ithat you spoke about?

. This question was chbjected to by the accused on the ground that it was
[irrelevent and immaterial,

The judge advocate replied.
The commission announced that the objection was not sustained.

4. iﬁrgaon Sakabe was in charge of training and sc aleo was Surgeon Teraki
lland he #ad charge of part of the training.

51, * Q. TWas Surgecn Sekabe present at the scene of the dissect@in that you
testified about?
A. No, he was not,
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q The accused did not desire to recross-examine this witness.

The commission did not desire to examine this witness,

h The witness said that he had nothing further to state.
|
|

| The witness was duly warned and withdrew.
ﬂ The commission then, at 4:15 p.m., adjourned until 9 a.m., tomorrow,
|Tuesday, March 8, 19.9.
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f FOURTH DAY i (
I
| United States Facific Fleet,
I Commander Naval Forces, Marianas,
; Guam, Marianas Islands,
i Tuesday, March 8, 1949.
: The commission met at 9:15 a.m.
Present:
1
Rear Admiral Arthur G. Robinson, U. 8. HNavy, |
| Major Wilbur R, Helmer, U. 5. lMarine Corps, i
I Major John H. Lott, Corps of Military Folice, United States Army, i
Iieutenant Commander Loyd 8. Bjorlo, Supply Corps, U. 8. Navy, |
lajor laurance BE. Payne, Transportation Corps, United States Army, |
members, and
Ilieutenant David Ecolton, U. S. Navy, judge advocete.
Elvin G, Gluba, yeomen first cless, U. S. Navy, reporter.
The accused, his counsel, and the interpreters.
Il The record of proceedings of the third day of the trial was read and
. approved.
'i lie witnesses not otherwlise connected with the trial were present,
I
i The judge advocate was called as a witness for the prosecution and wes
| i: duly sworn, I
(|
lI Examined by the judge advocate: i |
I 1
ii 1. Q. State your name and rank, |
| A David Bolton, lieutenant, U. 5. Navy.
| 2. Q. Are you the judge advocate in the instant cese? |
.I l.- I am, ;
i 3. §: If you recognisze the accused, state as whom.
| a. The accused 18 Teraki, Tedashi, an accused war criminal currently on
{| trial before this commission.
I
| 4o Q. Do you have in your possesaion certein documents which you desire
I to introduce in evidence before this commission?
2 il Ae I do,

5. Q. Will you state the circumstances surrounding the obtaining of these
documents?
A. On Tuesday, February 15, at the War Criminal Stockade in my presence ang
also in the presence of defense counsel Commander Carlson, and others, the
acoused requested that defense counsel Commander Carlson be permitted to be
present at such time as the prosecution cbtained certain depositions which it
was desired to obtain from presecution witnesses confined in Sugamo Frisom in
Japan, The accused desired to have defense counsel present in order to cross
examine these witnesses whom he had been advised by the presecution were
expected to furnish significant and material evidence which would be utiliszed
during the course of the then forthcoming trial of the accused. Consent to
having the defense counsel present at such interrogation was given by the
judge advocate and confirmed by the office of the Director Wer Crimes in view
of the expected material nature of the testimony to be produced and in view of

-
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l ![thu unavailability of these witnesses since they were confined respectively |
|| to 1life imprisonment and to a term of, me I recall, ten years imprisonment in
l Sugamo Prison, The judge advocate, myself, Lieutenant David Bolton, USN, and

Commander Martin E. Carlson, USNR, the defense counsel, proceeded to Japan.
® ‘ On February 21st we interrogated Nakemurs and on February 23rd interrogated

Seto, and then on the 2Eth werified the interrogations and further interrogatpd
lakamura. The interrogations were held in the interview room at Sugamo Prisop.
| The persons present were the witnesses, in one case MNakamura and in the ctherr
case Sato, the judge advocate, Iieutenant Devid Bolton, U. S. Navy, the |
defense counsel, Commander Martin E. Carleson, USIR, end an interpreter,
Iieutenant Frederick F. Tremayme, USIR. The witness was informed that I was
the judge advocate in the forthecoming trial of Teraki, Tadashi and that
Commander Carlson was the defense counsel for that trial and that we were
present for the purpose of obteining certain information, in response to
questions we would ask him, which we intended to present in evidence in the |
triel of Teraki. The witnesses were both cooperative and willing to testify |
| and they were sworn by me prior to the asking of any questions, A4s the judge
advocate, I, asked them a series of guestions which were recorded in Japa-
nese by our interpreter, lr. Tremayne in writing., While he asked the witness
the gquestions, the answers were written by the witnees in Japenese, and these
series of questions were retained by Lieutenant Tremeyne at that time. The
judge advocate concluded and then the defense counsel cross-interrogated the
witness and in the same fashion the questions were recorded by lir. Tremayne
in Japanese and then were answered in writing in Japanese by the witness. On
the 2let as I have said we interviewed Nakamura, Shigenobu and his interroga-
tions were written down at thet time in Japenese and subsequent to the

—a

! {| conclusion of the interrogation the answers which the witness had written dowpn
were sent out by the guard and delivered to lr. Tremayne, The guestions and I
ensweryt were then tellen by lr. Tremayne to our lisison office and the af]

Japanese checlked and rough translations made at that time so that we could
verify the progress of the interrogation to ascertain whether or not the
interrogation had completely covered the materiasl which we desired to cover.
The proceedings on February 23rd when the witness was Bato, Kesakichi were
identicel with the proceedings on the 2lst when Nakamurs wae the witnese. Di
Monday the 28th I-}Mﬂe rroceeded to Sugamo first, and the witnesses we
eeked to write the in smooth, which they did, in Japanese., Commander| 48
Carlson and I then proceeded to Sugamc Frieson and we had the witnesses read
and initial each page of the questions as they had been recorded in Japanese
and in our presence swear to the truth of the answers that had been written
by them, and which they signed also the same as I said, being recorded in
i | Japanese. The pfiypose of having them initisl the questions was to ascertain |ss
. that they definitely did understand the guestions that had originally been
asked them and to which they had originally recorded their answers in Japa-
nese, We had them eign the answer sheets and thereon verify the fact that
these were the answers they had given, for the purpose and with the knowledge |
thet these questions and anawers would be utilized for evidence in this forth
|| coming trial. We again swore them to the truth of the statements they had
|| made in their own handwriting and then rewritten on this Monday the 28th, Te
the best of my knowledge there were no alterations in the text in any way on
Monday the 28th, from any previous recorded testimony by the witness as made
on the first day of interrogation, in this process of smoothing out the
Japanese answers, except to correct poor writing and the use of peoor phrase-
ology ac was sometimee perhaps done. That is true with cne exception, and
that is that defense counsel was permitted to ask a question on the 28th,
||wh1uh was not previously asked by him on the 21et, in the interrogation of
Hakamura; and that question and answer are of course recorded.

6. Q. Have these interrogations and depositions thereto been translated
into English?
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| the witness, were submitted to the accused and to the commission and by the
,|juﬁge advocate offered in evidence.

| €t t M

| are duly certified by Iieutenant (junior grade) Bugene F. Clark as being trud

| 7s d« TVhat do these interrogations relate tof?

| As I do,

| A. The phyeiecal setup in Sugamo is such that there cen be no direct commu=|
| nication between the persons doing the interrogating and the witness, There

| translation of the questione when they answered the questlons?
{{ &e Thet is true with regard to the firet instance, thet is when on the

A. They have been translated by the official court interpreter and they
and complete translations of the original in Japanese.

| Ao They relate to the incidents alleged in Specifications 4 and 5 of the J
| charge against Teraki.

| 8, §. Do you desire to introduce the Japanese and the English translation
thereof in evidence?

The depositions of Nakamura, Shigencbu and Sato, Kesakichi, produced

Crose=examined by the accused:

4§

9, 4+ VWhen these witnesses were interrogated did the interpreter make an#
oral translation or did he retein the translestion and show it to the witness

are a series of three screens thet separate the interrogator from the witness
and no document can be passed directly from the interrogator to the witness.
In order to pass documents from one group to another they must be given to &
guard who welks around through a series of doors and proceeds into the chambe
where the witnese i1s sested, and therefore there is no possibility of paseing
documents phyveieally back end forth directly., That doua handicap proceedings
and neceesitated the procedure that was followed. I might add that this is
similar to the type of precautions that are ¢omronly used by most eivil
priﬂons in regerd to interviews of thet nature vwhere persons are already
|convicted and sentenced, The questions were asked orally and at the same

| time lir, Tremayne would write the guestions down in "Romaji". On occasion
|there was some difficulty getting a particular word across or particular ideal
| at which time he consulted with the witness at length and the vitness would
-tall him the word he thought should be in the question and this would be
|recnrded by lr. Tremayne,

- S

10. q. Then, is it correct that the witnees did not lcok st the Japanesce

firet time we interviewed the witness, in the case of Hakemura on the 21st and
in the case of Bato on the 23rd. But on the 28th, the witnese had in his
poseeseion and verified before us the guestions and answers, so that that is
{ not true with regard to the swearing and the teking of the depositions on
the 28th.

11, Q. Vho wrote thie Japanese translation of the questions?
A. I believe the questions were written by lir. Tremayne; the answers were
written by the witness.

12. Q. Did Lieutenant Tremayne listen to the oral statement of the witness
end translate it into Japanese for the interrogator?

A. Yes, he did on the first oocasion when we asked the questions he would
first give us the oral translation and then I would record the answer at that
time in my own handwriting.

13, Q. Were the witnesses permitted to write down the questions and answerg
themselves in Japanese, or some of them?
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The witnesses wrote the answers in Japanese, but there was no point in

having the witnesses write the questions as they were being written by kr.

Tremayne; and in view of the fact that we subaequently were golng to verify
the fact that they xnew and understood the questions by having them verify

the questlion and answer sheets,

There being no objection, the depositions were so received, and are

appended, marked “Exhiﬁit A éJapanese} and "Exhibit 2 (a)" (English trans-
" 1 "ES

lation) and "Exhibit 3

| L,

chivit 3 (a)" (English translation).
Reexamined by the judge advocate:

Q. TTill the witness read from Exhibit 2 (a) the body of the interrogati

and the answers therato?

15.

(The witness read 3xhibit 2 (a).) .

Qe 1ill you read the body of EZxhibit 3 (a)?

(The witness read Exhibit 3 (a).)

The accused did not desire to recross-examine this witness.
The commission did not desire to examine this witness,

The witness sald that he had nothing further to state,

The witneas resumed his seat as judge advocate,

The commission then, at 10:25 a.m., took a recess until 10:45 a.m., at

which time it reconvened,

1.
d.

Present: 41l the members, the judge advocate, the accused, his counsel,

(| and the interpreters,

Archie L, Heden, junior, ﬁgnman first class, U. 5. Navy, reporter,
o witnesses not otherwlse connected with the trial were present,
4 witness lor the prosecution entered and waa duly sworn.
Examined by the judge advocate:

. Will you state your name, rank, and present station?
Commander I, E, Currie, attached to the office of the Director War

Crimes, Pacific Fleet.

2.
A

3
A

be
d.
is

. If you recognize the accused, state as whom,
Teraki, Tadashi,

Qs I hand you a decument. Do you recognize this document?
I do,

Q. Yhat is the date of this document?
It is dated 4 November 1948, The date of the swearing to this document
November 1948,

|
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| 5« Qs Do you know under what circumstances this document was obtained? \

A. This document was given to me by Teraki, Tadashi, T was notified by
| SCAP that Terali, Tadashi was in Sugamo Priscn and I went out to interview
| him, I told him that I had certain information relative to his partlcipation
| in certain dissectiona on Chichi Jima and also a letter that he had written |

indicating that he had partieipated in these dissections I would like to have
| a complete story. I saild that I would like to have a written statement and
I wment back to Sugamo some days later and he gave me a written statement. He|

handed me this statement that he had written and I took it back to the cffice
| to have it translated., I SEntﬂha the iArmy translation section but before I A
|| got it back he called and saild that he had another statement. I picked 1t up
|| and it was a supplementary statement. I also sent it over to the translation
|| section and I pot them both back., After petting the tranalationz back from
|| the translation section I saw that both statements were relative to the same
events. I took both statements back to Tera%l and discussed them with him

and u‘.-‘?e-i if he would like to put them hLoth into cne statement, Fe said that|W
| he would do that and he dld. I went hack out %o see him on Yovember 5 and
at that time he gave me this statement, I asked him if it was a complete
statement of the facts and he sald 1t was and I saild I wonld like for him to
gmear to it, I said "Do you swear that it is a complete statement of the
| facts, to the best of your knowledge and helief?" and he swore that it was,

3. Ia thizs document whieh you have in your hand == thls Japanese docu-
| ment == the document which was ziven to you on the ifth of lNovember by
Teraki and sworn to by him on that date?
| A« Tes.

-
I Qe

|7s¢ M« Vere any threats or force used, or promises of reward, or cother
inﬂuéhenta offered in order to obtain the writing of this statement? A |
i, llone, .

L] .

. s Do you have a translation of this original Japanese statement in
your possession?

| Ao I do. i
|19, 4s dho prepared this translation? |
|4s Cne of the interpreters attached to the Director Var Crimes, Pacille
| Flest, ILieutenant (funier grade) Eugene F, Clark,

110, Q. Is he the offieial court interpreter in thle case who is seated near
| you?
| R —

i As He is,
|

|11, Q. Doeas thias statement relate to incidents involving prisoners of war
| vhich occurred on Chichi Jima in the early part of 19457

|4, This document relates to Teralki's participation in some dissections of
|American prisoners of war on Chichi Jima in the early part of 1945.

The document produced by the witness was submltted to the accused and to|
the commissicn and by the judge advocate offered in evidence.

Cross-examined by the accused:

12, 4. Then you spoke to Terakl was there an interpreter with you?

4. Yes, there wasa, f




| and thet everything was known?

13. Q. You said you were attached to the Viar Crimes office. Are you one |
of the investigators of that office? !
4. Yes, I am, u

Tk 4. Yhen you first met Terali did you not notify him to the effect tha
he did not have toc write the statement?
4, I did not.

15, Q. Before the statement was written did you warn Teraki that the
statement he wes going to write might be used in evidence against him?
4. No, I did not,

16, Q. Vhen you firet met Teraki did you not ask him to cooperate with you

This question was objected to by the judge advocate on the ground that |
it wee double.
i

The sccused made no reply.

The commission announced that the objection was sustained.

| & Ae I explsined when I was explaining the document, I told Teraki what

| suspect?

= co——

knew end I told him thet I had a copy of a letter he had written stating
about these things and that I wanted a complete statement. That is all I
told him,

18, Q. Viho suthoriged you end by what authority did you interview Teraki
at Sugamo?

a. By arrangement of higher authority, the authority was vested in the |
investigators of Director War Crimes, Pacific Fleet to interview prisoners |
in Sugamo, I had a little card giving specific authority, signed by the
Chief of the ILegal Section, SCAF, |

17. Q. Did you not msk him to cooperate with you? 4
|
|
|
|

19. Q. Viere you aware thet Tereki was being confined at Sugamo Prisecn by
ordere of the Director War Crimes Pacific Fleet here on Guam ms a Viar Crimes

A. I was awere that the Director iier Crimes Pacific Fleet requested SCAF
to have him apprrehended as a suspected wer criminel and that SCAP did that.

20, §« Did you inform Teraki that he was suspected of a war crime?
A, I informed Teraki that we had certain information relative to his 4
participation in the dissection of prisoners of war on Chichi Jima, |

21, (. How long hed Terali been kept in confinement at Sugamo at the time

you interrogated him?
A. As I remember, it was about a week,

The accused objected to the receipt in evidence of thies document on the
ground thet it was made to & person in authority and therefore not a wvalid
confession; that it was illegally obtained because Teraki was held for a
considerable period of time before it wae obtained and because Teraki was nof
warned prior to making the confession,

The judge advocate replied.

The commission announced that the objection®= were not sustained.
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|

I

‘ There being no further objection the document was 8o received and ias | {
| appended marked "Exhibit 4" (Japenese) and "Exhibit 4(a)" (English transla-
I tion).

I Reexamined by the judge advocates .'
il

|

|

22, Q. Vill the witness read Exhibit 4(a)?

(The witness read Exhibit 4(a).)
I (An interpreter read Exhibit 4.)

|; The accused did not desire to recross=examine this witness.

The commission did not desire to examine this witness.
The witness said that he had nothing further to state.
The witness wes duly werned end withdrew.

The prosecution rested.

| The accused requested an adjournment until Thursday, March 10, 1949,
| to allow time to prepare the defense,

The commission announced that the request was granted. |

The commiseion then, at 11:45 a.m., adjourned until 9 a.m., Thuraday,
| March 10, 1949. : |
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i !

|
I
l ! The judpe advocate steted: that there vweae no objection to the commig= ' {

iEinn taking judicial notice of item 1 requested by defense counsel, but that

iwith repard to item 2 there is no indication ms to the manner in r‘ich this |
|trie1 record is relevant to the instent case, and that the judge advocate
Oﬁ#nnn#Q objected to the commission taking judielal notice of item 2 on the &f
t 5prnumﬂa (1) thet 1t was irrelevant and immaterial, and (2) that such portions
|of the record of the trial ss eounsel deems relevant and meterial to the
|issues of the instant case, should be offered in evidence in the usual manner,
|

; The pccused replied.

I The commission ennounced that it vwould teke judieial notice of item 1 |
lrequested by the sccused, but would not take judiciel notice of item 2, .
l

Sanagi, Sadam, a counsel for the accused, was called as a witness for
Itir defense and was duly sworn.
il
i Exarmined by the judge advocate:

1A, Senagi, Sedamu,
| 4. If you recognlize the mccoused, state as whom.

I Teraki, Tadashi.

|
| |
i1e 4s ¥ill you state your name?
I

]

|

I

ip. 4+ A4re you & defense counsel for the accused, Teraki, Tadeshi?
I I an,
L I
Examined by the eccused: |
|F' 4: Do you have in your possession documents which you desire to submit
lin evidence?
&. Yes, T do. I have two documents,
5 J. Whet do thoge documents relete to?
| One is an excerth from the Japanese Army Personnel Frocurement Ordinance|Ab
Fne other is a certificate indicating thet these regulations were in effect
durinp the war.
|i. 4+ The certificate th=t you referred to; ia it the original or a copy?
H. It is & copy of the original.
i |b. Qe Vho made the oripginal?

. It waes mede by lidyama, Yozo, who is the Chief of the General Affairs
ection, Demobilization Buresu and who is the person responsible for the custofly
f official documents.

. 4. I& there any signature or seal showing thet it 1s an suthentic
ocument?

o It i5 a custom with the Japenese Government for an officisl to affix the
eal of hie officiel position as & signature and in this case also, that seal
8 effixed.

. Q. In what language is the copy written?
i The copy is written in Japanese, but I have prepared an English trans-
ation of it.

The document produced by the witnese was submitted to the judge advocate
nd to the commission and by the eccused offered in evidence,
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Cross=examined by the judge advocate:

110, Q. Vho prepared this certificate of translation?
&, The official interpreter of thie court, Iieutenant (jg) Clar)k,

r There being no @kﬁfetinn, the document was so recelved, and is appended
marked "Exhibit 5V, (Japenese), end “Exhibit 5(e)" (English translation).

! Reexamined by the scecuseds

Il]. Q. 11l the witness read Exhibit 5%

| (The witness read Exhibit 5,)

12, ds There diéd you obtain the Japanese Army Personnel Procurement

Ordinance which you desire to submit?
4. I obtained it from Volume IT of the Army Regulations,
|

113, Q. Is thie Volume II of the Army Hegulations certified in Exhibit 5%
4. Yes, it is one volume which is referred to in Exhibit 5,

“1&. K. To what does this excerpt relate?
personnel in general but the excerpt T have taken reletes to the procurement
of probationary officers end his status and his appointment to commissioned

rank and especially that of probationary officer of the medicel depertment.

|
;]5- Q. Have you prepared a transletion of the excerpts?
(W o Yes,

i”“ﬂ to the commiesion end by the accused offered in evidence.
"

I Cross=examined by the judpge advocate:
|

nE., Qs Who made the translation into English which you wish to offer into
levidence?

[ o Transglation was made by the officlal interpreter to this court, ILieu=
enant Clark,

There being no objection, the document was so recelved and is appended
rked "Exhibit €" (Japeneee), and "Exhibit &(e)" (English translaticn),

|

| Reexamined by the mccused:

E 7« Q. Flease omit erticles 35 and 36 and raqf all the rest of Exhibit 6.
i (The witness read Exhibit & as requested.)

The judge advocate did not desire to recross=-exmmine this witness.
The commiesion did not desire to examine this witness.

The witness said that he had nothing further to state.

The witneess resumed his seat as & counsel for the mccused.

Herbert L. Opden, a witness for the prosecution, was recalled as a
itnese for the defense and was warned that the oath previously taken by him
as still binding.
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r
|| Examined by the accuseds: | ‘
H
1. Q. Till you stete your name?
A Herbert L. Ogden.
1
: Qs Are you the legal custodian of the Commander Merianss copy of the |
racmrd of proceedings of the Tachibana, et al triasl convened by Commander i
] rienae at the headquarters of Commander Marisnes?
| I am,
I
:3. Q. Do you have in your posseseion the Commander lMarianas copy of that
(record?
A, I have.
|
oo 4. Is the record authenticated to be a true copy of the original?
,F. This record purports to be a earbon copy of the original record but it
Iiﬁ not a certified copy.
I
Q. Is it correct thet the record is in the files of the Commander llaval
%nrcea Narisnas? i
'H. This record is contained in the fllee of Director ¥ar Crimes under |
kﬂnmmanﬂer Neval Forces Merianas.
;ﬁ. i« Does the record contain the testimony of Fanmuri, Yoshiharu?
A, t does,
\ -F. 4« Do you know where Kanmuri, Yoshiharu is residing now?
iA. He wes returned to Japan and as far es I know ieg still residing in Jepan.
| a
JE. 4« Does the testimony of Kammuri, Yoshiharu relate to an incident
{leoncerning prisoners of war which ccecurred on Chichl Jima sbout February of

II?&E and for which the accused, Teraki, is now on trial¥

'A It does, |
”9- Q. Was Fanmuri duly sworn before making this testimony?
A He was,

The record of proceedings of the military commission in the trial of
Tvchihann, Yoshio, et al, was submitted to the judpge advocate and to the
lcommission and marked fnr identification.

The record of proceedinge of the military commission in the triel of
Tachibana, Yoshio, et al, l&ﬁ submitted to the judge advocate and to the AL
commiasion, and by the accused, so much thereof as contalns the testimony of
Kanmardi, Yoshiharu wes offered in evidence. ‘
|
|

There being no objection, it wes so received.

10. Q. Vill you read from the record of this trial from the testimony of |
Kanmuri, Yoshiharu, questions and answers 1, 4, 5, 6, 7, &, 9, 12, 15, 30, 31,
36, v, 41, 42, 43, 4k, 45, 46 and AT?

The witness read se follows: ‘
|

"l., Q. ©Btate your name and rank.

A, Captein, Imperial Japanese Army,Fanmuri, Yoshiharu," g
"4.Q.Captain, were you ever stationed on Chichi Jima? Lﬂ
K. Yes,
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"5, Q. ’'hen did you arrive on Chichi Jima?
A. T arrived on 13 July 1944.

"6, Q. VWhen did you leave Chichi Jima.
A. Around the 22nd, I have forgotten the exact date, of
February, 1946.

., Q. To what unit were you attached on Chichi Jima?
A. I was attached to the 308th Independent Infantry Battalion.

ng, Q. Who wes the Commending Officer of this bettalion?
A, liajor, Imperisl Jeapenese Army, lMatoba.

g, Q. Ceptain, whet were your duties in the 308th Pattalion?
A. Eor the first month I wes just attached to headquarters.
After thie I became Adjutant.?

112, 4. Captain, did you see two prisoners of war who were
delivered to the 308th Battelion by VWarrant Officer Soya?
4. Yes, I have seen them."

"15., Q. Captain, will you describe these two prisocners?

A. One of the two men was very tall. He wore a green long suit.
He had a slight mustache, !is complexion wes wery fair and he was
a very well built man., The other one was wearing a white shirt and

long white underwear. le wes a very small man and his age was about

eighteen years."

"30. Q. Ceptain, after you delivered this man with the long white
underwear to the Brigade Headguarters, did you ever see him again?®
A. Yes, mbout four days after I hed delivered him to the Brigade
Headguarters, this man was sent back to our unit,

W3l. Q. How long did this men continue to stey in your unit?

4. Immedistely upon the return of this prisoner, I reported the
matter to my Commanding Officer. He told me to give the prisoner
to the Suyeyoshi Unit. I carried out this order.”

"36. Q. Captain, do you know es a fact from your own knowledge
just what happened to this man at the Suyeyoshi Unit?
A. I know that he was executed at the Suyeyoshi Unit,

"37. 4. OCaptain, how long was it between the time you transferred
this flyer from the 308th Battalion to the Suyeyoshi Unit that the
execution took place?

A. T believe about a day."

"N, §. Later thet same afternocon did anything take place concern-
ing this incident?

A. On the same day around 4330 in the afternoon a telephone call
came through from my Battalion Commander who was at the time at
the 307th Battelion Heedquarters.

"2, Q. Captain, did you personally receive this telephone call?
A. Yes,

"3, Q. Will you tell the commission the substance of this tele=
phone call that you had with Major Matoba?
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A. At the bepinning, Ceptaln Ikawe, Adjutant to the 307th
Battalion enlled me on the phone and from Cantain Ikewa I heard
thet Major Matobe asked that about two kan of {lesh was wanted.
Then I replied to Captein Ikewa thet our unit did not have any
meat. At this point Captaein Ikawe was replaced on the phone

by lajor latoba, leajor Matoba also requested meat, however, I
elso told him thet we 4didé not have any, whereupon he told me
that if I told Iieutenant Suyeyoshl of this he would know, and
he further sdded that flesh from the body of the prisoner
executed st the Suyeyoshi unit should be brought., This reguest
of Iajor Matoba colncided with what I had heard this same
mornine. I told the !z2jor thot the body had already been buried
and so please give up the ides of getting any flesh from it.
Although I tried to advise the lajor by telling him not to teke
any flesh from the body, he ordered me to order the ledical
Officer to heve the body exhumed and to heve flesh cut awey from
it end delivered to him,

Wil &« low Captain, did you pess this order on to the ledical
Officer?

A. I had no cther alternative but to tranemit the order to the
l'ediecal Officer,

"45. 4. Captain, who was this lledical Officer?
A. lediecal Officer Teraki.

"i6. Q. Did you personally pees this to Doctor Teraki?
A, Yes.

"i7. Qo And et the time you nassed thies order to Doctor Terski
was anyone else present?
A. T remember thet there were two or three other men nresent,
but I eannot remember thelr names,®

11. K. Do you know where lajor liatoba is now?
A. He is deceased,
Crogs=examined by the judge advocate:
12, R« Will the witness read questions 50, 51 and 52 and the answers
theretol

The witneses read as follows:

"50, 4. Capteain, do you know if this order that you passed on
to Doctor Teraki was carried out?
A. Yes, I know.

"51. Q. How do you know thet it wes carried out?

A. Because I defignated Sergeant Sugiysme to deliver the flesh
and he did so because upon his return he reported to me thet he
had delivered what was required of him.

"53, §. Ceptein, about three days later did you hear lajor Matoba
make any comment concerning this incident?

A. I do not know whether it was three or two days after this
incident that Major Natoba at a perty said thet he had eaten
flegh."
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question and answer 52, on the ground that it was irrelevant, immaterial, =

l ! | The asccused moved to strike out that portion of the answer cuntﬂiningn¥ ' {
|| beyond the seope of the charge and specifications.

! The judge advocate replied. !

The commiesion directed that the words be stricken out.

( Reexemined by the accused:

| 13. 4« Are you the legal custodian of the Commeander lMarianas copy of the
Boerd of Investigation convened by the Commanding Officer, Occupation Forces|
Bonin Ielends, inguiring into Var Crimes matters on Chichi Jima?% =
a. I am.

i 1L, Y« WVas the Board of Investigation duly authorized to act ms such?
| A, It wes,

i 15. Q. Does the record contein the interrogastion of lajor Fetoba?
| & It does.

[l 1é. 4. Vhen was the interrogation of liatoba conducted?
A, Jenuary 14, 1946,

17 &« Does the record indicete thet iajor latoba was duly sworn before
belng interrogated?

and the record does indicate that this witness wes sworn. In addition to hi

1

J

|

|

I

|
{ :
| |
' |
| §
| & The nrecept directs that en oath shall he sdministered to rll ritneaseq
i testimony on 14 January 1946 this witnese aleo testified before the board on | |
]
L]
|

& Karch 1946,

The commission then, at 10:10 a.m., tock & recese until 10:30 a.m., at
| wkich time it reconvened,
|

Fresent: 411 the members, the judge advocate, the seccused, his c.*t;:unﬁefJ,
and the interpreters.

Elvin G. Gluba, yeoman first cless, U, 5. Navy, reporter.
Heo witnessee not otherwise connected with the triel were present,
| Herbert L, Ogden, the witness under exerination when the recese was
i | taken, entered., He was warned thet the ceth previously taken was still
binding end continued hie testimony.

(Reexaminetion continued.)
18, Q. Does the interrogation of latobe contein such portions as relate I

to the incidents with which the accused Teraki is now on triel?
A, It does.

19, Q. Vas the testimon; of lajor latoba from this record introduced into |
evidence at the trial of Yoshio Tachibana, et al?
A. It weas.

The proceedings of the Chichi Jima board of investigation was submitted
to the judge advocate end to the commission, end merked for identification,




The proceedings of the Chichi Jime board of investigation were auhnittrd

to the judpe advocate and to the commission, end by the accused, so much
thereof me contains the testimony of Matoba, Sueo was offered in evidence,

There being no objection, it wes so received.

20, Q. V¥ill you reed from this record the preliminary question identifying
thie witness liatoba as to hle name, rank, and his unit?

The witness read as followsi

M. §. State your full name, renk, end orpganizetion.

A. Sueo Matoba, my ren ie mejor, end T am commander of the
Horthern end of the islend: and commanding officer of the
308th Pattalion, of around four thousand (4000) troops."

2. 4. VWill you remd from Volume II, page 690, questions and answers 125,
128, 129, 130, 143 and 1€77

The witness reed as follovws:

W125.4. By whose ordere did Corporal llakemura execute Halll

4. The order for the execution of flyers or prisoners came
from Generanl Tachibane or lajor Horie. I personally did not
know thet Hell wes returned to my unit. Gorporal HNekamura
received orders from either Sergeant Major Vieda, Captein Sato,
or Lieutenant Ono., However, the responsibility lies with me,
But it so haprens thet I did not give the nrder personally.
Therefore, Corporsl Nekemura would know who gave him the order.”

"128.Y. By whose order wee Doctor Teraki to cut out the liver
end deliver it to you?
A. By my order.

"129,.4. If you did not order the execution, why did you order
Doctor Terski to be there?

A. BGergeant Major Viada or Ceptain Seto ceme and reported the
execution to me. I then ordered Doctor Terski to go and cut
out the liver of the flyer. I pave the order after I received
the report that the flyer wes executed., Thet is, the order for
the removal of the liver.

"130.4. How was it, thet Doctor Terekl wes already at the scene
of the execution before it occurred with hie corpsmen ready to
perform the dissection?

A. T did not give any orders previous to the execution, but if
it so happens thet the circumstances point to me giving the
orders, I will take the responsibility.”

"143.4. Bmetly what instructions did you give to Doctor Teraki,
regarding the disposition of the flyer's body?

A. T ordered Surgeon Teraki to hurry up and remove the liver
because I wanted to teke it to the navel headquarters."

"1€7.4. Then, by your own admission, you are a cannibal?
A, Yes, I was a madman due to the war and that is the only
reason I can give for being a ecannibal,®
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|
Cross=axamined by the judge advocate: |! "
|

22, Q. From the testimony of latoba, Sueo in the board of investigation
of Chichi Jime, will the witness read question number 16 on pege 676 and the
anewer thereto?

The witnees read as follows:

"6, Q. Vhen this flesh wes cut from the body of the flyer '
| et the Suyeyoshi Tei, was any delivered toc and consumed by
the Suyevoshi Tai?

A, I do not know, After we ate human flesh at the 307th
Hattalion headquarters, various rumors went around the island. |
T heard of the eating of flesh in other places on the island, |
and even if it was goat mest, some men would eay thet it wes
humen flesh, end rumorg ceme on so fast thet I do not know."

23, W« 7Till the witness read questions and answers 20, 21, 22 and 267

| The witneas read as follows:

f 20, 4. Did General Tachibana say thet thie should hanpen to
|| all of the prisoners of wer, following theilr executions?
A. Yes, at a conference at the division headquarters in
| February, 1945, General Techibenes seid that supplies would
; diminish and emmunition would run short, and in the end men
il would have to fight even with roecks, and they would be forced
H | even to eat their own comredes killed in combat, end the flesh
of the enemy should be eaten. |

l "21. §&. You personally heard this?
| A, Yes.

I n32. 4« iho do you remember wee present, who also heard this?
Il 4. Every battalion commender. Not only once or twice, but

| several times the general said this.,"

!l W26, Q. Did General Techibena, at this conference, mention the
, fact thet 21l nrisoners of war would be executed?

i A. Yes, end thet the flesh would be esten."

24s Q. Vi1l the witness read questions and answers 141 and 1447
The witness read ae followe:

"141.8. TWhy did Corporal Hekamura execute Hall?

4. I do not know the esxact reason behind Corporal Halamure's
performance, but I know thet the corporal told me thet he went
looking for Sergeant Furushiks end that upon not finding
Sergeant Furushike, he executed the flyer in his place."

"144.Q. TWho brought the liver to you?

A. Doctor Teraki reported to me that the liver was brought
and left in my orderly's room. 48 I could not go to the
naval I;mndquart-arﬂ due to air raides, I had it sliced and
dried. [

The accused did not desire to reexamine thie witness. |

The commission did not desire to examine this witness,
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| ll
The witness said that he had nothing further to state. {
|
|
The witness was duly warned and withdrew.
. I The accused was, at his own request, duly eworn as a witness in hie own
behalf,
. Examined by the judge advocate:
1. 4. Till you state your name?
iﬂ. Teraki, Tedashi.
2. §. Are you the accused in the instent case?
4a. Yes,
i Evamined by the accusedt:
Js 4« lhen were you inducted into the Japanese Army?
A. I was inducted on the 28th of September 1944 &8 corveman second class
private.
F A 4. Before you were conscripted did you heve experience as a doctor?
If so, state briefly your experience,
A. After graduating from the Imperial University of Hokkaido in liarch of
1938 I served in the Gunme FPrefecture as a health technician for one year, and
‘three end a helf years after thet I served with the heelth institute and e
] |lveer end & helf after that I was attached to the navel hospital ss a doctor.
|
| 5o 4« Did you heve a doctor's certificate? I
A I did,
!E. 4. Have you served at the military instellations of the Tmperial
([Japanese Army on Chichl Jima?
A I have,
(T 4« GState the pericd.
a. I arri\rei on Chichi Jima in the latter pert of lovember 1944. For ten oL
days I was attached to the army hospital on Chichi Jime, Liy rank at that
|time wes corpsman second cless, I was promoted to probetiocnary officer of the
|lledical Depertment, Imperial Jepanese Army Reserve and was mssigned to the
EBDEth Battalion which aseignment had been decided upon previously and to which |
i jundt I was to go ag soon a8 I hed received my promotion,
E. §« What was your rank during your tour of duty at the 308th Independent
Infantry Battalion?
A. At first I was probationary officer, liedicel Department, Imperial
Japanese Army Reserve, and later on August 20, 1945 I was promoted to the rank
of surgeon second lieutenant,
i 8 Q. You have testified to heving been & probetionary officer. What is
the status of a probationary officer?
A. A probationary officer has the rating of a sergeant major, consequently
he wears the insignia of a sergeant major and his uniform is also thet of a
sergeant major.
10, Q. VWhaet were your duties while attached to the 308th Infantry Battalioh? J
A. In the capacity of surgeon I examined the officers and men of the
companies and battalion,
952




111, Q. iTho was your immediste superior officer in the 308th Battalion?

308th Battalion?
A. lajor letoba, Sueo, Imperial Japanese Army,

occur around karch of 1945 involving prisoners of war?
A. There weas,

l4ie Q. Then did it talke place?
A, At I recall in the latter nert of March 1945,

115, Q. What was the incident that occurred?
| 4 A prisoner of wer was executed and his body was dissected afterwards.
|

l1é., Q. Vhere did this teke place?
A, Close to the headquarters of the 308th Battalion.

17. . Did you go to the scene of the incident?
| & I did.

|18. Q. Did you-directly participate in the incident?
la. T aid,

I 19, Q. Did you participate in all the phases of the incident?

This question was objected to by the judge sdvocate on the ground that
it was vague and general in form, misleading, and called for an opinion of
| the witnees,
|

‘ The sccused reframed the guestion.

il 20, We JTou testified thet in this incident a prisoner of war vwes executed
end hie liver end flesh removed. In which pert of this incident did you
perticipate?

A. I participated in only thet pert of the incident where the liver was
removed,

2l. §. Is it then correct that you did not perticipete directly or
indirectly with the execution pert of the incident?

Thie queatlion was objected to by the judge advocate on the ground that
it celled for an opinlon of the witness.

The accused reframed the guestion,

22, Q. Did you in actuel fact participete in this incident directly or
indirectly?

This question wae objected to by the judge advocate on the ground thet
it called for an opinion of the witness.

The mccused withdrew the question,

23, . ©State the ciroumstances which led you to go to the scene of the
execution.
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A. In the latter nart of larch 1945 I hed charge of training of auxdliary
corpsmen, While I was glving e telk to these suwxdliary cormsmen a soldier
ceme from headquarters and reported that the adjutant desired to speak to
the surgeon. In the absence of Surgeon Salebe I went. Vhen I arrived at the
heedquarters Adjutant Fanmurli tcld me thet orders had been received from the

training through dissection thet T teke thie opnortunity to instruct them.

Adjutant Eanmmri thereupon said that the unit commander was in a hurry and
further that he had snecifically ordered that Terakl carry out this order and
repentedly stated this. At thet time I recalled that two or three days
nrevious on the morning of the dey when the training course for the awdliery
corpemen wes to begin, thet by orders of Surgeon Sslkabe I hed reported to
l'ajor Katoba concerning the treining. On that occasion I had gone to the
major's room, He was in hie room at breekfest and I reported that the train-<
ing of the auwxiliary corvsmen would begin thet day and submitted the training

schedule, lajor latoba had said thet ss in the near future a priscner of war
would be executed thet he desired the liver and flesh removed as on previous
occesione and as it wes a good opportunity thet I tale the ommortunity to
dissect the body and heve the suxdlisry corpsmen cbserve the dissection, I

| recalled the above when I heard the sdjutent give the unit commander's order.
| I had reported the substance of lejor® latoba's order to Surgeon Sakabe., As
| T recalled these things I thonght thet T had to carry out this order and

| returning to the dispensery I told Sergeant lenemori about this, ESergeant

| Feneriorl began preparstions, I returned to the lecture room and told the
pixdliary corpemen thet I hed received orders from the bettalion commender to
remove the 1liver end flesh from e prisoner of vier end told them that I was
going to the scene of the execution and thet they would accompeny me, I pro-

ceeded to the scene of the execution. &5 I recell Serpgeent Ienemori had
preceded me with the instruments,

= ——

24. Q. At sbout vhat time did you errive et the scene of the execution?
4. I do not clearly recall, but I believe it was early in the =2fternoon,

25, 4. You testified thet "on previous occasions", Nad you participeted in
|incidents involving prisoners of wer prior to this incident?
A, I hed,

26, Q. Vhen did you perticipate in these incidents?
. The first incident occurred on the 22nd or 23rd of Februery 1945. The
second took plece two deys efterwnrds.

{27, Qe Thet led you to rarticipete in these incidents? Did you do so on
lyour own volition or were made to perticipete under orders?
P. I did not perticipste on my own volition, but by orders of liejor Matoba.

28, Q. Returning to the third incident, will you describe what occurred
efter you arrived at the scene of the execution, what was taking place at the
time end what occurred after your arrival?

« Vihen I arrived at the scene with my sauxiliary corpsmen I sew about twentj
neresone gethered at the scene of the execution, Nearing the ecrowd formed by
hese persons I sew about ten meters away from this crowd a prisoner of war

1indfolded and sitting squatting on the ground,

The commission then, at 11:20 a.m., tock & recees until 2:05 p.m., at
hich time it reconvened.

Present: All the members, the judge edvocete, the accused, his counsel,
nd the interpreters.
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unit commander thet as a prifigner of war wes to be executed thet T remove thq 8
liver and flesh from this prisoner in the seme manner es on previous occasions,
ent ag it was a good opportunity to instruct the awdliary corpsmen then unddr

As Surgeon Sakesbe wes awey at that time I reguested that his return be awaitaed.
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Archie L. Haden, junior, yeoman first class, U. S. Navy, reporter.
No witnesses not otherwise connected with the trial were present.

Teraki, Tedsehi, the accused, the witness under exanination when the
recess was taken, resumed the stand as a witness in hie own behalf, was werned
that the ocath previously taken was still binding, and continued hie testimony.

(Evamination eontinued.)

=g, G. Tho were st the scene when you errived there? Give the names of the
persons thet you recall having been there.

d. I recall seeing Captein Seto, Corporal Hakamure, and Sergeant Kenemori
!Ft the scene. I do not recell the names of any other persons.

L O. Q. Were there guards at the scene?
4. I did not see any.

| 1 &« VYho was in charge at the scena?
. Captain Sato.

W+ Other thean Captain Seto were there any officers at the scene at that
No, there were none.

3. Q. VYhere were you at the scene of the execution?
[P Until the conelusion of the execution I was standing in the crowd.

[
| + &. lihat wes the distance between you and Ceptein Seto?
= Az I recall fourteen or fifteen nmeters,

135, 4. Vhet wes the distance between yourself and Corporal Nakamure?
1A. Approximately ten meters.

|36, Qs When did ycu move from the position thet you took up efter arriving
at the scene?
A. After the executlon.

37 Qs You mentioned in vour testimonr Captain Seto. What duties did he
have at the unit?

4. Ceptain Sato was attached to the 308th Battalion., He was an officer whe
hed risen from the ranks and was well versed in matters concerning the bat-
talion and he had naturelly assumed certain of the duties of the adjutant and
was assisting the battalion commander.

38, (. You testified previously thet when you arrived the prisoner of war
was blindfolded and squatting. What happened after that?

A. fihen I arrived Corporal Hekamurs was standing behind the prisoner with
hie sword already drawn., Four or five meters away from Corporal Hakamura on
the other side of the prisoner was Ceptain SBeto. Corporal Nakamura wes taking
up his stance behind the prisoner and swinging his sword in practice. 8Soon
thereafter he tock up his finel position end brought the sword down on the
prisoner, The prisoner fell forward after the blow landed,

39, Q. Approximately how many minutes after your arrivel at the scene did

this occour?
{Ae This teck place one or two minutes after my arrivel,

» Q. Did you speak to lakemura before he executed the prisoner?
. I did not say anything teo him,
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A. Q. Did you speak to Captain Sato?
A, Ho, I also did not speak to Captain Sato,

42« Q. Jias there any command relationship between yourself and this

|| Corporal Nekamura?

4, Corporel Hakamurs was a non-commissioned officer ettached to the head-
{lguartere of the 308th Battalion. His duty wes to go deaily to the division
headquarters to receive the dally orders consequently there was no commend
relationship between Corporal Nekamura and myself,

£3. Q. Previous to the execution were you vested with authority by someone
to interfere with Corporal lNakamura?
A, Ho suech suthority was vested in me,

Aie Q. After Nokamura had performed his worl: what did you do?
A. I immediately approached Ceptain Sato sand reported to him the order thet
I had received from l'ejor lMetoba which was namely the order to remove the liver
and flesh from the priscner and reported that I would execute the order.

45. Q. You did not at thet time then report to Captain Sato thet you would
diesect the prisoner. 1Is that correct?

This question was objected to by the judpe advocate on the ground thet
it waes lesding.

The accused withdrew the guestion.

46, Q. Did you report anything else to Captain Sato besides the report that
you would remove the liver and flesh?
4. No, I reported nothing else.

A7 §« Vhat did you do then?

A, Seto nodded when I reported so I immediately apnroached the prisoner of
war and felt for his pulse, listened to his heertbeet and inspected his pupils
to ascertain hies death. It was beceuse as the order wes to remove the liver
end flesh from the corpse and also as I did not desire to insert my scalpel
ipto & body as long as there was any life or any sign of life in it.

4B, We Flease continue.

A, On examlnation I confirmed the death of the prisoner, however as
unconsciousness may be brought about by fesr and as thet might have been the
case here I decided to wait and see that this wes not one of these instances.
I weited for about fifteen or twenty minutes in the meantime checking his
pulee and his pupils,

49, Q. Tou testified this morning thet you received orders frcm)ggjnr pd

Fatoba to dissect the bedy. iihen you reported to Captain Seto did you tell
him thet you had orders from lajor Matcha to dissect the body?
4. No, I did not at that time.

5"']! ua mlllr didﬂ”ﬁ- Fﬂu?

I'e It was because I did not want to perform the dissection if possible. I
hoped thet during the time I wes removing the liver the captain might go away
and thet is why I did not report to him at that time,

51. . Did you or did you not perform a dissection?
e T first removed the flesh and liver, however as Captain Satoc showed no
signs of leaving I reluctantly performed the dissection,
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| on the offender. To cite 2 few concrete examples -

52e 4. How long did the dissection teke to perform?
A. As T recall it toock twenty or thirty minutes from the time I finished
removing the liver until the completion of the dissection.

xS Q. Vere there any circumstances et thet time which necessiated the
expedition of the dissection’
. lio, there were no special circumstences,

Bl 4« Do you know when Captain Sato left the scene?
A. Yhen I left the scens he was stlll there,

55« Q. Do you know when Corporal MNekamura left the scene?
4. I do not recell at all! what hanpened to Corporal Nakamura after he
executed the prisoner.

56, Qs Vho ordered the burial of the prisoner?
A. I heard later thet Ceptain Seto ordered the burisl of the corpse.

57. Q. Did wyou know the name of the prisoner who was executed?
A, lio, I did not.

58, 4« You testified thet when you were ordered by !ajor latocba to remove
the liver and {lesh from the nrisoner two or three daye nrior to the
executlon that you did not feel well, Thy did you not refuse this order?

This question was objected to by the judge sdvocete on the ground that
it was irrelevent and immaterial,

The accused withdrew the guestion.

59, (. Ves lejor liatoba a strict person in regerd to execution of his ordeps?

A. lMajor liatobe was & strict person., He would not suffer even the smallest
infringement of his authority or eglightest discbedience to his orders. If
any such did oeecur he wounld, without compunetion, visit physieal punishment

The judge advocate objected to the use by the witness of specific
examples on the ground that they would be irrelevent and immaterial.

The accused replied.
The commission announced thet the objection wes not sustained.
(The witnees continued,)

To cite = few conocrete examples, I saw him strike many officers and on
one occacion ae I understood from Surgeon Seksbe he had struck even Iieutenant
General Tachibena, I myself was struck by lajor Matoba and I know of these
circumstences and was in great fear of this lajor Matoba.

Cross=examined by the judge advocete:

60. Q. Then you came upon the scene and saw the prisoner of wer in whet

position wag he?
A. He was sitting on the ground with his legs crossed with his head

glightly drooped forward.

1, Q. When Nakamura struck him on the neck with his sword how much of the

head was severed by the blow?
4. About four-fifthe of the head was cut.
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| see that the sword had cut deeper than half-way through the neck,

| 64. Q. And yet you went to thie priscner and you took his pulse and
| 1istened to his heart and loocked into his pupiles to see 1f he was dead even
though you could see that four=fifths of his heed had been cut off through

| thought that the prisoner was dead

| rabbits and such end I did conduet dissections but they were on corpses,

' 70. §. Did you ever observe an operation on & living petient?

E2s Q. Did wyou sece how much of the head had been severed when liakamura
completed his stroke with the sword?
A. I ecould not tell definitely how much of the neck wes cut but I could

63, 4« Yae there a great deal of blood after the eword had cut through the
prisoner's neck?
A, Yes, a greet deal,

his neck. Ie that correct?
Ad. That was the firest time thet I witnessed an execution and although I

body was still warm I did not desire to commence dissection &nd bided for
time.

65, e 45 8 medicel man &id you not know thet the blow coming over the back
of the neck would sever the spinel column end therefore sever the nervous
system and prevent any feeling from being felt br what wes left of the body?
" That I knew, however my specialty in medicine wes internel medicine and]
it wae my first occasion to see a hody in thet condition and I did not feel
inelined to insert the scalprel into a body in thet condition,

&6, 4 You testified before on direct examination that you did not desire

to insert your scalpel into this body as long as there was any 1*fe left in M
| it. Didn't you ever perform sn operation on eny live patients?

a. llot on &2 living humen being,

67« 4o In ell your previous medical practice you had never performed any
operation and had never inserted your scalpel into & living human beling?
A. No, I had absolutely no such experience.

68E, &« Vhen you completed your medicel treining did you perform any
internshini

A. About the time thet I graduated from the university there wee no intern-
ehip system at the university.

£S. J. Did you ever assist in any operstions or were you ever present at |
eny operations on living petients during your medical studies or your medical

career?
A. In my student days I did operate on live things but they were doge and

After graduating from the university my specialty being internal medicine, I
did not perform any operations,

A. I have seen minor operations performed on living petiente but never any
major operation such as dissection of the ebdomen,

=¥

7. . 4nd yet you are a specialist in internal medicine. Is that correct|
A., Yes, internal medicine is my special fleld.

T2s Q. And you have never used your scalpel in any way on & living patient
Is that correct?

Xs After entering the army I may have used scalpels on petiente for miner
injuries but never on major cases as they were immediately sent to the hos-
pital, Purthermore SBurgeon Sakabe's professional field was pediatrics and he|
ves not versed im surgery either, therefore whenever a major case requiring
surgery occurred in the unit they were always sent to the hospital,

08
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[T3s 4. ihy did you weit fifteen or twenty minutes to perform your dissec=
tion%

|&. As I stated before, mlthough I was almost certain that the prisoner was
|Pend I did not desire to start the dissection on & body thet was still warm
Ianﬁ thet is why I waited,

if4. Q. How long does it teke for a body to get cold?
A . I have forgotten exactly how long it tekes a body to become cold, but it
takes aprroxdimately one hour end by thet I mean for it to become stone cold.
The temperature of the body is dropning all the time,

75, &« The body was gtill quite warm when you performed your dissection,
wasn't it doctor?

A. It wae still warm, but it did not have the temperature of a living human
|heing.

I76. J. And youn waited this twenty minutes because you wanted to let this
|body pet a little cooler before you diesected it., Is that correct, doctor?
[\A. I desired to wait until the body wes cold but Ceptmin Sato was standing
by me and thet wes all the time thet I could prolong the dissection and the
itime that I manmped to prolong was between fifteen and twenty minutes.

T7« 4« Did Captain Seto tell you to begin the dissection?
A, He did not mention gebout the dissection but he did say to hurry the
removal of the liver,

(78, 4« Thet did you do in this fifteen or twenty minutes thet you were
iﬁﬂiting et the scene?

11. I went from time to time over to where the prisoner was and felt his
ipulse, etc., and returned to talk to Captain Sato or sometime turned to the
jawdliary corpsmen end epoke to them,

™. (. Do you remember how many times you spoke to Cepteln Sato during that
[lperiod?
A. I do not.

|80, Q. Do you remember whether you spoke to lNalkamura during thet peried?
|A. I have no recollection of heving epoken directly to liekemura.
|

|El. W« You mean that you have no recollection of heving spoken to him
|during that entire period at the scene of the execution?
[|Ae I did not speak to Nakamura at all.,

i
B2, §. You are certain you did not speak to Nekemura during thﬂtﬂﬁ;;10& of
time at the scene of the execution?
A. I did not speak to Nakamurs at the ecene insofer as I recollect,

E3. {. Are you sure you didn't speak to him or do you have Bome doubt as
to whether you spoke to him?
4. I have absolutely no recollection of having spoken to him.

184, Q. When you arrived at the scene of the execution and jolned the
tw‘tﬂlﬂ'r&, where did you stand?

A, They were standing in a semi=-circle and I walked to the end and was
obeerving it from there,

B5. Q. Where were the corpemen standing?
4. They were mostly close to me,




EE, K. During the perlod of time prior to the execution whet did you do? | l
A. Ae it appeared when I arrived at the scene thet the execution was about)
to take place mlmost soon thereafter and I estood in my place and watched.

87. Q. Did you epeak to anyone while you stood there?
A. I may heve spoken but I do not recall thet I did speak.

8. Q. Do you recall who you spoke to?
| Aa If I did epeak to anybody it would have been to the awdliary corpemen
who were there.

89, Qe Viere you second in rank at the scene of the execution?
| A« Yes.

[ 90s Qe Are you sure you didn't speak to Sato?

|;_ I did not speak to him prior to the execution. I recall thet the
reason 1s that was because the exeention sppeered to take place immediately
I delayed reporting to the eaptain et thet time,

ol. §. Had you spoken to Captain Sato on thet day before the execution?
A. Ko, I did not.

G2. &+ During the two minutes thet you stood there efter your srrivel and

watched NHakamara, vies any change made in the position in which the prisoner

was sitting?

iA. lio, he did not.

|93. &« The corpsmen who ceme with you to the scene of the execution knew

! that immediately after thet execution the prisoner would be dissected. 1Is |

{thnt correct?

rl. I did not tell them directly, however when I received the order from
Vajor letoba I made a report tec Surgeon Sekabe, A4t thet time there were
present when T was %{he report Sergeant Kenemori, Corporal Iso, and twq.c
or three suxiliary n the room and it may be thet some of the other

ewxiliary corpemen knew of the diesection thet would telke place immediately

f| efter the execution indirectly through rumors,

O4e . 0On the morning of the execution when you were told by the adjutant,
did you not inform your training group that there would be a dissection and
thet they should follow you to the scene?

A. ds on receiving the order from the madjutent I returned immediately to

i the dispensary and went to the scene of the execution it was not in the
morning of the day of the execution but in the afternoon of that day and
further I did inform the awdliary corpsmen that I was about to remove the
liver and flesh but I did not mention the dissection of the prisoner to thesed
men, ]

l 95« Q.+ ©Several days prior to this execution had you not discussed with
Hatoba the dissection of the next prisoner of war to be executed?

- A. Ho, I did not discuse thie matter., I received this order when I went
to make my report to Major Katoba,

The commission then, at 3:15 p.m., took & recess until 3:30 p.m., at
which time it reconvened.

Present: 411 the members, the judge advocate, the accused, hie cuunauﬂ,
and the interpreters.

Elvin G, Gluba, yeoman first class, U. 5. Navy, reporter,

: 1 60




,“
-
-
-

lo witnesses not otherwise connected with the triel were present.

Teraki, Tadashi, the accused, the witness under examination when the

|

'.

}thnt the ocath npreviously taken was still binding, and continued his testimonyl
| (Cross-examination continued,)

I

|96, Q. You testified that you received this order to dissect the prisoner
| after the next execution from liatoba, is thet correct?

A. Yes,

97. Q. How many deys prior to the execution wes this?
4, I am not definite concerning this, however, the execution toock nlace in
It}-e middle of the training course that I was conducting for the awdliary

| corpsmen and the day on which I received thie order was the firat day of the
treindng course. I believe it was two or three devs prior to the execution.

98, Q. Dié you say enything to lejor latoba before he gave you this order?
4. I reported to him thet the training of the amwdliary corpemen would

l corpemen. This schedule wae o timetable affair,
I
{99, (. Thet did latoba say when he loocked at this timetable schedule?

| steted thet in the near future a prisoner of wer will be executed and that he
|desired the liver and flesh removed from this prisoner, thet as it was an
|opportune time to conduct a dissection for the treining of the awdliary
corpsmen, he ordered thet that opportunity should be taken,

in thelr knowledge of human anatomy?
4. I did not.

101, Q. Ien't it true that in fact you ere the person that sugrested to
letoba thet the prisoner be dissected so that you coulé teach your men
properly?

A. That was absolutely not so. 4s I steted previously I was in fear of
this Hajor liatoba and it was not for me toc meke sugrestions to the unit

my senlor in my department.

training instruction would be, isn't that true?
A. Thie training course of the awdliary corpemen was the third that was
being conducted at the unit. The first and second had been conducted under
the cherge of Surgeon Sekebe and Sekabe had suggested that I, Teraki, be in
charge of the third training course and most of the hourg of the schedule for
this course wes consequently assigned to me, and it was under these circjim-
stances thet Surgeon Sakabe told me on that morning to report to lajor Latcba
concerning this training course., I refused this two or three times but
Surgeon Sakabe insisted and that was what brought me te the unit commander
ith the schedule.

03, Q. Now, after this meeting with Matoba you knew that the personnel at
Matoba 'e headquarters knew that a diesection would occour after the next
execution, ien't that true?
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a. As when on returning to the dispensary I reported to Surpeon Sekabe
there were two or three awriliary corpsmen in the room I felt thet this
information may have been disseminated.

104. §. And on the day you went to the scene of the execution there were a
number of corpsmen who knew that the purpose of your presence was to conduct
e dissection as soon as the prisoner was ¥illed, isn't that true?

A. I told the swdlisry corpsmen that I was about to remove the liver and
flesh from the prisoner and those awdliary corpemen who hed heard rumors of
the dissection I think must have felt that what they had heard concerning a

il dissection had been just a rumor.

105, &« Wasn't it prior to the time you came to the scene that wyou told
these corpsmen thet you were going to remove the liver and flesh?
A. Yes, prior to going to the scene of the execution.

1106, 4. And prior to golng to the scene of the execution you were also
il epeaking with the adjutant, weren't you?
| a- Yﬂﬁ-

f|10?. Q. And the adjutant told you there would be a dissection after this
| execution, didn't he?

'|A- YEE-

I

FIDS. 4. And he told you that you were to perform this dissection, didn't he]
|A. Yes.

109. Q. And he told you this dissection wes under Major Matoba's orders,
|didn't he?

|1. Yes,

!11U. Q. And you knew that this dlssection wes to be performed for the
benefit of wyour class of corpsmen, didn't you?

& Yes,

illl. Q. Did you order your corpemen to be present at the execution?

} This question wes objected to by the mccused on the ground thet it was
irrelevant and immaterial.

| The judge advocate replied.
The commission announced that the objection was not sustained.

A. I desired to remove the liver and flesh from the prisoner and to call
that the dissection, and I did order the smwdllsry corpsmen to witness the
removael of the liver and flesh,

112, Q. And you did inform them that there would be a dissection, did you
not, prior to the time you went to the scene?

A, No, I did not tell them that a dissection would be performed, I did
tell them, however, that the liver and flesh would be removed.

113, Q. Did you order them to be present st the scene of the execution?

A. I did not order them to go to the scene of the execution. I told them
that if any desired to witness this removal of the liver and flesh that they
laccompeny me to the scene of the execution,

114, Q. And this is the way in which you were going to carry out the orders
of lajor Matoba of whom you were in such mortal dresd, is that true?
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A, I was hoping that Captein Seto would leave the scene by the time I had
removed the liver and flesh, in which event I had intended to report to lejor
Matobe thet I had conducted a dissection and that the ewdliary corpemen had
observed it., Now, it wesn't I elone who was in fear of liajor latoba, In thip
unit 211 the men especially those below the rank of non-commissioned officers
feeared and hated the unit commander. There was no danger of these men
informing lajor latoba on me. Ilowever, as Captain Sato was standing by and
Captain Seto wes standing in close relationship with the major it was highly
probable thnt he would report the failure to conduct a diesection on my part
to the major, end as long as Captein Sato was looking on, I thought that I
could not dispense with the dissection and therefore I resolved to carry out
the dissection,

115, Q. Although you feared llajor Matobe snd although lajor lietoba ordered
you to perform a dissection for the training of your corpsmen you did not

| order them to be present at the scene of the execution, is thet correct?

A. I did not order them to go to the scene of the execution because I knew
thet it did not require such an urging on ry part as their curiosity had been
| aroused and they would follow me if I told them to come if they desired.

|

;115. 4« Did you tell all of them toc come wWho were under training?

| & It wae in the middle of the lecture and sll the corpsmen under training
| were assembled and therefore I esddressed all of them,

|

1117, Q. Approximately how many corpemen went with you to the scene?

A. There were two auxiliary corpsmen from each company, therefore a total
of ten auxiliary corpsmen were with me.

118, . And approximately how many other persons were present at the scene
when you arrived?
A. Aprroximately twenty nersons.

119. Q. Now, Sato knew thet you were to perform thie diesection immedistely
after the execution, didn't he?

This guestion wae objected to by the accused on the ground that it
called for en opinion of the witness,

The judge advocate replied.
The commission announced thet the objection wes not sustained.
a. I do not think he did.

120, Q. On what basis do you meke thet answer?
A At that time I surmised that 8ato knew about the removal of the flesh

about the dissection. The grounds for this surmise ie thet as liajor Matoba
was . in my estimation not a man who would discuss the reasons for hie actions
with other persons, that liajor Matoba had not told Captain Seto concerning

thiﬂi

and liver that was to take place after the execution, but that he did not knoy

121, Q. You surmised that S8ato knew thet you were to remove the liver and s
flesh, Did you also surmise that Nakamura knew you were to refove the

liver and the flesh?
A. T believe that Hakamura must alsc have sensed that I was to remove the

flesh and liver as they had been removed on two previous occasions and as I
had taken the awdliary corpsmen to the scene with me,




:-'o '-wl X g it tr that & | » ' yol knowledge Nakam a ato
122 Adnd is it true that to the best of your knowledge lNakamura, tc
and & number of the corpsmen nresent knew that you were there for the purpose
of removing the liver and flesh of the nrisoner who was tc be executed?

This question was cobjected to by the accused on the ground that it
called for an oolnion of the witness and was irrelevant and immaterial,

The judge advocate made no reply.

'
t '

The commigsion gnnounced that the objection was not sustained,
d. ds for the auxiliary corpamen they knew that I was there %o remove the
flesh and liver because I had told them so, As for Nakamura and Sato I do
hot think that they thought ny presence there at the scene meant that I was
there to remove the liver and (lesh.,

The commission then, at 4:20 p.m., adjourned until 9 a.m., tomorrow,
TP

Friday, l'areh 11, D




oIXTH DAY

! United States Pacific Fleet,
! Cornmander Nevel Forces, Mariansa,

i Guem, Mariesnas Islends,
! Friday, March 11, 1949.

|i The commission met at 9:05 a.m,
|| Present:

I
. Rear Admiral Arthur G. Robinson, U. 8. lNavy, !
' lajor Wilbur R, Helmer, U. S. liarine Corps, |
i lejor John H., Lott, Corps of [ilitary Police, United States Army, |
Iieutenant Conmender Loyd 8. Ejorle, Suprply Corps, U. S. NHevy, '
lajor Ieurance B. Payne, Transportation Corps, United States Army, [
members, and {
Iieutenant David Bolton, U. &. Havy, Jjudge asdvocate. |
Elvin G, Gluba, yeoman first clase, U. S. llavy, reporter. f
The accused, his counsel, and the interpreters.

|

| The record of vroceedings of the fifth day of the trial wes read and
llapproved,
I
|
|

o witnesses not otherwise connected with the trial were present.

Teraki, Tadashi, the sccused, the vwitness under examination when the
|eéjournment wes teken, resumed the stend as e witnese in his own behalf, was |
jwarned that the ocath previously talen wes still binding, and continued his .
[testinony. I

|
|| Reexamined by the mccused:

1124. Q. In enswer to & guestion put to you by the judge advocate yesterday,
lyou replied thet after liakemure had executed the prisoder you tock the pulse
|lof the prisoner and looked into hie pupils, et cetera, liow is it necessary
}!fur a doctor to take such steps?

I Thie question was objected to by the judge advocate on the ground that
lit called for an opinion of the witness, wes irrelevant and immaterial, and
:&aa vague and general in form,

The accused reframed the question,

125, Q. Is it customary for a doctor to take the pulse of a person or look
.Ein‘l:.n his pupilse, & person who to a non-profeseional man would seem to be deadl

'r-i The judpe advocate objected to the words "who to a non-professional man
tnuld seen to be dead" on the ground thet they implied a hypothetical situstig
thich was not present in the instent cese, namely thet a professional man
would not also have concluded that this prisoner was dead, without checking
ipulse, et cetera.

The meccused made no reply.

The comrmission announced that the objection was not sustained,




| ' {
i&. Even after the person does seem to be dead to make certain thet he is
dead, a doctor custorarily goes through the estepe of taking his pulse, feeli:
for a heartbeat, and loocking into his pupils. o & conscientions doctor, it
|ie a procedure that is always talken,

|
1126. 4. Did you on that day tell the auxiliary corpsmen to go to watch the

|| execution?
A. T did not tell them to go and watch the execution.

|

|

|EEL Qe You testified in reply tec a question put to you by the judge [
ladvocate yesterday that at the scene of the execution you were next in rank

|[to Captain Sato, Vhat was your basis for that answer?

|£. Insofar as I remembered there were at the scene Centain Seto, Corporal
||Hakamura, and Sergeant Kanemori, end therefore as fer as my recollection went
I wes next in rank to Sato., If there actually were any persons superior to me
rin rank on that day et the scene, then my answer would not have been correct.
1128, Q. Vles there a Sergeent lmjor Yamashite et the 308th Battalion?
4&. He was the sergeant major of the second compeny.

|

HlEP. W« WVies there a Serpeant lajor Vada?
(A, Serpeant iajor Tlada was attached to the 308th Battalion Heedquarters.

1130. Q. Do you know whether Sergeant lajors Yamashita and Vieda were at the

lscene of the execution on that day?
i A, I do not recall their having been preeent.

131. Q. Was Sergeant !'ajor Yameshita senior or junior to you?
A, Do you rmean wes he appointed sergeant major before me?

|

132, Q. How did you stand in relation to Sergeant lajor Yamashita in order |
lof precedence? |
4&. Sergeant lajor Yameshita wes appointed sergeant major a long time before
T was and furthermore he was a line sergeant and I was a corpsman sergeant
mejor and therefore he was senior in order of precedence,

A. Sergeant l'ejor Wade was also eppointed sergeant major quite some time

|
|
‘133- 4. Vhat of Sergeant lajor Wada?
!hefore me,

:134. Q. That wag the business which tock you to the scene of the execution
on thet day?

4. It was for the purpose of executing the order givfﬂ&-tn me by lajor g
Fatoba that I went to the scene of the execution on thet day.

135, Q. In other words?
A, In short the order to remove the liver end flesh from the prisoner.

- 136, Q. Vas there not enother order of liejor Matoba's?
A. The other order was to perform a dissection and for the auxiliary
corpemen to observe it, However, I had the desire not to carry out the

latter, if possible.

Recrogs-examined by the judge advocate:

137. Q. You have just testified that you went to the scene to carry out the
orders of lMatoba. Do you know whether the purpose of this execution of the
prisoner of war was to provide Matoba with liver and flesh and to provide you
with the opportunity to demonstrate s dissection before the corpsmen?
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i This guestion was objected to by the accused on the ground that it
‘ called for en opinion of the witnessa.

.: The judge advocate replied.

j The commission announced that the objection wae not sustained. |
] |
| &, Ho, I did not know the purpose, I merely went to carry out the order
:Ithpt was given; the purpose wes not explained to me.

I

illﬂf. Q. Do you know of any remson for the execution of the prisoner of war
'iuther than the carrying out of the two orders thet liatoba gave you in regard
:itn the removal of the liver and flesh and in regard to the dissection?

' Thie question was objected to by the mccused on the ground that it

| celled for s conclusicn on the pert of the witness,

,i The judge advocate replied.

Ii The commission announced that the objection was sustained.

;%139. 4« Do you know of any reason for the execution of this prisoner of wari
(| Ao Ho, I absolutely did not know the reason,

| 140, Q. At the time of this execution did you know that other prisoners of |
|| wer had been executed under liatoba's orders? '

i |&. Are you referring to the day of this third prisoner of war incident?

I I
|

| 241. Q. Yes,

|4 T,

'!1&2. Q. Prior te the date in larch on which you removed the liver and flesh
| had you previously removed the liver and {lesh from other prisoners of war?

| 4. Yes,

| 143. §. On how meny occasions?
,iA. On two previous occasions. |
(| l4fhe Q. HNow, you have testiflied coneerning your rank and that of certain I
|| sergeant majors, At the time of the ineident were you & probationary officen
I or were you s sergeant major?

| A. I was a probationary officer, however the rating of a probationary
Ilofficer is thet of & sergeant major,

r:lﬁﬁ- Qe Isn't it true, however, that a probationary officer while he ranks
il with a sergeant major, ranks shead of a sergeant meajor in seniority?

a. My service in the Japanese Army was not of very long standing end I de
not know concerning the matter brought up by the judge advocate., However, I
wore the insignia of a sergeant mejor and I understcod my standing to be that
of a sergeant major.

146, §Q. How long had you been in the armed forcee at that time?
A. From the first time I was inducted into the Army, about five months,

I 147. Q. Prior to this time had you served a yeer and a half as a doctor in

a naval hospital?
A. Yes, T did serve in 2 naval hospital, but in the capeacity of a eivilian

official.
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| offer into evidenceX

148. Q. lNow, you have testified that a conscientious doctor customarily

checks the pulse and heartbesets in order to ascertain whether a person is '

dead., Jsn't the purpose of thet in order to help the injured person?

This question was objected to by the accused on the ground thet it was
irrelevant and immaterial.

The judge advocate replied.

The commission announced thet the objection wes sustained.

The accused did not desire to reexamine this witness,

The commission did not deslre to examine this witness,

The witness said thet he had nothing further to state.

The witness resumed his status es mccused.

Sanagi, Sadamu, & counsel for the mccused, was recalled as a witness
for the defense and was werned that the ocath previously taken was still
binding.

Bramined by the mccused:

i B Q. Do you have in your possession a document which you desire to
4. I do. I heve one document.
2. Q. Vhat type of document is it?

A.
unite and the covering letter to this register.

It is a document composed of Teraki's register of personnel of overseas

3. Q. Flease explain how you ceme into possession of this document?

A. Defense counsel requested the Fiﬂﬂg Demobilizetion Bureau te forward arﬁ

record of the accused Teralkl showing the dates when he wae promoted to pro=-

bationary officer and when he was promoted to surgeon second lieutenent, Th1

Firet Demobilization Bureau did not have in its possession the military recox
of the sccused Teraki. However, they did forward a document which would
serve in its stead which is really the register of personnel of overseas
units, which document I have in my possession.

L Q. llhen did you receive this document?
4. Yesterday afternoon.

5e §. Wae it after the session for the day had been concluded?
A. After the day's session was over,

6. Q. Who executed this document?

A. The covering letter was written by the Chief of the Legal Investigatio
Department, Demobiligation Bureau, Hepatriation Relief Buresu and the regist
wae executed by Nagata, Shigeichi, Chief of the Second Coordination Section,
Iiquidation Department, Demobilization Bureau,

7. Q. Is there a certificate stating that the register is a true and
correct copy of the original?

A. It is certified by Hagata, Shigeichi, the Chief of the Second Coordi-
nation Bection, Idiquidation Depertment, Demobilisation Bureau thet the cony 1

rd

r

e correct copy of the original,
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g. Qe Is the doocument signed or sealed by the executor?

A. On the covering letter is the official seal of the Chief of the Legal
Investigation Department, Demobilization Bureau, and on the register is the
seel of llegata, Shigeichi, the Chief of the Second Coordination Section,

Demobilization Bureau.

|

9. Q« In what language is the text of this document?
A. The oripinal tewt is in Japanase and an English trenslation has been |
prepared. -

10, Q. "ho mede the English translation?
A. An official interpreter of this court.

The document produced by the witness was submitted to the judge
edvocate and to the commission, end by the accused offered in evidence. |
There being no cbjection, it was so received and is apnended, marked |
"Exhibit 7" (Japanese) and "Exhibit 7(a)" (English trenslation).

11, Q. Will the witness read the covering letter and from the heading of
the reglster, the name of the subject of the matter, and the yeasr in which
he was commissioned?

(The witness read from Exhibit 7 as requested.) i
The judge advocate did not desire to cross-examine this witness,
The commission did not desire to examine this witness,
The witness said thet he had nothing further to state.

The witness resumed his sest as s counsel for the mccused,

The commission then, at 10:10 a.m., took a recess until 10235 a.m., at
which time it reconvened,

Present: All the members, the judge edvocate, the sccused, hie counse]
and the interpreters. ' '

Archie I, Haden, junior, yeoman first class, U. S. lavy, reporter.
o witnesses not otherwise connected with the trial were present.

llartin E. Carlson, a counsel for the eccused, was celled as a witness
for the defense and was duly sworn.

Examined by the judge advocate:

4 Will you stete your name and renk?
Vartin E. Cerlson, commander, U, S. Neval Heserve.

ool o

4. If you recognize the accused, state as whom?
I recognize him as Teraki, Tadashi.

-

Q. A4re you a defense counsel for the amccused, Teraki, Tadashi?
I an.

W A

¥
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Examined by the accused: | ‘
| F A5 4. Have you in your possession certain documents relating to the
! character of the accused, Terali, Tadashi, which you desire to introduce in
. | evidence?
| A. I do. I have two documents, one from Hanmuri, Yoshiharu and one from |
1 Hattori, Hikeru,
I
| 5. Q. Byplain how you obtained these documente?
| A. It wes requested when I was in Tokyo thet Iieutenant Tremayne bring
| these two men in for questioning., They came in end after a short question= |
| ing they were requested to write & statement concerning the character and ;
(| general reputation of Terski, Tadashi and they did, These two documents do
|| cover the general reputetion and character of Teraki.
|
| G Q. Did they take an ocath?
A, They were sworn to tell the truth by an ceth administered by lieuten- |
| ent Tremayne.
7. 4« Have you prepared an English translation for these documents?
I A, An English translation has been prepared by the court interpreter,
| Tieutenant (jg) Clark. |
f g. 4. Do these documents relate to those traits of Tersl’i, Tadashi and
i his genersl reputetion?
'| A. They do,
| I'
|
H 9. s Do these documents relate to those traits Lrought into question by
the charge under which the accused, Teraki, Tadashi is being tried? |
: A. They do.
|
4 The documente produced by the witnese were submitted to the judpge
|| advocate end to the commission end by the accused offered in evidence, Therp
being no objection they were 8o received end are aprended marked "Exhibit &0
| (Japanese), "Exhibit £(e)" (English trenslation), "BExhibit 9" (Janpanese), |
| end "Exhibit 9(a)" (English translation). 5
| 10, Q. Will the witness read the deposition of Fammuri, Toshiharu which
| is Exhibit 87
I _ (The witness read Exhibit 8(a).)
i |
: The accused waived the reading of the Japanese original of Exhibit 8
in open court,
J 11, . Will the witnees read Exhibit 9, the affidavit of Hattori?
(The witness read Exhibit 9(a).)
- The accused waived the reading of the Jepanese oripinal of Exhibit 9
in open court.
The judpe sdvocate did not desire to cross=exmmine this witness.
The comrission did not desire to examine this witness,
The witnese said that he had nothing further to state.
!l The witness resumed his seat ae counsel for the accused,
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!‘ SEVEITH DAY |

United States Facific Fleet,

. Commander Naval Forces, liarlanas,
| Guam, Marianas Islands,

‘ Tuesday, March 15, 1949.

, The commission met at 9:15 a.m. ]

|. Present:

Rear Admiral Arthur G. Robinson, U. S. lavy,

| lajor Viilbur R, Helmer, U. S. Merine Corps,

' Mejor John H. Lott, Corps of ldlitary Folice, United States Army,
|' Lieutenant Commander Loyd 5. Djorlo, Supmly Corps, U. 8. HNavy,

- Mejor Laurence E. Payne, Transportation Corps, United States Army,
‘ members, and

_ Iieutenant Devid Bolton, U, S, Hevy, judge advocate,

! Elvin G, Gluba, yeoman first class, U. 5. llavy, reporter.

i The accused, his counsel, and the interpreters.

The recoré of proceedings of the sixth day of the trial was read and
eprroved.

| o witnessese not otherwise connected with the trial were present.
|
! The accused read a written statement in his defense, anpended marked "¢,

| An interpreter reed en English translation of the accused's stetement,
iephﬂndad marked "AAY, ' |
|
i The judge advoecate read his written opening argument, anpended marked
| nEEn

The mccused waived the reading of the judpe advocate's opening arpument
in Jepenese in open court,

The commiesion then, at 10:20 a.m., took a recess until 10:45 a.m., at
which time it reconvened.

\
Present: All the members, the judpe advocate, the maccused, hie counsel

| and the interpreters.
- | Archie L. Haden, junior, yeoman first class, U. S. Navy, reporter.
Ho witnessee not otherwise connected with the trial were present.

kKr, Tekano, Junjiro, a counsel for the accused, read a written argument
ifur the defense, anpended marked "CC",

- The commission then, at 11:30 a.m,, took a recess until 2:05 p.m., at
which time it reconvened,

Present: 411 the members, the judge advocate, the accused, his counsel)}
and the interpreters,

Elvin G, Gluba, yeoman first class, U. 8. Navy, reporter.

Ho witnessee not otherwise connected with the trial were rresent.

12
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LIGHTE DAY

nited States Paclfic Fleet,
Commander “aval Torces, !"farlanas
Guam, Marlanas Tslands,

Mednesday, Marah 16, 1949,

The commisaion met at 9:10 a.m

Present:

mar idmiral Arthur €, Toblnson, 1, 2, Navy,
¥Major ™1hur R, Eelmer, U, S, Yarine Corps, ;
1 Yajor John F, Lott, Corps of "1litarys/Police, nited Ctates Lrmy,
|| Lieutenant Commander Loyd S, Bjorlo, Surply Corps, U, 5. Navy,

‘ YajJor Laurance ¥, FPayne, Transportation Corps, UTnited States Lrmy,

i

¥y Judge advocate,
irst class, . 3. Navy, reporter.
Lterpraters,

Lleutenant David BEolton, 7., 5. Na
_ Archle L, Heden, junlor, yeoman ©
| The accused, his counsel, and the In
| The record of procsadings of
| epproved,

the seventh dav of the trlal was read and

Mo wltnesges not otherwlse connected wit" the trial were rresent. |

The commission was cleared,

The judge advocate was recalled anl direc'ed
findinrs:

.0 record the Pollowing

The first specifleation of the charge proved In part, proved except Lhe
words "surgeon segond lleutenant, IJA", which words are not nroved, and for
which the commisaion suhstitutes the words "prolationary oflficer, Medical

Department, Tmperial Japenese Army Teserve®™, which words are proved,

(]

’|. The second specificatlion of the charge nroved in part, nproved except the|
| worde "surgeon second lieutenant, TJA", which words are not proved, and for

| which the commizalon subst!tutes b yrdle "prohationary officer, ledical
I,-'Fl'it'l'!"'-"’ll‘ﬁ*lj 1"':]':» rial :rl:'- nasga i‘"“;-' "H«nr",‘r*.,"' vhielh words are DTOTE d.

|

2

| The third epecification o® the charge proved in part, proved except the
il words "aurgeon second lieutenant, IJA", which worde are not nrowd, and for
B ’ ] X )
which the commission substitutes the words "probationary offlcer, MNedical
- o ¥
Department, Tmperlal Japanese irmy Seserve®™, which words are proved,

| The fourth specifleation of the charge proved in part, proved exsept the
words "surgeon second 1ieutenant, TJA", which words are not proved, and for
whieh the commiesion suhstitutes the words "prohatlionary officer, MMedlcal
Department, Tmperial Japanese Army Reserve", which words are proved,

The ™ifth specification of the charge not proved,
And that the accused, Teraki, Tadashl, 1s of the charge gullty.
The cormmission wae opened and a1l parties to the trial entered,.

The commlission snnounced ite Tindinges in open ecourt,

memhers, and l

]
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I i
|
| "&ﬂﬂ.ﬂi, .“'!""'F"'I, s coungsl for the ;1:‘-"‘.115‘!“:?, a witness for the -'H-"Pn_c'.n’ e ]
[recallad as a witnese "or the Jafense mas to matters in mitisation and was T ! t
warned that *he oath previonaly taken by him was still binddng, f
|

#| Txamined hw the accnsed:
I
1. T« Have =ou in your possession petitlons in mitlsetion for the accused,
Teraki, Tadeshi?
&, T have 90 petitions.
|
|
1ﬁ4 3. In what lancuses are those netitions written?
guag . .
|ds Thay ere writiten in Jeranese but the Pnglish translations of them have

(heen Dreparad,

i?. T "ho trenslated these Adocumen’s?
[ 4 Come n” them were translated hy the of"iclal interpreter of this court

land some of the petltlons had the Tnglish translations attached,

4;1&_ 1, TYawve vou loocked over all the pet!tions?
|| » ‘EEE, T ragd tI B,
15, 1« Do you desire to offar Into avidence all thepe petitions?
|l&. T wish to Introduce all these petitions in mitigation for the accuszed as
i'?'"{"‘f‘!"l.cﬂ in mits El_f'..‘. on Tt deslras o 1-,-,1..1_ Dr'll:.r .--,_.-H.-L of t!'ﬁ’m {n open court.
!’. Q. From what persons were these documents submitted?
A, Six petitions Prom bds Tamlly and relatives, "ourteen from those who
|served on Thichi Jima with Tera%i and sixty-three from Joctors and persons
I '-\'Ol.:#ll‘f‘*f-"I . '.1'I'i ':l-':lg.'_;'.“'_'. } "L." E An - BavTeT ..-'-F"r'.‘ L4 one f‘:.._.l_: :-E.r.-.l"'?ll- B. ‘
1T e 1. How many petitions do you wish to read 1n oren court? |
la. Stxteen,
. ™he documents produfig! hy the witness were submitted to the jJudge ad- RE
|vocate and to the commigsion and Yy the accused offered In evidence, There
|heing no ohjectton they were sn received and are aprended marked "Exhiblt 107,
f[through "Bxhibit 99", (Japanese originals), and "Exhi'At 10(a)", through
I"Ethﬂit 99faj1, f”nﬁl*w“ +rgn£1ntiﬂn5].
i :
e, Q, i1l the witness read those which he deslres?
A, The acoused has alresdy seen *he Japanese originals 3o we would like fo
weive the reading of the Japanese in open court,
‘ 1 - -~
: (T™he witness read Exhibits 10(e), 11(a), 12(a), 1&(e), ITEa;, 18(a), 19(4), |
20{a), 21(a), 22(a), 30(a), 71(a), 32(a), 33&&?, 93(a), and 9(a), ;
)
| The ju'ge advocate did not desire to eross-examine this witness. | I
|
' T™he commigelion did not desire to examine thls wltness, [
* The witness saild that he had nothing Purther to state,
| The witness resumed his seat as counsel “or the accused,
The accused re~uested that the commisslon adjourn until tomorrow morni-y
in order to allow an opportunity to ascertain whether further evidence in
1 mitication expected from Japan would arrive and be desired Tor presentation
b the accuse? in mitl-ation,
The commission announced that the reguest was granted. |
The commission then, at 11:25 a.m., adjourned until 10 a.m,, tomorrow,
Thursday, March 17, 1949,

[

~ daale. S




NINTH DAY

United States Pacific Fleet,
Commander Naval Foreces, larianas,
Guam, 'arianas Islands,

Thursday, Narch 17, 1949.

The commisalon met at 10:05 a.m,

Present:
lear 4dmiral Arthur G, Roblnscn, ', 5, Favy,
] s ot B - e - -

Vajor lbur 3, Helmer, U, 3. Farine Corpsa,
Kajer John H, Lott, Corps of Filitary Folice, Vnited States army,
ILieutenant Commander Loyd 3. Djerlo, Supply Corps, U, 3. Na
kKajor Laurance B, Payne, Transportation Corps, Tnited States Army

menbers, and
Lieutenant David Rolten, V. 3. Nevy, Judge advocete,

Elvin G. Gluba, yeoman [irst -] « D4 LEBVY, Teporber,
The accused, lils counsel, and the lntervreters,

The record of nroceedings of the elghth day of the trial wes read and
approved.

Ho wltnesses not otherwlise connected with the trial were present,

The accused stated that the expected additional petitions did not arrive
from Japan, and tShat 1f and when such addlitlonal petitions arrived they
vould be submitted to the cenvening cubhority for clemency conslderation, as
aprropriate., The accused requested the commission te give due consideration
to evidence relevant to mitigation presented prlor to the findings.

The commission was clearad,




Ll

[ T
(|the commission as followa:

72/{’3 Wf W
i, Teradbiy Toodic, &5 o camflmse ok

< el of doin (1) yrany

arthur | nhinfcn,
itear ddmiral, : ¥, Fresident,

/4%47

| 11||.zr ‘1 Hielmer,
' . Se ur' I'rJrrJ, llember,

John H. I_Et-t

¥ajor, Corps of Kilitary P ice,yitedﬁ;ﬁas Army
| - : i w
| i
¢ Léﬁ 3, Fior

»
Lieutenant Commander, Supply Corps, U, [B. lavy, !

Femher,

Laurance B. Fayne,
Fajor, Transportation Corps, United States 411“]"1}", Fember,

lieutenant, U, 3. :Ia.vy, Judge Advocate,

he judge advoceate was recalled, and directed to record the sentence of




t | The commission was opened and all parties to the trial entered. | \

The commission then read and pronounced the sentence to the acocused,

The commisaion adjournad to awanlt the action of the convening authority.
|

drthur G, 1nson,

Rear iAdmiral, T, Navy, President,

P bulten

Lieutenant, 7, S, Wavy, Judge idvoecate,
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| by unlawfully disinterring the body of soid prisoner of wor and removing
| the liver and flesh from the thigh of snid prisoner of wrr.

c " * 0

ORJECTTON TO THE CH/RGE LND SPECIFICATIONS
Delivered by TLFLNO, Junjiro,

Counsel for the accused, TERAKI, Tadashij
Former Surgeon Sccond Lieutemant, IJA,
(et the time of the incidents, Proba-
tionary Officer of the Medica) Dept.)

The accused, TERLKI, Tadeshl objects to the charge and speceifs htions
in this case on the following grounds:

|

|
1, In Specification 1 it is charged that TERAYI, Tadashi violated the law |
end customs of war in that whilc serving ot the militory insta)lations of |
the Imperinl Japanese Lrmy, Chichi Jimn, Bonin Islands, on or about
February 23, 1945, wilfully disrcspected the grove of an fLmerican prisoner
of war who died in coptivity of and woe buried hy the Jopanese Lirmed Forces,

In Bpeecification 2 it is chorged thot TERLKI violnted the law ond custom
of war in that he prevented the honorable buriel of “Lhe same prisoner of
war mentioned in Specification 1 by committing the idonticel acts on the
identieal day at the identlenl place on the identical prisoner mentioned
in Specification 1,

[.e the nlleged incident of the above mentionced Specification 1 and the
8lleged incident of Specificntion 2 occcurred on the some day ot the seme
plece to the same victim with the oalleged offense being identienl, there is
no doubt that the two incidents alleged by the judge aivocote are one and
the erme incident, Now tho Jjudge cdvoonte viewing thi: one inecident frui
one aspect identifies it mae o war crime because it is disrespecting o grnve,
and viewing it from another angle alleges it to bo & violetion of the luw
end customs of wer os prevention of an honorcble burial. The alleged
cction of Epecificotion 1 is merely o prclirdinary means to the alleged
cetion of Speelfication 2, The substance of the clleged offense in this
crsc is the action of Specificotion 2, This 18 similor to the instance
where a men breeks into the house of anothor to commit & burglary. In
short, this man in this cxnmple has committed three offenscs, 1 - breaking
inte a house, 2 = assault, and 3 - burllery. Eowever, his first two
offenses ore prelininory means or incidentel cctions to his finel offense.
Those thres separate nctions should be merged to form one burglery, and it
i®s not appropriate to consider thom as two or threc seprrate offenses. In
the some manner, the nlleged action of Specification 1 of this charge
should be merged into the alleged offensc of Specificotion 2, Hence these
two Specifiortions should be merged into onc Specifizotion, Such duplica-
tion of the chorge is prejudicinl to the substontive righte of the ococused,

2, Bven if the contention of the cocused is considered groundlees, the
viords "removing the liver and flesh from the thigh of #said prisoner of war"
contained in Speeifiention 1 should obviously be deleted, Beonusc such
phrose is not only completoly extrencous, nnd a surpluscge, in violatisn

of Article 38 of Noval Courte and Boards, but aleo beeruse it is prejudieiel
to the substeantive rights of the occused.

3. Specification 4 charges that TERLKI, Tadeshi on or cbout 26 March 1945
violoted the lnw end customs of wor in thot he provented the honorable
buriel of Floyd Buing Hall, an /merican prisoner of war who died in the

-l= F (1)
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ceptivity of the Jopanese [rmed Forces, by dissceting end mutiloating the
body nnd removing the liver nnd flesh from the thigh of seid prisoner.
Specification 5 charges thrt TERLFKI, Trdnshi on or about 26 March 1945 on
Chichi Jimn, acting with S.TO, Fesakichi ond NAKLMURL, Shigonobu, wilfully,
vithout justifiacble couse cssoulted, struck rnd killed Floyd Ewing HLLL,
rn Lmericon prisoncr of war, then and therc held captive by the frmed Forcep
of Japan and thercby violated the law and custors of war, In short the
Judge ndvoente is contending that in the former Specificntion TERAKI pre=~
vented the honoreble burinl of the prisoner of wor, HLLL, and in the latter
thrt he killed this prisoner of war, HLLL. There i8 not n doubt frewm the
foet of the day, time, ploacc and mame of tho victim of the alleged offensea
enumernted in the two Spocificntions being identical, thnt the victim of the
two offenses ie onc snd tho same, Nonwvnl Courte and Borrds, Section 24
stipuletes thrt chorgea and specifications be plnced in chronological order
It is of course meant by chronological order, the order according to days
nnd nontha and years, but it should elso be interproted to menn order
according to the hours cf the day. The chrrge ond specifications in this
cnsc presumably were drown up in accordance with the stipulation of Lrticle
24, of the above mentioned Nawval Courts and Borrds and in chronologieal
order. Then it is 1llogleal to stote thrt the corpse of the prisoner of |
war of Specification 4 was allegedly Ykilled™ in Spocification 5. Such
Chorge and Specificotions are not only in violntion of Lrticle 24 of Nrvnl
Courts and Borrds, but prejudieinl to the substontive rights of the accused,

4. Speeificntion 5 chorges thot TER/LKI, Trdnshi while serving nt the
militory instellations of the Imperinl Japenese [roy on Chichi Jime on or
ebout 26 March 1945, gcting with SATO, Kesokichi and NLK/MURL, Shigenobu,
wilfully and feloniously esseulted, struck, end killed Floyd Buing HLLIT,
an American prisoncr of war then held coptive by the nrmed forces of Jepan,
and thereby committed a wor crimc. The phrose "potips with® S/TO, Kesakichd
end MLKLMURA, Shigenobu is highly ambiguous., It is not clear from thie
context whether TERLKI, Tondashi, SLTO, Kesnkichi and SLKLMURL, Shigenoba
committed these alloged offensce in pursunnce of a common unlawful design
nnd concert or whether cach individunl cormitted severcl separnte offcnsas
of the srme charecter, £As the defcnsc procedure depends upon which of the
two meonings is implied, a charge ond specifications which lncks elarity
in this monner 1s definmitely prejudicinl to the substantive rights of the ‘
neccused,

On the above grounds the cccuscd respectfully requests thet the nhargJ
ond specifications of this cnsc agninst the nccused, TERLKI, Tadashi be
qunshed,

Respoctfully,
/8/ TLELNO, Junjiro,

I eortify thot the forogolng is a truc ond completc trmnsletion of
the original in Jeprnesc to the best of my ability.

&.&M
. CLLRK,
Licutenant (jg), USN,
Interpreter.

— e




OBJ CTION TO THE CHARGE ~ND SPICIFICATIONS
' IN THE CnSE OF TEEAKI, TaDnSHI

- Delivcred by

| Commander Mortin E, Carlson, USHNR,
Defconse Counsal

In behnlf of the accuscd, Terakl, Tedushl, we object to tho charge
nd the spocifications on the {ollowing . rounds and to the emmeratcd
! peeifications ua follows:

| Specifieation 1 allogos a wilful disrospect of the grave of an
smorican priconer of war becuuse of unlawfully disinterring the bedy and
removing the liver and flesh, this in vioclation of the law and customs of
[war., The laws and ocustoms of war do not specificslly set forth that the
ogutions of this spcoification constitute disrespoct of the grave, The
egations do not constitute a orime under the law and customs of war,

i This apecification furthermore does not allcso a crime boowusc it
does not allege oriminal intent, To constitute a erime there muat always
a oriminal intent on the part of the doer and this orininal intent must
alleged in the specifications, In 22 Corpus Juris 29 the necesesity of
iminal intent is clearly set forth in order to constitute a orime and I
ter "A orime 4s not committod if the nind of the persons doing the act
8 innoccent, To conatitute a erime the accused rmust be ncoompanied by a
riminal intent on the part of the accuscd,"” Since no oriminal intent is
vged no orime is set forth,

‘: The prosecution must lay its fingers on the law and customs of var which
has been violated, If thc prosecution cannot do so in this speoification
{Ena we ask that our objection to the specification be sustaincd and our
motion to strike the specification be sustained,

|
| Specification 2 alleges a wilful and unlawful prevention of the honor-
ble burial of an American prisoner of war becausc of the mutilation of the
and the removal of the liver and flesh of the said prisomer, this in
olation &f the law and customs of war, As co-counsel have sot forth aar
8 1s but a duplication of specification 1 and on that ground is objection
ble, For the reasons set forth in our objection to specification 1 we
bject to Speeification 2,

I We make a motion to strike this specification 2 on the ground that the
.bpeciﬂcutiun does not state a orime or an offense at law or by the cusicms

pf war.
W n-b.‘gba
A erime is a violntion of something that is a rule and is pualehed before
nd by sone sovereign power. The rule is published so that everjtody nay
erstand and guide his conduct accordingly,

I If there isn't a rocognized lav we should not prosecute because of our
him or caprice or our own belief, We should stand on the law as recognisecd,
£ another commission found similar specifications other trials in the due
form and tochnieally corrceet such a finding is no edent becausc that

mnmission may have made a mistako,

Again ve say the prosecution must spocifically lay ite fingers on the
aw and cuntoms which haw been violated, This comnission has no power ‘o
te offonscs and I am sure that they have no desire to do so. It ie
tic thai in law chere shall be no punishment without a law ard thcre
t be a law bofore there is a punishnent, And in the courts of the United
totes of 'merica - and this military commission is a United States court -
ex post facto law is not a valid law to try an sooused under (Sec 9(3)
rticle I of the Constitution of the United States of Ameriea).

il A
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Dead bodies are not the subjecta of property and in time of war the
rights of kindred in the dead body must of neccesity be curtailed, What
is a sultable or honorable burinl is not set forth in the Hague Convention
jor at International Law, The membere of the commission all stationed
there on Guam know there nre no graves of the many thousands of Japancse | {
soldiers who died at the time of the /merican invasion in July 1944, The |
Iﬂircmntannm at the time made it impossible to bury all these many thous- 1

nds of Japanese dead in a separnte grave with a narker, Yet, who vill aay
het these Jopanecse dead here on Guan did not have an honmorable burial,
he customs of war in rogard to the burial of dead is in our opinion
argely regulatod by the eircunstances of the oose,

This is a eriminal charge mnd for the nost part the souree of erininal
flaw in respect of the bodles of decensed persons is in the statutes ex-
pPlusively, These statutes have for their object tho protection of the
ghts of the public and do not increase the righte of kindred in the dead
|_ dies of their relatives,

| Unless the prosecution can lay its fingers on the law and custons of J
war which has been wvilolated and set it forth in the anmended specifications
e ask that our motion to strike this specification be sustained and our
bjeection to this specification be sustained.

Specification 3 and 4 is like spocification 2 and for the reasons
et forth above ve object to thesc specifications and nake a motion to
ptrike these specifications 3 and 4.

fl he to speeification 5 our objection is to the allegation "then a
urgeon sccond lieutenant, I.J.i." because ithls Jdues not correctly describe
he status of the accused at that time and it ié a material allogation and
A phould be correctly alleged.

For the reoasons sct forth above we object to the charge and to the I
pecifications and make a motion to strike specifications 1, 2, 3, and 4,

I Fj F.anpmt é
I ( #csze~—T

| P4 Hhrtin £. Cdrleon,




REFLY TC OBJECTIONS TO THE CHARGE
AND SPECIFICATIONS

Delivered by
DAVID BOLTON,

Lieutenant, U, 5, Navy,
Judge Advocate,

|
!I ire objoct’ins to the charge and spec!iizations made by the accused,
ITERLKI, Tadashi, are mithout morit and shculd be overruled by the
Gcmndwinn.

|
| Prior to diecussion of the grounds of these ohicotions it should be
rotnd with rega=d to the cbjeetions Aelivered by Ciemander Carlaon; that

they surport L9 wnclude therein "motions to strike" specifications 1, 2,

(2, end 4. In a'cition to pointing out the improprety of including such
retions in an otjection, it should be noted that such motions are Improper,
:neffectual, and time-masting, The remedial procedure for charges and
ﬁpecifimtiana vhich are defective, is provided for in the procedured

raval courts and military commissions, by the cbjection to charges and
ilepecifications, This remedy 1s complete and effective and no authority

iIin conferred upoa the court to sustain a motion to aurike a specification

|t to entey a noils prosequi, The entering of = nclle prosequi or "striking"
(cf o 3peeificaiicn, requires the nvthority of “re coavening offlcer, and the
Ir. Ioper procedure in naval courts and military ~unnissions, for invoking

fsush remedial aciion 1s through the prescriled reriia of objection to the
Htrlrge and spec’iications, (N.C., & E., Seca. .., 15, and 18)

“ The objections to the charge and specifi>~tions delivered by defenue
|k= nnsel Mr, Tak:ro and Cdr,., Carlscn are short »ut replete with misstatonmeiss
il:rd misinterprevation of the relevant lav,

|FBJEGTIDHS T0 APECIFICATION 1,

As to Specification 1, Cdr, Carlson has argued that it doees not

| llaga an offense against the lam and customs ~f var, The reasoning is
‘ather curious, Counsel apvarently admits that disrespect of the grave
Ecnstitutoa e viclatlon of the lam and customs of war, but argues that
‘tae law cnd custons of war do not specifically set ferth" that the
Hl*.r!utiuus "unlawfully disinterring the bedy nzd rercving the liver and
fiszh" cons:.tutes disrespect of the grave, The defect in counsel's
e zument is that he hns assumed that the law must set forth the "facte"
!E‘h‘.t constitute the offense, Counsel is in error = the lam merely sets
omn the rules of conduet, or misconduct, and it 1s not essentianl thai the
law should state what prunise facts ncnuituhe such misconduoct. The law of
furder dous not set forth all the fact circumstances vhich constitute
purcer, aud similarly the lar and customs of mar with regard to disresoect
f the grave does nct set forth all the faet circumstances whieh constitute
ush f1srespect, It is the specification which has the funetion of

etting forth facts sufficient to constitute the particular offense
harged, And the comnission must determine whether the factes alloged are
ufficient to constitute the offense charged,

The coffense oharged is Aisrespect of the grave of an American
isoner of war, The judge advocate believes that the answer to Cdr.
arlson's objection is apparent when we ask ourselves = Aid the unlawful
isinterring of the body of the priscner and removal of liver and flesh there-
om, consitute proper respect for the grave of a priscner of var?

ale H (1)
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Counsel Mr, Takano, in his ahaeutinn to Specification 1,
that "removing the liver and flesh" constitutes surplusage, has adopted
distorted and rigid interpretation of the nature of the offense of
Aieresvect to the grave, It is obvious that the offense of disrespect
to the grave is not limited to acts of disrespect done againast the
cavity or the place of earth vithin which the body is placed., The
easence of the Aisrespect = or at leaat the cleareat type of such dis=-
resvect to the grave is the disrespect shown the body which has been
contdined therein, The specification alleges such facta of dlarespect,
namely the unlawful disinterring of the body, and the removal of liver
{| and flesh, The latter is not surplusage, The Aisinterring of the body,
i| and the removal of the liver and flesh, are allegations of fact which
constitute the offense of Aisrespect to the grave, charged: both are
| properly pleacded since both constitute allegatiom of the faste which
| constitute the offense charged.
|
I

Counsel for the nccused argues thnt to properly charge an offense,
the specification must contain an allegation of criminal intent, Counsel
is in error, criminal intent must only be nlleged where the offense speci-
fied is one whlch requires a specific intent: 1n such cnse, no offense
is charged unless the specific intent so required is alleged (N.C, & B,,
Sec, 27, pe 10), The offense of disrespect to the grave, does not
specify any particular intent, and therefore the s—ecification need not
allege any specific intent, All the specification must do 1s to allege
the facts constituting the offense, The specification in the instant
| case does properly allege the requisite facts and the objection of the
| accused is not well-taken,

e

I So much for the queastion of the allegntion in the specifieaticn,

l Then me examine the question of proof, me have scmevhat different

!‘ considerations, In the proof of the specification the judge

; advocate must by the introduction of evidence nrove the facts

I alleged, and the commission must then Aetermine whether the evidence
establishes the offense charge’.

!‘ It is generally, and somevhat misleadingly stated, that to

' constitute a crime both criminal intent and a prohibited act must
H concur, (N.C, & B,, Sec. 27) In the absence of a requirement of
| specific intent, because of the peculiar nature cf a specific

| erime, and in the absence of certain particular adonted technicnl
| rords in particular offenses, (N.C, & B,, See, 28) the concept of
| eriminal intent becomes rather nebulous and perhaps in certain

| respects meaningless, The law gathers the intent from the facts
- connected with the transaction, and in the absenne of evidence to
| the contrary, the law presumes that an unlnvful act was done vith
I unlawful intent (N.C. & B., Sec. 311 (1)). The lav distinguishes
i motive from intent, and in this conneetion I wish to point out the
i following quotation from Wharton's Criminal Law, Vol, I, 12th
Edition, Sec, 155 "The law is, that no matter what may be the
motives leading to a particular act, if the act be illegal, it ie
indictable, notwithstaniing that some one cr more of the motives
may be meritorious, Thus,,..sclentific enthusiasm is no defonse
to an indictment for disinterring a corpse" (p. 209),

the prosecution to "lay its finger on the law and customs of war which
been violated", The pert®’nent substantive law im this regard will be

iscussed at length during the course ¢f the instant trial, Homever, in

iew of counsel's request with regard to Specification 1, me oite some of

a

1 Counsel for the accused, Commander Carlson, has dramatically asked
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the pertinent law in this regard ns embodied in treaty form: The Geneva

(Red Croag) Convention of 27 July 1929, provides that the belligerents

shall see "that the graves are treated mith resmect" (Article 4). Similarly,

the Geneva (Prisoner of War) Convention mrovides that belligerents shall

| see "that the graves,,,.are regnected”, Specification 1 charges viclation

i of this lav and custom of war in that it alleges that the accused Aisres-
pected the grave of an American priscner of war, by unlawfully Aisinterring

the body of said rrisoner of war and removing the liver an? flesh from the

thigh of snid priscner of mar,

| OBJECTIONS TO SPECIFICATION 2.

Specificntion 2 alleges that the accused wilfully and unlawfully
prevented and caused to be nrevented the honorable burial of an American
|| prisoner of war, by mutilation of the body and removal of the liver and
flesh from the thigh, Defense counsel contends that this snecification
does not allege a viclation of the law an! customs of war, Counsel is in
| error, The law and customs of war in this respect has been set forth in
pumercus treaties anl convention provisions and is well settled in inter-
national law, I need merely cite briefly the following provisions: Hague
Convention No, X, Article 16 provides that belligerents shall rrotect the
| 1ead against pillage and 111 treatment; and Article 3 of the Geneva (Red
' Cross) Convention contains a similar provieion, Article 4 of the Geneva
! (Red Cross) Convention provides that belliperents "shall further see that
! they are honorably buried,,.". Similerly irticle 76 of the Geneva (Prisoner
| of Par) Convention provides that belligerents Bhall see that nrisoners of
var dying in its oaptivity are honorably buried,..".

It may also be pointed out that convictions base?! upon sirilar
| snecificqtions of prevention of honorable burial, as alleged in

| prior war crimes trials held in this aren, have been upheld and

| approved upon revievw by higher authority, incluiing the Secretary of
the Navy.

| From the foregoing it is clear that the requirement of honorable
| burial is a fun'amental requirement of the law and customs of war, The |
| law and customs of war in this regard vwas vell-established and settled

|| locng before the commencement of the instant war, or the commission of the
{| acte alleged in the specification, and therefore counsel is in error in
contending that the law is ex post facto in application,

Defense counsel Commander Carleon argues that the customa of
mar with regard to burial of the dea’ is largely regulated Ly the
clrcumstances of the cnse, The judge advoecate does not find it
necessary to take issue with that vien = what constitutes honcrable
burinl may rell vary with the circumstances. As counsel pointed out
nerhaps Auring the wnr in certain cirecumstances it was necessary to
bury thousandes of war dead without indivilual markines or semarate
I graves, But that doces not have any bearing on the question of
E vhether this accused TERAKI, by his acts cormitted the offense c?
preventicn of honorable burial as alleged in Specifieation 2t

In the first place those war Aead he refers to mere not
nrisoners of war, nor Aid they die in the captivity of the
armer forcea of the United States, As to prisoners of war,
ciearly the situation is Adifferent, Defense ecounsel knomas that
not only prisoners of war, but also convicted war criminals
(such a8 AJIOKA) or executed war criminals (such as I"ANAMT)
are properly burddd. in in'ividual graves, identified by plot
and lot n'mbers, ete, in an appropriate cemetery here on Guam,
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In the second place, me are not concerned here with
any lssue other than the gullt or innocence of TERAKI = and
whether other persons may or may not be guilty of offenses
agninat the law and customs of war can have no legnl
bearing upon the issue of the puilt or innocence of TERAKI,

Defense counsel Mr, Takano contends that Specifications 1 and 2 are
duplicative and should be merged, Counsel is in errar, While the offense
gaet forth in Specification 1, and the offense set forth in Specificaticn 2
grow out of the same incidents tmo distinet offenses are charge? apd may
properly be pleaded in separate specifications, (N,C. & B,, Sec, 19)
While in treaty provisions, the duties upon which these offensea are based,
| are frequently expreased topether, this does not establish that they
| constitute the same duty or that the breach of these Auties constitute the
Iarma offense, I need merely cite the commission to the provisions of the
|.5.rtiolen for the Govermment of the Navy to polnt out that numerous Aistinct
and separate offenses frequently appear in the wery same sentence or
phrase within a sentence, For example, Article 8, first parasraph, rea’s:
"Firast (Scandalous conduct), = Tho is ruilty of prt}fnna swearinr, falsehood,
drunkenness, pamblins, fraw!, theft, or any other scandalous conduct
tendine to t-he -‘!ust.:'uutian uf nrood morals:", Clearly, falsehood,
r'frunken.nuu, mambling, fraud, and theft are distinct ~nd aapnruta offenses,

!g Dﬂfﬂﬂﬂﬂ counsel Takano contends that Specificntion 1 1s merely a
| preliminary means to the allege! action of Specification 2, Counsel is in
| error, they are soparate and distinct offenses, nnd may exist infereniently
|| of ench other, The actas allesed in Specifiontion 1, of disinterrins the

| body of a priscner of war an! removins the liver and flesh therefrom,
clearly constituted disrespect of that rrave, The same lnci‘ents and aets
may also rmive rise to a separate offense, for, as in this instance as
alleged in Specification 2, the mutilation of the body and removal

|-::1' liver and flesh, prmnted the subsequent burial from beins an "honorable

| burial”,

| The julpe advocate intends to prove the puilt of the accused with

recard to the offenses charged in both Specification 1 and Specification %,
| but for the purposes of consideration of this objection, the commission is

also referred to N.C, & B,, Sec, 20, vhich authorises the preferring of -.a
many charges as may be necessary to provide for every possible continceawy
(| in the evidence, etc, The mere fact that Specifications 1 and 2 arlse out
| of the same incident r'oes not make them duplicative, or renler them subject
| to the instant objection,

| OBJECTIONS TO SPECIFICATIONS 3 and 4.

*l Soecifications 3 and 4 are similar to Specifieation 2 and the
| cbjections macde theretc are adequately answered in the previous nortion of
this renly,

With repard to Specification 4, defense counsel Takano complaine
that in accordance with Naval Courts and Boards, Specification 5 shca.d
nrecede Specificntion 4 because of chronoclomy, and that failure to ds go
is prejulicinl to the substantive rishts of the accused, The arpumc.™
| 48 naive, By no stretoh of the imapination could the nncu'.d have beon
| misled or mrefuiiced in any manner by the order in which the specific-tlons
appenr, Each specification is clear an’ self-explanatery, Section 24 of
Naval Courts and Boards is merely a ruide for clarity and simplicity in
the presentation of. charges and specifications, It does not purport to
lay down any ririd rules for presentation, nor to embody aay substantive
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rights of an accused, It merely provides that "So far as peacticable,
charres and specifieations sh also be placed in chronolorieal order”,
In the instant cnse the offenses charged in Specificatioms4 and 5 occouwrred
on the same day, For purposes of clarity it was apparently deemed
preferable to place the murder specification after the specification

vith remard to honorable burial, in view of the fact that it was the only
specification charglng the acoused with such an offense,

OBJECTIONS TO SPECIFICATION 5,

With repard to specification 5, the objection by Mr, Takano that the
phrase "actins with" is ambipuous and the objection by Commander Carlson
that the phrase "then a surpeon second lieutenant, 1.J.A." does not
gerrectly describe the atatus of the nccused, are objections wmithout merit,
The phrase "actimg with" is ome commonly employed in the chareing of
ioffenses vhere it is intended to apyrise the accused of sufficient details
to enable him to know what facts are relied upon to constitute the parti-
cular offense charped = but where it is not intended to charpre the accused
with participation in conspiracy, ete, The alleration properly apprises
the accused of cther persons who are alleged to have participated in the
incident, The contention that "then a surgeon second lieutenant, I.J,A,"
rloes not correctly demcribe tho status of the accused, is made by
Conmmander Carlson without any indication as to how or in what manner this
alls to describe the status of the accused, It 1s obviously impoesible
erﬂfcrﬂ to accurately evaluate this objection or toa rive it any welrht
atsuewr, Upon its face, the allepgntion appears proper and appears to

ccurately desoribe the status of the accused, It should be pointed out
hat this allegation is desorintive in nature and not a material
1lleration, for the accused is correctly named and identified, Since the
ccused is apprised of the date and offense charged, he clearly cannot be
1sled or rrejuiiced even by an innccurate r"uacl'i‘ptinn of his status, for
learly he knows what his status wns at the time of the incident allered,
nd is not misled in preparation of his defense,

In the forepoins brief Aiscussion I have attempted to tersely reply

o all the objectiona raised by the accused to the charge and specificatious
afar:md against him, These objecticns are without substance or merit, aud
hen viewed in the li¢ht of the requirements of a proper specification it
s clear that the charge and specifications are in due form and technic-ily
porrect, The charse desirnates an offense in general terms, The speciii~

tions set forth in simnle and conclse lanrunre facts sufficlent to
onstitute the particular offense charsed and in such manner as to enable
person of common understandins to know vhat is intended,

The objections by the accused should be overruled,

Re lpect.f ully,

- -1
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DAVID BOLTON,
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| lMay it please the Commission,

| case, the mecused TERAKI, Tadashi on three seperste occasions, namely

) ¢ T N

PLEA TO THE JURISDICTION OF THE NILITARY COMMISSION TO TRY
TERAKT, Tadeshi.

Delivered by TAKANO, Junjiro,

Counsel for the accused, TERA¥I, Tadashi,
former Surgeon 2nd Lieutenant, IJA,

(at the time of the incidents, Proba-
tionary Officer of the Medica) Dent.)

The accused TERLKI, Tadashi hereby enters his plea to the juriudiut:l.uni
of this military commission on the following grounds:

ficcording to the five specifications of the charge in the present

| about the 23rd and 25th of February 19.45 and around the 26th of Merch 1946,
while serving et the military installations of the Imperial Japanese [rmy,
Chichi Jima, Bonin Islands, (1) wilfully disrespected the grave of an
[merican prisoner of war who died in the captivity of, end was buried by,

| the Japanese armed forces, by unlawfully disinterring the body of the said
| prieoner of war, removing perts of the body and preventing the honorable
burial of the said prisoner of war (Specifications 1 and 2); (2) prevented
the honorable burial of another person by removing perts of thet person's
body (Specification 3); (3) and prevented the honorable buriel of enother
by removing parts of bis body and by attacking and striking and ki)ling him,
(Specifications 4 ond 5), and thereby violated the law end customs of war,

The principle followed in the law of cri 1l procedure of civilized
countries of the present day is that the forum Ad%he iccality of the L
offenses, or the domicile, rosidence, or present address of the accused,
]Primnrlly the forum 1ies in the locelity of the offensc or offenses, (In
{|the present case the question of the domicile, reeidence, or present
eddrees of the acoused, TERLKI, does not erisc because his domicile,
reeidence ond present address (if any) are all in Japen. The presence of
TERLKT on Guam today is accounted for by the fonot thet he is here for the
|purpose of being tried, #e the question is onc of jurisdiction to try the
esccused, TERAKI, who has boen brought to Guem for his trial, the fact of
his p:}'eume here on Guam today hoe no beoring on the jurisdiction in this
cose,

Clark and Marshall in their "Law of Crimcs" stote as follows:

"l. country or state may purish any person, - - = = , for offensce

committed within its limits, but, as a peneral rule, the laws of

a country or state have no operation beyond its territorial limits,

and ordinarily, therefore, the courts of n country or state have no
urisdiction to punish for offenses committed beyond such limits."
Para. 488, Jurisdiction in general, p. 650,)

It hos becn cleoarly shown in the Specifications thet the offonsce

lleged by the prosecution in this case were committed on Chichi Jima, 4n
¢ Bonin Islands., If it is accepted thet the forum of this cose is the
ace where the crime was committod, that a court having the forum over
hi Jimn possosses tho jurisdiction to conduct this trisl., Chichi
ima, Bonin Islande is not in the Merionas area. Conscquently Chichi Jima,
ndo Islands fs without the aree of jurisdiction of Commonder Naval Foreaes,

1l- 1 J (1)
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| Chief, Prnoific and U, 8. Pneific Flcot and High Commissioner of the Trust

In short the Convening Luthority does not hnve the nuthority te try an
offender for offeneecs committed outeide his area of jurisdiction, However,
reference to the preccpt of 19 Jemmry I949 oddrcsscd to thie Military
Commission elearly shows thol Jhe Convening Authority convencd this Military|
Commission by virtue of his office as the Commandor Nawval Forces, Morianas,
end further by the epecifie authority veeted in him by the Commander in

Territory of the Pacific Islanda, From this it is understood thnt the area
in which thie authority of office of the convoning nuthority mey be cker-

| cised 1s the Merianes arca, It is lcgelly not possible for the Convening

| lLuthority to west this Militery Commission with jurisdiction which he
himself docs not possess, Consequently this Military Commission is not
vested with jurisdiction to try the alleged incidents which occurred on

| Chichi Jima. In other words, the conclusion is reached that this Mi“itery
| Commission does not posscse the jurisdiction to try the accused,

The eccused respecctfully requests judgment of the chnrge end speci-
fications and proys that the cherge and spoeifications be queshed,

Respectfully,

/s/ TLKLNO, Junjiro,

| I certify that the foregoing is a true and complete trenslation of
the originnl in Japancsc to the beet of my ability.

Variones, the Convening liuthority which convencd this Military Commission, |

ﬁmﬂ: F. CLLRK,

i Iicutenant (jg), USN,
il Interproeter.
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FLEA TO THE JURISDICTION OF THE
COMMISSION TO TRY TERAKI, TADASHI,

Delivered by

Defense Counsel,

The accused TERAKI, Tadashi objects to the jurisdiction of this
commission to try him for the charge set out in the specifications on
the ground that the commission has no jurdediction over the accused and

'no jurisdiction over the alleged offenses set forth in the specifications,

- The accused is a Japanese citiszen and na such subjoct to juris-
'diutinn for eriminal offenses only if the alleged -ifenses rere committed
v-ithin the United States or in territory occupied by American foreces, It
|1s alleged the offenses were committed in Fobruary and March 1945 at
|Chiehi Jima, Chichi Jiman wns not then oecupled by American forces nor
|is it now occupled by American forces.

The accused was regularly depobilized and this military commission
lost any jurisdiction it might have had over him when he was demobilized

| by order of the United States Nawvanl Forces and ¥arine Forces which

| forces occupled Chichi Jima,

"A military commission (except where otherwise authorized by
|at-nt.uta}oan legally assume jurisdiction only of offenses committed within
the fleld of the command of the convening commandésy, Thus a commissicn
ordered by a commander exercising military govermment by virtue of his
occupaticn, by his army, of territory of the encmy, cannct take cognizance

| of an offonse committod mithout such territory," (Footnote 88, Winthrop,
|Military Law and Precedents, pp £36)

"The place must be the thoatre of war or a place where military

:guverment or martial law may be legally exorcised otherwise a military

commisaion (unless specifically emporered by statute) will have no
jurisdiection of offenses committed there.” (Footnote 89 on page 836,

(Winthrop, Miiltary Law and Precedents)

"Being an incident of war, military ccoupation confers upon the
|invading force the right to exercise control for the pericd of ococupaticn,
|It doea nct transfer the sovereignty to the cccupant, but simply the
|authority or power to exerclse some of the rights of sovereignty. The
exercise of these rights results from the established power of the
occcupant and from the necessity for maintaining law and order, indis-
'pensable tc both the inhabitants and to the occupying force." (Rules

|-::f Land Warfare of the War Department of the United States, paragraph 273,
Bnaic Field Manual FM 27-10, 1940)

During the period of February and March 1945 all the civilian

:pcupgiat-inn of Chichi Jima had already been evacuated by the Japanese

because of the henvy bombings by the Americans, There 1s no necessity
for trylng the nccused cn the ground that it is indispensable to the
inhabitants of Chichd Jima, The present inhabitants of Chichi Jima are
cnly some 150 persons vho have been transferred there from Japan and
these 150 persons have elected their own representativés and their
president 1s thelr elected governing authority, Commander Nawval Forges
Marianas is not therefcore the civil administrator nor has he any civil
authority over Chichi Jima,

-1l= k(1)

Commander Martin E, Carlson, USNR,
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The members of the commission know that the President of the United

| States terminated the military government in the former mandated islands

on July 18, 1947 apd that Public Law 204, 80th Congress approved July 18,
1947 Congress authorized the President of the United States to approve

the United Nations Agreement with respect to United States administration
of the Trust Territory of the Pacific Islands and further that on July 21,
1947 the Secretary of the Navy directed the U, S, Naval Military Govern=
ment of Marshall, Caroline and Marianas Islands disestablished as of

July 18, 1947 and that the High Commissioner mas directed by the Secretary
of the Navy to institute civilian administration of the Trust Territory
effective July 18, 1947 in accordance with the terms of the Trusteeship
Agreement,

All this was done regarding the former Japaness mandated islands,
Is there any neceasity therefore cof this present proceeding by rvhich this
Japanese civilian is being tried by a military comnission here on Guam for
alleged offenses on Chichi Jima in February and March 19457

We further object to thesjurisdiction of this commission over the
alleged offenses. The offenses are disrespect of the grave, and the

| prevention of honorable burial as set forth in the first four specifi-

cations,

"The solicitude of clviliszed people for the proper burial cof their

| dead and the sanctity of human sepulture have, as hae previously been

stated been made the basis of variocus civil rights and 1iabllities, They
have likevwiss been asserted in support of rgles c¢f the criminal law, For
the moat part the source of criminal law Zn —ermect of the bodies of
deceased perscrs is in the statute execlusivelr, and the acts of the
particular jurisdietion involved should be consulted, These statutes
have for their cbject the protection of the rights of the publie and do
not increnses the rights of kindred in the dead bodies of their relatives.”
(Orr v. Dayten and M, Traction Co, 178 Ind, 40, 96 N,E, 462, 48 ILRA (N, 8)
474 Am, Caa, 1915 B 1277) ..."Under the English Anatomy Act, the practice
of anatony is lavful and useful ‘hough it may involve an unusual means of'
disposing of dead bodies," (Reg, v, Price., L.R, 12 Q,B, Div, 247, 8 Eng.
Rul, Cas, ..67) from 15 Am, Jur. p, 857, and 858,

If thore ien't a recognized law we should not prosecute nor should ve
prosecute becnuse some cther commission held there vas jurlediction to
punish for a eimilar offense, The prosecution muut lay finger on
the law and customs of war and if not then there can bef}t‘gim’.iction over
an alleged offense vhich 1s not a recognized offense at law,

As to the alleged offense set forth in Specification 1 the disin-

| terrment of a body we also hold it is incumbent upon the prosecution in

order to 2stablish jurisdiction to lay its ZZnger on the lawm violated,

In the case of Com, v, Marshall, 11 Pick (Mass,) 350, 22 Am, Dec,
377 it vas held that an indictment for disinterring dead bodies cannos
be sustained vhea the law under vhich the offensc was committed 1s
repealed without any saving clause, (15 Am, Jur, p. 258)

For the above reascns and since the prosecution has not set forth the
particular 1am or customs of var which vas viclated we do make this plea to
the jurisdiciion an? the accused TERAKI, Tadashi does pray juigment of the
charge and specifientions and does pray that the charge and specifications

SR M‘—‘

Counsel for the Acoused,
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REPLY TO THE PLEA TO THE JURISDICTION
Delivered by

Lieutenant David Bolton, USN
Judge lLdvoecate.

The plea to the jurisdiotion by the accused, as presented through his
counsel Commander Carlson and Mr; Takano is essentially based upon three
contentions. First: that at the time of the offenses Chichi Jima was not
oceupied by the armed forcee of the United States; Secondly, thet Chichi Jimg
is not currently within the area of command of the convening authority, nor
is he the eivil administrator of that area; Thirdly, thet the prosecution
must prove the existence of a particular offense under the law and customs off
| war in order to establish the jurisdiction of the commission.

: The fallacious nature of these grounds of objection to jurisdietion =
| B0 obvious thet they hardly merit the time necessary to refer to them,

bg to the first cbigetlon: Wer crimes are ordinerily cormitted witilns
the srea under the control of the armed forces of the accused. It is appe-
therefore from the nature of the crime, and the realfstic neccssity for i
before the tribunals of some pcwer other than the gullty belligerent's, wiy
the law does not require thet ihe forum within which the accusad is tried.
should be that of the armed forces in militsry occupation of the sree at t-c
time the offenses were conmitted,

Lg to the secopd specification: It is completely irrelevent whether
or not Chiehli Jima is currently within the area of command, or within the
area of civil jurisdiction of the Commender Naval Forces, Il'nrinnna. Chichi
Jimn is within the area of command of the Commander in Chief of the Pacific
and U. 8. Pecific Fleet, Admiral Remsey, vho is also the High Commissioner of
the Trust Territory of the Pacific Islands, and that apecific authority mas
vested by him in the convening authority, as cited in paragraph 1 of the
instant precept to appoint military commiseions to try wer criminals.

of jurisdiction in the instant case can readily be verified by the commission
by examination of the dispatch which is cited in poragraph 1 of the precept.
There is no need for me to discuss them further as they ere cssentially self-
explanatory. This outhority to convene military commissions for the triel of
war erimes is also inherent in a militery commander. (In Re Yemeshita, 327
U.S. 1), and there is nothing conteined in the authoriszation cited in pere-
graph 1 of the precept, nor is there any inherent limitationy whieh in any
menner limits the jurisdiction to offenses committed within the area under
the military control of the Commander Nawal Forces, Merianas., On the
contrary, the letter of 1 August 1948, from the Commender in Chief, Pecific
and U, S, Paelfic Fleet, to the Commander Naval Forces, Marianas, expressly
recogniges and affirms that the authority previously vested in Commander
Marianas, is vested in the Commander Naval Forces, larianns, rnd expressly
states, zpﬂmguph 3) that "Nothing in this letter limits the inherent
authority of & military commender to convene military commiseions."

Let us briefly review the jurisdiction of military commiesions in the
light of the fundamental law of juriediction with regard to military commie-
sione ond war crimes offenses.

(1)

The nnture of this jurisdiction and the fact that it authorizes exercisg

L
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Mlitery commissione have jurisdiction to try war crimes and accused

war ceriminals (Yamashita v, Styer, 327 U.S. 1). Jurisdietion in wor crimes
cases doea not depend upon territorial control at the time the offenses oce .
curred. The territorial principle of jurisdiction, familiar to domestic {
courts And ordinary crimes, ies not applicable to war crimea cases. War crimus
are one of & number of oxceptions to this concept (see Glueck, War Criminal:
and their punishment, p. 81, and fns, 14, 15, on p. 215). The international
noture of the crimes, end the realistic necessity of their punishment by the
injured Stetes, are gogent reasons for departure from the ordinary concept
of territorial jurisdiction (sce Glueck, op. cit. p. 81), For these, and
other reesons, jurisdiction in war crimes casee is primarily based upon
custody of the accused at the time of trial,

Var orimes are internntional crimes in the sense that they ere crimes
against all civiliged nations. In this respect var orimes are like the crime
of piracy and the war criminal 1ike tho pirate, as expressed by Grotius
(1583-1645) De Jure Belli nec Pacis, vol, 2 eap., 20, sec. 40 is "hostis humn-’
generis" (enemy of mankind) and as such he is Justiciable by any stete
anyvhere, Heckworth, International law, Vol. 2, p. 187,

iis enrly ms 1612, Grotius stated: "The fact must also be recognized
that kings, and thosec vho possess righte equal to those kinge, have the r-gu
of demending punishment not only on ncecount of injuries committed sgainst
themselves or thelr subjects, but also on account of injuries which de noi
directly affect them but excessively violate the lav of mature or of motic::
in regard to any person whatsocver." Grotius, Dc Jure Belli Lc Pacis (1612}
Carnegie Trans, 1925, p. 504.

| Similrrly: Whenton in hie Elements of Internntiomal Lavw, 6th Ed.,
|Vol. I, (1929), p. 269, declarcs that the judicial process of every indepen-
dent stete extende to the punishment of "offenses sgainst the common lav of
\motions, by vhomsoever and wheresoever committed,® Hall in his Treetise on |
|International Law (Bth BEd., (1924), Sec. 135) statcs that a belligerent

 posscsses "the right of punishing persons who have violated the laws of wor if
|they efterward fall into his hands." Oppenheim soys, "the right of the
'belligercnt to punish, during the war, such war criminnle as fall into his
honds is a well rccognized principle of internetional lew, It is & right of

|vhich he may offoctively aveil himself after he has occupied all or part of |
| enemy territory end is thus in the position to seize war crimimals wko hﬂmﬂﬂl
|to be there® (Oppenheim, Internationnl Law, &th Ed., Rev., Vol, II, 1944, Scej
1257a).
' The prevailing view thot war orimes jurisdiction extends to those
offenses which "viclate the lav of nations in regard to any person vhatsoeverf
(Grotius cit.) and to "offenses ageinst the cormon lew of mations, by vhomso-
ever and vheresoever committed” (Vheaton cit.), hes been implicitly neccepted
by the office of the Judge ldvocate General of the Nevy in his action in the
following wer crimes cases held in this area, in vhich the sccused were charged
ond tried with violetion of the law end custome of war for offenses committed
sgainst British nntionals, Colombien notionals, end Spanish nrtionals, and

against netive residents of the Morshall Islands: Trial of LJIOKL, VMasao;

trial of FURUFI, Hidesaku; trial of INOUE, Fumio (CMO 3-1948, p. 97); trial
of NAFLI'URA, Kaguo, et al; nnd the trial of YLVANOTO, Kegubaru, et al,

o8 well as the numerous war crimes cnees reviewed which deal wit) offenses

committed ogoinst Lmerican prisoners of war in areme not under the ri‘itary

commnnd of the conmvening suthority.
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The spurious nature of the plea in the instant case is ohwious., In

the instant case jurisdiction rests on a double basis: first, the

istence of the inherent power of the convening authority to try accused
ipersons for war crimes committed against American prisoners of war, regard-
less of wherever or by whomsoever committed; and secondly, the fact that
express porer to convene military commissions for the trial of such offenses,
ihas been delegated to the convening authority by the Commander 1n Chief
Pacific and U, 8, Pacific Fleet, who is the military commander (and by
virtue of his position as High Commissioner of the Trust Territories, is the
c¢ivil administrator) of the area within rhich the offenses ocourred,

As to the third ground of obiection to jurisdiction, namely, that the
jprosecution must prove that the charge apd specifications allege an
|offonse against the lav and customs of war, it should first be noted that
|the ground of this plea to jurisdiction is identical with one of the
objections made by the mccused to the charge and specifications, and vhich
|mas overruled by the Commission, In reply to that objection I cited some
‘ of the avplieable law vhich establishes the offensec as a violation of the !

lav and customs of war., The treaty provisione are clear, and the law in
this regard requires no further exposition, but in view of the fact that
defense counsel Commander Carlson has seen fit to cite in a misleading

| fashion pettion excorpted from 15 American Jurisprudence, re Dead Wodies,
I pages 987 and 858, scme brief citation of the lar as exvressed in that

| source is necessary in order to correct the erroneocus impreseica counsel
{{has sought to create, Counsel has clted the American Jurisprulence
atatement concerning the English Anatomy Law (vhizh under certain eircum-
atances authorizes the dissection of hodies), to create the impression
that the dissection of human “odies is almays accevtakle and unobjectionablu
Neither the English Anatomy Law nor any other law subseribes to that vierv,
In 15 American Jurisprodence 2487, in the same paragraph and immedintely
|prior to the eitntion of the English Anntomy Law, the following language
|appears: "The unauthorized sale of the dead body of a human being for
gain and nrofit is a common law misdemeancr of high grade, and an attempt
to make an unlawful sale 1s iteelf 'n misdemeanor. The taking of dead
bodies for dissection is made criminal by statutes in many states",

Defense counsel also misleadingly cites the case of Com, v, Marshal}i
vhich is cited in a footnote, footnote 6, 15 Am, Juris, 858, along
|5 vith many other cnses cited therein, All of these cases in foot-
| note 6 are cited as nuthority in support of the statement, and I
' quote: "The unauthorized disintorring of the body of a deceased
human boing is an indictable offense hoth at common law and by
I statute, regardless of the motive or purpose for vhich the act
| is done,”™ The language which refers to Com, v. Marshall in the
footnote rends "An indictment for disinterring dead bodies cannot
be sustained vhen the law under vhich the offense vns committed 1s
repealed vithout any saving clouse," Defense counsel mislendingly
cites this langunge when he neglects to pnoint out that footnote 6
and the cases cited thereln, is cited as authority for the
following statement which appears in the text (15 Am, Juris, 85%)
"The unauthorized disinterring of the body of a deceased human
being is an ipdictable offense both at common lav and by statutg,
regardless of the motive or purpose for which the act is done,"

In view of the fact that the case of Com, v, Marshall, 11 Pick,
(Mass) 350, 22 Am, Dec, 377, is not aveilable for examination here
on Guam, it is impossible for the judge advocate to state with
absolute assurance, the actunl holding of the court in that case,
It mould appear that themse mas one in which an indictment was
1aid under a particular statute, and the statute ras then repealed
(either with or without a substituting analagous vrovision), but
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that in the repealing statute no specific saving clouse was
incorporated, For this reason, as the court apparently held,
an indictment charging an offense under the repealed statute
could not be sustained,

The clear disclosure of how completely misleading defense counsel's
citations from 15 American Jurisprudence have been, is reveanled vhen we
rend from the text of this very section from vwhich counsel has cited the
language of footnote & re the Com, v, Marshall case, Section 4, 15 Am,
[Juris, 858, Dead Bodies, reads:

i

' 40, Violation of Sepulture,=-Civilized countries have nlrays
recognized and orotected as sacred the right to Christian burial and to an
undisturbed ropose of the human body then huried, The desecration of
burial grounds is an offense both under the common lav and modern statutes.
The unauthorized disinterring of the body of a d2ceased human being is an
{lindictable offense both at common law and by statute, regardless of the
|lmotive or purpose for vhich the act 1s done, But statutes agalnst body
|atealing are not intended to nooly to exhumations made by legally consti-
|tuted public authorities for the vurpose of ascertaining vhether crime has
iheen committed in producing the death of the person whose body is exhumed,
and vhen the exhumation is mafe publicly cn apnlieation of the nroper
officer, the persons ewmewmsised therewith cannct be held for bcdy stealing
though the proceedings may have been irregular in some respects, The
opening of a grave in a torn cemetery by order of the torn officers for the
ipurpose of removing a fend hody because the lot in which it is buried has
lnot been paid for is ~ithin o statute making it a felony for any person,
mithout fdue process of law or consent of specifiéd relatives, to open any
grave and remove any ‘ead hody therefrom, and municipal officers who direct
such nction cannot escape liability on the ground that they —ere ignorant
of the lav an? supposed that they had the rirht to crder such remowml, or
on the ground that they mere acting in their official capacity,.™

This ldangunge cited from American Jurisprudence ia not merely a
flection of the common law or Anmglo-Saxon view, As this section woints
jout, all eivilized coun®ries have always recognized and protected as sacred the

ight to an honorable burial an? undisturbed repose of the human bodly vhen
uried, This fundamental wviev has been nccepted in international law and
mboclied in various treaty vrovisions, some of which I have referred to in
reply to the defense objections to the charge and specifications, There
8 no need to do more than reiterate the fact that under the lavw and customs
f nar, ns evidenced by these treaty an® convention nrovisions, the right to
spect to the grave, and the right to honorable burial, are carefully
escribed and scfeguarded, It may be pointed out that Japan expreasly

atified certain of these conventions, namely, the Fourth Haogue Convention
Annex, Art, 19), the Tenth Hague Convention i.ﬁ.rt., 16), and the Geneva (Red
ross) Convention of 27 July 1929 (Arte, 3 and 4), an? also expresse’ its

eement to apply the Geneva Prisoners of War Convention of 27 July 1929
Article 76), which embody such provisions,

The request by the accused that the prosecution show the law and
ustoms of war violated, is fully satisfiel by the forecding,

In view of the fact that the pertinent law an’ customs are velle
stablishe’!, an’ particularly in view of the fact that they are embolied
n treaty form, ju'icial notice of the pertinent law an! customs can be

en, and it is unnecessary to allere them in the svecifications, (N.C, & B,
cs 309,,"Matters of vwhich courts may take ju’icianl notice need neither be
1leged nor proved,"), .

The grounls of the plea to the juris?ioction, advanced by the accused, are
nsubatantial in character, an! it is respectfully requested that the
cmmission overrule the plaa of the accused, n

s e

DAVID BOLTON, L@}
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PLEA IN RAR OF TRIAL OF TCRAKI, TADASHI
delivered by
Commander Martin E, Cnrlson, Defensc Counsel

| ' The aceused, Toraki, Tadnshi, makees this plea in bar of trial on the
ground of former jeopardy,

Under date of July 22, 1946 the Commander Marianns Area preferred
l charges and specificeiions against certein members of the 308uIndependent |A8 | {
Infantry Rottalion, Admiral Wobinson, the president of this military con= |
| mission, wns also the president of the military commission which tried 27 B
Lieutenant General Tachibana, Yoshioj; Majnr Matoba, Sueoj Ccoptein Sato,
Kesakichi; Corporal Nakamura, Shigemobu, and others. In specification 3 of
s Charge TII dated July 22, 1946 it was alleged that Tachibann, Yoshio on
March 26, 1945 fniled to ﬂiachnrga his dusy as Commending General of the
i| 109th Division to control among other pecrons Terankl, Tadashi, in thot he
| permitted Matoba, Suto, Wakamurn, and Tcruki to kill by behecding with a
sword Tloyd Ewing Hall,

s#= Charge III specification 12 of the Trnchibana charges alleged that af.
Matobn failed to control members of his commnnd namely, Sato, Nakamurn, and
other porsons unknovn hy permitting them to kill Floyd Ewing Hall by buhmﬂﬁg
with a sword about March 25, 1945,

In specification 20 of Charge ITI of the charge of July 22, 1946 it wme
alleged that Major M-toba failed to control Sato, Kesakichij Terakl, Tadeshij
Mord, Yasamasu, and other persons unknown, permitting them to mlanfully
prevent the honorable buriil of Floyd Ewing Hall and Marvie William Mershon, | |

The military commission which tried Liaut.erﬁ:t Genernl Tachibana, Yoshio j]"e'
Major Matoba, Sueo; Captain Sato, Kesakichi; Corporal Nakamura, Shigenobu; and
| others found the ahove specifications proved., Although Toraki, Takoshi was
| not 4w court there was evidence presented ngainst him hecause his name wmas

included in the specifications. Sinece the commisesion failed to except as to
' 'j‘ﬂmki, Tadashi in their findings, Teraki, Tadashi wons thereby put in
eopardy,

I In the chapter on Former Jeopardy in 15 Am,Jur "Criminal Law" Section
|

| 359, we find this st-tement of the law: "It is an established maxim of the

| common law, in the edministration of criminal justice, constantly recognized

| by elemontary writers and courts of judlecature from a very early period down

| to the present time, 'that a man shall not bo brought into danger of his 1lifo

| or 1imb for one and the same offense more than once (eiting many casee in

| frotnote 10), It has been said that the test is not whether the defendant

'hau already been tried for the same act, but whether he has been put in

| joopardy for the snme offense (citing the came of State v, Barnes, 29 N.D, 164, o

]I 150 N.W. 557, Agn Cas, 1917 C 762,) The rule not only prohibits a second
‘punishment for the same offense bhut it goes further and forbids a second trial

for the same offense, whother the sccused has suffered punishment or not ém in

the former tri‘.nl has been acouitted or convicted, (ociting many cases in

i footnote 12),"

Ae stated in the above the fuﬁ of the rule of former Jeopardy is not

vhother the defendant has been tried for the same act, but whether he has beon ;;ﬁ 4
put in jeopardy for the same offense., A study of the trinl of Lieutenant Gens
eral Tachibana, Yoshio, IJA, et al, will show that the accused in this case,
Teranki, Tndashi, was put in jeopardy at that trial,

At this time we will not make a special plea of the statute of limitations
use "the general and Better praotice is to raise the issue under a plea of] |
ot railty.” eciting many cases in footnote 6 including the caseof U.S. v, |

e

The accused, Taraki, Tadashi, makes this special plea of former jeopardy }
8 a bar to for the alleged offenses sald to have been commi !'nbnn.rlr
lEﬁ!, 1945, February !E;EBAS. and Mhoni 1945 and prays of judgment of the

harge nnd that the charge and specifi one be utulhad z

gf’ Martin E, Gurllﬂnh |




REPLY 70 THE PLEA IN BAR OF TRIAL

| - Delivered by
Lieutenant David Bolton, USN, Judge ‘dvocate.

This plea in har of trial delivered by Dofense Counsel Commander
Carlson, 1s based on the contention that Terak) hns been previously placed
in jeopardy for thes=s offenses with which he ir now charged. His pole
baris for chis contenivion is that Teraki, Tadechi was named in certain
spocifications in thefcase of Lieutenant Genmercl Tackloana, Yoshio, et al,

——

|
- The rule as to when Jeopardy attaches is stated in 15 Am, Jur., Crininal
|Llﬁ, Section 369, ns follows: "A person is in legal jeopardy when he is put

I on trial, bafore n court of competent jurisdietim., on an indictment or
.!1nfbrﬂntiun which is sufflclent in form end substance to sucstaln a conviet-

| 4on and a jury bas been charged with hir “vliverance ... Constitutional

| provisions agninst double jeoperdy do met a unlees an sccused has
|tharﬂtnfuro en placed on trial," Simiiar aval Courts and Boards

i| provides in “ection 408: "_,.A person is trice put in jeopardy if he is
twice put on trial “or the same o”fense., In order, however, to sustain a
plea of former jeopardy, tho accused must show that: (1) Upon a former trial,
he had been actunlly acquitted or convicted; or (2) Upon a former trial,
|after he had heen arraigned and the prosecution had rested its case, the

| convening authority entered a nolle prosenui (or withdrawel or discone

| tinunnee), over the objection of the accused, in order to prevent the

court martial from arriving at a finding..."

I From an exnmination of the charges and specificationa in the Tachibana
|case, it 1s clear that the present accused, Teraki, was not charged with
any offense in that case. He 18 not named as an accused in the letter
containing the charges and specificntions in that case, Terakl is mentioned
ilin specifioation 3 of Chargo III es a person who Lieutenant General

- i .

Tachibana failed to control, and in specification 20 of Charge III aas a

rson who Major Matoba fuiiad to control, however the acoused in these two
lupaaifiuutinnt are respectively Lieutenant General Tachibana and Major
{Matoba, and Terdki is not an accused therein,

Teraki has not previously been placed on trial for the offenses charged
the instant charge nnd specifications. He has not been in former jeo-
% ;11 :ld‘tﬂ the plea of former jeopardy is without foundation, and should
| a .

i




i PLEA IN ABATEMENT

l Delivered by
|

- MARTIN E. CARLSON,
| Commander, USNR,
| Defense Counsel,

The ccoused TERAXI, Tadashi respectfully interncses this plea in
| abatement on the ground that there has buru no notice of the opening
| of this judieial procecdings as is required by article 60, Goneva
| Prisoners of War Convention of July 27, 1929,
| >

|

| ——BBgpectfully,
'| / =
I S é«
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REFLY TO THE PLEA IN ABATEMENT
Delivered by
Lieutenant David Bolton, USN, Judge Advoeate

This plea in nbatement delivered by Defen~e Counsel Commander C.rlson
is hnsed on the fact that "there has been no notice of the opening of this
Judiecial proceedines as reouired by Article 60, Geneva Prisoners of War
Convention of July 27, 1929,"

Articie 60, Genevn Prisoners of War Convention, ras considered in the
| Yamashita case by the U, 5, Supreme Court, The decision as set forth by
| the Chief Justice saild as follows: "Article 60 of the Geneva Convention
| of July 27, 1929, 47 Stat. 2051, to whicn the United States and Japan were
|

| slgnatorice, pruvides that 'At the openiig of a jrlicisl proceeding directed

apninst a prisoncr of wmar the detaining nownr shall ndvise tie represen=
tative of the protecting power thereof aa soon as possible and always
hefore the date set Por the opening of thie trial,' Petitioner relies on
| the failure to ~ive the prescrihed noticez “o thc protectins power to

| establish want of authority in the commission to proceed with the trial.
| Por reasons nlready stated we conolude that Article 60 of the Geneva
Convention, which appears in part 3, Chapter 3, Section V, Title IIT of the
Genocva Convention, applies on'> to persons who are subject to judicial
proceedinee for offences committed while prisoners of war,” (IN War

| Crimea Co~misaion ™ar Crime Trial Law Reporta Vol, IV, page 42-.3, Trial
| of General Tomoyulki Yamashita),

The judgghent is elearly in zoint and it is unnecessary to remind the
commission of the respect to which a judggment of the Bupreme Court of the
|| United States is properly entitled.

| The judge advocate respectfully requests that the plea in abatement
| be denled,

A bt

David Bolton,

1
|

i
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MOTION FOR 4 BILL OF PARTICULARS
Delivered by

MARTIN E, CARLSON,
Commander, USHR,
Defensa Counsel,

The accused TERAKI, Tadashi makes this motion for a more definite
statement of the charye and for a bill of particulars in order to
enntle the nccused to properly prepare for trial, (Rule 12 (&) Federal
Rules of Civil Procedure for the District Courts of the United States)

The cccused prays that all specifications be amended to shon what
law and vhat customs of rar the accused i3 alleger to have violated and

thereby ccmmitted a war crime,

The acoused does respectfully ask fcr particulars as to the
recognized law rhich made the alleged acts to be mar crimes and
punishable by o military commission.

I have read the specifications and it is my belief that there is
good ground to support this motion,

This motion ia not interposed for dglagy but to make the charge and

specifications more definite and certain and to effectuate jJustice and to
insure a falr trial to the accused,

Respeptfully,

7 {fé e |
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REFLY TO MOTION FOR A BILL OF PARTICULARS !
Delivered by ,
Lieutenant David Rolton, USN, Judge Advocate ! {

In naval courts, the Bil1l of Particulars is not a recognised part of
the judieial procedure, for the use of specifications, in addition to a
bnsie charge, obviates the necessity for such a Rill of Particulars, All
the renuirementa of a Bill of Particulare nre met by the use of such speci-
fieations, and in naval courte the remedy for lack of necesaary particularity
with regnrd to the ineidents charged, is found in the ohjection to fharges
and spocifications, The accusod has recognized this faot and awvniled himself
of it, and 1t should be noted thnt in this objection to charge and speeifiecqd-
| tions he has pursued the identiecnl aunestion whieh he now apgain raises in hi
| motion for a Bill of Particulars, namely, that thc specifications should set
forth with particularity the law ond customs of war which the accused has bden
I charged with violating. Theo merits of this contention were argued at that
| time, and the commlission rejected the argument of the nccused.

N | The function of the Bill of Particulars, as sct forth in 27 Am,Jur,

| Seetion 113, is "to supply the nccused and the court additional information
| eoncerning an nccusation that the nccused has cormitted an act or aote
i| eonstituting a oriminal offengo.," The granting or refusal of the defense 8
| remuest for a bill of parti s 18 a matter resting in the sound discre=
| tion of the court., 27 Am.Jur. 111.

Cortnin grounds for refusal of the renuest for a blll of particulars

i| nre sot forth in 27 ‘m,Jur. Sec. 113, and some of the 1a.11gmgﬁ there used

|, is particularly approppiate, and establis“es thy grounds for deninl of the
instant motion, The folloWing apprars on page 674 of 27 Am. Jure: "A bill

| of particulars is not necessary vhere the indictment informs the defendant o

t | the erime with which he is charged sufficiently to ensble him to prepare hic |

defenae, or where the means of ohtaining the facts are ns accessible to che

dofendant as to the state, nnd the facts are already known to him, or where ||«

has been fully informed as to the matters in ouestlon... A motion for a ®ill

of particulars, that, in its nature, i1s a re~uest for a disclosure of unc,:;;ﬁ_

or of matters which are largely evidentiary in character and which, if fer.a

| ed would unduly limit and embarrass the prosecution and might exclude ma¥rrial

| avidence mav properly be refused,.. A bill of particulars is sufficient which

| suprlies nll necessary information to emable the necused to prepare for irinl

I and after judgement to be able to plead the record in har of a furthar proge

l ecubdbn for the same offense,”

|
¥hile the motion for a Bill of Particulars is not provided for by Haval l
Courts and Roards, such a motion has been allowed in the trinl of war
orimes before a military commission, for example in the Yamoshlta case,

i It should be noted however that in the Ynmashitn ocnse there mns differ-
ent type of military commisgion == an army commiesion utilising differen
procedure == and that the charge agnlust Yumashita did not furnish detail-

el information such as that provided in the specifications in the inste

onse, vhich follor the pattern used in nawl courts, That the cpec!fica

tions in the instnnt cnse satisfy all cssentinl re~uiremants of pariicu=
larity is ~pparent when we compare t“em with the items of tlic Bill of
Particulars presented to the commission in the Yamashita caer. The Pif
paragraph of the Rill of Partioulara in that onse reads "5, Luri=g

Noveither 1944 1n northern Cebu Province, massacre, without cause or tring |
of' more than 1,000 unarmed non=combatant oivilinne®, The specificatiors '
in the instant case set forth with much grenter particularity the indi- |
dents which Accused is charged with having committed, B

The judge advoonte respectfully re~uests that the motion for a Bill of

R\

David Bolton.

rticulars bhe denied.




OPENING STATEMENT FOR THE PROSECUTION
Delivered by

DAVID BOLTON,
Lisutenant, U, S. Navy,
: Judge Advocate,

In view of the nature of the instant case and the character of the
larguments rhich have been presented before the Commission, the opening
(statement of the judige advocate will be brief, The order of presentation
of the prosecution's case will follow the order of proof rhich has been
furnished to the commission and defepse, except insofar as unforeseeable
factors such as unavailability of witneases or documents, renders it
{impractical,

. The prosscution will commence its case by requesting that the
commission take judicial notice of various pertinent treaty vrovisions
r:md well=known historieal facts and documents,

_ The prosecution will producé and offer in evidence excerpts from the
ecord of the Tachibana trial, cofisisting of certified coples of the chargea
nd specifications, the findinge of the Commission rhich tried that case,

jnnd the action of the convening and revieving authorities, and the
ecretary of the Navy. These doduments vill not be read in their
ntirety, in court, The judge adybgate vlll only request the witness
o read some of the specifications vhich relate to the incidents in the

instant case against TERAKI, BSuch éxcerpted evidence does not disclose
e participation of TERAKI in the incidents, but merely establislLes the
eath of the victims, etc, The participation of TERAKI in the incidents,
charged in the specifications of the instant oase, will be established
the testimony of eye witnesses to such participation,

. The specifications in the instant case deal with three different
neldenta:

, The first of these incidents (Specifications 1 and 2) ocourred on

r about Pebruary 23, 1945, near the Supyoshi unit, A prisoner had been
cuted and buried, The folloring day, TERAKI and a group of enlisted
sonnel disinterred the body, and removed the liver and flesh from the
igh of the prisoner,

’ The incident alleged to have ocourred on or aboant February 25, 1945
iSpecification 3) occurred mear Matoba's headquarters at the 308th Battalienm,
ifter the killing of the mrisoner of war, TERAKI removed the liver and

fllesh from the prisoner,

The incident alleged to have ocourred on or about March 26, 195 .
dlso ocourred at the 308th Battalion (Specifications 4 and 5), TERAKI wns
present at the scene of the execution, and alded and abetted the verform=
oe of that execution, After the beheading of the prisoner TERAKI pep-
rmed a demonstration dissection for the benefit of medical cornemen

ppembled at the scene and them removed the liver and flesh fronthnl:ody&
af' the Pl'j.mt %

The first of the eye mitnesses, Kanemori, will testify concerning
bo incidents on or about February 23, 1945, and on or about March 26,
P45 at which he assisted TERAKI in removal of the liver and
the body of the prisoner, The next witbess Matsuld will testify
vhich ccourred on or about February 25, 1945 at

-1-




| :

a

|
|

rhich he cbhserved TERAKI's mutilation of the body of the vriscner. The

itness Iso vill testify concerning the March 26th incident, After the
astimony of this vitness, Iso, the judge advocate will introduce the
aepositions of Nakamura, Shigenobu who performed the beheading, and of

Sato, Kesakichi vho mas present and issued orders to Nakamura concerning
the execution,

The prosecution vill conclode vwith the presentation and offer in

ievir‘lenr:a of a atatement by the nccused mado on November 4th and 5th, 1948,

= AN

DAVID BOULTON,

=
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ORJECTION TO TAKING JUDICIAL NOTICE REJUESTED BY THE
I JUDGE ADVOCATE

Delivered by Kr. Junjiro TAHAND, Counsel
for the Accused TENAII, Tadashl, Former
Surgeon Second Lieutenant (Probaticnary
Cfficer at the time of the Alleged
Innidentsj, LIA,

e ———

The accused, TERAKI, Tadashi, objects to the commission taking judieclal
notice of the followlng itemse requested by the judge advocate:

|
' | 1. Ttem Two, the Tenth Hague Convention of 1907, particularly Article 16
|| thereof,
| ",
il

is convention applies to the princinles of Ceneva Convention to the
sea warlare,

The charge and the specificatlions of the. instant case does not show the
|| relevancy between the alleged war crimes and sea warfare. The speciication:
read that the accused, TERANI, was then "a surgeon second lieutenant, IT4,"
and was "serving at the Jarenese irmy instellations on Chichi Jima."™ There-
fore, Item Two has no bearing upon the issue of thls case,.

2. Item FPour, the Geneva Red Croas Convention of 27 July 1929, particularly
drticles 2 and . thereof,

1 sl =l b and Ak

These articles relate to the L8 2iea of a commanding officer |

in the armed forces. Howaver, according to the charge andl the specificutions,

|| the accused, TE1AII, was nothing but a surgeon second lieutenant. (e shul11
{| further shom in the case for the defense that he was merely a medical pro- |
baticnary officer at the time of the occeurrence of the incidents,) Therefore,
these two articles have no bearing upon the accused in the instant case,

i

3. Item Tive, parassraph 10 of the Tobsdam Declaration of 256 July 1945, |

By the same reason, as menbtioned in the onreceding paragraph, this item
'S

iuluc has no “earing upon the accused iIn the instaant case,
|4« Item 3even, Document of Surrender dated 2 Saeptember 1945,

Does the Surrender Document of 2 September 1945 from the Japanese
Government and the Imperlal Japanese General Headquarters to the 4llied Towerp
| have any relevancy mith the alleged war crimes of the accused, TENAXI,
|| Tadashi, in the instant case? It 1a hard for the accused to determine the
grounds which support such relevancy. 07y the same reasoning as mentioned in
parazraph 2, this Document of Surrender has no bearing upon the accused in
the instant case,

e object to the commission taking judiclal notice of the items which
have nothinz to do with the inatant case, because talding judieial nctlce of
such items 1s most vrejudiclel to the substantive rights of ithe accused,

Respectfully,

Ja/ TAXANO, Junjiro

I hereby certify the above to be a true and complete translation of the
|eriginal in Japanese, to the best of my ahility,

F, CLiRK,

Lieutenant (junior grade),
U, 3. Kavy,
Interpreter.
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by
lrs Sadamu Sanazl, Counsel for the Defense.

a8 repords the three lncldents with which the accused TERAREI
is charged in the instant cunse, there is no great contradiction a
the accused hetweesn the statement of the seccused, hims
(Exhibit L), and the testimony of the '.',r'E"l.-'IE"""""'J exxcept some m
differences. It is not the =':Lcn....m of the defense counsel to waste the timp
of this ecommission by reproducing the evidence pertaining to the detalls of
| these incidents. i

icwever, the judge advocate failed to show by hils evidence such
|| important Cactors in the trial of the accused as to how the alleged incidents|
cccurred; how the accused came to he involved in these Incldentsj whether or
| not the accused had criminal intent; and, vwhat the position of the accused

| was, Therefore, the counsel {or the sccused will introduce in l'is case
evidence mainly relating to these factors.

I Firat, we shell sheow the rate and position of the sccused, TERAKI, at
. {| the time of the elleged inecldents, 4s rrosecution witness LHANEI'CRI testi- |
| fied, the accused was a probetlonary officer at the time of the 1lneldent,
with the rate of sergeant major. In order to Turther establish this point by
of ficial and authenticated evidence, we shall introduce excernts from the

| Japanese Army legulations concerning the position of a nrobationary officer,
| and from the record of nersonal 11:uorr of the accused, TERAXI, (Since the

| latter has not yet arrived [from the Javanese Cover: ~"r““.., me shall introdnce
it as soon as we receive it,)

how the accused, TERAII, came to be involved in the incidents, by iL.rn-
ducing pertinent portions of the record of rroceedlinga in the trial of
| Lieutenant General TACHTRBANA, et al, tried by a military commission in 1946,

| and of the record of the Board of Investigation of "ar Crimes conducted on I
‘:Ghichi Jima, e "?ull offer into evidence such portions of these records as
[
|

1
| Secondly, we shall eatablish how these allesed incidents occurred and
|
|
|

| relate to the first incident (3pecifications 1 and 2) and the third
| 4neident [JpLLA-ibduionﬂ 4 and 5)

The above evidence will clearly establish that the accused, TERAKI, had
no nositive intention of perlorming the dissection of prisoners of war as
frequently happened in the simllar war crimes incidents in which doctors were
| involved, but that he had to cbey the orders of the violent commanding
officer, l'ajor LATCBA,

Thirdly, we shall shom vhether cr not the accused, TEDAKI, alded or
1hrt*ed in the %illing of a prisoner of war in the 1n¢idant of Specification
5,, gs alleged by the nrosecution, In the depoaltions of ZATC, hesakichl and
i | HAEATItA, Shigenobu, it is implied that the accused, TERAKI, aﬁviserﬂ SATO and
| HAllAL'URA concerning the execution at its scens. Eowever, the accused,
TERAKI, will take the stand in his own behalf to clarify that he did not give
such advice,

i

!

1

| lLastly, at the clesing cof the case for the defense, we shall introduce
|two affidavits showing the general reputation of the accused, TERAKI, and the
| circunstances at the tine of the alleged incidents,

Respectfully,
/8/ SKNAGI, Sedamu.
jarigih&ﬂighg certify he _gboye EDD?G aﬁﬂi%?‘d complete translation of the

apanese,

i) F, CLARK
Lleutenant (junlor grade),
U, 8, Navy,

Interpreter,
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STATEMENT OF TERAKI, TADASHI

Gentlemen of the Commission:

I have taken the mitness stand and testified in my ovn behalf,
I have alao fully explained in my statement vritten on November 4, 1945
about the incidents mith vwhich I am charged, Howmever, I wish to make
some personal declarations, as follovs:

"hen I was a high school boy I wrote an essay entitled "My Future
Hope," I still remember that I stated to the effect that I would study
hard to be a good doctor; that I would get the degree of doctor; and
that I would ease and save those who rere sick and helpless, In those
days, most of the boys of thirteen or fourteen years old had a hope to
become a reneral, an admiral, or a orime minister, I manted to be a
doctor,

In Japan, it has been said from the old days that "the medical art
iz the art of benevolence.," It is alsoc said that a man vho wanta to be
a doctor must have a fine personality, It vas said by many that I,
vho intended to become a doctor from boyhood, was naturally a very con=
servative person and vell fitted by personality to be a doctor, Aas a
matter of fact, I have never quarreled or fought vith others,

I mas fortunate enough to realize my boyhood dream rhen I entered a
university, a university founded by an American, Professor Clark of the
Massachusetts Agricultural University. After I ras graduated and besame
an M, D,, I manted to study further, I entered the Institute of Publie
Health established with the contribution of the Rockefeller Foundation
there 1 devoted myself in research of tuberculosis under the instruction
of Professer Nobeji, After four years I could get the degree of doetor
of science for vhich I was studying,

Horever, the Pacific War had already started., In 1942, I received
a letter from the medical department of a division headquarters advising
me to volunteer as A member of the reserve medical personnel, Since I
ranted to realize my ideal by devoting myself to further medical research
I paturally did not like to be involved in this war, Needless to say, I
did not eonsent to the proposal, I continued my studies,

Horever, it vas warped in the letter that if I Aid not follow the
instruotions of the army, I would be subjected to dlsciplinary punishment
and would be drafted as a private second class, '

The var became more and more intense and tro years later, 1944, it
mas expected that the enemy's alr raids on Tokyo would be inevitable, I
evacuated vith my family to the country, Two months after I ment to live
in the country, namely on September 28, 1944, I was called for disecivlinary
punishment and drafted into the army. My rate mas of course a corpaman,
private second class, Only ten days after my conscription I was taken to
the front rithout being notified where I vas going, and arrived at
Iwo Jima vhere I and the others mere assigned to various units,

™ithin only two months after I had entered the army, around the latter
part of November, I vas made n probatiocnary officer with a rate of sergeant
mojop, Besides .’t had no formal training as a probationary officer,
Mcn:ﬂ!nglr;hg knew 1little about the rules and custome in the Army, All

I knew was t in the Japanese Army superior orders could never be
violated,
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After the invasion of Imo Jima by the American forces, the frensy of
Major Matobn became much more horrifying that before, and at the peak of his
innane violence, these unfortunate incidents for vhich I have been tried
oceurred, All these incldents occurred at the time vhen Surgeon Sakabe
was absent, and on a day vhen I was on duty in my unit, It was my fate
that I had to experience this unfortunate coincidence, Looking back, vhat
a disaster it is that I had to net entirely in opposition to my orinciples
and philosophy ! :

. I loeft an aged mother and my wife with four amall childrean, My
mother is a fine, just person, That vhich is fine and good about me I ore
to my mother, ™ ithout her, I could not have brcome a doctor, She
sacrificed much for me, Ky wife is a sincere Christian who was grarduoated
from a mission school, ™hen I think of the pain ani hardship which I
have caused and vill cause even from now on, I feel as if my heart were
torn to pleces, The miafortune is with me and my family because of my
ill-fate apd vreakness in that I obeyed the orders which I should have
disobeyed even at the cost of my life, I could not oppose Major Matoba
then, But I swear before God and men that I never participated in these
ineidents voluntarily or intentionally or out of curiosity as a doctor,

I beg you gentlemen of the commission to consider the battle
condlition at that time, the abnormal character of Major Matoba, my
charncter and situation, an? the circumstances in vhich I had to
participate in these incidents; and that you will have deep sympathy
torard me,

I pray for your mercy.
Respectfully,

March 15 , 1949, /s/ TERAKI, Tadashi,

I hereby certify that the above 1s a true and complete translation

of the original in Japanese, to the best of my nbilitrh/

E L cm’
Lieutenant (junior grade),
U. S, Navy,

Interpreter,
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JUDGE ADVOCATE'S OFENING ARGUMENT
Delivered by:
David Bolton,

Lieutenant, U, S, Navy,
Judge Advocate,

| The case of TERAKI, Tadashi, is in many aspects a relatively simple
| one, The accused was carged with the commission of five offenses, in

| violation of the law and customs of war, as set forth in five specifi-
|antinns. These specifications relate to three incidents in which the
agoused TERAKI participated., The testimony of the prosecution mitnesses,
the statement of the accused introduced by the mrosecution, and the
testimony of the accused himself, establishes his participation in these
incidents,

I Spvecifications 1 and 2 relate to the incident alleged to have

| occurred on or about February 23, 1945. Specification 1 alleges that on
or about February 23, 1945 at Chichi Jima, Bonin Islands, the accused
wilfully disrespected the grave of an American prisoner of war by
unlawfully disinterring the body of a prisoner of war and removing the
liver and flesh from the thigh of the prisomer, The duty under tho law
and customs of war to respeet the graves of ocnomy combatants and of
prisoncrs of war is founded not only on fundamental concepts of human

:|. docency and dignity, but upon wéll recognized and gencrally accopted

| principlea of international law, specifically reocognized and embodied in
| international conventions, such as Article 4 of the Genova Red Cross
Convention of 27 July 1929, ratified by both the United States of
America and Japan, and Article 76 of the Geneva Prisoners of War Con=
vention of July 27, 1929, which Japan specifically agreed to apply to
prisoners of var under its control,

. The international law in this regard is identical with the
, prevail’ng domestiec law in all civilized countries,As stated in
- 15 Am, Juris,, Dead Bodies, Section 40: "Civilized countries
have always recognized and protected as sacred the right to a
Christian burial and to an undisturbed repose of the human body
vhen buriod," The Anglo-Saxon law in this regard is demon-
strated by the following citations from leading authorites:
"umauthorigzed disinterring of the body of a deceased human
being 1s an indictable offense both at common law and by statute,
. regardless of the motive or purpose for which the art is done,
| The oponing of a grave in a town cemetery by order of the tomwn
| officers for the purpose of removing a dead hody becausc the lot
in which it 1s buried has not been paid for, is within a statute
making it a felony for any person, without due process of law
or consent of specified relatives, to open any grave and romove
any dead boly therefrom, and municipal officers who direct such
action cannot escnpe 1iability on tho groupd that they were
ignorant of the law and supposed that they had the right to
order such removal, or on the ground that they were acting in
their official capacity." (eiting fn, 9, State v McLean 121 N,C,
‘ Eﬁhﬂ!ﬁ S.E. 140, 42 L.R.A. 721,) 15 an. WJuris,, Section 40, Dead

i Similarly Burdick, kav ¢f. Orime, Seotion 978, Disinterrment,
discusses the appl.iuhiq lar as follows: "The violation of the
grave or sepulture is generally punished by statute, (fn, 97 - some
states 1¢ a misdemeanor,. fn others a felony), and, at eommon lav,
it is a misdemeanor to remove from the grave a buried body rithout
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the consent of the omner of the grave, except when permitted

or ordernd by the law, The oriminal disinterrment of dead bodles,
otherwise known as 'grave robbery!, "body snatching!, and, some=-
times called 'burkism' from the name of a notorious offender in
Scotland, is usually associated with the motive of selling or
obtaining dissecting material, In fact, before modern statutes
vere enacted for the purpose of lawfully providing such material,
such practices were common, In the case of Rex v Lynn, in 1788,
it was strenuously argued that taking up dead bodles for the
purpose of dissection was not a eriminal offense, The court held,
horever, that common decency required that the practice should be
stopped; that the offense was punishable as a wrong against publie
decency and morals, and that the taking up of the body was for the
purpose of dissection Aid not make it a less indictable offense,
Rex v Lynn, 2 T,R., 733, 1 Leach 497; State v McClure 4 Blackf,
(Ind) 328; Com v Cooley 10 Pick, (Mass) 37.

"An exhumabdén cf a body may be ordered by proper judiclal
authority upon a sufficient showing for the opurpose of obtaining
evidence in criminal proceedings, and also, in cases of alleged
fraod uoon insurance companies, Likewise, in the interest of
public health, dead bodies may be remcved from their place of
burial and transferred, by public aunthority to other oroper places
of interment, The next of kin, may also, under the regulations of
the statates, remove a body to ancther burial place,

“The statutes further provide that dissection material for
authorized medical schcols may be obtained by delivering to the
nroper authoritdes of such schools the unclaimed bodies of persons
executed for crime, or the unclaimed bodies of persons dying in
prisone, almshouses, or other public institutions where other+ise,
such deceased persons would have to be buried at public exmense."

Similarly Bouvier's Law Dicticnary (Rawle's Third Revision)
in discussing dead bodies states: "To disinter a dead bedy withcut
lawful authority, even for the purpose of dissection 1s a misde-
meanor for which the offender may be indicted at common law,®
(citing 1 D, & R, 13; State v McClure, 1 Blackf, 304; Kanavan's
Case, 1 Grenl, (Me,) 226,)

"hile the content of the Japanese law in this regard is not
directly relewant it is interesting to note that provisions with
regard to crimes relating to graves, are ccntained in the Criminal
Code cf Japan,(translation and annotation by W, J. Sebald (1936).)
Article 189 establishes a criminal penalty for exhuming a grave,
Similarly Article 191 provides additional penal punishment for
persons who have exhumed the grave and damaged the corpse, remains,
or hair of the deceased person, The declsions with regard i> these
two statutory provisions reflect the aporoach of the Japanese law
to the concept. of respect to the grave and the dead body as being
gimilar to that which is referred to by American Jurisprudence as
being a concent common to all civilised countries, The ratification
by Japan of the treaties ncted above which contain such provisions
smilzﬂy reflect their acceptance of this standard of civilized
soclety.

The testimooy of rrosecution witness Kanemori, the statement of the
nccused (Exhibit 4), and the testimony of Kammuri intrcduced by the defense,
all establish the fact that the acoused TERAKI, taking some of his
subordinates wish him, proceeded to the cemetery near the Suyeyoshi Unit
on Chichi Jima, for the purpose of disinterring the body of a nrisomer of
var who had been executed there the day before, and of removing the liver

and flesh from the thigh of the prisoner nn!mtthlnomgw
upen arriving at the grave, ordered the Iihinbmd the Body o ¥
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(Kanemori, q./5,/é ), and the removal of the flesh from the thigh, and
personally cut opsn the body and removed the liver,

The mutilation of the body and removal of the liver and flesh from
the thigh also constituted a separate and distinct offense under inter-
nntional law, since these ancts orevente” the suhsequent honcrable buarial
of these prisoners of war, as required by the law and customs of war,
This offense in violation of the lav and customs of war, is set forth in
Specification 2, The law and customs of war, with regard to honcrable
burial are an integral part of that body of the law, and have been
embo'led in numerous international treaty mrovisions and conventions,

' such as the Annex to the Fouwrth Hague Convention of 18 Detober 1907,

| (Article 19); the Tenth Hague Convention of 1907 (Article 16); the

Geneva Red Cross Convention of 27 July 1929 (Articles 3 anml &; and the
Geneva Priscners of War Convention of 27 July 1929 (Article 76). Note: The
firast three of these conventions mere ratified by both the United States
|of Ameriea and Japan, and Japan also agreed to apnly the provisicns of

the last of these conventions to prisonere of war under its contrcl.

Military commissions convened by maval authority in this area
'1 have tried and convicted mar criminals accused of this offense of
hcnorable burial, Such convictions, based upon acts similar to

! those performed By the accused in the instant case, have been
reviewed and aporoved by higher authority, including the Secretary
of the Navy: wis: Charge II, Spec, 6, Trial of Surgeon Captain

[ Iranami, LIN, prevention of honorable barial by Aissection ~nd
mutilation of bodies of oriscners cf war; Charge II, Speca, 5 amd 7,
Trial of Lieutenant General Tachibana, et al, convietion cf Surgecn
Lieutenant Matsushita and Surgeon Lieutenant (j. g.) Sasaki resvectively
for prevention of honorable burial by imvrover removal of the viscera
of a -risoner of war,

The right and duty of honorable burial of the dead i1as carefully
nrctected in the domestic law of civiliged countries, and the law
strongly condemns and ~unishes indecent treatment of the dead. The
Jananese @omestic lavw as well as international law an' the law cf
. other eiviliszed countries -rescribes ctiminal nunishment for the
: damaging of the cornse (Art, 190, the Criminal Code of Javan, Sebald,
cn. cit.). "hat manner of burial is rrescribed depends u~on the mre-
vaildnr statntory prcvisions which may legalize burial in the earth
. or sea, above ground in a mauscleum, cr by cremation, But regardless
: of what specific manner of burial or mreparaticn for hurial ias
i nermitted and used, the law unequiveoeally prescribes that the cornse

must be treated with decency and honor, ™harton's Criminal Law,
Twelfth Edit,., Vel, 2, "Indeseney in treatment of a dead human
body 1s an offense at common law, as am insult to oublic decency."

It i a criminal offense to disturb or damage the body. And seientifie
or even philanthroniec intenticnes are no defense, Com, v, Cooley
(1830) 10 Piek, (Mass) 37, .The absence of an evil intent, or even

the presence of good intention, is no defense, "harton's cn.cit,

Sec, 1688, 1689, At common law it was an offense to give, sell, or
take dead human bodies for the purpose of dissection, (State v,
MoClure, 4 Blackf, (Ind) 328; Com, v, Loring, 8 Pick (Mass) 370;
Thempson v State, 105 Tenn, 177, 58 8.", 213; Rex v Cundick D & R 13),
¥hile statutes permit dissection vhere directed by the deceased

during his 1life, or by his relatives after death, ete., the saking of
or use of such dead bodies where not specifieally authorized by
statute, or nct in striet conformance to the statutory requirements

of consent of relatives, etc, 1s presecribed and punished as ofiminal
in all jurisdictions, No provision or precedent of the lavw and customs
cf var authorizes or nermits the dissection of the body of dead
nrisomers of war, In the absence of such precedents, and more
spe@ifioally in the light of the provisions age’nst i‘llt-hutunt of

the dead, the duty of honarable burial, and the commonly accepted
“3= BB(3)
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standards of decency, with regard to the human body, it 1s

oYwious that in the existing law and oustoms of war the verformance
of dissections upon the hodies of dead nrisoners of war for the
nurnoge of instruction of cne's own medical personnel is criminal
in the highest degree.

In the instant specification the orevention of honcrable
burial consisted of the onening of the bhody and removal of the
liver and the removal of flesh from the thigh vhich clearly
conatitutes illtreatment of the dead under the law and customs of
rar, The discussion of dissecfion, which 1a part of the offense
specified in Specifioation 4, was made at this time in order to
obviate the necessity of further discussion of the nature of the
offense of prevention of honorable burial,

The facts in tha 1nuidunﬁ are clear and essentially unchallenged by
the accused. All that the aoccused attempts to establish in this regard, 1s

| the nlleged existence of orders from Major Matoba, The existence of such

superior orders, does not eccnstitute a defense, In almcst every war

| erimes cnse, the accused has sought to evade his resmonsibility for his
| partici~ation by contending that his illegal acts vwere the results of the

orders of a su~erlor officer, This defense has been universally rejected.
The acce~tance of such a defense vould nermit a superior officer to confer
immunity unon his subordinates for any brutal, bestial, inhuman erime in
rhich they participated. The lar does not, and cbviously cannot sanction
such abaclution or immunization from eriminal resnonsibility., (See Glueck,
"ar Criminals, Their Prosecution and Punishment, p. 140) SCAP Regulations
Governing the Trials of Accused ™ar Criminals, cited in paragrach 6 of the
precent of the instant commission, smecifically nrovides that "...action
pursuant to orders of the accused's superior, or of his govermment, shall
not constitute a defense, but may “e considered in mitigation of runish-
ment if the commission determines that justice so requires." The language
of the famous International Tribunal at Nuremberg, (Summary of Judgment,
released Sentember 30, 1946) is clear in this regard: "The defense of
!Superior Ordera' has never been recognized as a defense to a crime, but is
considered in mitigation as the charter here nrovides.,”

Specifieation 3 alleges that the acensed did, on or about February 25,
1945, at Chichi Jima, prevent the honorable burial of an American prisoner

| of war by mutilation of the body and removal of the liver and flesh from

the thigh of the priscner, The testimony of prosecution witness Matsui,
and the confession of the accused (Exhibit 4), unequivoeally establish .
that the accused committed the acts alleged, and is guilty of the offense

' charged in Specification 3,

Specification 4 similarly alleges that on or about March 24, 1945
the accused prevented the honorable burial of an American prisoner of war
by dissection and mutilation of the body, and removal of the liver and
flesh from the thigh of the nrisoner, The testimony of vrosecutiocn
mitnesses Kanemori and Isc, and the confession of the ncoused (Exhibit 4)
conclusively eatablish that the accused is gullty of the of fonse
charged in this apecification,
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The remaining speeifiecation, Specification 5, relates to the same
incident as that charged in Specificatiom 4, but alleges in effect, that
the accused, acting with Sato and Nokamura, murdered an American orisoner
of var. The commission is familiar rith the allegations of such charge,
and Waval Courts and Boarda, Section 53, presents in clear conclise fashion
a brief discussion of the law of murder, which ohviates any neceselty of
my discussion of the general requirements of proof of the offense.

However, certain aspects of the instant cnse necessitate additiomal
discussion of the law mith regard to the quantum of particimation required
for eriminal responsibility, The accused TERAKI did not perform the actual
beheading, This fact does not negate brininal partieipation or responsi-
bility in connection with the brutal murder but requires the anvlication of
certain nrineciples of the law with vhich the commission may not be fully
ccnversant, and hence justifies and requires an. emtensive .exmminztion of
this phase of the law of eriminal responsibility.

While the instant discussion will be directed toward analysis
of eriminal resnonsibility of the accused under oriminal law ne
reflected by the Anglc-Saxcn law, vhich is the law fmeditarn 8o
this forum, it may be briefly noted in passing that the urimiml
law of all civilized countries does nct limit criminal responsi-
bility to the immediate and direct perpetrator of the eriminal
act, Conversely the criminal law of all civiliszed countries extends
ceriminal responsibility to those who are directly or indimufljr
responsible for the commission of the criminal offense. °
Briefly, merely as illustration of the Japanese law in this
regard, ncte the following from Sebald, op, cit, Chapter 11, Articles
60-65" deal with complicity. Article "60 provides "Two or more
persons vho have cooperated in committing a crime are (joint)
orineipals”, The following case i1s cited thereunder:"

"The expression '(joint) principals' does not refer sclely to
those who have varticipated in the whole or part of the act forming
an essential element of a crime, If several persona have consvired
to earry out a erime and some of the conspirators have been induciéd
to undertake the execution of the criminal act, those who have thus
caused the criminal intention to he carried aut- are also (joint)
princinals,” 1 Daishinin Hanreishu 233, Similarly Article 61
provides: "A person who has instigated another to commit a crime
shall be considered a principal, The same applies to a person

vho has abetted an instizator," Cited under this article is the
folloring cose: " hen a person takes part in a_crime as a result of
advice given by another person the latter is alt with for
instigation if the advice has caused a determination to commit the
erime or as am accomplice if such ndv:l.-:e has merely strengthened a
criminal resolution already formed." 76 Daishinin Hoketsu Shoraku
9276, Article 62 provides: "Every person who has aided a nrincinal
is maccepsory, Every verson who has inatigated an accessory shall
be considered an accomplice." The following pertinent cases are
eited under this article: "The crime of an accomplice is formed
vhen the nrincival's act of execution is aided by an act outdide
the axecution of the orime, The means used for the purpose of
complicity may be material aid, such as supolying tools, moral
assistance, or giving advice and encouraging the perpetration of
the principal crime."” 42 Daishinin Hoketsu Shoraku 4371, " -

=5 B2(5)




0) 6 : O

"An nct of keeping —ntch at the scene of a murder 1s itself part |
of the murder, The ratcher is therefore to be punished as one of i
the prinecipal perpetrators, and not merely as an accomnlice," 51

l Daishinin Hoketsu Shoraku 5606, |

Modern oriminal lav seeks to apoly socially realistic standards in n
determination of criminal resncnsihility and in doing so rejects hymer=-
' tochnienl distinctions or standards of responsibility in order to orevent
rosvoneible imdividuals from escaping criminal pandakment ' for thedir
participation in criminal neta,

| ™hile Naval Courts and Boards, Section 41, merely points out that nc
distinction 1s to be made in charging nrincipals and accessories before
the fact, me muat examine the question of eriminal participation in greater
detail in vieu of the fatore of the instant case,

Burdick's Lavw of Crime (1946), in discussing participants in crime,
. presents the following discussion of apolicable law: "Section 218,..Yet
lin connection with many offenses, while one or more persons actually do
rlt.lw deed, one or more other persons may be present af the time, taking no
|active part in the commission of the orime, but giving their encouragement
and support to its commission, and ready and willing to aid in it, if
\necessary, Also, one or more versons who actually comrit a crime may

lhave been instigated or procured to do so by one of more other versons who
are not present vhen the act takes place, Even after a crime is committed,
the pullty person or persons may be helped to escane by one or more persons
mho had no previous connection with the crime, but after it ras committed
Flmen that the person or persons they alded were the offenders,

L] "A11 such participants in erime are divided by the common law into |
h-arinua classes, a participant heing often designated as 'particeps
riminis!, and there are technical rules concerning these various
lasses especlally with reference to their degree of guilt and the time
their respective trials,...". Section 219 in discussing the development
f the lav under the English judges, notes that "Since anccessories could
ot be tried until the principal offenders were tried and conviocted, the
udges made a new classification, and instead of calling nersons who stood
ear the actual perpetrator to ald and abet him 'accessories at the fact,'
pnlled them principals in the second degree, and such persons could be
ried ne principals although the actual perpetrator had not been tried,
[Oriffith's case, 1 Plomden 97 (1553)."

Similarly 14 American Jurisprudence, Criminal Lavw, Section 76
"By most of the anciesnt writers on the common law of England, persons
i vho were present at the commission of a crime only for the purpose of
aiding, countenancing, or encouraging ite perpetration rere °
desoribed as accessories at the faect., They could not be brought to
trial until the principal offenders had bheen convicted or outlared.
This circumstance, together with the fact that the distinction be-
treen an aider and abettor and a principal was found to be dis-
tinotion without a Atfference, lonz since led to the classifying
of aniders amd abettors ne orincipals in the second degree, They may
be definé&l as peracns who are present at the time a crime 1s comnitted,
lendiing their countenance, aild, encouragement, or other mental ai”
or keeping watch or guard at some convenient distance vhile another
verson does the actual eriminal act, A mere bystander is not guilty
as a principal in the second degree for commission of a orime, if
he does not in any ray procure, inoih, encourage the act done by
the nctual perpetrator,”
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The participation by the accused, TERAKI in the murder of HALL
88 charged in Spccification 5, is similar to that which is commonly
| describod under the heading of principal in the sccond degree. While
| intcrnational law and more speeifically the law. and customs of war makes
| no fine distinctions between degrece of partieipation, in deterrining the
I oxistence of criminal responsibility, it is nevertheloss valuable to examino
iI the participation of thc accuscd in the instant case in the 1ight of the
{| law applicable to principals in the sccond dogrce, since it clearly estab-
lishes the existence of ecriminal responsibility for the kind of participa=-
tion which the accuscd TERAKT is allcged to heve committed.

|

!

| In many jurisdictions all distinction between the principal in first

i and sccond dogrees has completely disappoared, since crimimal guilt
and eriminal responsibility ie considered similar in both instances.,

| Note 14 Am, Juris., Criminal Law, Scc. 79: ™At the prescnt time,

| especially under modorn statutos, the distinction botween principals

| of the first and scoond degrec is not of much practical importance,

| and in somc instanccs is ontircly abolishcd. Statutes in varying

| tcrme moke all persons who arc prescnt and concerned in the com=
miasion of a erime guilty as principals, The principal and an aider

| and abottor may be indicted or tricd jointly or scperately.”

| Burdick, ep. cit., discusscs principals in the sccond degrec, as

| follomas: "Sce. 221, FRINCIPALS IN SECOND DEGREE. 4 principal in the
sccond degroe 1s onc who doce not commit the eriminnl act himeclf, but is

| prosent and nids and abets it, His prescnce must be either actual or

| eonstructive, and he must porticipotc in the crime by alding or abotting it

in some way, as standing by rcady to assist, if ncccesary, thc principal

| in the firet degrcc, or kccping watch or guord at some convendent distance,

| Evory pcreon presont at the commiseion of the erime, cncouraging or inciting

| 4t in any way, or any mcans, (State v Hocrr, 82 Kan, 573, 129 Pne. 153), as

| by words, gosturcs, looks or signs, (Hurd v Com,, 159 Va, 880, 165 S.E.

| 536), thc law assumcs to be an aider and abettor, A porson who is present

| but not aseisting in any manncr is not guilty as o principal in the sccond

| degree, and rontally econsenting to the commission of the erire, without

| affirmntive word or act, 18 not sufficicnt to make onc a perticipant. 4n

| alder and abettor must sharc the intont or purpose of the principel actor,

| and there ean be no partnorship in en act vhere theore is no commundity of
purposc. "

| 26 American Jurdisprudcnce, Homicide discussce the pertinent law in

' this rogard as frllows: ",..Under the modern law, he whe is present at e
homieide, niding and abetting, is guilty of the homicidc es a principel.
He 18 n principel cvon though another dces the klling. Prescnece, cither
actual or eonstructive, where ecupled with an aiding or abotting, a coun-
ecling, inciting, hiring, or in any monnor assisting in the commission of n
fclony will meke a poerson a prineipel in the offense.,..." (Sce. 57)

"Scc. 58. Principals in Sccond Dogreo. = 4 prineipal in the erime of
murder nced not be specifically a party to the kdlling, if he is prescnt
and conscnting to the asscmblage by which it is perpotrated in pursunncc

of the common design. A1l persons prescnt ecncurring and perticipating, by
some overt oact, in the ccmrissirn of the homieide arc cquelly guilty with
the onc who struck the fotal blow, fired the fatal shot, oteo,., ond it noed
not be shoun thot thore wos an actual verbal agreement teo stond by nnd aid
cne another., Those who advisc, cncourage, aid, or abet the killing of
anothcr arc ap guilty as though they take the pereon's 1lifc with their own
hands "

s BB(7)




the question of vhat constitutce participation in an offonsc of homicide,
ng followa:

O © t 0

Similarly Sce. 60, 26 Amcrican Jurisprudcocc, Homicide, discussce

"In order thnt n person may bo rcgarded as a participant in n
homledde, he must have nided, abetted, nssisted, cncournged, or
ndviecd the killing, with the intention of oncournging and abet-
ting the commission thorcof, Somc courts take the vicow thet it is
not suffieicnt, to charge onc with murder, thrt the ¥d1ling wes in
pursunncc of his advicc, counsecl, or cncouragement, unlcss it was
induced therchby. Othors takec the view thet it 18 not nccossary thet
the onerurngoment, ote., inducce tho commission of the act.

Where there 18 no preecncert or conspirncy, he muet enter into
or pnrticipate in the homieldal design in order to be guilty of an
act porpetrated by another., In crder to be proscnt, riding and
abetting in the commission of the offensc, the accuscd must be so
situntcd as to render some aid te him who dircetly perpotrates the
homicidal act.

It 18 not cssontial to the guilt of one who aids or cnecurages
the killer by nets or words thot the kller heve knowlodge of such
aiding or anbotting. Onec who is mercly proscnt ond scce thot a
homicidec is about to be committed, and yot in no monner interforces,

is not thorcby decmed to participote in the commission of the offonsc,
Frilurc to provent the homieide, or treit nssent to, eilont mcqui-
ceccnee in, scerct epproval of cor conscnt to the act by onc prescnt,
gencrally doce not make him guilty, wherce there is no provious
understanding, although ns to the consent therce nre some stntoments
to the contrary. In the nbscnee of preecnecrt cor crnepirney, the
innetive precacnee of the accuscd, with intcent tc render aid if
ncccesary, is not sufficicnt, although in some cascs, the rule is
qualificd by holding the inoctive prescnec, with intent tec render oid
if ncccesery, sufficiont if the principol know of the prescnec with
intent to aid, If onec brother comcs to the assistance of ancther,
vho i8 engaged in a fight and whoso adversary is sccking tc cobtain a
n club with which t¢ strike tho brother with vhom he is fighting, the
assisting brother is not chargenble with the murderous intent of the
fighting brother, unlecss it is shown thet he know, or might reason=
ably hove known, of such intont. Likewise, if the necused and the
decensed were cngoged in an altereation, and a third perscn without
preecneert, ccnspirocy, or connivance with the accused struck the
fatal blow, the accused is not guilty of homieide.

If tro men cngege in shooting at cnch cther in e crowded place,
and & bystander is killed, both nre guilty of murder, cnc ns prinei-
pal and the other as an aider and abettor,

It has beon hold thrt onc vho advisce and ccunsecls the killing
of publiec officore 18 gullty cf murdor without any refercnec teo the
question whother he cngnges in n ecnspiracy to do or procurc the
doing of some cthor unlavful cet, if, in pursuanec of such ndvice
and counscl and induccd therchby, on official is killed, Whore n
person 18 charged with participoticn in a homicide nctually
commlttcd by anothor person wvhile the cccuscd wes preoscont without
preerncert or conspdracy, the view has been tanken, in some cascs,
that the lew presumca thet vhen onc ie present, cnecurnging, assist-
ing, nnd advising another to do an unlowful anct, the one so acting
is induccd by thc prescnec and cncouragement of the other to commit
the act, and it is not ncocssary thrt thc cncouragement, cte., inducc
tho commiseion of the act; in othcr casce, the court has said thot a
charge of aiding and abetting shculd have the words 'and sedd killing
wre induced therchy'."

- BR(8)




| permitted to escnpe criminel responsibility with regorde to the execution
| in the execution., His poeition and perticipation is essentially no differ-

Whether the accused, TERAKI, participated 4n the offonsc of murder
charged in Spocification 5 is largely a question of fact which the Com=-
mission must resolve after full consideration and evaluntion of the
cvidenco, Certain frete arc clear and undisputcd; othors, however, prescont
quostions of eredibility in view of contrandictory or conflicting testimony
or circumstanccs presonted by the ovidence. The prescnce of the necused,
TERAKI, nt the scene of the oxccution prior to its occurrencec, is undis=-
puted and hne beon admittod by the accused in his own testimony before the
Commissirn, According to the tecstimony of the accuscd, he did net at tho
sccne of the cxecution speak tc Nekamura or Sato. According to his
tcatimony, therefore, he did not openly disapprove or opposc the commission
of the erime which he know wons about to be committed, Aogerdiog te bis own
tostimony, the accuscd hnd lerrncd two or threc days prior to the cxccution
thet a prisoncr of wnr woe 4o be oxceuted and thaot he, TERAKI, was to
perform a disscetion for the training of the auxdliery corpsmcen and was to
dcliver the liver and flosh from this prisoncr to Matoba, Similerly, on
the very day of the cxceution the accuscd,tsoverdidg tc his ovn testimony,
wrs ecalled to hendgquarters some time prior to the execcution end informed
by the edjutant, Kanmuri, thet & prisoncr of war was to be exceuted, and
that TERLKI was to rcomove the liver and flosh and to perform a disscetion,

of the prisoncr for the instruction of the corpsmen. The accused therefore,|

nt the sfenc of the cxceution, knew of the fortheording murder of the pri-
soncr and wns personnlly proscnt in order to romove liver and flesh from
thc thigh. His proscnec for thisctiminal purposc is admitted by hinm,
Vhether the cecused wre nlso preosent with the intention of perflorming the
dissccticn rs ordered, or whother, as he indicated rather foebly in his
teatirony, he intended to oveld the ecarrying cut of the disscetion allegedly
ordered by Mrtoba, ie irmetorial in view of his ndmitted presence for the
other erdmino]l purpose, of removing the liver nnd flesh., The testimony of
Knrmurdi, Konemori, Soto, Iso and the nccused indlcntes elenrly thrt the
execution of the prisoncr of wor, the removnl of his liver ond flesh, and
the dissoction of his body for the purpose of instrueting the corpsmen were
01l planned nnd intended (end nceording to TERLKI, ordered) by Motcba)r:
prior to the oxecution and in fonet eonstituted one eonectannted "
incident.

Since TERAKI, nccording to hia oun testimony know of the plamed
conheeted series of events and wrs present with the intention and for the
purpose of carrying out his part in this series of events, nomely the
removal of the liver and flesh, cnd/ap-the dipsection, he should not be

by the feeble crntention thet he did not persomnlly prorticipate dérébtly

ent from thot of the eriminal vho, while his confederntes murder and rob,
in confermdty with the originnl plan, stands by recdy to receive and dispose
of the loot, TERLKI prior to the execution knew thot thie murder weuld be
earried out rnd thot he was to receive the body, remove the liver nnd flesh,
ond dispose of it to Metoba; he went to the scene with this purpose nnd
carried it out,

In addition to the cbove there is evidence thot TERLKI directly
poarticipoted in the performcnce of the execution. /lecording to the evidence
presented by the prosecution, in the stotements of Sato nnd Nakomuraj the
necused aided in the execution by seating the prisoner of wrr cross-legged
and advieing thie as the position of execution; end slso requested both
Nokomure and Sato to pleese perform the exeoution quickly so thet he could
commence his instruction #f the corpsmen.

wiie BR(9)
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it The fact that the latter request was not 4n order to either !
| Soto or Nakamura is immaterinl, for we are concerned in this instance !
with the question of encourngement to perform the execution, rather

1 than the question of whether TERLAKI ordered the commission of the | {

f The necused nnd certain vitnesses vho were not direct panrtig#iponts
in the execution have indicoted thnt the nccused TERLKI did not seot the
prieoner, S&imilorly TERLKI hoes testified thet he did not speak to Nakamura
or Seto prior to the execution. In view of this conflicting evidence a

l question of credibility ond reliability of testimony is presented for the
determinntion of the commission. In considering this question, the commis=-
gion ean properly ccnsider the interest which respective witnesses may
have in the outcome of the procecedings. This fnctor is clearly present

I add ghonld be considered with regard to the testimony of the sccused, TVith
| regerd to Seto ond Nekamura, the commission may consider the feet thrt Lk
hrve alreedy been convicted ond sentenced for thelr participation in the
ineident. With regard to other witnesses the commission may consider not
only their possible interest in the outeome of the proceedings, but also
vhether the obserwmtion nnd memory of such bystonders, who did not dire«i.
| pnrticipate in the incldent is equally relinble, ne compnred to the obscr-

| wntion, memory, and ciredibhil’ty of Sato and Naknmura, With regerd to th
eredibility of Suto, it should be pointed out it the sccused, TERAKI,
hns personnlly nnd specifica.’y noted in his sicrn statement (Exhibit 4,

| thrt Sato 1s a truthful nnd relinble person. He stated ™Captain Sato war

| @ vory honest man of inflexible principled..It wns clear,.,he would mnke

| an honest report..."

purposes of this argument in vicow of the brevity of the instant trial,
i| In ecnsidering the fncts of the instant ecnese, hovever, the commission
should properly bear in mind certain additionnl aspecis of the applicnble |

| 1aw which appenr to be prrticularly pertinent to the facts of the instant
ensc,

‘ The above brief annlyeis of the evidence is sufficient for the
|

” liccording to most nuthoritics, mere presence at the time of the
| marder is not alone sufficient to justify o conviction. (Knrnes v Com.
| 125 Va, 758, 99 S.E. 562, 26 Am, Juris. 828).

Note however, the following citation in fn. 6, Wharton's
Criminal Lew, 12th Ed, Vol. 1, p. 331: "Presence nlone may be
rogrrded ns encourngement to prineipnl anctor and constitute one an
aider and abettor, State v Cloninger (1908) 149 N.C. 567, €3 S.E.
154."

Also note the following text moterinl in Whorton's op. cit.
Vol. 1, p. 333 "When the bystander is a friend of the perpetrator,
and knevs thot his presence will be rogarded by the perpetrator as
i an encourngement ‘and oroteotion, pressenco alone ray he rosarded as

' - ' Cal nia
BRI, RS IR M AR 1 S

linois, Indiana, braska, and "isconsin

The presence of the sccused, and his failure to disapprove and
oppose the gpommission of the crime may be considered in determining
Jﬂhother he aided or abetted, ctc, the commission of the crime.

=10~ BB(10)




l.s pointed out in fn, 12 of Sec, 60, 26 Am, Juris., Homicide,
200, "It has been said that the presence at a murder without dise
approving or opposing it may be considered by the Jury, in ;
connection with other eircumstances, in the determinntion of the (
' presence or absence of assont to the erime or of countenmance and
! anproval to it, People v. Clone, 293 I11 321, 127 NE 646, 12
ELR 267.%

|

| Similarly Section 89 of 14 Am, Juris., Criminnl lLaw, 829

. notes thot ",,.it is certain that proof that a person is present

I at the commission of a erime, without disapproving or opposing it,

! may be considered by the jury in connection with other circumstances
! in determining whether he assented thereto, lent his countenance
|

I

|

|

I

and approval, and wns thereby eiding and abetting therein.™ (CSce
cases cited in fn. 7).

The ndviece or ecneouragement thot will mnke one n principal moy be
given by words, ncts, or signs (26 im, Juris., 829). The pature of the
required participation is illustrated by the longuage of the following
citations from lending cases and authorities.

The following coss moterial appears n Whorton's op. cit, Vol

| 1 p. 328, et seq, fn. O: "Being present, piving aid and assistanc |

or advising, or watching to sece if anyone comes to interfere with '

the nerpetration of a criminal act, mnkes one an accomplice. Peop..

; v, O'Brien (1908) 125 App, Div, 254, 109 N.Y. Supp. 267." (329);

5 "One mey become an accomplice by being present and joining in the

' criminal act, or by aiding or abetting another in ite commission,

. or by advising or encouraging its commission. State v, District

i Ct. (1908) 37 Mont, 191, 95 Pac. 593, 15 &nn, Cas, 743" (329);

' "Presencc, with instigation or encouragement toward the commission |
of a erime, although without actunl aid or personal assistanse

therein, may constitute 'abettin.' Perscns pnssing instruments
to a prisoner for the purpose of effecting an escape are jointly
guilty of n single offense, notwithstanding the fact thet the
instruments wore passed in to the prisoner at different times, by

' different parties, but in the presence of ench other, State v.

Ballew (1909) 83 S.C, &2, 63 S.E. 668, 64 S.E. 1019, 18 Ann, Cas,

569." (328),

| Fn, 8, 14 im, Juris, Criminal Lew, Bec. 90 notes: "iny person

| who 18 present encouraging or inciting on nesault and battery by

words, gestures, locks, or signs or who, by any means, approves

i the same ie in law deemed to be an eider and abettor ond linble ne
a principal, Such a person assumes the consequonces of the not to

ite full extent as much as the party who does the deed. See

hesault and Battery, Vol. 4, p. 127, Sec. 4." (829).

Vith regard to the criminal liability ef TERAKI besed upon
the fact thet the murder wns onc step in the connected chain of
acts lending to the criminol remownl of liver and flesh and dis-
section by KI, the following case material and text discussions,
are particularly pertinent:

Wharton, op. cit. Vol. 1, SBec. 246, fn., 6 notes: "One engoged
in doing eomething in chain of acts leading to the consummetion of
“ an offense, though not ectuclly present at the time of its commis~

sion, is & principal, Bass v, State (1910) 59 Tex, Crim, Rep.
186, 127 S.W. 1020." (330)
-11- BB(11)
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The following language also appears in the same footnote:
A1l persons concerned in the nccomplishment of an unlawful and
eriminnl purpose are principals, State v, Scott (1907) 80 Conn,
317, 68 At1, 258." (330); "Onyone who commits an offense, or
does somec act forming a part of one of the steps thereof, or
nesists in the actual commiseion, or any net forming a part
thereof, becomes a party thereto. Ibid,"(330).

The effeot of participation in other 1llegal acts, as deter-
mining criminnl responsibility for homicide is discussed in the
following informetive language from 26 4m, Juris,, Homicidej
"Sec. 66, MNature of Offensc Contemplated, = If the unlawful nct
agreed to be done is dangerous, or homicidal in ites chamcter, or
if its accomplishment will necessarily or probably require the use
of foree and violence, which may result in the taking of life
unlawfully, every party to such agreement will be heold eriminelly
liable for whetever any of his co-conspirntors may do in further-
nnce of the common design, ALecordingly, one person may be held
linble for the homicidal act of another, where such act results
from their combined efforts to commit robhery, burgdary, jail
delivery, breaking in and stealing, or nssault merely. lgein,
where persons combine to stand by one ancther in a breach of the
pecce, with a generul resclution of resistance to the death of
oppceers, and in the exceution of their design homicide is
committed, all of the company are equally prineipals in the erime *
(204). "™Sce, 68, Casunl Reldtion of Offense to Killing, = The
rule of eriminnl responsibility for acte of others done in the
proscoution of an unlawful project is subjecet to the limitation ther
the particuler act of one of a party, for which the nssociantes and
ecrnfederntes are to be held liable, must be shown to have been done
for the furtherance, or in the prosecution, of the common cbject ond
design for which they combined together, and must have been the
ordinary and probable or necessary and probable result or effect
nf the execution of the conspiracy; the connection between them
may be reasonnbly apperent, There is no criminal 1iability where
the horfleide wae a fresh and independent product of the mind of
one of the confederates, ocutside of, or foreign to, the common
design, or where it did not result from scmething which was fairly
within the common enterprise, and which might have becen expected to
happen if occasion should arise for anyone to cause it...." (205)

While the foregoing discussion of the law applicable to the instant
case hns of neceseity been brief, the judge ndvocate considers thrt
sufficient material hns been presented to the commission to present a
clenrer pleture of the law to be applied in the instant onse,

None of the remaining legnl questions require or justify further
discussion by the judge ndvoente, The commission i1s cognizant of the
legnl nature of wvarious teshnical terms used in the specifieations and
additionnl discussion of these terms or annlysis of pertinent evidence,
would bo fecklesa, The question of superior orders wns previously dis=
cussed in connection with Specification 2, With regard to the question
of burden of proof and reasonable doubt, the commission is cited to Nawval
Courts and Boards, Sections 148, 154, 158 and 159. With regard to credi-
bility of witnesses, the commission is cited to Sections 300 and 301 of
lnwel Courts and Boords,

Respe . ',
"ﬁ-,,r...{. i :lt‘;...‘}_q. o
DLVID BOLTON, Lieut., USN,
Judge Advoeate,
=]2= mtn'j

E




I MJ&WEM_M%%

a;‘;f/ My hIs) XA I
A A , )
'ﬁﬂ _1”-1}1' f](-f":- AT

ENEELAZ0 XY Y 2N

—_— -

/i«m ij‘?t}”‘\zg “:\'J'P 9 M@‘L\ Ao 7, i’?\\i—&ﬂLM@‘

1“ iz 1?6@‘ =12 o ‘ﬁ_k’;; =N V‘K&_Zx?)li % 3”"’71‘1‘*

s e e W ho B Mo Hes B gohim o

h - Ay e iE

I, S

I'ad‘r::n“:vt’ _@,_3 M \a- hbﬁ; Ea\/ljffb \= x’ii\m
Muta LB 0GR A B e 9L B 26 pe oSl >
LA ﬁ’:._._,i_.a_ﬁ:sf@ oL foi - '-w'@-'im_ijqi%
o fpra B A dByo s redrn $5 T
’ () 'M_P-a F o Fik 5 ¥EEA o ﬁ'*’ﬁ[’ﬁ{ff
«K’&L% Ao h s B Ty cen iy,

;ﬁfﬁ M‘\T"‘ i r-’vffﬂj"ﬁr 278 ot g 1%
fio i B 278 ;aﬂ,’% o8 5 AR KB Ao B
3 4 ngiﬁ R A W B4 LB

/)

L

I /T8 7 1V W SN, I T e
_+Hx“‘u[. F] i é’_'&f!ﬂ _')b_’m-uﬂ] 5{1;5_}\ L 44X271 Ej\




g ——————————————

I
1
I

e ——

e . — .
| TR =, ENL NS S
- | & PR rﬁ “"‘_ﬁ FERS - JJ.:?F{_I-L W} La-}#—- e =g

1139 ) »fw%q.m%tqg,w& E;f@_
14 g 7l tgﬂ, 1A 1o ) kﬁwﬁiﬂ"“mbmul
M,ﬂ P h P VR o 3T B ey 1 WM wh
QV\I.-‘R G 1&\. U_?ﬁ_}____z;f: L_".'_l‘#\ % 5 .J"RE n '3 B> 5 note
L2 & e <@ ot Fe By  B.1i@ARG
2 RAR fo X125 0ot Nodlo- Dok 3 Wi
. u}n,KL—Ly&q-c?f"t_.a—.wk}iw..aw*?‘- GR > |
-fﬂ"i:_’i_é‘__lblfjxww }Q@MT‘;aiimuiuﬂb

o L M 3 u...da..:ﬂ A 5; YA

- Pl LA e e

ﬂﬁl '”i? ";}-n...,. LL'T J _ (_‘E:__ﬁ.__ ff-.ic_i ﬂj{l& tﬁ;].ﬁ'
'.ﬁ"'l.r 3*‘# 1 2 ¢ )0 Elq.P % % ‘%\ﬂ’ﬁw*klﬂ?/

,_,i_ﬂ_i.r_ 313 % e ozt Fud BN

J‘hr'lT ¢li mw——'?’;fw*')ﬁpﬁs__—-lﬂj
WMEA S A "t as e mE A (EHE
| (4% L gA I q_e____a.ﬁi__zkj_% % s
%WJ-‘*--'LDHP lﬂ’ﬁthﬁg@bﬁ 2 332« i

A~ B frgh kit hS o £ 2 ¥R
| ._MML*- 22 A i BLE 5D
I O L i grbiy’f{‘“‘mﬁ"’?ﬁ Ly 2 Zw > Tao L 73 f‘,_l
ek B o o, ¥ 3R - B YE (4o
Hats o) erav- tmicams

-q.—

&
|




S — s, |
'ﬁ'ﬂﬁxfﬁ%?ﬁfﬁr’wﬁ;}Vﬁfﬂﬁ&ﬂ#%ﬁfi ’
\ _pwﬂizfir_? NP A Y A o 1% !;ﬁM |
Ly <o 3 a3 o it S Me - (W80 il
‘\f& e _ '

}__‘5.'! == _.Q___}s:};___ I_'%;._y 9{ "U{‘?' :Zhl‘?
Ry B @ o % 2 |

.I___

| M 10 oo & B 3O Bh 150 - n

:ji- v B E bty I AR i E b

2 ot 3 (B oW/t 3\ ein) A BRG]

o T s v s i;_g,‘__#__}_f% 2o ¥ fo 0\ & ‘ﬁ o e :m‘,hj;
) \

: wampmx“ﬂ»mPﬁﬁ%phm&u@m,
Wza;t Pllom i Moo ety pya F® v trg |
e 9 = Vi | T 1A oY P av E"_.L?‘EL:L_-_J_E‘? AL i |
PECE-B5: = s (veod) o B B Cll) o B R
lng oy Whoe G ap & us %&iﬁL‘T
it oo A nbiacar 29) (WRends .
:wm \J-'R L, 1> Eﬁm
‘ w_zg .u__\_ﬂ,}_.} __imwmﬂ
5% b\ 'ﬁ'xﬂ‘ ili By = » @afr..-t"'siﬂﬁfff‘l&r&iﬂ_
_.’_ﬁ_:! f‘*h Y ?:Vhl_.?‘-.,_’l-f.. i % R [é— ) '&-,-- %5\) oo\ ‘h&r N
laad 2 st ﬁamwmﬂ:i SUTE =P 205
O X b ok K3 b A rw’E: P v oy o ls
-Li-'ﬁi'f R, s \L__‘Li:u:r'vﬂw 2 h“_k iﬂﬁm
T e i R4 (% PF

(3 )




C)C ' ) /

;*‘ﬁ'_;z. A g 3B A 1.1 B B Lﬂ—-iu_ﬁ% ] {
\ i 1L % W\‘imuataﬁ;?’&“&{}ﬂﬁﬁﬂfﬁ P . |
L-.}.-f@r.iﬁf @ N3 ".;{-- 1 (onets) oV85 411 2> 3 T
¢ Br{sa. %3,
S L’E_Lm LS i O S 1) N i A \“Q-?LEQLE'&
! 2%4§re ¥ 3 1 3.

!; T za At DG S W & - e O

[ e 20 @v ) POAR 1) mp gy, —
| Bado 45 B o 4D 3] 6o 2 10 'k if‘fhi
3. etrfoct Wolk s et oo, hbls. (&
o Fien Ko\ Ao & e, 1 o
I WMioTo a B Gi> iV A ¢ 2XH [ an 24
| e ol avwd, peodhofs pa 58 Bler
'! Az o sitoe g a\Peco B g o, =+
! I f"ﬂf’nﬁ-—i"'“'f'ﬂ?‘? V@ PN Y e /E, | '
I M B Rt T %’-“L:\ €1 3
| I N P M) azeaR bra. e
| b s W By o s

+ gx_q 130§ lﬁ:q%ﬁﬁﬁwé.aw,:}yugwﬂt
DL.J_‘?_.ELL__@LM_'_&Z}_ e B N A
| .*3-—“."2“r@”?*“h‘a‘ii’r“l%fnﬂvgra-wﬁ'aﬁﬁfﬁ, |
[ S ST = ) e %ﬁ’bi@ CL & L9 [ f2 L,uéﬁr%?"*
NSRRI Vo O - oS ijf”h‘”hl_ﬁj_m_ﬂhmf&_ 3 A
) |15 ﬁ'l&-f-ﬂ ﬂ_ﬁf?““ﬁ" M@M
4 _ﬂ@w VAT, R 124 _ﬁpLL"lxi \)

—

ﬁ,u-ﬂ ‘i;'%,l’ﬁ}’}\’i %*g“.p_f?a!rw{ wxhé‘"
[ B s B ¢ Bt w% ) Bife 91
i*ﬁﬁ’t*ﬁﬂfﬁ-t~aﬁ A Ba

LWL
=

(4)




g 1

rtf"’ﬁ____}r_ﬁ'j ’Luﬁ’[’&\ v % > L 3. A%f|
i |- 2. #ﬁﬁ&.&ﬂl&i‘i”ﬂﬁ‘ﬂﬁftﬁ’ﬂ ‘
| ik akadsn Teddar Iy h AP B Ae
Lt G, A n_j:__ﬁ/""r\. >3 [ﬁ'{;!ﬁ’ @y V2 % 4 B L%‘_
BRI 3007 brtifh Hy-h K]
W0 kB3 B el A b sae G j 4.2 e
5. iﬂ e i {hs overz o wh Jfﬁfﬁﬂ

AT, A 1 M| wﬁ-_}"k‘a__ll E nﬂﬁt (A [__ E Ek_.,&_
Cs : Q—ﬁ%v}—&mjﬁ.&aﬁ_ff‘_

vl — H\9. -

i
k2. % o Wb

P

| S0 Vi 1% G AR o ﬁ!ﬁw %ﬁ%ﬁ&m
FEZ e S o ot S B 2 8.8 2nafe I
_'; 1’11?\LJH_.§'+.1§EJW4 ﬁ%nﬁiﬁﬂ S po gm;;%
j_ﬁE\ E};hnf\kﬂ’%u Lf&.wxﬁ"‘mu--i;@,\r\% %4;,

\ ¥ o 5»~_::mi Hﬂ_&,w‘\iﬁl?} _______________ |
4 AT .58 ﬁiﬂ Y o % Lﬁw
\= aﬁ..’iﬂa_cr- Cas e ® APy, A MY S %;ﬁw.fﬁiﬁ_

¥« B 2 3 weto Sk ik D b A e

1136 A% W 0 2 toee(BR2220
|

| jt'}mzacsjr*fMz{mwf«mwiv% e

A\ D (=B s 36—t [0 X, &

Mia.« 134m1. 20 g ;:Em_&_&—\m‘i\‘ié
.-.%iua_u_uﬁf_mei SNV
wa&w o ik M&K

%% T ﬁfﬂ
g/? @\Lj‘m YR 92 248 2 %1?\“1}1«%@&

-ﬂ

1 e
( 5 )




()C g )

&_}r rmﬂdﬁ@\» f}f_;a UA —t ﬁﬁ?i&%ﬁ—wf:
et ZLA i M. B e Gt ot
ﬂﬂ__lv"bm,_’.lgﬁ"‘&“t- — g Foritt B2 J*'iﬂr
éﬁ’\“'b ;h=&‘4ﬂ_@_wl,_ﬂ [ Ao Se . E~ -’E,ﬁa i.
EO WY R B _E:_nﬁ_&v% |2, &{‘fn@?if«iﬁafr .
ﬂ_/\\ ?J_A A‘BY{\.M}(M ; ';\n.ﬁb-‘ Vo .
12\ r&a«cmﬂ«tﬁ: o Aelen g sBpu XX
wdeae sl o Lodallled e : |

1N\e |
| ru}/ﬂ;ﬂbf&t 4"%_,1% 1L v ﬂ,.’fﬁﬁ'}_mt
| YR o Yo\ 1% 134 & K y= - \ v

!.tv"_;‘__ ﬂt}*iﬁéiﬁzﬂ)%iififbjmj

ﬂ'@f"* % B j’\ff}‘g___ﬁ}/fc\
Mjéﬁ%wwﬁ’ﬂ e R ol s ¢ VA "~1
.J”‘A’Px.,?ya#“[?hﬁ:ﬁ;y11,.u*c.. = rk & 2
_.'i‘?“*.i.{-_‘l_ﬁ-l e By ool as = f BTy
Lo 4% s %8~ 05,4902 = f::.__-.f:f;al 2o
| %hf;aﬁ,’%?%:w pr \Ji2 i {8 f’,ﬁzﬁijﬁc._i
i 1M e ot X 1 -ﬂ;.“?"f
M dd (asl): ¥ a\imﬂw A4 %.,J;,

QTS Ao D ‘f?_ O I | R T

D e [ e I i efadhd AN b

L. s ifﬁﬁrf’i\ Ll Y rﬂ‘ﬁ' " De

—

= ==

g, > - __l C Vo @%MM
Rnanr- "’\(_._(;M—‘W‘“‘Q .‘3 o ‘Q\n.uﬂk-&il

J ?_53 mk-'i-—’«'ﬂ'sf)
o s < prusoa P\ B

'—

(&)

—— "i ﬁ\“%\‘ﬁf%'?lﬁl r_}-\uz.fiﬂixni?r‘l..




-\_ﬁ_,g:& E ';%‘\ lr""n « L "l\-/T“' ﬁj_#"‘]-..". e % 7/1-”&_@—-:
e 11012 it > GNP NP e.BGE

@_,'ﬂ&"ﬂl__*t—’fe IR%_&;GLF‘A

.

e p o Web o B vE

L % b o A8 MBh e ol ide v 2o e 9
1201, $at o BRI BB i L Ko Rifbr
g g % %L_ivc.h {4 dze Ay Rt DDA A
11*\3?3,5 % il 90 % Lo Wlvh % Lkrs
N/ f,r,,-;,kf(@,zg L-:}}r’i R T3S b) Pk I|
fio i Moot 05 j—_,ivfﬁﬁf‘ffﬂ‘jﬁ%ﬂiﬂﬁ&,
o s e v 6 & B Ly HBir e BB 3
,;_azﬁ_ﬁu_mg@kqm&ﬁ (2 )= LN 7o s,

| f“f_z_,’va_.i‘_; 02 Ve Tdcalor e

T._- aeas e Cé_ﬂ.-_a::c-f_-uhﬁ iL__f.‘_#iii-_l__s;_h .
'! - fﬂ: & Waki- mzﬂr$a~'ﬁﬂ/tﬂ‘r’\ra—jf;‘:f¢ﬁ-
..',.___af—u-- —w‘:‘u« A A% R o fo 2R
H__ VP Wt 2P ) '%’Jt- £ B aion o 1L e
l;- ﬂir‘_\l'c‘lﬁv”'»ﬁ—*:;u E'j’ﬂ'\g‘v%fﬂ‘iﬂkk
.1 AR Ao (s R ﬁf’&—"‘«t;ﬁzﬂl’

e Fe """_2‘%4_@:5& b M LA Ao __IE/Q
Ay (ap b Fon AT ?L,ﬂ 3‘@51_,& Ay,
n LN s R ‘E/-.\'L fyﬂ AN i‘?«-’h B %Eﬂ—r)w—
iR BT o 11 Bl et ey B Tass 9
2o\ Ko il Kne {0

2 Mp Wb 65 N3z h ¢ ) B p it w o S Kat
L‘;._w;ﬂ-' E‘L?—Q:J_[MN_;__W——

()

e —




| O e
| l
|

;“ - Q.,E:' \"__: D .H.' F\L)\ L Ll Q/\_mc._,mt%_.._
l'__ Lia%,}ﬁ‘_rm__ x5
| Gcf&aﬁi_w_,_%ﬂa )

]t_ﬁ-__%’ﬂ. O 19 O W AR AR |

|
! By o N3 o uhy s B MEBA A At

llauwbd odo>hou 5 &R 2S5 e VB B\ 5 3 H®
'3 L - 3’1&,"}: NE !ﬂ R B 1AL\ wrde ‘% B o

'lﬁr'?f’@“ o k% 'f)" JXM‘ e S\ tz p £\ D ‘\g_}r
__"I | n ¥ ﬁ.\ﬂdmﬁ b?"“}&\lﬁ 5,-),.'
| ﬂf_d_&:ﬂ_’g@_:{ 2 evnBy ¥ o :%.( N 3P }ﬁfé
v M % e 18w (P d %

i#""n}-v”.;’--']: f‘\"""a"gﬂr‘_"- ’"’f\wf:ﬁ ?E.,f*:"i:"f’“
'_../3)1’1.# :”if‘ﬁ k&-—'ﬂﬁ?"ﬂﬂllfyﬁ-&ﬁﬂﬁ ] H’Jﬁﬁ’ﬂ
,1,_-_,Eiﬂ};__..-__. e (a ] b paypld ‘4’& ‘i'{f.fum

MM_’L?M ﬁu._” pl.f}ciﬁ'c é‘._fﬁ*}/'; D A
|I ‘F_L.M‘”if "'L'Cl L 1"1’ "?ﬂ “:-.-/-"'r.j__",_ fL/_ e A 1?__4%‘1{‘:
I}JL1E\_}£--*' m,%w oo v§ Dy (1 @5}%

locren 5% (GRIND hawdkan ) I
|'¢’k“-’ P o kﬁl ‘f} {'é ‘lAb—.‘t:..,__ '!"r-' |+ "fﬁﬁég"’l}\ \\a Z;L *.h~
.‘L.L..:: NP I e 0 S . .
_i}___ o
#A k}i%’h « )f\ e YR R E Bo T ks

B 2 mw:& o {-n ?tzf';-"d E'&ﬂﬁfg ;—;fbg e
Jaad 01 Bk ?'_;f_;_nﬁ ¢ MNP Lo
/%lﬂf}:_f%?_fu ¥ bt B> UR\= 3 ks

B g3k p A8 b crvi8PL b ’*j_vf PR

RO hado I s 47 % i W (e By
( §)

I




-

LA Ve v 3ot w38 e At B Bdga
I YR P -

— s——

s e ———— ——— e i  E e E e mmw mm—




W, e 48 |
| |
R . _ ST _4
!: MEER Th i
| 14 % *gr‘,k %ﬁﬁm wq_»w'* PR frfk#%lﬂ J73
Bl e ) 5o -rmmf_awfqg afaﬁbmw

| §apn AE B9 tf*‘ 1 %) th R o Tk (LAt B

||.-. i S

%) Ak 3o I X AT

—_————— e — — ——— —

| ,L?j“m“i.& i h hd 7 ) ol BE
I! ?J:;L?M)Lhrmﬁuﬂﬁfﬂ AR AR & Aok

|| e Al

}
-{.
t /\‘%’% e &) R - 1{&%1‘&%??"1;-?;;?"{5

IJHI. ‘*} T Ih 4,“ ,-15' ) JL"E-; f"b{dn :r-__'{"_ |

LY

——

R r 3 et

T .2 #1108 b ki
IR T M1 By -t kn
I Th'jl)?ri v kf Tf_/‘i_\ l'f? ‘Fg:}“ f“;ﬁ%%;i_‘tag

~1&

e

S e SR W S S 5 e — ———- i ——

!'}_ . fﬂ -_fi"?"i.%IT(Sahu,ll- 5') <0 I‘Hﬁ ﬂ’f’i’?ﬁ —;}1.:..

b A MY S AR 1 ek s dets B

[ ) XM = ah e by B Je il b/ o Hh / deX s

*Hﬂri_’[ﬁrfw

72k 1 _ji%iﬁﬂéﬁrf**:.) ’}‘ffiﬁ}
H’ P”ﬂ*"‘}&ﬁd’#ﬁ&;

LY

Y

E
e
o
L
’:f‘l

|| "

ce(10)




I -

'! 'DL'* b4 ‘f ’(’(SPJLL ) * ’{ ‘H%%gx_ﬁ-{?}-ﬁ}-;
: Riga\R1 8 7% 8 )t ?rv:’?»-;"i-?éj"_'r': '.
l__:f‘_ni‘ia;»?.j;ﬁtnﬂ%auj;ﬁ r}# 2 nhe . = W}j!i'iﬁ):

i . —

f,q;,t'» r;;ﬁ.irLiuﬁ%)}g HLg]'w,% H‘

T

-5 E:N
|§ 31 -

B S ey

ﬁﬂ"ﬂ% Lig *“F’é‘f_:_%_ﬁ_:{ 32 2k ¥ }'1”1
Q{' T_?_ﬁ'f.’t‘L )[\ f‘?)f’ rjr,rg Lﬂr,g,,w, o
% % -2y 2 e, h #?m&m %*wrzq%w?

e s —

h_ -zli- ..Jr“t*ii, € f} 13614 - e 1% i s, ??'J};;Eﬂ
B IZEEX %4'#: A I
[ Plhrros (Ky M/ ety 45, 7 A-iro )
.iiﬁniqlif'frrlfj MESESRT

I 5* % ?-1? ’If’s:t?iﬁ}- . 'fiﬂtfiﬂ“ﬂ“y |

I: ﬁ’,,_ﬁ%— ”ﬂl‘i'é-jtpwq,\hwx“ﬁﬁx*,’ r;u;\# ’fﬁ (i‘i:ﬂ:
| b2 8ov B AB AR roo s sder BEIAC

i‘ﬁ% Eirb"{ﬁ’r}t‘&)ﬁ}}i’ % ﬂ*’:’JJ_{"\r -r_r“_“*;

5 T }Afwizq?vw% BR - ki R%

b e s —a.

I
| 134 e W) 7 roy b L= bin 1o jr'ilfh;ﬁpﬁr_ |
i *H*JIUF# A v \?v“’bﬂ?ﬁiﬂif‘%i?fura?%} %15

97 K T
iy Hboh B a4 A Aot B g
| kkﬁ '@F-'h' 'ﬂt‘o u«l‘"; :f-.il"' J],(._I“..' e i = ﬂ }‘h"—-ﬂ qi.r‘f_)]

"fﬂi""F ;‘}; ~ P A4 j,ﬂ-«?f"ﬁ? ﬁ[}’"ﬂil’-}z KFFE
L c’i?t'ﬁﬁ_hﬁf'ﬁhV’\*rfw

I § A . i g - =

Ef—f&ﬁ*[ f’l\’“‘"’ 5 E h & .
|| %k AR R BT AR K

(11) |

N



O C t 0

i| *’_}(‘;I ﬁ&h)(ﬁj}ﬂ) -r“’;qr._,j;‘r.r"if,f.;{‘*ii;_j;_'l
BN IR IR 5H 7 BRI T rd]
é! ﬁ"f V%’J’f!fﬂ‘hf?i 3:\?7{/ ;*.Vﬁﬁgqjﬁbs

TR KB A T N
|- B4 G ity B, m%ﬂ%#.«ﬁﬂ
| Bk 2 r (kg e A ﬁ(ﬁmﬁpfu

" mmm;& wwmumwi A b < | |

|

J*-f\f”%ﬁ h5 B85 ~F 1 ExgArd] - b
_ [ﬁvﬁ#“ﬁffa’lww;’ﬂm}]?\ﬁ!ﬁl_uf L;._ur&“-.,r
!.l ’ﬂf“tmxﬂfwﬂﬂ“f’ff"’f ) ) .

|

| Zlztenp < o
L__.vh»ft%jn L1 bR e A K Sk HAER

LR (E_-}qu_)_ hL k- B A T R & e
| Kip-m1Ld. -
| w%}r« _?1__;.1_“.:{ 1 S0 K- R E
;h___%@!* %; T""H"fmf TR e} i [1’;..,,7|

1 FB % ﬁju“f'“ﬁﬂ’:} Ikq's #‘{'E\,ﬂz J?{ﬁ H4

—— — -

e Rtk L
Y7 TR S T L RE SR T
T o AR Rk J‘F“»'Tr % A MELX, LR (P

I PP %y Be1f1 317 21 w14 vE BR
yﬁ’ia’ﬂfwﬁﬂufﬁ k #aze H 7 A -1« BE 4
IR S T Oy N LT 228

‘1-_,{;{/5.{5&}'?«. iﬁfﬂurg%?liﬂ BT e g

(/] 3)

cc(12)




| O st o |

l | —— —— - - —-—--n—---—---—--- — ‘

ﬁuf&, 52 ¢4 3 L ?ﬂﬂ?f"’lﬂg‘{fiﬁ@# il._\} j“,l'u-—, ;

Z Zhn gy, |
)"/h){x 4@%5-’%"”“9 %ﬁ@hﬂ'ﬁW@@l
N LN ;um,wd,mﬁfm})% Bl1p RA- 7 |
|_ SR (E R w4 w%@ 2- awfﬁmi
8 q'xf‘f’?anf;;ﬁ:([bf%&frﬂ"}i_ By e WL TA
: i ASB AE 1 M BV T T M7 B1Y))

— e mr o

R - pe v W A5 K5y Som s - 1 Brat

SRAB ) p iy - Ly g

- S __..-.u.-._._..-_._-.

§; zmg&w ai= s PR ' ‘hﬁ
UMy ME A R x 1A r sk AR 1 R

T MR Rk A s M- b A R B
| ﬁ:;unmwm ' % ) | “___'
ORI DX
AT A (YR Rt AR f{rﬁ;ﬂ;jﬂ) |
T T AT S T ST
. “”‘fﬂ'ffwﬂ ' 75 )

| XK AR - TNBA S B - s X TS D

| g B ypcth -1 P \E~Ny (K # 21t yﬁ)
@ Ak ¥4 s ety Koy
I R SZ RN TY (»fﬁ;-j’wfw'i] )

S aﬁﬁﬂw@ i) WA 1k Bz
A B ks bRk it 275, B H
R G G RS T

u______ E’J{“IITVT‘{ ﬁ_ﬁjl-{j;\; (‘Jﬁﬁfj ’u,.-_)

-

g e e —

o m— o —

(/3)




I
I
I
|
I
|
I

J
I
NG KK X%/ 0 Rk 1 k= 737 R P)-1774]
WA ARy p5s) S B oer i hkn 2i By 1 BT

|
-
S 22X Ty S DL 5

- ——— i —

R 1) 15471 %1 L’ivrﬁf"“‘lﬂffﬁﬂfufmm
| W'I 79t 1&%{_ [J:..n..f .
| Xaaese s %) & o) ARk ARt 4,

Lzr-I~’I@Lzﬁg)‘t_#,ﬁ ¥ Kz ﬁﬁ):ﬁ*j%u;}{f |
I‘%r

| 5 enhg
D e e ) LI _h

!i_.. = T

A%EIE_%' .:I‘Iif ’lﬂIj‘;‘Jl },I'Lf'%,? *2 ﬁ_ii}_kj' _l_,%__:"‘_gk—f” ]
Iﬁ.fibul%b}\i‘ﬁf ;QY}/ I{r'(ﬁu %I{,T }Jjjﬂjj? :TI
?L% ‘W*?)?'I%Imiﬁ*k:r__ ﬁf@;—m;vfm
72 L Td—1 7 Hep -Iz}f, ) wﬁg I’\‘:.,I,- 7 ’iIi‘l

)

| A¥H R R RS - R fho BR-BR1T

| APl ArhosE 3EF 07 4 b 4 ~I:ﬁ[>'LI’}I"’*Lr T‘
5/{*"‘_)“_{' 9w :f quIJ ‘I-l IEfIPIIEJIM \’-I’,hIi}{K_f_
| ‘"Ir, ’3(7{1’!»/'5';1 Aﬂ*‘rﬁf’?iffjli_l_

’*I"-‘_I‘_,?I_,_K_fr'!rw_ i’fﬂhfvrfw - ,«‘[1 g;[_-;: (v), I

L oy, ) s % i e I?h{ N £l 2 Hﬁf’*fﬁ’i‘? A% u,_a_r_f’__
Tesw, _

| F=-mekky II’IMW{ Sy je a1 xndbh-H

() ¢ t O §

TR YR 2 _»rv_LIuﬁﬂ‘twaI 1949

A1 P I EN ) B KTY -ué& M ¥ kY

P ]

ST aq;..ff”;r«fiz;}k W ksiredr Rk

__/_Lj%ﬂ“’%—ﬁ?? Frgn SR BE AR |

_Brren X5 Kk f‘w'ﬂ"I“_axwﬂI‘lUﬁzi
Y A ahe B oM -k Ry ~ |

(/4 )




|

|

l

e o i e 1

b 1 ‘H??{jf:f:"?\ -t a R 1‘En,rrﬂﬂi~nz"nf4_i
T L"{__)L‘J{/J'QL-?Z}K *’H *‘i’qf‘;%& 1{*

A A AEF T LT foe WRE AR R TN J}fo_z__
iiJ"Enr&le& A |
¥ fﬁﬁ*%uﬁkl v B Ao Y e B MR Y Jz‘ée
i pif*'?lﬂlﬂzi’ I':J]Lm,.ﬁf:}':sl-:g.wi,&v; ﬁ\ﬁ |
| A f,ffma Ref 11 s sl segn r’ﬁfﬁ;ﬁa
A e M AR LB IR TS

e T S . e . e Ay~ e "I
SEAN ’"ifi % 2

| L RRRA R G ko s F KR R 2Tl
,| %&mnmh NG ST SN (e SR ¢ X
DR AT 4% f%%#}:;';??ﬁqﬁl}x’? 6|

| Ba- WP AT R -k L. ME T FA 5%_

A

L M ATE Yo mne 2oh 2 45ust A1 B R e RE
” SHGNE AR A CRISEIE T% L XIS ¥ N s 5:

"___,,‘:L__h o e

I| ‘w.l ﬁ:u far ra’ﬂm} »fﬁi/}}l%;’DW 7”_“
| RBomaos b d6E S Ah (6f %0 R e =1 sk
E_Eﬂjﬂf_\iﬁfl§'lufiiLﬂltr*} t’luf'i?\}f‘%fi g’r’-‘ 5'}'
ii j;w_hf”thj e B v AF vy 1P

; Fff"" 'bﬂl‘ 'I;C; 'DWYT' ﬁﬁ“‘f##’&quﬂ
BT

_fiﬂﬂ TRt 2T LT s kA 4 %) Ky

{uf_.-t i) ﬁlfi‘"’ ﬁ' ‘i') / iqﬂ? itro. #j”\ﬁg ﬁ%\ﬁ £ﬁ\i7)

.....

EETY RN RS SV ERISS SRR 0. 20 e

- = i ;-Ls‘rl.:}‘ ) J{]\:\JS}L! rrffarfn“_ "’:}E.{%‘ ﬂLE.JFJj

b —— i ——————— ——— —

IIETER, % PN A TP |

:}::;%Mriﬁéf%% A RS DTEES § e
i, X

e~ i + P |

\ X fﬁ’iéﬁ%;'ﬁ}“ -?:-»"%_? ?Fh;‘\:"mm L, Wl marn /

(187




e —— e —— — . —

M&mew ?izﬁl“ﬂvﬂﬁfﬂ?
n ¥ ?mﬁ*r*iﬁafkrw}'z‘;\ AT
&g‘;, Py ¥ $¢MW?J‘}#U§£
..__i“.@__%gww 2 3T
- Bo\feen et N
fk*_"*’ﬂﬁ o feeral 16N oL i‘f}
j\"’”*?@’itfﬁ%wr!hmhw R k 7
EE “’“‘*"5‘_* 7 = B Berr D

|| iﬂ\w foi_m )L b ﬂ%{-;i_fi*’“"“f;rb:;

" t ”;1%":’_“_‘“2*:” Sﬁ{i K R R Bk 18R L f’é‘,q
HLL“ 1 TRUAEE B P [
'E e {f %iﬁ. L E?x ﬁ'ﬁ > Irk_ﬂ t}. " Y ‘h‘f' > hﬂl ? .f{{f,‘ﬁ--li" 1IE’1‘J rﬂ-:‘
A 50 5 2% Lh A7 ] o H_ 2k p 32 ﬂ}] (v /L7
;_.__.__f Nﬁ"’*i?lﬂ ?fflL t‘?"i;;fw. ﬁ*’)
I S ECRAL ka T*?54441#1uk7?1hﬁ|

ii_. 14 % Fxﬁ@ﬂ = ,M";T f’i«*#é"?"fﬁ ﬁ"’&f'ﬂ

|| B ’LT.;%L# @Tr{fﬁ*zﬂ‘a 2,9

) gl B -0 D - he 14
“.'-t :rf,- ﬁ ﬂi'if —r-{‘,q-f T'FJL_;Q

Y}(_f"{_’_:_f.’*twfbn mEdop %5 13 1h 2 %%Eﬁﬁf’_jﬁ'ﬁ#
ESEIEED M AR - (RBA p AR

———

{'..-e:J F

Lﬂ!.,_ o

____ _{___
_,|

v =

1 _

S
e%ﬁfﬁ‘x Sr

=

____'l-_ { B

IF

e

o e e et et e o

‘__ %% _’ﬂiﬁ[‘ A
i‘iﬁl‘%kﬂ Shrer K- Tohrr A fi%h -7 7 |

T}{b?? ?11*31??}.\‘9» > f’{;i=;'-:]'ﬁ;_l._f:‘5i’ff{g_3_ij1gﬂlwé A Za

Pj(ﬁmﬂ’ﬁ Moot Sifh . En i) Bt u R

&j'\;%ﬂ,( 1‘& Men7e M olE-ERFEE r

g%%ﬂ»smitaﬂﬂ/bfHi#ﬂfﬂdfhM#Jw,fv%%lﬁrﬂ
ﬁb‘?ﬂ ) ok kA% 2w

(16 )




- ﬁ a Muyrn %” 17 ¢ frj“’<ﬂ1§;‘P 1 A L“ll,f\f P~ o, A

,J%-fh;.‘i__dm!‘“‘ e WEA K AT b fMQ a8 #a— 14
'}MMJ.J_W__I:MME@-PMEY+VL
MM WKt AL il n B & B< (R
o Vet sute o9 B AA%IK ol - 4l P01

£y | 0 ()

N & Ky 4%

N R~ B a4 2o ¥ 38, - 12 % Bt Ma

o, I A A Vol 4¥ .4 ﬂ'%@%—\,i 4% \T=. & pry ﬁ: 7

h?_b%/ﬁwf_j&’%i# HAE At (-5 0 5%

X s AL FO AW, A s b B A ?ﬁz,?ufg B
l__V‘f_-JE/ (i o %a& ﬁ;}_@@’{;, 2 %)) v ‘a’;\ gi\

) Bra 3 Fe s 5y V4 25% i1s o e ?kail-.ﬂﬂ;
1 ”'E =51 3 3.

. %’J é"_-uff'flx% #*m"h QL o « "’E;«é:ra IR 3 AR A
*~i|—1§ EL ey B 'f'.'"-'_ 1= 1o v % (@ __jf% i D s |,'la "1:1'.-j_ ¢ IL#E\J‘T -%.___‘

f T T O e JO 0 { ' LA ,T\q a2 WA 23 o Kol
-%Eﬁ 112 LA S W 2 1% A re~1 R 245 B Y5 ¢l

iR ﬂ;_;#_g_ﬁw P TN

e G e o BAh %% 5N = e R
it PP 5 L, I AR o WY LA i =2 Ai-Te 2.
e, A o W& L B

I o~ 2 TR o) 18 2 Ty fr i e p PR
A ﬁ\am’% > a9 lpair B iy BB hisn

_'ffﬁ'ii ‘T% I < O N O = )

;‘L_’L qu ek niue ¥ }qg'b-‘]r"r""l“’; \

[Eu_kﬂﬂﬂ:l M o - fﬂquL

u”]}




" |
\\x{?ﬂ?{T (o )~ ¥ 'az”l., d-"}” £ , Tat@_‘L EL”I. f"- :
\ ﬁt’&&.i\"%wﬁ%-Lha»*}‘kaﬂﬁmﬁ '\ﬂ“r_d_h |
.l_iL.L“_ﬂé'_:_l:ftf__L xlod _1'2-“"1“! M8 ¢ Zas~ Y Sin’rt=3,
\ *\/k:|vz L/ a9 1 ?l*f""’ (R_V2 e 1) [
Eg"\r;ﬂaﬁ Bz Bos om0 mp v B
<5 Qb
X

VR0 2 % p-y =%\ \‘df‘—,r 5, F1
:‘w: ;,’;_,I,JT" -i“ﬁ“-%n ? _J__,l ,frr’ ffi A G 0 T PR %A #x.
S 35 .%i-w&-ms:f_r A 2 At K YR %t
:3'1'\ AV 111T’ -’(7’] "- i\iﬁhm;wv
g?ﬂ"xﬁ""liﬂﬁﬂffﬂﬂ&@ﬂ1i’l/?‘a‘\"f#%?r=f‘
I ﬁ’%%ﬁ&‘ﬁf(ﬁn 939 ¢ §5.{ 1L 44 L & ’Lﬂ 4 oL |
%ﬁ;tj

et

?’é’hm-.*-ﬁ-_qg_ﬁl ‘if'.*r - .1-:_;-".:.-1/1/?_,_,

I % -~1§zLjLaMp /‘N% e___{:m e gty

A r i 32 o RY B oW L ntenl s IR Z AL
1o %7kl g‘_a? 24 =9 Y% a 388 iy 32his
Do Bo { G 2ef s otk v 1% < T 9 % o 4Pz

A 3 X1 B8 0

e . ——— - ———

| ’%} —f"?“ —im—%ﬂ.@ h sz_:ﬁ ?1}\“- ]&*‘L\T P %f}'
i |\ I/_fg.. >} fg? H“..q A= 'i,?:_,., 1 _ﬁj‘_{; ﬂ ﬁ)"q_ ZJ:‘}

I -l b _==L_-J.—-@f‘z_ hlffﬁf’bi >0 Tz p 3 ¥o=
» 1~ )4’,’35"??1._ mé " R o i M&HL%J?’"\%m

-fi _éjg ilﬁl*iiiflsiﬂ' ﬁc_:gﬁlgfig B i 5

S d—Td s gL H D,

:ﬂﬁ”@g &\J’ﬂﬁ\ﬂy_ﬂ/ﬂr%b‘ﬂ\fﬁ—&m

5Lr*1 Q&EME 2};5 Eﬁﬁ!gi L

(18)




e ® o tovwiic syt brn %Rl Th

’L’Er*J Lﬁ// ﬂtzﬂi-ﬂ’r'&u hs’i 2 ‘—-Eﬂ‘aaﬂﬂé

O _ﬂ&\,ﬁ;jﬁ VA L A %Eﬂﬁ 51_’-;_5;_&

~% 3 % 1 T1 .

_?ﬁ:;‘ ‘fwﬁ Za \é) /91 n 24 f?"’ e p’ |y%—~ e"S ﬁ:%

!
—

| BR K e VIR VN b 2 n B e a" Ay

¥R nﬂ%&ﬂﬁhb”{ﬁ@oa

Lﬁ)ﬂ{;%pfq,t ..."rr'ig.-'*r’«"} ﬂ_r’ﬁ’-p‘ﬁ/}'k’}bﬂi_

\M‘\%%"L£T‘wi‘!‘x—’ﬂ’xlﬂ ”iiﬁi— \F\\L-i”j‘j%

¢ i o A LA~ o B B o X FF o 5 9\ o _ﬁ?_|

] ———-‘—|-

bi"}t*vﬂf’b pIN = A ﬂlir'@i?ﬁﬂ =14 \y, 1%
HE B nir b j&%ﬁfﬁai mmwﬁ%w
"._;'"/‘:?JL l"« /*T"-‘I [V | (/"‘P ~.1~ﬂ-

~1

- ,:.._.._,,4'}

AP 2o “Ef ”‘}:Hﬁ Wb’*m iﬁl—“\“ﬁxv?’ﬂ/ﬁblj’w
% z:~..f _'_lf':__l »'1,,_,;,5_“{,4; *.J._.:’? L}“_;L___._ :

_{_l_i._@\*iu\-1} ‘% g tﬂ‘ YD \T.;‘*?-'“* '-ﬁ . @_'

1oV et B a0 2.1 Rk 1859

YA AR o (T e 2 R e B 1R

—1—_._.-.

Ve Boni X KA ¥ ) 0w R E R o
o A patrra s~ B to Bl tr 2w a2
{?\Lfﬂ‘ F—te ¥ p % v B Bood ¥ 9% & I r
LI} 2 Y% v %/Lﬂx_n 2 L2

{7 MY ’%‘—fiwﬁww Rou

JFCW ‘?4" ) _.—%?é'_ ‘?Er' ""_l_ﬁ)

| Bvat g

(19)




|
‘.
ﬁ‘
-
H
)
""-qw

:&'1

49/ ﬁ‘r&i"igﬁ%iﬂ jggﬁﬂ#’ﬂfij I 2, }
; | Adern 3z 2oy Bl o Av? R 3\t~ foah
. . .’.‘lw:.ml . g ta 2T ﬁj%\*ﬁl#'\%’
M"éﬁ r“ﬂ‘ > "Lffh}“'}z ) % d S ih
}_-r*_ﬂ._._.r; _L_J{@_%ift p = L-ar»u‘f-e,"
S AL MW ey &2 1 Lag
AR - *?%*'ﬁ\‘ﬁ‘\’rgﬂ'}% Be vt Ay I
o Vo BRrdes BMH oty
|
L rwmw}}m't&,ﬁéﬁaﬁﬂmmi\ﬁo
L
i 4 gr ¢ }‘u}r}’;‘i I.;) 2y o) "hﬁ_._i._ﬂ ) tl’*?'_?.-
| palcs 'éx#”i 3@ ’r’carﬂ‘“(‘ﬁl‘L x) o
]i,: H%z\‘\g{_ w ?Z“}Vi/ L@rnfvf—}b.&
ﬁ_ ,'f"?:fx.. r‘\_{c‘_.%l'.! ‘J"! 3 ‘-Ili ._L-C-—ﬂ_" i_’_@
i : LY

B L, o
1 |

ol

e Vvn e T fnly— . |
| SRR 9 2% s ) S e

S i i S - —— .__,..-_ fp—

| ¥ . ﬁuﬁx;ﬂ_ﬁmﬂ_ﬂ_ﬁe_%w{f

| *’i&s&_a\m}gf“ﬂmz«#
'f__ta e S 1o IR Fe Lsed

I | _,_ﬁﬂ + Ag-:#: Bl 4 JMMLJE 5
"%ﬁﬁrhawiﬁ;@ni%? R A T ) |

L T =
. T ?

R W e 7= |
= —

—

e

—

o

(20)




ARGUMENT FOR THE ACCUSED IN THE CASE OF
TERAKT, TADASHI

Delivered by TATANO, Junjii-o,
Counacl tfor the aceused, TERAKI,
Tadnshi, formcr Surgeon Senond
Lioufeftht, Imperial Jopanese

Arry (at the time o® the incidonts
I Probationary Officer, Medicul
Department, Imperial Japanese Army)

The Honornble Preaident nnd Members of the Commission:

I have the horor to delliver my finnl argument before this lcarned
Commission in defenne of tho ancused, TERAKI, Tadashi. I desire to express
my deco- el pratioveds For ke falr and givcors manner in vhich this +rial
has bhein ¢o dueved.

| PART-I .~ OENER/L REARKS

foction 1, =-- Introduction,

| The ouesticn of superior crders in the Jepancee g-med foroes ls posai

| in thie trianl mought beforec the Commission aw -: wu:z in the numerous ccsxe
Judged by this Commission in the past. In the instant case it is also high-
ly relevnnt to discuss the oriminal responsibiiity of the p:~petrators of
illegnl nete rho committed those nets under coercion, compulsion and durese,
over and ahove the superior orders referred to nbove. In arguing the orime
inal responsibility of the nccused in the prrsent case necessity also may
not be overlooked,

. Should all persons who were present at the scene of the offense be hold
erininally responeib’e for the offense? This 1s a ouestlon of niding and
ahotting and 1s an important matter related to the present ease., I shall
arpuc briefly concerning these matters under appropriate headinge.

|
Section 2; == Superior Orders in the Armed Forees.

There is n legnl maxim rhich states: "A bhad lavw is nevertheless a law,”
Worr, 1t mas a traditional creed in the Japanese nrmed forces that: "A bad
order 1is, notwithstanding, an order.,® And this creed wnas actunlly practiced,
I do no* desire nor is it nor the time to discuses the propriety, merits or
demerits of such n ecreed nnd practice. I merely wish to point out the basie
nnd esscntial difference betwern superior orders in the Japanese armed foroes
vhiesh demanded, mornlly and logally, a listiec and ahsolute obedicnes and
wherein there 'me ahsolutely no ~ill or freedom é6n the part of the subordine
ato, ns neninst superior orders in the armed forcos of the democrntie Anglo=
Snxon countries which countrice respected the individunl will and consenuent=
1ly 1aid heavy emphasis on personal responsibility, Without doubt this was
a fact,

I shall refrain “rom going into this matter in detail before this Com-
mission which is well versed 4in the speeinl character of "superior orders"
in the Japanese armed forees, I only desire to ndd that the nocused TERAKI,
Tndashi was a Prohationary Officer with a status as the timc of the incidents
corresponding to that of a ®ergeant Major in the Japanese armed forces
rvherein "a subordiinnte wns ynder the strictest orders to obey absolutely
and uneonditionally the orders of his superior officere without even ouecs=-
tioning the rensons let alone arguing the propriety or impropriety of such
orders, nnd where instant execution of the orders wns enforced, and-where

o= DD(1)
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| instent—oxcoution—of the onrders—ap—onfopead, nnd where disobedience was A8
looked upon as an offense which ~ns punishable even with death in the event
of its occurring in the foee of the enemy,"

| "haot has boen nhove cited concorning the speclal charneter of superior
| +=dors in tho Japnnesc nrmed forees is clear when seen with refercnco to the
oridenoe prosented to this Commiassion in numerous previous trials,

Soction 3, == Criminal Intent and Criminal Acts under Coercion, Compulsion,
and Duross.

| It need not be reiterated that eriminal intent is o necessary clement
| in o crime. Conseruently on prineiple, there 1s ne eriminnl rcsponsibility
5 | =hore theres 18 no eriminal intent. (™ith the exeception in the casc of
| nogligence.) A perscn is made to nssume criminnl responsibllity for certain
| acts helng erimes nocavse in his acte the mind and will concur.

| H"!ha-l:

| Pict done hy ferae o+ zovpalsion in vhish ‘he rind apd 11177 do met |
i corcur, nlthourh ‘ho aus 1s othervisc er.inal, vherc ipter. 'z

! necessary olemcrt, tuore is no respensibl ity." (Tha-len's "uivinel

i Lav, Vol I, Par: 137, Malicc is cvili irin-t, and is convertible r.ih JM
! dolus. Fo>stnote 2, p. 191),

| In other rords, unless this ﬁt, performc{ under coercion, compulsion p#
| or durcss bv the other party, is done in a somnambulistie manner, 1t is donn
| with the mind, Ho-cver, ms in this cnse, eriminal intent, 1.e., the doing I
‘ of an act prohibited, with the intent specified in the statute, is lacking,

the doer of the act 1s not criminally responsiblc. (According to the Theory
o® the ™111.) |

In the sphere of cooreion, compulsion or duress, is includod the threat
| of inflietion of immediate and mectual death or the sustaining of groat
| hod41y hara,

.| I will adduce the theory of "harton, the authority on eriminal law, in
regnrd to thles point:

|

| "Fersons under compulsion irrcsponsihle, Compulsion may bo viewed in

| two aspocts: (1) "here the immediato agent is physically foreed to do

| *he injurv, as where his hand is seized by a person of superior

] strength, and is used, against his will, to strike a blow, in which
ense no puilt attachos to the porson so coecrced, (a) ™here the foree

l applied is that of authority or fear, Thus, vhere a person not in-

E tendine wrong, 1s swept along by a party of persons whom he cannot l

resist, he ie not reosponsible 1€ he 18 compelled to de wrong bv the

throats on the part of the offenders instantly to kill him, or to do

him z?sv:uun bodily harm if he refuses,"” ("harton's Crininal Law, [*3

Vol. I, Para. 124, p. 174.)

Tho same authority goes on to state:

"Tho fact that a erime 18 committed under socorelon and compulsion, in
fear of instant death, may be set up as a defense to the prosecution
for the commission of such erime; but, to be awnilable as a defense,
the fear must be well=founded, and immediate and actual danger of
death or great hodily harm must be present; and the compuleion must be
of soch a charaoter ng to leave no opportunity to accused for escape or

f S;lf-ﬂafanlo in enual combat.” (Tbid, Vol, I, Para. 384, Coercion,
omy mnd Duross., pp. 514=-515,

. I -l DD‘( 2}




fpetion L, == Necossity.

Tn discuseing the eriminal responsibility of the accused, TERAKI, for

the facts allegod by thc judge advocate in the present casc, while irres-
ponsitilitr ®~r offenscs committed under coereion, compuleion and dureass

=o% forth in ®ection 7 would play an important role, the ~nucetlon of neccsg-

ity vhich =111 be Alscussed here must also be glven consideration.

Ncenssity is generally recoenized in eriminal law of ecivilizod nations
of todny, Pv necessity in oriminal law is moant an aet undertakon unavoids
ably by one to circumvent present denger to the 1ife, porson, frocdom or
propertr of ona's own self or of another. Only in an event where tho harm
arlsine from the net dors not suporsede the harm vhich ras meant to ho
nvoided, is thn not not punished, Tn other worde, ncccesity, affecting
11fe nnd peraon, is ground *or absolving rosponsibllity.

T elte from "harton, rnd Clark and Marshall, on Nececossity:
"Ncosrsity is . dofonso vhon it is shorm that tho act charged ma dend
to nvold nn ev:i hoth secrious nand irreparable; thnt there wan ac -“hen
ade~into means o7 cacopo; and that the re ody vais not disprepertienatd
to the ovil," (™-artcn's Criminal law, Voo, I, ‘~ra, ﬁﬁﬁ, Kareaaadoy
n defense when 2vfe ur higher intorcets nc imparillcd,. pe 10E, )

"An net whiech mould othorwisc be a ordme 1°y L: oxeas s Af the person
necouscd enn show that it mos done only in order vo avold eonsenucnccs
which oould not othervise he avolded, nnd vhich if they had followod,
rould haw inflieted upon him, inevitablo rnd irreperable evil; that
no more wns dono than ~ns reasonably ncceesary for that purposc; and
that the ovil inflicted br it wns not Alsproportiomate to the ovil
avoided,"  Footnote 286, Steph., Dig. Crim, Law, Art, 32, citing Rex

¥. tratton, 21 How, St., Tr. 1945, vherein it ras said by Lord Man-
gfield: "Whenover neccssity forces a man to do an 1llegnl act, = fore
him to do it === it justifice him, heeauso no man cnn be guilty of =

erime =ithout the will and intention of his mind," (Clark and Marshall's

L~ of Crimes, Para, 70, Vecossity, pp 104=105,)

As sorn from the above, Woceasity is a prineiple which is recognised 1
the Amerieonn Law, and no eriminal responsibility is attached to 1llegal ac

done undor necessity,
footion 5. == Alding and Abotting.

It 18 not possihle to state that a man is connected with a crimo by th
frot alonc that he was at the secene of the erimc and make him nssume orimi
responeihility for the erime, Rgfgutatnri and bystandere arec never alders

ahettora. For a beraon to be
condition thrt heo take an active part in tho commission of the orime, A

passive attitude cannot make a person an aider or abetter in a erime,

To add weieht to tho theory ahowve mentioned, p-rmit mo to eite from
Ameriean Jurdisprudenco:

"It is obvious that the more presonce of a person at the commission of
a criminal act does not render him liable as a participator therein,
he is only a spectator and doos not aet to countenance or approve tho
rho »re actors, he is not oriminal’y rcsponsible because he happens to
he a looker-on and does not use netive endeavours to provent the
commission o® the unlawful acte." (Amcrican Jurisprudence, Vol. 14,
Criminal Law, Para, 89, Prosence ae Spectator or Bystander, p, 829,)

L
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The five specifications of the charge in the present case allege that
the accused TERAKI, Tadnshi on the 23rd of Wehruary, the 25th of February,
and the 26th of March, 1945 while serving nt thc military installations
of the Imporial Japanese Army, Chichi Jima, Bonin Islands, "(1) wilfully
dierespoctod the grave of an Ameriean prisoner of war who died in the
cnptivity of, and wns huried by, the Japancse armed forces, by unlawfully
disinterrine the body of the said prisoner of war, removing parts of the
hod~ and prevonting the honorable burial of the snid prisoncr of war”
(Spreification 1 and 2) 3" (2) prevented ym honornble burlal of anothcr
person hvy romoving parts of that persons body”' (Speeifiention 3); "(3)
and provented the honorable hurial of another by removing parts of hias body
and hy nttacking rnd striking nnd killing him,” (Specifications 4 and 5),
and thorohy violated the lnw nnd customs of wnr,.

"h~ther or not the necused, TERAKI, committed thc acts onumorated in
Spoclficntions 1 through 4 rolnted nbove, nnd if heo did, —hether or not
thore vero ~ny rrounds to sbsolve him of eriminnl rosponsibility for these
nota; ond, whother Terakd, neting with SATO and NAKAMURA participetod in
tho attneing, striking and killing of Speeification 5, will ho clgevssed ke
halow in the exnminaiion on tho hasls of the fr.ets,




PART II EXAMINATION OF FACTS ON THE BASIS OF THE EVIDENCE

Chapter 1, Gepneral facots,
l. Grode andl Status of the accused TERAKI.

Bayol.: iny reasonable douvbt the accusel, TFRAXI. Tad-~¢hi, at the

tTime of the ylleged 1acldents, wns not a Su-geow “socid Liculnunat o3
set forét -2 *he Coeclfientiorna of the Charse butwas < Procefiony
8¢#€fv.: o= o' the Melreal Departrart, This haa lean ozt Slisusd vh=ough
hes Hesigsey of Tvrsonnel of Ovorseas Units for ~w'cdl Uy the Japancse
Govsl nient (Tanlils 7), and tarough the tesiirouy of +ha vardious

vilreaszan

it s oo fucthe: shoom Ty Lthe Procvcemeqat Ordicaace of tho
Iirerigl dapencse Awmy (Sxhlnet 5@ caat a Prebatlence:r Juficer oe,vired
the ntatys apd 7ind: o€ a2 Seyceaml "Jgion, Tmeps p: oan was for Gt

e i

oL %hi3 porrt dn viag of Kjnemorils tect liooy s $o the uniforn wom

by Prebationary Offaice-a. i

2. Supericr Orders,

Concerning the ir:ldert of Februnry 23, 19.%, (Speon”iintions 1
ant 2), The circumstances in that Incidens undw “Lich “hs 1zcused,
TERAKI, received the order of the Battalion Cow::alesr Injor Matoba
through Adjutant Kanmurl, Yoshiharu an! was made to earry it out, have
been clearly set forth in the portions of the testimony of Knanmuri,
Yoshiharu in the trianl of Tachibana et al vhich vere intro‘uced into
evidence in this trial,

It is clear from the testimony of Major Matoba in the Proceedings
of the Chichi Jima Investigations, vhich s cffered into evidence, .

that VNajor Matoba issued the order to the accused, TERAKI, to remove
the liver and flesh from the priscner of var in the lncident of Farch |
26 (Specifications 4 and 5), =
|

The foct that Matoba ordered a dlssection after the execution of the I
prisoner was testified to by the accused, TERAKI, on the witness stand
and this testimony has been corroborated by Captain Sato, Kesakichi in
his Depcsition (Exhibit 3) in his ansver to Interrogatory 41,

Thus, in both the incidents of February 23rd and March 26ethe
accused, TERAKI, ancted in nll respects in the execution of the orders
of Matoba, Thnt he did not exceed his orders in any may has been
established beyond all doubt by the testimony of the accused, TERAKI,
himself, and by the testimony of others,

In regar! to the incident of February 25th (Specification 3), the
accused, TERAKI, testified to receiving the order of Major Matoba through
Adjutant Kanmuri, Although testimony to corrchorate this tas not nro-
duced, it can be rationally deduced that on this occasion as cn the two
other occasions, he mas carrylng out the orders of Major Matoba,

It is presumed that the julge alvoeate will maintain that superior
orders does not constitute a Aefense, Homever, in the case of the ncoused,
TERAKI, the "superior ordera" here is something very Aiffercat from
ordinary superior arders, From the legal basis stated previously, the
"superior orders™ in this case are of such a nature that they may fully
be used as a defense,

4-’-
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To examine this in the light of the evidence, such wns the viclent
andl frenzied character of Matoba that Major Matoba himself acknorledged
the fact that at the time of the incidents he vas a madman. (Answer of
lateba in the Proceedings of the Chichi Jimn Investigations.) TERAKI
testified t> Major Matcba slapning not only his cubordinates “wt even
Zieutennnt Jersral Tachibana, rhich testimony hos heen corrc“~rated by
other aviudonce Cfcred, Captair Sato in his Deuzaltina in crnovar to
Iwtcorro:-i:.y §0. cuated that re, too, ™as struch. by Matcba gw! bacame
unconsclous fer semc time, The accused, TMIAKI. ajso tautified ‘hav he
ind bzen styuck -+ Katcba an? ras in extreme dresw 1w iictoba,

SR |

“aeh haing the circurstances. this special fwcbor vas injected intc
tne orders of Maippaj that if they were nol envried onu, vhethler thney rere
ley?ul or orlyrful, ac extremely cdancerous physiexl haym nonld be visited
vpon the poreon falling to carry them out,

I. nay b: clearly snderercsd thut p persopn omder guch circuuetur ces
reuad from shieer fear alome, In auticipaiion of the corfain an! saras
physical harm vhiech roL.c be metad out vould hecoie corrleteiy incapehie
of discheylng the erders of hia superior officer. Supsirior oriers undor
such form of Auress sltonld owicusly he taken into corzideraiion asz a
defense,

3« As to the Prei=snce or Absence cof laitiative im the Cocoduct of the .3
Dissection,
A question mas put tc the accused, TEHLKI, o7 tle julge atvoeate e

vhich, in effect, ™as rhether he cn his part suggzestes Lo Matoba the
dlssection of the priscner of rar as part of the nromiam of training of
the auxiliary corpsmen, The accused, TERAKI, naturally “enied having
done such a thing, That such a thing did not happen miy be adduced from
the repeated testimony of the accused in this trial vhere he testified
that hatl not Captain Sato been vatching he mould have stopmed after re-
moving the liver and flash as he Aid not desire to com'uct a “issection,
and further rhere he testified that he 412 not tell the auxiliary corpsmen
concerning nttendance at the Aissection, The truthfulness of this statee
ment 1s ecorrchorated by the testimony of prosecution vitness, Iso, who
testified that although he heard of the matter from Sakabe, he did not
from TERAKI; an?! by Kanemori, vho testified that he heard of it frem
rumors, but i not hear cf it from TERAKI,

Chapter 2, Exarination of the Actions of the Accused, TERAKI,
in the Inecidents,

1, Incident of February 23rd,

Although minor Alscremancies are notzd in the testimony of Prosecutlon
vitness Kanemori and the statement of the nccused, TERAXI, (Exhi™it 4)
conocerning this ineident, in 'wroad outline there 1s no “ifferenee,

There is no need to examine the eircumstances surrcunding the
receiving of the order from Adjutant Kanmuri by the accused TERAKI as
the actions of the accused in this incident are explained in the testi-
mony of Kanmuri in the record of the trial of Tachibamn et al,

Ab=




2. Ineient of February 25th,

Concerning this incldent lengthy Alscussicon is unnecessary inasmuch
na, mith the evception of that portion of the testimcny vhere the eye-
ritness, Mateul, states no flesh mas removen frou the thigh of the nrisocer)
there is no diserevancy in his testimony air' that of the accused, TERAKI
(S<hibat 4). The accused, in his confesslon, sicies tr-t Konenori reﬁmre"l'_
tne (’esh, As this frot mas not supported by tha eyewitpecs, Mougud,
and as Xareworl did not testify concerning it, the remeval of flush from
| the thigh nllegea in Specification 3, should, perinoe be cousidered as
|| on errur in the rocollectlon of the accused,
|

3. Incidert of Karzh 26th,

In the dapoaztion of Nakamura (Exhibit Z). arl the depositicn of |
| Sato (Exhibi: 3), vhick rere preseated teo 4 ds Cramisetsi, tihere vas

| testlmeny tc the offeekt that the ancused, TERAKT, at the scepe of the
execution of the prisorer of wur, interjected humself into the proceedings
of the execution to tie extert that he beeame a c2gnousitle party thereto,
The juidge mivoeate, on the basis of this, 1s alleying that the ancous.d
alfled an? abetted in the killing of the prisoner, I will review tﬁ
ncticns of the accuse” at the scene of the execution 1. rreater Aded®il
and will make claar that such mas nou the ause,

Abg

In Exhibits 2 an! 3, naely in the Dencsitiors ol JJAKIMURA and SATO,
L] | thes following nctions of the nccused, TERAKL, at the ninene of the exe-
cution are evidenced: |

(n) When SATO arrived at the scene of the execution, TERAKI was
already there, (S.ETD, in ansver to Interrogriory 22,)

(b) TERAKI made the priscner sit down in ascor’annce with the
orders of Captain SATO, and made the prisoner sit Aown
ercas-legged, (NAKAMURA in ansver to Interrogatories 214 22,)

' (c) TERAKI gave orders to the guar®s an’ had them sit Hir~ down,
! (NAKAMURA in answer to Interrogatory 23,)

(A1) TERAKI said to SATO: "Because it 1s Aifficult for foreign
npeople to sit up high, please cut vith him as he is,"
r (MAKAURA in answer to Interrogatory 25,)

(e) TERAKI said to NAKAMURA: "As it is late and the air raids
will come, please do it quickly,"” (NAKAMURA in ansver to
Interrogatory 27.)

(f) "hen SATO went to the scene, the nrisoner was already sitting
dorn, After walting about fifteen minutes, a messenger came
and sald that Serpeant FURUSHIKA mwas not arcund, At that
time TERAKI came ani said, "Please execute E#.uthm B
will be air raids ap? they will interfere v the instruction,™
(SATO in ansver to Interrogatory 21,)

First concerning the time of arrival at the scene of the executlon
of the accused TERAKI, KANEMORI testified that he went to the scene of
the execution folloving a crond led by Captain Sato and that he it
neased TERAKI arrive at the scene a short while after he Ai4, Both
KANEMORI and TERAKI testified that vhen they arrived at the scene
NAKAMURA had his sword drawn already and was talkdng up his stanee in
preparntion for the exeocution,
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In view of this testimony, SATO's testimony above cited under (a)
and (f), is extremely Aubious,

Secondly, concerning TERAKI having ordered the guards to have the
priszoper seated, and of TERAKI having made suggeationa to SATD concerning
the positicn of ihwe prisoner, presecution witnesses KANENCRT and IS0 whe
TeTe eyeritresses of this incident dld not testify %o esuch effect. Further
TERAKL aleo toptirfied that he 424 not speak to 2470 from the iima of hia
arrival at the ssene of the execution until the con~lesion of ths exe-
cution, It is haghly dubdious whether such alleged facts actunlly
pccuarred,

gnin. NAR.2TURA cestiflied 1n onswer to the liat, cross-interrcgatery
rut: to him that TEEAXI did not hove the authority tZ give orders to him,
T a military man it is understandatle that 1t wnas not noesible that
TERAKI, a Probaticacry Cfficer of the Mellcal Depovrmert, cc:l1 have
issued orders to KALLMUEA who wes in ne way consesied o hin by command,
cr to the guards, cchreraing the priscneir; thas iy paseing Captala SATO
nor could he have macie suggesti:ns to Captain S./T2! In shori it is not
nogsible reascnably to belleve that the matters set fyrth ia parazranta
(b), (c) and (d) ocourred,

Thirdly, in regarm! to vhether cr nct the appeused TIRZXI snld to SATO
and NAKAURA to hurry the execution, KANIRORITT® s starding close to
TERAKI =i was in turn standing in n eromd of mecole scre Aistanece avay
from SATO an! NAYAMURA so thnt i1f TERAKI di1 mala such an ubterance
KANEMORI woul! maturally have heard vhat TERAKL said, KUTEMCORI 414 not
hear TERAKI make any utterance whatscever,

It may not be sald that there wons no such conversatiocn durdng the
time KANEMORI was absent from the scene as KANEMORI left for the Alisnen-
sary a minute or two after arriving at the scene, to fetch scme lnstrumentas
Hewever, IS0, who arrived a little while after TERAKI, Aid not testify to
anything =~hich supported the testimony of NAKAMURA and SATO, It ia
extremely doubtful if there vas such utterance on the nmart of TERAKI,

is further eonvincing evidence, KANEMORI an? ISO both testifled that
there vas a peridl of time of from fifteen minutes to twenty minutes he=
tween the execution anl commencement of the Aissection., The nccused,
TERAKI, testified that after the execution he felt the pulse of the
prisoner and examine” his pupils, but as lonz os the holy temperature vaa
still relatively high he felt constrained to vait = not immedintely com=-
mencing the Alssection, but delaying fifteen to twenty minutes,

If, as SATO and NAKAVURA state, TERAKI requested the executlon to
be hurried, why had TERAKI desired to walt fifteen to twenty mlnutes
after the execution hefore commencing the Alssection? If TERAKI had
madle the request, as SATO and NAKAMURA state, then TERAKI +ould docubtless
hxve commeneed the dlssection immedintely after the ewxecution, The fact
that TERIKI vaited fifteen to twenty minutes before commencing the Als-
section shouldl be sufficient corrcboration that he 414 not make the
statements ns set forth in paragraphs (e) and (f),

SATO, Kesakichi, in his denceltion, testifies that he left the
scene of the execution as scon as the "I{uutinn started, Horever, it
has heen established beyond a reascnable doubt that not only vas he
there till the conclusion of the Aissection, hut he directed the hurial
of the corpse and mas still at the scene of the execution after TERAKI
and KANEMORI left,

-.a -
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It 1s necessary to take into consideration faulty memory in
ccnsidering the testimony of SATO,

I cite an interesting paragravh from "Success in Court" by Mr,
francis L. Mellman in order that it may serve as a referecnce when the
testimony of AKAMURA and SATO are weigned, The auther quotes from
"™hat the Julge Thought," a bock written by Julge Edward Abbol Party,
whe had thirty years' experience in weighing the testimeony of mitnesses
in Lendicn, after his retirement from the Bench:

"Tulpe Edvard Abbot Party of London wroite a hook jyst
after his retirement from the banch in England = nt
the Julge Thought ™ He spenks of his ovn thiriy years
of experience in weirhing the testimony of —itnesses vho
had apnearel hefore him, He says, '"ltnesses would ccn-
gtantiy try tc narrate thin:a they eoull! nesver have seen,
cr repeat corversatlone they probably nsver even heard,
but which they quite honestly believad they ha? both seen
and heard,!'?

Mr, Mellman alsc quotes the conclusions from the exderiments of the
ncted Professcr of Psyehclogy at Mashington Univeraity, Edgar James Swift
as follora:

"The vitnesses proved to have h' 1lit4le definite knorledpe

of vhat really hapnened, an? ha' a crime nctoalily heen
committed, their testimony shculd heve hod siizat value;

yet it would have been accepted because they vere eyeritnesses,
Only a fev identified actcrs, and in several instances these
identific~tions were mo uncertain as to be realily trans-
ferred tc somecne else under the influence of suz-estion,”

as stated abeve, there are numerous pertions in the teotimony of
NAKAMURA and S4TO vhich eannot be credited as reliable, Under these
circumstances the above quotations are believed to he merth consideraticn,

Chapter 3 Character of the Accused,

Testimony from the perscnnel cf the 308th Battalion offered has shomn
that the accused, TERAKI, was a truly conscienticus docter who mas very
kind tc the patients znd enjoyed penernl resvect rithin the Unit, It 1is
believed that the Commission has observed from the testimony anl attitude
of the nocused, TERAKI, in court that he was nct a man vho woul? have
committed the ncta alleged milfully, felcniously, with premeditatiocn and
malice aforethonght,
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| dread, thrt discbedience to Matobe's ordors would result in the infliction

| n1so thot they were actions performed under the coereion, compulsion rnd
1 durces of Mntoba, Thorcefore Terakl cannot be mnde to assume criminsl

FPART III CONCILUSIOR

Section 1. TVThen we review in conjunction together the metters set forth
in the general argument of Part I end the facts as thoy appenared in the
evidence in part II, it becomes clear thet, from the evidence adduced,
thrt the nccused, Terakl, Tadashi did not perform the acte of Specifica=
tions 1 through 4 voluntarily and with erdminal intent, but only in
conformnnee with the orders of Battalion Commander Matoba, who wes his
superior officer. The evidenom in several sections has shown thet Battalion|
Commander Matoba was an abnormal, vieolent, foroecicus, end helf mad person,
end thnt his frenzy end ferocity increased in intengéity after the landing on
Ivo Jime of the American forces, prior to the occurrence of the incidents of
the present case,

Section 2, If Terski hed failed to execute the orders of Betterlion
Commander Mntoba immediately, Metoba, as his superior officer, would
undoubtedly not only have punished Teraki for discbedience to orders in
conformnnee to law and regulations, but, monifesting his ferocity, would
hrve inflicted serious bodily horm on the person of Terekl, end would even
heve threatened his 1ife. Thet such denger existed has becn eleer through
the testimony adduced,

Beenuee such denger actunlly existed, Terckl was truly in
grent fear of the orders of VMatoba,

Teraki stoted in his affidevit (Exhibit 4) which he executed
in Tokyo on the 4th of November 1948: "I thought it wns such a brutal thing
to do thrt I refused by saying thet the ranking medieal officer was out.
Then the Adjutent seid to do it right avay bacouee the Battalion Commander
was in o greot rush, I thought about the terribly severe punishment lMajor
Mntobe would give on the chrrge of disobeying orders. Mojor !tobe, e very
violent person to begin witk, hed becn shuving signs of inerecsed ferocity
since the londing operction ot Iwo Jimn, He belleved th-t nothing vme more
importent then an order, Therefore, I firmly believed thet as an exomple
to the entire army nnd a8 o means of roising mornle, he would not heve
hesltrted to give me the extreme penelty, that 1s the death sentence, for
disoboying orders, He was in the habit of saying thet he would do thie...."

ks he there stoted, Teraki sincerely belicved, end was in great

of death or great bodily horm to his person. In other words this dnnger
existed objcctively; and subjeetively there more recsonable grounds for
entertaining forr of such denger.

Sectlion 3, It hes becn estoblished from the evidence presented thnt the

nctione of Terrki rbove mentioned were the netions not only of o subordinete
in the Jepencsc armed forecs cerrying out the orders of hie superior, but

responsibility for thesc actions,

Scetion 4. Furthermorg, from the evidence ndduced, the sctions of Teraki
may be recognlscd nuﬁﬁf}ﬂmﬂd undor ncccesity; to avodd imminent and actunl)

denger imperilling his 1ifc and person. Insofar es these actions ceme from
ncoessity, they rre not asctions for which the accused moy be held erimipelly
rﬁlpﬂnlihlﬂ-




Eaction 5, Spocificrtion 5 chrrges thrt Tereki scting with Seto and
ilmkrmare killed tho nriscner of wer. The phrasc "rcting with™ is highly
rrbiguous and it is not clecr from thie context vhether the three of them
cormltted this elleged offense in pursuance of o corrmon design 2nd in
cencert, or vhethor ecch individusl cormitted, severally, seprrrte offenscs
rf the srre cherretor. Whichover interpretntion is pleced on the phresc,
the judge rdvoente hes not estnblished boyond r rersonsble doubt, by a pre-
ponderence of the cvidence, thrt Teraki perticipeted in the murder alleged.
| Tornkl wns &t tho scene merely in the crpeelty of epcetetor or
{| bystender, As long as Teraki, at thc scene did not countennnce or rpprove
il the rotions et 4hc scene, Ternki, cannct be medc an rider cr rbettor to the
|l retions at the scene by his more presence elonc.

E.
cf Crimoa:
! " 1Tt 18 a srered prineiple of criminel jurisprudence,' seid the
Tdhessce court, 'thet the intention to comrit the crime is of the
esecnce of the crime, rnd to held thrt ¢ men shell be beld eririnelly
responslble for an offensec, of the commissicn of vhich he vre igno-
rent ot the tirme, would be intolererble tyrenny.'! It is becorusc cof
thie nrinciple, #8 ve Bhall presently scc et sore length, thrt the
o doce not punish children of tender rge ond insrne perscns, “ho,
by reeson of their rmentel inecpreity, rre inerprble of understrnding

the mrture of their ects, .... rnd nEfE£HE_ESilﬂl.ﬂﬂﬁﬂl.ﬂﬂiﬂﬂﬂiii_st
goppulgion'.” (Underscoring Counsel's) Tbid., Pere, 39 Noceseity for

Criminr]l Intent or lene Ree ot Corron Lev, pp 56 57)

In conclusicn, I wish to quote fror Clerk rnd l'rrshall's Ievw

e

Ecetion 7. For the rbove rensons I submit th~t the recuscd Ternki, Tadrshi
i is not guilty of the Cherge rnd the Specificetions of the chrrge.

1
T respectfully request thet thie 14)itery Commission return o verdiet
| of mot guilty te the mccusecd Tereki, Trdeshi.

|
Reapactfully,

/s/ TAYANO, Junjiro,

I certify thrt the foregoing is ¢ true rnd complete translation of
tho original in Jeprnesc to the bost of my ability,

tiﬁi;;;::g}_snAu:mlh-:i-""
ENE F. CIERE,

Lieutenent (jg), USK,
Interproter.
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INTRODUCTION

It ia fortunate for the accused, TERAKI, Tadashl, that the membders
of the Commission vho are to administer justice in his case are all
mature and experienced military officers, The president of this
Commission, Admiral Arthur G, Robinson, U, S, Navy, has served as
president of every "ar Crimes Commission held here on Guam convened
by Commander lMarinnas since early in 1946, that is for three years,

Admiral Robinson was president of the Commission vhich tried all
the other Chichi Jimn cases, the cases of the "unthinknble crime"™ as they
rere calle® by an article appearing in Time Magazine September 16, 1946,
I quote in part from that article: "[pthinkable Crime, A U. S. Military
Commission on Guam last veek read into the record a Japnnese Army major's
confession of cannibalism,,..,.It vns ritual cannibalism nracticed on the
bodles of U, S, flyers vho hadl been deeapitated after beinc shot Aorn
in the Bonin Islanis,....

"Though three other officers and ten smaller fry mere also on trial,
arch-villain of the piece vans Major Sueyo Matoba, a slim, mild, scholarly
Jap with n sadistic nature vhich had won him the nickname 'Tiger of
Chichi Jima....."

"Nominally, the crime of devouring human flesh ~as so unthinkable
that it vas not listed in internctiomnl law, ™as not clearly ounishable
as a erime in itself."

This vas some of the things Time lapazine hnd to say about the
Tachibana, Entoba et al case, the charges and specifications, ete. rhich
were introduced by the judge advoeate and eocepted into evidence in this
cose as Exhibit 1,

As in the Tachibana, Vatobn, et al trial the specifications in
this instant case Tere base! on vazue peneralities an! fragments of
interpationrl: law, All thirty-eight specifications of the Tachi™ana,
Matoba, et al trinl alleged "this in violation of the lars and customs
of var and the moral stanlards of civilized soclety," rhereas in this
TERAKI cnse it vas only alleged: "this in violation of the law and
customs of war,"

This trial but further emvhnsiges the need for a codification of
the lars of var because it va@ necessary to resort to the unrritten
customs of internntional lam and fragmentary internztional larn in vague
generalities only alleging "this in violation of the lavs and customs
of mar" in the five specifications,

In an article appearing in the Hev York Times, Sundny, October 31,
1948 George A, VeDonough of Boston, Massachusetts clearly seta forth
the need for a colification of the lame of mar, From the paragraph
Collection of Generalities I cite the folloring aporopriate remarks:
"During my tvo years in the "ar Crimes program in Europe ns prosecutor
and defense counsel and as o member of n reviewing board and as an
arbiter on clemency petiticns, I vwas alarmed to realisze thet in nine
prohlens out of ten the nuthorities and the text-hooks had no amever,
L search of all available liternture on nar erimes trials would nrofuce
a minuscule and unrevarding ccllection of generalities,
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"Among other items to be covered by the suggested code should be n
solétion to the problem of vhether the fnet that a man committed an act
upon the order of a military superior should be avallable as a flefense....

"iAt the Dachau trials, the claims of the accused that he rould have
been shot himself if he had not obeyed his superior's orrers to commit an
act vhich he, in iznorance, may have believed to be a legal order cr
knem to be illegnl, seemed tc be handled by the courts as an issue of
foct, The nvallability of this defense seemed to depend upon the age
amd the rank of the accused, and the state of battle existing at the
time of the offense, Agoin it would seem high-handed procedure to hold
an enlisted man to the knorledge of the illegality of a particular act
vhen the international authorities themselves are in disagreement as to
its illesality or have never defined the act at all,

"A major problem the Airect cause of the furor about the Ilse Koch
cngse is the question of vhat should be the basis for the procedural and
substantive law to be enforced ngninst a conquered enemy nation, Should
the pinicipal lam of the conquercr, the municipel lav of the cccuplerd
nation, the fragments of interanticnal law on war crimes, or the old
relinable law of expediency ccotrol?”

Te say it is indeed fortunate for the accusel that he is helnz triled
at Goam by this military commission hecause re kncr that the law of expe-
diency will not control you members of the commissicn in admindstering
Justice to the accused, Teraki, Tadashi rho ras drafted into the Jananese
Army on September 28, 1944 na o corpsman second class private (See ansver to
Q. 3 of Airect examination of Teraki on Fifth Day of trial) an? sent to
Chichi Jima in the latter part of November 194, as a corpsman seccn® class.
At the time of the ineidents in February nd March 1945 he had been in the
Army five months an' he was only a non-commissioned officer vith the rating
of sergeant major, Not until after the en? of the war, on Auzust 20, 1945
vne he promoted tc and commimsioned as a secon’ lieutenant, surgeon, Imperial
Japanese m}-m' Reserve (See ansver to Q. 8 to Teraki on Fifth Day of trial at‘l
Exhibit 7,

e are confident you will be guided by Naval Courts and Boards in
arriving at your decision particularly Section 27 vhich states: "To ccnsti-
tuke a crime both eriminal intent and g prohibvited act must concur,

FACTS OF THE TASE

The facts in thls case are that Teraokl, Tadashl, a young graduate doe-
tcr vithout any internship experience ma drafte? into the Jananese Army on
September 28, 1944 as a private secon’ class an' sent to Chichi Jima, He
was attached to the 308th Independient Battalion commanded by Major Matoba,
Sueo. At the time of the incidents he had been in the Army but five montha
and he vas a probationary Acctor with the rating of sergeant major, He was
ordered tc remove liver and flesh from the bo'ies of certain executed
prisoners of war, This Teraki Aid, by orders of his superior officer, the
commanding officer of the 'attalion, Major Matoba, The prosecuticn allege
this constituted the fol owing crimes: Specification 1, 4 Aisrespect of
the grave of a prisoner of mar on February 23, 1945; Specification 2.

The prevention of the honorahle burial of a priscner of var on February 23,
1945; Specification 3., The prevention of the honorable burial of a nriscner
of var on February 25, 1945; Specification 4. The nrevention of the
honerable burial of a prisoner of mar on Marech 26, 1945 nn! in specification
5 thereby causing the death of the nriscner of rar on March 26, 15,
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The facts in the incicdent set forth in speeificntions 4 and 5 are thnt
Terakl mas crdéred to remove the flesh nnd liver nml perform a dissection
upcn the ‘nrisoner as soon as the priscner was executed, He arrived upon

the scehe as Nakamura was about tc eut the neck of the priscner mith his
sword by orders of Captaln Satec vho ras in charpe of the scene, After the
execution hnd been earried out and in the presence of Captain Sato, Teraki
proceeded to earry ocut his orders and A1 remove the liver frcm the dead
boly of the priscner. The prosecution have alleged that the aets of Teraki
constituted both prevention of honorable burial and murder or assault vith
intent to kill or murder.

ARGUMENT OF DEFENSE

It is moat unfortunate that the nrcgecution mas not required in this

' case to set forth the lan and custops of war said to have heen violated in

specification 5 because ve vill orotably never knovw just vhat crime it -as

| sought to charge Teraki rith in this snecification 5., Is it murder? Is it

assault with intent to kill or murder? Is Terakl charged as a principal
in the second degree for the commisslion of a crime ap? if so what crime?

In 26 Am, Jur, "Homicide" section 606, Indictment, it is said: "The
general rules relating te inlictments for eriminal offenses cbviocusly con-
| trel the general requirements of indictments for attempt to kill or assault
| with intent tc kill ,.. The intent tc kill (People v. Bashie, 306 I11, 341,
13" N.E. 809) an’ sufficient physical aets to constitute the crime must be
nllegei,"

In Section 608 Ibid the rule is: "The zeneral principles ~cverning
the 7ivine of instructions in eriminnl enses in the mnin gevern mattera of
instructions in prosecutions for assault with intent to kill, The jury
shoul? be instructed that befcre they can return a wverdict of zullty they
must find from the eviience that the accused entertained a desirn to kill,"

citing in footnote 13 State v, McGuire, 8, Conn., 470, 80 A, 761, 38 LRA
US) 1045; State v, Matheson, 142 Iova 414, 120 N.”. s 134 Am,St.Rep,
426; State v, Kodat, 158 Mo, 125, 59 5.7, 73, 51 LRA 509, 81 Am,St.Rep,
292; Hightower v, State, 56 Tex, Crim. Rep, 248, 119 5,7, 691, 133 Am,St,
Rep. m;}state v. Taylor 70 Vt, 139, 39 A, 447, 42 IRA 673, 67 Am.St.
Rep. [

From Section 11 IhMA, we quote "urder nt common law is the killing of
cne human beinz by another vith malice aforethcurht, either express or im-

plied, that is, W-“ (e have
supnlied the underseccring,

i. The argument of the defense iz that the facta of t e case as brourht
out by the testimony and evidence flurinz the trial Ao not constitute murder
at common law or by statate or constitute assault mith intent to kill of
murder.,

Kanemori, Kasutoshi, a corvsman sergeant, testified in answer to Q, 27
that he heard about an execution about 1030 in the mornins when he rent to
battalion headquarters sc he stayed an? Captain Satc told the zuar! to lead
the prisoner to the place of execution and he, Kanemori, folloved =ith the
other assembled people, On the may he sav Teraki walking along a ov-path,
Kanemori went to the dispensary to et a scalpel an? vhen he returned the
priscner was Jdead, On ecross-examination Knnemori testified that Terakl diAd
not exchange any vwords with either C.ptain Szto or Corporal Nakamura but that
Captain Sato mas showing Nakamura how to stan! an? what stance to take
and Nakamura had his sword Arawn an? two or three minutes later vhen he
returned the priscner had been executed., Corporal Nakamura was ptanding by
the corpse and his sword was still wet, Captain Sato was at scene of the
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execution until the conolusion of the ®issection and ordered the hurial aften
the Aissection an! Captaln Satc ordered the execution, Kanemori said he was
just observing, "I was observins —ith the rest of them hom Captain Satc was
tellinc someone to 7ive the nriscner a ciinrette, telling someone tc hlind=
fol® the priscner, et cetera.®

| oropounce’! to him at Surame Priscn that Medica' Officer Terakl sat the

Iso Shunichiro, a prosecution vitness, testified he had been crdered to
fe tc this “lasection hy Smrgeon Sakabe,

Nakamura, Shizenobu, the executioner of this priscner mas tried and con-
victed together with Major Fatobn, Lieatenant General Tachi™a,a nnd Captain
Sato, for the murder of this nriscner, (See specification 4, Charge I,
Hurf‘er, trial -f Lieutenant General Tachibana, et al, exhibit 1 cf thiu case,
an’ exhibit 2, the interrocatories of Nakamura,) Haknmu:m, Shi~enchu is
confine? at Sugamo Prison, Tokyo an? he testifled in onswer to 1nt—nrrngntnrler

priscner lown in accordance ~ith orders of Captain Satc (2lst Interragatory
exhibit 2) and in answer to 27 interropatory "Medical Officer Teraki said to
me, 'As it i1s lote an' the air raida will come, please dc it quickly,'"

In answer to 60th Interroratcry "Sc far ns you reeall Aid you behead

| because you were told something hy Surjeon Teraki?" Nakamura answered: "No
{lthere was no such thin?, because Surgeon Teraki had no right to rive me an

lorder,"

Sato, Kesakichi, a former captain, IJA, testified hy answer to inter-
rogatories propounied to him at Sucamo Prison, Tokyo, There he is serving a
1ife sentence ns follows to the 21st question: ""hen I went to the acene,
jilthe prisoper was already aitting dorn, After waiting about fifteen minutes,
ln messenzer came nnd sald that Sergeant Furushikn was not around, At that
time Terakl cnme an sail, "Please execute quickly as there will be air raids
and they will interfere mith the instruction,'! so, as there was nothin7 else
to do, I gave orders to Corporal Nakamu-'a and carried out the execution?"

From the Board of Investigation inquiring inte ¥ar Crimes on Chichi Jima

[the interrogation of Major Matoba which vas introduced into evidence at the
]H:rin" of Lieutenant General Tachibana, Major Matoba, et al, was read inte
vidence at the instant trial and in answer to Q. 125, llntobu ia alleged to
ve answered: "I perscnally Aid not know that Hall vas returned to my unit,
ornporal Nokamura received orders from either Sergeant Major ada, Captain
to, or Lieutenant Ono. Homewver the responsibility lies with me. But it so
aprens that I did not give the order personally. Therefore Corporal Naka=-
ura woul? knom vho pgave him the order,"

| Q. 128 "By whose order mas Doctor Teraki to cut out the liver and Aeliver
4t to you?" Ansver "By my order,"

Terakl, Tadashi, the accused in the instant case, toock the stand a8 a
witness in his ovn behalf and testified ns follows:

Ans, to Q. 20 "I participated in cnly that part of the incident rhere
the liver =na removed,"

Ans, to Q. 28 "hen I arrived at the scene vith my auxiliary ccrpsmen
I saw ahout twenty perscns pathered at the scene of the execution,
Nearinz the crowd forme? by these persons I saw about ten meters amay
from this cromd a priscner of war blindfolded and sittinz squatting on
the ground,"
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Q. 31 "o as in charge of the scene?
Ans, "Captain Sato,"

Q. 38 "You testifled previously that when you arrived the ~riscner of
mar vas blindfolded and squatting. ™hat hapnened after thatl®

Ans, ™hen I arrived Corporal Nakamura vwas standing behind the prisoner
mith his sword already dwvawn, Four or five meters away from Corporal
Naknamurn on the other side of the prisoner mas Captain Sato, Corporal
Nakamura vas taking up his stance behind the rrisoner and swinging his
svordl in rraetice, Soon thereafter he took up his final nosition and
brouzht the sword Aon on the prisoner, The prisoner fell forward
after the blow lande?,"

Q. 39 "Appraximately hom many minutes after your arrivnl at the scene
did this take place?”
| Ans. "This took place one or tro minutes nfter my arrival,"

Q. 40 "Did you speak to Naknmura before he executed the nrisoner?"
Ans, "I AiA not say anything to him,"

Q. 41 "DiA you speak tc Captain Sato?"
Ans, "No, I aleso A1 not speak to Captain Sateo,®

, Q. 54 "Do you knor vhen Cantain Sato left the scene?"
A, Then I left the scene he vns still there,"

On cross-examinaticn in ansver to many questions Teraki testified he
i not smeak tc Naoknmura at all and he #i4 not spea% to Captain Sato until
nf'ter the execution.

&s the the corpsmen, Terikl testified in answer to the Q, "Did you
rder them to be present at the scene of the execution?" Ana, "I Aid not
er them tc zo to the scene of the execution, I told the~ that if any
lesired to vitneass the removnl of the liver ~nd flesh that they accommany me
o the scene of the execution,”

This answer hrought forth the anger of the judge advoeate an® the judge
advooate's next question mas ™ind this is the vay in which you were roing to
rry out the orders of Major Matoba of whom you were in such mortal dread,

8 that true?" Unruffled nnd sincerely Teraki nathetically answered this
ueation: "I was hoping that Captain Satec would leave the scene by the time
had intended to report to Major Matoba that I had conlucted a Aissection and
at the auxiliary corpsmen had cbserved it. Now it wasn't I alone who mas
fear of Major Matoha, In this unit 21l the men eapecially thcse below
e rank of non-commissioned officers feared an? hated the unit commander,
ere vas no danger of these men informins Majecr Matoba on me. However, as
ntaln Satc vas standing hy and Cantnin Sato ras standing in close relation-
p mith the major it was highly nrobably that he would report the failure .
ccnduct a Alssection on my mart to the major, nnd as long as Cantain Sato
8 looking on, I thought that I coul? not Aispense with the dissecticn and
erefore I resclved to carry ¢at the dissection,”

Such is the testimony and evidence in this case and me maintalin that
e judge advocate has not proven the ncecused pullty of murder at coamon
v, murder by any statute we know of or pullty of assault with intent to

11 or murder or that Teraki 1s guilty as a principal in the second
gree,
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The evidence and testimony clearly shows there was no intent on the
part of TERAKI to kill,

The evidence and testimony clearly shows TERAKI was not a partici- |
l pant in the homicide because he did not aid, abet, assist, encourage or ' {
advise the killing with the intention of encouraging and abetting the
commission thereof, (26 Am, Jur, "Homicide" See, 60)

' REFUTATION OF JUDGE ADVOCATE'S POSITION
It 48 impossible to know the position of the judge advocate as to

| this Specification 5 because of the vague generalities encompassed 1n
|l the worda "this in violation of the law and customs of war,"

| The rile of law a3 to alding and abetting is: "In order to be
present, a.ding and abetting in the commisslion of the offense, the acoused
must be so situated as to render some £id to him who directly verpetrates
the homicidal act, (citing fom. v. Knapp, 9 Pick, (Mass) 496, 20 Am, Deec,
491,)s.+40ne who is merely present and sees that a homicide is about to be
committed, and yet in no manner interferes, 1s not thereby deemed to
participate in the commission of the offense, (citing in footnote 7,
Hicks v United States, 150 U,S. 442, 37 L, ed, 1137, 14 S. Ct, Li4; People
v. Crone, 293 I11, 321, 127 N,E, 646, 12 A,L.R, 267, and many other cases.)
| (26 Am, Jur, "Homicide" Sec. 60)

| Any holding by ths judge advceate that the accused TERAKI aided and
| abetted NAKAMURA and Captain SATO is clearly refuted by the testimony and
| evidence in the case much of which me have quoted in order to point out to

the Commission that TERAKI did not ald, abet, or encourage the killers, .

i GONCLUSTON |

; You have heard the judge advocate discuss disinterrment of dead bodies,
| the prevention of honorable burial and murder, and orincipals and access-
| orlies to murder, He has explained to you how in some localities disin-

| terrment ls only a misdemeanor., He talks about the domestic laws of
civilized countries and cites the ex post fact SCAP laws on superior
orders, But gentlemen of the commission, he still leaves unanswered the |
question under what laws and in viclation of what laws 1s the acoused
TERAKI, Tadnshi beinz here tried,

Is it the municipal law of Japan?
Is it the fragmentary internmational law of war?
Is 1s the vague and unwritten customs of war?

Yes, it 1s indeed fortunate that TERAKI is being tried here on Cuam
by this Military Commission for you will I am sure not be confused by the
complexities of law sought to be injected into this trial, but vill
determine vhether in faot TERAKI participated in the execution and rhether
he had the requisite eriminal intent to commit murder,

Since you are all military men you realize that this probatiorary
doctor given the rating of a sergeant major had no chance to speak to
Captain SATO or to Corporal NAKAMURA as NAKAMURA stood there svwineing his
| sword over the head of the bound and blindfolded prisoner of war., You

realige full well how impossible it was for TERAKI to publicly to oppose
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the orders of the division commander, Lieutenant General TACHIBANA, or
the battalion commander, Major MATOBA or to interfere in any way with the

i planned carrying out of these orders by MATOBA's close officer, Captain
SATO,

\
l From the evidence you have heard that in Chichi Jima there were none
| who dared to oppose Lieutenant General TACHIBANA and Major MATOBA,

TERAKI had felt and seen mith vhat physical violence Major MATOBA
' punished officers and enlisted men nlike vho did not jump vhen the
"Tiger of Chichi Jima", this Major MATOBA, spoke,

It would seem that the julge advocate asks you to find TERAKI gullty
of murder because he did not publicly dencunce the execution and opnose
Captein SATO that day,.

. You members of the Commission non mast decide vhether ln your
| honest opinion TERAKI, Tadcshi committed wzurder when he walked upon the
scene of this planned executlon and saw the executioner Corovoral NAKAMURA
< | about to decapitate with his sword the prisoner, It mas only a gquestion

of a minute or trwo yes perhiapa only a fem seconds and the foul: deed was
done by NAKAMURA.

That pentlemen of the Commission is the issue in this case, Did
|| TERAKI, Tadashi, a probation~ry officer, thereby commit murder? Wo
| are very sure that your answer will be that you find TERAKI, Tadashi
| not guilty of mwder asd you do therefore acquit him of the charge of
murder,

| | y i WA
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